BUSINESS

PAPER

ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

To be held at 6:00 pm on

Monday 28 November 2022

Council Chambers, Level 10,
Council Administration Building, 41 Burelli Street, Wollongong

(Note: In accordance with the Code of Meeting Practice, Councillors will be able to attend and participate

in this meeting via audio visual link)

| Order of Business | Members

1 Opening Meeting Lord Mayor —

2 Acknowledgement of Traditional Councillor Gordon Bradbery AM (Chair)
Custodians Deputy Lord Mayor —

3 Civic Prayer Councillor Tania Brown

4 Apologies and Applications for Leave Councillor Ann Martin
of Absence by Councillors Councillor Cameron Walters

5 Confirmation of Minutes of Ordinary Councillor Cath Blakey
Council Meeting Councillor David Brown

6 Confirmation of Minutes of Councillor Dom Figliomeni
Extraordinary Ordinary Council Councillor Elisha Aitken
Meeting Councillor Janice Kershaw

7 Conflicts of Interest Councillor John Dorahy

8 Petitions and Presentations Councillor Linda Campbell

9 Confirmation of Minutes of Council Councillor Mithra Cox
Committee Meeting Councillor Richard Martin

10 Public Access Forum

11 Call of the Agenda

12 Lord Mayoral Minute

13 Urgent ltems

14 Reports to Council

15 Reports of Committees

16 Items Laid on the Table

17 Notices of Motions(s)/Questions with
Notice

18 Notice of Rescission Motion

19 Confidential Business

20 Conclusion of Meeting

QUORUM -7 MEMBERS TO BE PRESENT



Statement of Ethical Obligations

In accordance with clause 3.23 of the Model Code of Meeting Practice, released by the NSW Office of
Local Government, Councillors are reminded of their Oath or Affirmation of Office made under section
233A of the Act and their obligations under Council’s Code of Conduct to disclose and appropriately
manage conflicts of interest

OATH OR AFFIRMATION OF OFFICE

The Oath or Affirmation is taken by each Councillor whereby they swear or declare to undertake the
duties of the office of councillor in the best interests of the people of Wollongong and Wollongong City
Council and that they will faithfully and impartially carry out the functions, powers, authorities and
discretions vested in them under the Local Government Act 1993 or any other Act to the best of their
ability and judgment.

CONFLICTS OF INTEREST

All Councillors must declare and manage any conflicts of interest they may have in matters being
considered at Council meetings in accordance with the Council’s Code of Conduct. All declarations of
conflicts of interest and how the conflict of interest was managed will be recorded in the minutes of the
meeting at which the declaration was made.

Councillors attending a meeting by audio-visual link must declare and manage any conflicts of interest
they may have in matters being considered at the meeting in accordance with Council’s Code of
Conduct. Where a councillor has declared a pecuniary or significant non-pecuniary conflict of interest in
a matter being discussed at the meeting, the councillor’s audio-visual link to the meeting will be
suspended or terminated for the time during which the matter is being considered or discussed by
Council, or at any time during which Council is voting on the matter.

Councillors should ensure that they are familiar with Parts 4 and 5 of the Wollongong City Council Code
of Conduct for Councillors in relation to their obligations to declare and manage conflicts of interests.

Staff should also be mindful of their obligations under the Wollongong City Council Code of Conduct for
Staff when preparing reports and answering questions during meetings of Council.
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MINUTES ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL

at 6:00 pm

Monday 7 November 2022

I Present
Lord Mayor (Acting) — Councillor Tania Brown (in the Chair)
Councillor Ann Martin Councillor Janice Kershaw
Councillor Cameron Walters Councillor Linda Campbell
Councillor Cath Blakey Councillor Mithra Cox
Councillor David Brown Councillor Richard Martin

Councillor Dom Figliomeni
Councillor Elisha Aitken

I In Attendance

General Manager Greg Doyle
Director Infrastructure + Works, Connectivity Assets + Liveable City Joanne Page
Director Planning + Environment, Future City + Neighbourhoods Linda Davis
Director Corporate Services, Connected + Engaged City Renee Campbell
Director Community Services, Creative + Innovative City Kerry Hunt
Chief Financial Officer Brian Jenkins
Chief Information Officer (attended via audio-visual link) Ingrid McAlpin
Manager Governance + Customer Service Todd Hopwood
Manager City Strategy Chris Stewart
Manager Project Delivery Glenn Whittaker
Manager Open Space + Environmental Services Paul Tracey
Manager Community Cultural + Economic Development Sue Savage

Note: In accordance with the Code of Meeting Practice, participants in the meeting can participate via
audio visual link. Those who participated via audio visual link are indicated in the attendance
section of the Minutes.

Note: Council resolved on 17 October 2022 to grant the Lord Mayor Councillor Bradbery a leave of
absence from 27 October to 9 November 2022.

I Apologies
Min No.
- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor D Brown
seconded Councillor A Martin that the apology tendered on behalf of Councillor John Dorahy be
accepted.
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CLOSED SESSION

ITEM C1

CONFIDENTIAL: Domestic Waste Management T13/22 Collection Services Contract

Reason for Confidentiality

This report recommends that this item be considered in Closed Session to the
exclusion of the press and public in accordance with Section 10A(2)(c) of the Local
Government Act, 1993, as the report contains information that would, if disclosed,
confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or
proposes to conduct) business.
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CONFLICTS OF INTERESTS

Councillor Cox declared a pecuniary conflict of interest in Items 1 — Post Exhibition — Former
Corrimal Coke Works Site — Draft Planning Agreement and 2 — Draft Planning Proposal —
Former Corrimal Coke Works Site — Foreshore Building Line Map Amendment, as she lives
in close proximity to the site and as such it has the ability to affect property prices in her
street. Councillor Cox advised she would depart the meeting during debate and voting on the
items.

Councillor A Martin declared a non-significant, non-pecuniary interest in ltem 1 — Post
Exhibition - Former Corrimal Coke Works Site — draft Planning Agreement and 2 - Draft
Planning Proposal — Former Corrimal Coke Works Site — Foreshore Building Line Map
Amendment, due to her employment with the Department of Planning and Environment. As
she does not work on planning matters related to the Wollongong LGA, Councillor A Martin
advised she would remain in the meeting during debate and voting on the item.

Councillor A Martin declared a non-significant, non-pecuniary interest in ltem 3 — Post
exhibition — Animating Wollongong Public Art Strategy 2022-32, as she is a contemporary
artist who has previously managed public art projects in Sydney and Western Sydney. She
was also commissioned in 1998 by Wollongong City Council to make and install a temporary
artwork to celebrate the 1988 10 year anniversary of the opening of the IPAC building and
which was removed by IPAC some years ago. As she no longer works in that field, Councillor
A Martin advised she would remain in the meeting during debate and voting on the item.

Councillor R Martin declared a non-significant, non-pecuniary interest in Item 5 — E1000255 -
lllawarra Performing Arts Centre (IPAC) - Building Works - Outcome of Procurement Process
due to his role as a board member of IPAC. Councillor R Martin advised he would remain in
the meeting during debate and voting on the item.

CONFIRMATION OF MINUTES OF ORDINARY MEETING OF COUNCIL HELD ON
MONDAY, 17 OCTOBER 2022

izt (efelV]N\(ofIRSIus{=io]NuaR(el| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that the Minutes of the Ordinary Meeting of Council
held on Monday, 17 October 2022 (a copy having been circulated to Councillors) be taken as
read and confirmed.

PRESENTATION - 25 YEARS OF SERVICE - COUNCILLOR JANICE KERSHAW

The Lord Mayor (Acting) Councillor Tania Brown acknowledged the Outstanding Service
Award, awarded to Councillor Janice Kershaw, in special recognition of 25 years of service in
NSW local government.

PUBLIC ACCESS FORUM

ITEM TITLE NAME OF SPEAKER
Noti : : : : , Colin McGuinness
9 otice of Motion - Cquncﬂlqr Richard Martin - Traffic Concerns -
Bulli Hospital Redevelopment For Recommendation
Neil Hinds
9 Notice of Motion - Councillor Richard Martin - Traffic Concerns - Old Bulli Hospital
Bulli Hospital Redevelopment Community Group

For Recommendation
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(efe]¥]\[of RS =STe]RU[0])| - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that all speakers be thanked for their presentation and
invited to table their notes.

CALL OF THE AGENDA

ofelu/\\[e IS RI=SIONEAN[6] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that the staff recommendations for Items 5-8 inclusive
be adopted as a block.

ITEM A - LORD MAYORAL MINUTE - FREEDOM OF ENTRY

ofelu]\[e] IS si=tSiolNUaR[e]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
T Brown seconded Councillor D Brown that Wollongong City Council grant Freedom of Entry
to HMAS Wollongong on Saturday 26 November 2022.

URGENT MATTER WITHOUT NOTICE

Councillor Figliomeni moved a PROCEDURAL MOTION that an Urgency Item be brought
forward in relation to erosion at the Windang entrance to Lake lllawarra.

ofelu]\\[ef ISR =SIo]RELJ[0]Y] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Figliomeni seconded Councillor A Martin that Council, as a matter of urgency, consider
Business Without Notice regarding the erosion at the Windang entrance to Lake lllawarra.

Following the Resolution of Council, the Lord Mayor (Acting), Councillor Tania Brown, ruled in
accordance with Clause 9.3(b) of Council’'s Code of Meeting Practice that the matter was of
great urgency and required a decision by the Council before the next scheduled ordinary
meeting of Council.

A PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor D Brown seconded Councillor
A Martin that the Urgency Item be considered after the ordinary reports to Council and prior to
the Confidential ltem.

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

Due to a disclosed conflict of interest, Councillor Cox departed the meeting at 6:22pm and
was not present for the debate nor voting on Items 1 and 2. Councillor Cox returned to the
meeting at 6:35 pm at the conclusion of ltem 2.

ITEM 1 - POST EXHIBITION - FORMER CORRIMAL COKE WORKS SITE - DRAFT
PLANNING AGREEMENT

- RESOLVED on the motion of Councillor D Brown seconded
Councillor Figliomeni that The General Manager be delegated authority to finalise and
execute the Planning Agreement (Attachment 1) between Wollongong City Council and
LegPro70 Pty Ltd, as trustee for LegPro 70 Unit Trust, and lllawarra Coke Company Pty Ltd
for the former Corrimal Coke Works site.

Councillors Kershaw, R Martin, D Brown, A Martin, Campbell, Aitken, Walters, Figliomeni and
T Brown

Councillors Blakey
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ITEM 2 - DRAFT PLANNING PROPOSAL - FORMER CORRIMAL COKE WORKS SITE -
FORESHORE BUILDING LINE MAP AMENDMENT

(ofe]Vj (eI RI=CIolnuag[e] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that -

1 Adraft Planning Proposal be prepared to amend the Foreshore Building Line Map for the
former Corrimal Coke Works site, to reflect the site’s adopted Master Plan 2021 and the
planned realignment of North Corrimal Creek.

2 The draft Planning Proposal be forwarded to the Department of Planning and
Environment seeking a Gateway Determination to enable public exhibition.

3 The draft Planning Proposal be exhibited for a minimum period of 14 days, or as
specified in the Gateway Determination.

A post exhibition report be prepared for Council’s consideration.

The NSW Department of Planning and Environment be requested to issue authority to
the General Manager to exercise plan making delegations, in accordance with Council’s
resolution of 26 November 2012.

6 That Council notes the intention to place notifications on Planning Certificates issued in
the development area advising potential landowners of:

a. the location of the Grey-headed Flying-fox Camp, and

b. any long-term Site Management Plan (SMP) required in association with any future
proposed on-site encapsulation of contaminated material.

ITEM 3 - POST EXHIBITION - ANIMATING WOLLONGONG PUBLIC ART STRATEGY
2022-2032

ofelu)\N eI RI=SIeINEAN[0] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor A Martin that -

1 Council adopt the Animating Wollongong Public Art Strategy 2022-2032 incorporating an
amendment to Action 1.2.6, changing the word ‘Champion’ to ‘Require’ and an additional
Action,1.3.3, a provision or clause be included in the draft Wollongong City Centre DCP
Chapter addressing requirements for Public Art as a medium term priority.

2  Council note the Animating Wollongong Public Art Strategy 2022-2032 Implementation
Plan.

3  Council note the Animating Wollongong Public Art Strategy 2022-2032 Engagement
Report.

4  The next update of the Wollongong DCP include consideration of a section that requires
an arts plan on all future development over 5,000 square metres.

The variation moved by Councillor A Martin (the addition of wording to Point 1 “Incorporating
an amendment to Action 1.2.6, changing the word ‘Champion’ to ‘Require’ and an additional
Action,1.3.3, a provision or clause be included in the draft Wollongong City Centre DCP
Chapter addressing requirements for Public Art as a medium term priority’) was accepted by
the mover and seconder.
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ITEM 4 - PUBLIC EXHIBITION - TREE MANAGEMENT POLICY
(ofe]U/\\ [ IRSHE{=IOINERN[0])N - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor Cox
seconded Councillor D Brown that -

1  The following proposed draft documents be placed on public exhibition for a minimum of
28 days and concurrently with the recently endorsed review of the Vegetation Chapters
of the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009:

a Tree Management Policy
b  Managing trees in Wollongong — A customer guide

2  Following the exhibition period, a report outlining the submissions received during the
exhibition period be prepared for Council to consider including any post exhibition
revised amendment for adoption.

ITEM 5 - E1000255 - ILLAWARRA PERFORMING ARTS CENTRE (IPAC) - BUILDING
WORKS - OUTCOME OF PROCUREMENT PROCESS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 750)

- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that Council receive the report on the procurement
process followed and note the engagement of Project Coordination (Australia) Pty Ltd for
IPAC refurbishment works, in the sum of $3,843,400.00, including GST.

ITEM 6 - SEPTEMBER 2022 FINANCIALS

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of ltems (refer
Minute Number 750)

ofelu/\ (eI RI=SIo]HUA[0] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that -
1 The financials be received and noted.

2  Council endorse the proposed changes to the Capital Budget for September 2022.

ITEM 7 - STATEMENT OF INVESTMENT - SEPTEMBER 2022

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 750)

ofe]U/\\ (e IR {=SI0INERN(e] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that Council receive the Statement of Investment for
September 2022.

ITEM 8 - TABLING OF RETURNS OF DISCLOSURES OF PECUINARY INTEREST AND
OTHER MATTERS - NOVEMBER 2022

The following staff recommendation was adopted as part of the Block Adoption of Items (refer
Minute Number 750)

(ofelv]\ (o] ISR S{=tS{o]NURR[6]N] - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that Council note the tabling of the Returns of
Disclosures of Interest as required by Part 4 of the Model Code of Conduct.
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Variation

Variation

ITEM 9 - NOTICE OF MOTION - COUNCILLOR RICHARD MARTIN - TRAFFIC
CONCERNS - BULLI HOSPITAL REDEVELOPMENT

- RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
R Martin seconded Councillor Kershaw that Recognising that Landcom are in the process of
developing the Old Bulli Hospital Site and noting that Councillors may not influence the
Development Application process -

1 An Information Note be delivered to Councillors to enable them to update community
members appropriately. The Information Note should include -

a Councils expectation around traffic and parking studies to be conducted to support a
proposed Development Application for a significant redevelopment

b  Existing Council traffic studies that have been conducted for the broader precinct
around Bulli.

URGENCY ITEM - WINDANG EROSION
MOVED by Councillor Figliomeni seconded Councillor Aitken that Council -

1 Write to the Hon Kevin Anderson MP, Minister for Lands and Water and Minister for
Hospitality and Racing, requesting that the Minister urgently instructs the Department to
address the erosion caused by tidal currents, boat wash and other environmental factors
at the Windang entrance to Lake lllawarra (opposite the Windang Caravan Park).

2 Request that funding is made available to replace at least one of the now derelict jetties.

Request that an area |s provided to allow for the safe swimming of children.
— RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion (AMENDMENT) of
CounC|IIor A Martin seconded Councillor Campbell that immediate safety improvements are
made to the foreshore park including securing appropriate fencing at the existing playground.
Additionally officers investigate the potential relocation of the current children’s playground
on the northern foreshore; and that temporary safety fencing be replaced with permanent
fencing as a budget priority on or before the next quarterly budget review.

The variation moved by Councillor Blakey (the addition of wording ‘This includes the Lake
lllawarra Entrance Options Study’ to point 2) was accepted by the mover and seconder.

The variation moved by Councillor Campbell (the removal of Points 2 to 4 -

2. That Council officers continue to develop effective plans in conjunction with new minister
the Hon Kevin Anderson MP, Minister for Lands and Water, and Paul Scully MP by both
Council and State government agencies consistent with the Adopted Lake lllawarra Estuary
Management Plan . The relocation and fencing in point 1 be undertaken to be completed
prior to summer 2023;

3. That Council continue to work through the implementation plan and priorities of the 2021
State Government adopted and certified Lake lllawarra Estuary Management Plan. This
includes the Lake lllawarra Entrance Options Study works planned and in engineering study
stages to ameliorate and manage the scouring of the northern foreshore , the resultant deep
and fast moving tidal flows on the Council owned foreshore and entrance to Lake lllawarra.
Regular updates be provided to residents , including those in suburbs in Lake foreshore
areas.

4. That Council provide Windang residents accurate background information outlining the
actions that Council has agreed upon and including an onsite information stall with updated
information on funds received , priorities for major works undertaken already and priorities for
future projects planned.) was accepted by the mover and seconder.

A PROCEDURAL MOTION was MOVED by Councillor Walters that the AMENDMENT be
PUT.
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Councillors Kershaw, R Martin, D Brown, Campbell, Aitken, Walters, Figliomeni

Councillors A Martin, Cox, Blakey and T Brown

Councillor A Martin’s AMENDMENT on being PUT to the VOTE was CARRIED.

Councillors D Brown, A Martin, Campbell, Cox, Blakey, T Brown
Councillors Kershaw, R Martin, Aitken, Walters, Figliomeni

The AMENDMENT then became the MOTION and on being PUT to the VOTE was CARRIED
UNANIMOULSY

DEPARTURE OF COUNCILLOR

During debate and prior to voting on the Urgency Item, Councillor R Martin departed and
returned to the meeting, the time being from 7:12 pm to 7:13 pm.

During debate and prior to voting on Item 10, Councillor Cox departed and returned to the
meeting, the time being from 7:23 pm to 7:24 pm.

CLOSED COUNCIL SESSION

The Lord Mayor called for a motion to close the meeting to consider a Confidential item,
which deals with a report to Council regarding —

e Domestic Waste Management procurement

Prior to putting the Motion to the vote, the Lord Mayor advised the meeting that Item C1
relates to a report to Council regarding domestic waste management procurement and that it
is classified as Confidential for the following reason —

a Section 10A(2) (c) of the Local Government Act 1993, permits the meeting to be
closed to the public, as the report contains information that would, if disclosed, confer
a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting (or
proposed to conduct) business.

As no representations were received from members of the public objecting to the closure of
this section of the meeting, the Lord Mayor advised that the webcast will be paused while
Council considers these items.

ool [ IRSTNE{=CIOINORN[e]N - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
Walters seconded Councillor Kershaw that —

1 The meeting move into Closed Session to consider a report to Council regarding —

a Domestic Waste Management T13/22 Collection Services Contract, in accordance
with Section 10A(2) (c) of the Local Government Act 1993, permits the meeting to
be closed to the public, as the report contains information that would, if disclosed,
confer a commercial advantage on a person with whom the Council is conducting
(or proposed to conduct) business.

2 On balance, the public interest in preserving the confidentiality of the information
supplied outweighs the public interest in openness and transparency in Council decision-
making by discussing the matters in open meeting.

The MOTION on being PUT to the VOTE was CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY.

The meeting moved into Closed Session, the time being 7:55 pm.
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ITEM C1 - DOMESTIC WASTE MANAGEMENT T13/22 COLLECTION SERVICES
CONTRACT

sy (efelvl\N[elIRSII=S(oInuaN[e]) - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor
D Brown seconded Councillor Walters that -

1 In accordance with s55(3)(i) of the Local Government Act 1993 and due to extenuating
circumstances relating to significant supply chain disruptions impacting waste collection
service providers, that will impact on the ability to undertake a successful tender
process, Council not invite tenders for Waste Collection Services

2  Council delegates authority to the General Manager to negotiate an extension to the
current T13/22 contract via Deed of Agreement for a period of up to 2 years (1 year + 1
year)

3  Council endorses the proposal to undertake a subsequent joint tender for a waste
collection services contract with Shellharbour City Council for the period commencing
after the negotiated extension

4  Council endorses an application be made to the Australian Competition and Consumer
Commission (ACCC) for approval to undertake a joint procurement for Waste collection
services with Shellharbour City Council

761 - RESOLVED UNANIMOUSLY on the motion of Councillor

Walters seconded Councillor R Martin that the meeting move out of Closed Session and into

Open Council.

Council resumed into Open Session at 7:59 pm.

OPEN COUNCIL SESSION

RESOLUTIONS FROM THE CLOSED SESSION OF COUNCIL

The Lord Mayor advised the meeting of the Council’s Resolutions whilst in Closed Session
(refer Minute Number 760).

THE MEETING CONCLUDED AT 8:00 Pm

Confirmed as a correct record of proceedings at the Ordinary Meeting of the Council of the City of
Wollongong held on Monday 28 November 2022.

Chairperson
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ITEMA1 ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

PRESENTER: Audit Office of NSW — Financial Statements

Council officers have prepared the draft 2021-2022 Annual Financial Statements in accordance with the
Local Government Act 1993 (as amended), the Regulations, the Australian Accounting Standards and
the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

The draft Financial Statements were presented to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee on
18 November 2022. At that meeting, the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee resolved that the
General Purpose Financial Statements and the Special Purpose Financial Statements be recommended
to Council for endorsement and the signing of the Statements by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor
and Management.

The Statements have been reviewed by Council’s Auditors, Audit Office of NSW, and are presented to
Council for an opinion to be formed in the prescribed format (as attached). The Audit Office of NSW will
address the meeting to provide an overview of their Audit for the year ended 30 June 2022.

RECOMMENDATIONS

1 The Annual Financial Statements be endorsed and an opinion be formed in the prescribed format
(as per Attachments 2 and 3) on the General Purpose Financial Statement and the Special Purpose
Financial Statement.

2 The audited Financial Statements and the Auditor's report be presented to the public at an
extraordinary meeting following the finalisation of the audit and public notification period.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Brian Jenkins, Chief Financial Officer
Authorised by:  Renee Campbell, Director Corporate Services - Connected + Engaged City

ATTACHMENTS

1 Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 30 June 2022

2 Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management on the General Purpose
Financial Statements

3 Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management on the Special Purpose
Financial Statements

4 Flowchart of the Annual Financial Statement Approval and Audit Process

BACKGROUND

The Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires Council to prepare financial statements for each
year and refer them for audit as soon as practicable after the end of that year.

A council’s financial statements must include:
1 A General Purpose Financial Statement;
2  any other matter prescribed by the regulations, and

3 a statement in the approved form by the Council as to its opinion on the General Purpose Financial
Statement.

The Annual Financial Statement Approval and Audit Process is outlined in Attachment 4 of this report.
This process is largely governed by the requirements of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended)
having regard to the timing of Council meetings. In accordance with this process, the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee makes recommendation to the Council regarding the signing of the Financial
Statements based on the Committee’s assessment of them. The Annual Financial Statements would
normally be presented to Council prior to 31 October 2022. This year, Council sought and received an



74 11

wollongong
ity of innovation

extension to 30 November 2022 from the Office of Local Government, to allow for time to process
indexation of additional asset classes at the request of the Audit Office.

An Executive Summary and Financial Commentary to the Statements are also prepared to provide an
overview of the Financial Statements. The Executive Summary and Financial Commentary are not
audited.

A preliminary pre-audit result was presented to Council on 29 August 2022. Through the finalisation of
the Financial Statements and the external audit process, variations have been made to the results
previously reported. These variations are discussed in further detail in the Financial Implications section
and did not have an impact on the fund result previously reported.

PROPOSAL

Section 413 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires the Council to form an opinion as
to whether Council’s Annual Financial Statements have been drawn up in accordance with the Local
Government Act and associated Codes and Australian Accounting Standards as prescribed by the
Regulations. The Statements are presented to Council for an opinion to be formed in the prescribed
format (see Attachments 2 and 3). Subsequent to these Statements being signed, Council’s Auditor will
present its Audit Report to Council.

Following the signing of the opinions and receiving the Auditor's Report, a copy of the Audited Financial
Statements will be submitted to the Office of Local Government in accordance with Section 417(5) of the
Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

Section 418 of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended) requires that Council, as soon as practical
after receiving a copy of the Auditor's Reports, fix a date for a meeting at which it proposes to present its
Audited Financial Statements, together with the Auditor’s Reports, to the public. The Council must give
public notice of the date of the meeting. Consequently, an advertisement is scheduled to appear on the
Council website shortly after the Council meeting held on Monday, 28 November 2022.

Section 420 of the Local Government Act 1993 provides that any person may make submissions to the
Council with respect to the Financial Statements and/or the Auditor's Reports and those submissions
must be made in writing and lodged with the Council within seven days of the public meeting. The date
of the Council meeting (public meeting) is the next Council meeting as resolved by Council.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

The Audit Office of NSW has been consulted throughout the preparation of the Annual Financial
Statements. The audit staff have been helpful in ensuring compliance with all accounting requirements.

Draft Financial Statements were presented to the Audit, Risk and Improvement Committee on
6 September 2022 (pre audit) and on 18 November 2022. At the later meeting, the Audit, Risk and
Improvement Committee resolved that:

1 The draft Annual Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022 be noted and received.

2 Subject to ARIC member acceptance of any adjustments required following receipt of the
Engagement Closing Report:

a The General Purpose Financial Reports be recommended to Council for endorsement and the
signing of the Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management, made
pursuant to Section 413[2][c] of the Local Government Act 1993 (as amended).

b  The Special Purpose Financial Reports be recommended to Council for endorsement and the
signing of the Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and Management, made
pursuant to the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

The Engagement Closing Report was received on Wednesday, 16 November 2022 with no proposed
adjustments noted within the Report.
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The Report on Infrastructure Assets as at 30 June 2022 is not included in the external audit process,

however, for completeness it was included in the pack provided to ARIC on 18 November 2022.

Executive, senior managers and significant senior officers were requested to ensure that all relevant
information with regards to the 2021-2022 transactions relating to their area/s of responsibility had either
been entered into the financial records or disclosed to the Chief Financial Officer.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of Our Wollongong Our Future 2032 Goal 4 “We are a connected
and engaged community”. It specifically delivers on the following:

Community Strategic Plan 2032 Delivery Program 2022-2026

4.8 Council’s resources are managed effectively Financial Services
to ensure long term financial sustainability.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Annual Financial Statements are required to be prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (as amended), the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting
and the Australian Accounting Standards. Council has professionally qualified staff to ensure compliance
with the reporting requirements.

Council staff has also undertaken additional training in specialised areas. A higher level of assurance is
attained from the Audit Office of NSW review.

Further to this, Council’'s Executive, senior management and relevant senior officers each signed a
document giving the necessary assurances that:

1 No matters or occurrences have come to their attention in respect to their areas of responsibility that
would materially affect the Financial Statements or disclosures therein, or which are likely to
materially affect the future results or operations of the Council; and

2 Should any such matters or occurrences come to their attention after the date of signing the
document, the Chief Financial Officer be immediately advised.

Consequently, there is considered to be a low risk of any material errors or omissions in reporting.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Council is now presented with a set of draft Financial Statements that have been prepared in accordance
with the Australian Accounting Standards and other professional pronouncements and the Local
Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

Through the collation of the Financial Statements and the external audit process the pre-capital
operating result has decreased from the pre-audit result of $14.7M to $14.1M. This adjustment resulted
from a valuation adjustment against Council’s investment held with CivicRisk. This valuation was
received after the pre-audit result was presented to Council.

CONCLUSION

The Financial Statements will be presented to the public at a future Council meeting pending Council
forming an opinion that they have been drawn up in accordance with the Local Government Act and
associated Codes and Australian Accounting Standards as prescribed by the Regulations.
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On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2]) 81
On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3]) 82

Overview
Wollongong City Council is constituted under the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and has its principal place of business at:

41 Burelli Street
Wollongong NSW 2500

Council’s guiding principles are detailed in Chapter 3 of the Local Government Act and include:

« principles applying to the exercise of functions generally by council,

« principles to be applied when making decisions,

« principles of community participation,

» principles of sound financial management, and

« principles for strategic planning relating to the development of an integrated planning and reporting framework.
A description of the nature of Council's operations and its principal activities are provided in Note B1-2.

Through the use of the internet, we have ensured that our reporting is timely, complete and available at minimum cost. All
press releases, financial statements and other information are publicly available on our website: www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au.
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Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
« the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and the regulations made thereunder,
« the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
+ present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year,
+ accord with Council’'s accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 November 2022.

Gordon Bradbery Tania Brown

Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor

28 November 2022 28 November 2022

Greg Doyle Brian Jenkins

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
28 November 2022 28 November 2022
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Wollongong City Council

Income Statement
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Original
unaudited
budget
2022

215,859
31,493
5,547
19,325
32,091
3,167
6,516

313,998

124,947
64,090
1,954

64,652
35,444

291,087
22,911
22911

(9,180)

The above Income Statement should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

$'000

Income from continuing operations

Rates and annual charges

User charges and fees

Other revenues

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes
Grants and contributions provided for capital purposes
Interest and investment income

Other income

Net gain from the disposal of assets

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

Materials and services

Borrowing costs

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial
assets

Other expenses
Net loss from the disposal of assets
Total expenses from continuing operations

Operating result from continuing operations

Notes

B2-1
B2-2
B2-3
B2-4
B2-4
B2-5
B2-6
B4-1

B3-1
B3-2
B3-3
B3-4

B3-5
B4-1

Net operating result for the year attributable to Council

Net operating result for the year before grants and
contributions provided for capital purposes

Actual Actual
2022 2021
216,919 211,126
29,230 30,864
5,167 6,444
41,841 30,782
45,402 34,478
1,689 1,986
6,448 6,672
563 -
347,259 322,352
126,077 123,589
72,910 76,619
437 2,179
65,329 61,203
23,054 21,755
- 1,995
287,807 287,340
59,452 35,012
59,452 35,012
14,050 534

Page 4
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Comprehensive Income
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$°'000 Notes 2022 2021
Net operating result for the year — from Income Statement 59,452 35,012
Other comprehensive income:

Amounts which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating result

Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment c1-8 643,351 11,478
Impairment (loss) reversal / (revaluation decrement) relating to infrastructure,

property, plant and equipment c1-8 792 (210)
Total items which will not be reclassified subsequently to the operating

result 644,143 11,268
Total other comprehensive income for the year 644,143 11,268
Total comprehensive income for the year attributable to Council ,595 46,280

The above Statement of Comprehensive Income should be read in conjunction with the accom;

>
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position
as at 30 June 2022

$'000

ASSETS

Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents

Investments

Receivables

Inventories

Contract assets

Non-current assets classified as 'held for sale'
Other

Total current assets

Non-current assets

Investments

Inventories

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)
Investment property

Intangible assets

Right of use assets

Investments accounted for using the equity method
Total non-current assets

Total assets

LIABILITIES

Current liabilities
Payables

Contract liabilities

Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Provisions

Total current liabilities

Non-current liabilities
Lease liabilities

Borrowings

Employee benefit provisions
Provisions

Total non-current liabilities

Total liabilities
Net assets

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus
IPPE revaluation reserve

Council equity interest

Total equity

The above Statement of Financial Position should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.

Notes

C1-1
c1-2
c1-4
C1-5
C1-6
G1:7

C1-2
C1-5
C1-8
C1-9
C1-10
C2-1

C3-1
C3-2
C21
C3-3
C3-4
C3-5

C2-1
C3-3
C3-4
C3-5

C4-1
C4-1

Restated Restated

2022 2021 ° 1 July 2020 *
34,118 52,320 56,051
88,185 103,334 97,423
24,674 21,859 21,667

461 463 381

9,711 4,707 5,669

65 111 -

6,881 6,682 10,572
164,095 189,476 191,763
39,730 15,199 4,000
5,972 5,972 5,972
3,347,445 2,665,790 2,631,189
5,600 4,600 5,000

76 152 254

1,094 1,471 1,790

- - 3,484
3,399,917 2,693,184 2,651,689
3,564,012 2,882,660 2,843,452
27,376 26,621 30,592
5,491 8,177 3,572

403 377 341

3,569 5,497 5,260
51,705 56,768 58,204
3,891 2,621 2,880
92,435 100,061 100,849
788 1,194 1,519

3,374 6,942 12,439

792 957 905
27,879 38,357 38,871
32,833 47,450 53,734
125,268 147,511 154,583
3,438,744 2,735,149 2,688,869
1,576,459 1,518,472 1,481,079
1,862,285 1,216,677 1,207,790
3,438,744 2,735,149 2,688,869
3,438,744 2,735,149 2,688,869

(") The comparative years have been restated for prior period errors as disclosed in G4-2.
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Wollongong City Council | Statement of Changes in Equity | for the year ended 30 June 2022

2022 2021
IPPE IPPE
Accumulated  revaluation Total Accumulated revaluation Total
$°'000 Notes surplus reserve equity surplus reserve equity

Opening balance at 1 July
Correction of prior period errors
Restated opening balance

Net operating result for the year

Other comprehensive income

Gain (loss) on revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
Impairment (loss) reversal relating to IPPE

Other comprehensive income

Total comprehensive income

Transfers between equity items
Closing balance at 30 June

The above Statement of Changes in Equity should be read in conjunct

1,518,472 2,735,149 1,498,309 1,214,858 2,713,167

G4-2 - - (17,230) (7,068) (24,298)
1,481,079 1,207,790 2,688,869

35,012 - 35,012

643,351 - 11,478 11,478

792 - (210) (210)

644,143 644,143 - 11,268 11,268

59,452 644,143 703,595 35,012 11,268 46,280

(1,465) 1,465 - 2,381 (2,381) -

1,576,459 1,862,285 3,438,744 1,518,472 1,216,677 2,735,149
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Cash Flows
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Original
unaudited
budget Actual Actual
2022  $°'000 Notes 2022 2021
Cash flows from operating activities
Receipts:
215,840 Rates and annual charges 215,632 214,468
31,493  User charges and fees 31,914 30,183
3,167 Interest received 1,549 2,269
43,058 Grants and contributions 64,618 58,977
— Bonds, deposits and retentions received 1,201 755
11,733 Other 21,387 24,076
Payments:
(122,478)  Payments to employees (131,464) (125,163)
(64,460) Payments for materials and services (86,914) (89,610)
(392) Borrowing costs (442) (691)
- Bonds, deposits and retentions refunded (755) (2,637)
(35,444)  Other ~ (28,808) (19,918)
82,517 Net cash flows from operating activities G1-1 87,918 92,709
Cash flows from investing activities
Receipts:
2,821  Sale of investments 54,491 56,040
1,854  Proceeds from sale of IPPE 2,161 1,531
Payments:
—  Purchase of investments (59,990) (69,745)
(107,093)  Payments for IPPE (96,906) (78,658)
~(102,418) Net cash flows from investing activities (100,244) (90,832)
Cash flows from financing activities
Payments:
(5,482) Repayment of borrowings (5,496) (5,260)
—  Principal component of lease payments (380) (348)
(5,482) Net cash flows from financing activities (5,876) (5,608)
(25,383) Net change in cash and cash equivalents (18,202) (3,731)
120,293 Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year 52,320 56,051
94,910 Cash and cash equivalents at end of year C1-1 34,118 52,320
10,545 plus: Investments on hand at end of year C1-2 127,915 118,533
105,455 Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 162,033 170,853

The above Statement of Cash Flows should be read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Wollongong City Council

Contents for the notes to the Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2022

A About Council and these financial statements
A1-1 Basis of preparation

B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities
B1-1 Functions or activities — income, expenses and assets
B1-2 Components of functions or activities

B2 Sources of income
B2-1 Rates and annual charges
B2-2 User charges and fees
B2-3 Other revenues
B2-4 Grants and contributions
B2-5 Interest and investment income
B2-6 Other income

B3 Costs of providing services
B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs
B3-2 Materials and services
B3-3 Borrowing costs
B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets
B3-5 Other expenses

B4 Gains or losses
B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets
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C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents
C1-2 Financial investments
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C1-6 Contract assets
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A About Council and these financial statements

A1-1 Basis of preparation

These financial statements were authorised for issue by Council on 28 November 2022. Council has the power to amend and
reissue these financial statements in cases where critical information is received from public submissions or where the OLG
directs Council to amend the financial statements.

The principal accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these financial statements are set out below. These policies
have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

Basis of preparation

These general purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Australian Accounting Standards and
Australian Accounting Interpretations, the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and Local Government (General) Regulation
2005 (Regulation), and the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting. Council is a not for-profit
entity. The financial statements are presented in Australian dollars and are rounded to the nearest thousand dollars.

Historical cost convention

These financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of
certain infrastructure, property, plant and equipment and investment property.

Significant accounting estimates and judgements

The preparation of financial statements requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management
to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Council's accounting policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact on the Council and that are believed to be reasonable under
the circumstances.

Critical accounting estimates and assumptions

Council makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom
equal the related actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year include:

i. fair values of investment property — refer Note C1-9

ii. fair values of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment — refer Note C1-8

iii. tip remediation provisions — refer Note C3-5

iv. employee benefit provisions — refer Note C3-4.

Significant judgements in applying the Council's accounting policies

i. Impairment of receivables — refer Note C1-4.

ii. Determination of whether performance obligations are sufficiently specific and whether the contract is within the scope
of AASB 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers and / or AASB 1058 Income of Not-for-Profit Entities — refer to Notes
B2-2 - B2-4.

iii. Determination of the lease term, discount rate (when not implicit in the lease) and whether an arrangement contains a
lease — refer to Note C2-1.

Monies and other assets received by Council

The Consolidated Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 409(1) of the Local Government Act 1993, all money and property received by
Council is held in the Council’'s Consolidated Fund unless it is required to be held in the Council’s Trust Fund.

The Consolidated Fund has been included in the financial statements of the Council.

Cash and other assets of the following activities have been included as part of the Consolidated Fund:
= general purpose operations

The Trust Fund

In accordance with the provisions of Section 411 of the Local Government Act 1993, a separate and distinct Trust Fund is
maintained to account for all money and property received by the Council in trust which must be applied only for the purposes

continued on next page ... Page 11
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A1-1 Basis of preparation (continued)

of, or in accordance with, the trusts relating to those monies. Trust monies and property subject to Council's control have been
included in these reports.

A separate statement of monies held in the Trust Fund is available for inspection at the council office by any person free of
charge.

Goods and Services Tax (GST)

Revenues, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of associated GST, unless the GST incurred is not
recoverable from the taxation authority. In this case it is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense.

Receivables and payables are stated inclusive of the amount of GST receivable or payable. The net amount of GST recoverable
from, or payable to, the taxation authority is included with other receivables or payables in the Statement of Financial Position.

Cash flows are presented on a gross basis. The GST components of cash flows arising from investing or financing activities
that are recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation authority, are presented as operating cash flows.

Volunteer services
Council is supported by a range of volunteers for services including surf lifesaving, bush care, community transport and
library programs. Volunteer services are required to be recognised in the financial statements if they can be measured

reliably, are material, and would be purchased if not provided by the volunteers. In most instances Council would not
purchase the service if it was not provided by volunteers.

New accounting standards and interpretations issued but not yet effective

Certain new accounting standards and interpretations (ie. pronouncements) have been published by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board that are not mandatory for the 30 June 2022 reporting period.

Council has elected not to apply any of these pronouncements in these financial statements before their operative dates.
As at the date of authorisation of these financial statements Council does not consider that any of these new (and still to be
applied) standards and interpretations are likely to have a material impact on the Council's future financial statements, financial

position, financial performance or cash flows.

New accounting standards adopted during the year

During the year Council adopted the following accounting standards and interpretations (as issued by the Australian Accounting
Standards Board) which were mandatorily effective from 1 July 2021:

= AASB 2020-8 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2

= AASB 2020-9 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — Tier 2 Disclosures: Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
(Phase 2) and Other Amendments

= AASB 2020-7 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions: Tier 2
disclosures [AASB 16 and AASB 1060]

= AASB 2021-3 Amendments to Australian Accounting Standards — COVID-19 Related Rent Concessions beyond 30
June 2021

These newly adopted standards had no material impact on Council's reported financial position, financial performance and/or
associated financial statement disclosures.
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B Financial Performance

B1 Functions or activities

B1-1 Functions or activities — income, expenses and assets
Income, expenses and assets have been directly attributed to the following functions or activities. Details of those functions or activities are provided in Note B1-2.
Income Expenses Operating result Grants and contributions Carrying amount of assets
2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
$'000 Restated
Functions or activities
Planning and engagement 18,676 17,310 21,839 24,717 (3,163) (7,407) 15,683 14,670 166,108 296,354
Environment 51,136 48,437 62,415 65,175 (11,279) (16,738) 1,920 1,313 869,469 587,058
Transport services/infrastructure 20,209 13,513 46,636 47,601 (26,427) (34,088) 19,907 12,343 1,166,473 900,669
Community services/facilities 8,427 7,871 33,542 34,973 (25,115) (27,102) 5,553 5,162 78,212 14,729
Recreation and open space 14,603 13,191 53,430 53,059 (38,827) (39,868) 4,744 1,143 356,173 198,133
Regulatory services and safety 8,564 8,803 21,628 21,735 (13,064) (12,932) 1,785 1,400 19,830 16,319
Governance and internal services 210,761 201,025 48,317 40,080 162,444 160,945 22,668 17,027 907,747 869,398
Contributed Assets 14,883 12,202 - - 14,883 12,202 14,983 12,202 - -
Total functions and activities 347,259 322,352 287,807 287,340 59,452 35,012 87,243 65,260 3,564,012 2,882,660

Page 13
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B1-2 Components of functions or activities

Details relating to the Council’s functions or activities as reported in B1-1 are as follows:
Planning and engagement

Infrastructure Planning and Support, City Centre Management, Land Use Planning, Public Relations, Economic Development,
Strategy and Planning

Environment

Waste Management, Stormwater Services, Natural Area Management, Environmental Planning and Programs
Transport services/infrastructure

Transport Services and Infrastructure works

Community services/facilities

Libraries, Cultural Services, Community Facilities, Age and Disability Services, Memorial Gardens and Cemeteries, Community
Programs, Youth Services

Recreation and open space

Parks and Sports fields, Aquatic Services, Tourist Parks, Leisure Centres, Botanic Gardens
Regulatory services and safety

Emergency Management, Development Assessment, Regulatory Control, Public Health
Governance and internal services

Governance and Administration, Human Resources, Financial Services, Customer Service, Property Services, Information
Technology, Internal Services

Contributed Assets

Contributed assets relate mainly to the handover of transport and stormwater assets from various subdivisions in the West
Dapto area.

Page 14
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B2 Sources of income

B2-1 Rates and annual charges

$'000

Ordinary rates

Residential

Farmland

Mining

Business

Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory)
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy)
Abandonments '

Rates levied to ratepayers

Pensioner rate subsidies received
Total ordinary rates

Special rates

City centre

Mall

Total special rates

Annual charges
(pursuant to s.496, s.496A, s.496B, s.501 & s.611)

Domestic waste management services
Stormwater management services
Less: pensioner rebates (mandatory)
Less: pensioner rebates (Council policy)
Abandonments — annual charges '
Pensioner subsidies received:

— Domestic waste management

Total annual charges

Total rates and annual charges

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

2022 2021
126,497 123,319
331 324

982 961
50,787 49,428
(2,761) (2,836)
(272) (310)
(76) (49)
175,488 170,837
1,528 1,556
177,016 172,393
436 430
1,218 1,197
1,654 1,627
36,773 35,658
1,877 1,862
(726) (747)
(67) (76)

(9) (1)

401 410
38,249 37,106
216,919 211,126

Council has used 2019 year valuations provided by the NSW Valuer General in calculating its rates.

Accounting policy

Rates and annual charges are recognised as revenue when the Council obtains control over the assets comprising these
receipts which is the beginning of the rating period to which they relate.

Prepaid rates are recognised as a financial liability until the beginning of the rating period.

Pensioner rebates (mandatory) relate to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of
residence in the local government area that are subsidised by the NSW Government. Pensioner rebates (Council policy) relate
to reductions in rates and certain annual charges for eligible pensioners’ place of residence in the local government area that

are not subsidised by the NSW Government.

Pensioner rate subsidies are received from the NSW Government to provide a contribution towards the pensioner rebates

(mandatory) and are in substance a rates payment.

(1) Abandonments refer to amounts owed to Council that have been written off due to the property being exempted of rates, objections &
ascertainments, postponed rates and voluntary conservation agreements as per the OLG Rating and Revenue Raising Manual 2007.

Page 15

28



\"7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Iltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended

30 June 2022

B2-2 User charges and fees
$'000

User charges

Waste management services (non-domestic)

Total user charges

Fees

Contestable building services
Inspection Services '

Planning and building regulation
Registration fees

Section 10.7 certificates (EP&A Act)
Section 603 certificate (rating certificate)
Section 611 charges (occupation of land)
Additional waste services

Art gallery

Car parking

Cemeteries

Credit card payment processing fee
Design review meeting application fees
Golf course

Health inspections

Library

Marketing

Outdoor dining '

Parking meters '

Pre-lodgement meeting fees
Recreation '

Road opening permits

Stallholder fees '

Tree management requests

Tourist parks '

Other

Total fees

Total other user charges and fees

Total user charges and fees

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Timing of revenue recognition for user charges and fees

User charges and fees recognised over time
User charges and fees recognised at a point in time

Total user charges and fees

Accounting policy

2022 2021
9,913 9,148
9,913 9,148
307 390

86 297
2,924 3,050
210 214
638 673
369 403
325 182
142 130

9 7
1,228 823
1,895 1,810
135 137
149 108
624 752

94 36

17 28

24 19

- 53

791 1,119
120 126
1,970 3,154
300 267

14 38

98 95
6,764 7,724
84 81
19,317 21,716
19,317 21,716
29,230 30,864
6,764 7,724
22,466 23,140
29,230 30,864

Revenue arising from user charges and fees is recognised when or as the performance obligation is completed and the
customer receives the benefit of the goods / services being provided.

The performance obligation relates to the specific services which are provided to the customers and generally the payment
terms are within 30 days of the provision of the service or in some cases the customer is required to pay on arrival or a deposit
in advance. There is no material obligation for Council in relation to refunds or returns.

Licences granted by Council are all either short-term or low value and all revenue from licences is recognised at the time that
the licence is granted rather than over the term of the licence.

(1) These revenue streams have been impacted by COVID restrictions as well as Council's COVID-19 Relief Measures during the financial

year.
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Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

$°'000 2022 2021
Diesel rebate 220 210
Fines 390 476
Fines — parking 1,936 2,423
Insurance claims recoveries 12 1,068
Legal fees recovery — rates and charges (extra charges) 195 113
Legal settlements 6 99
Outgoings reimbursements 64 100
Reimbursements 1,018 265
Sales — general 873 1,349
Sponsorship and promotional income 12 18
Other 441 323
Total other revenue 5,167 6,444

Timing of revenue recognition for other revenue
Other revenue recognised over time

Other revenue recognised at a point in time

Total other revenue

Accounting policy for other revenue

Where the revenue is earned for the provision of specified goods / se

recognised when or as the obligations are satisfied.

Statutory fees and fines are recognised as revenue when the

the penalty has been applied, whichever occurs first.

Other revenue is recorded when the payment i
occurs first.

6,444
6,444

lue of ified, or the payment is received, whichever
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B2-4 Grants and contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
$'000 2022 2021 2022 2021
General purpose grants and non-developer contributions (untied)
Financial Assistance Grant
Relating to current year 9,985 8,989 - -
Payment received in advance for subsequent year 15,341 9,619 - -
Amount recognised as income during current year 25,326 18,608 - -
Special purpose grants and non-developer contributions (tied)
Cash contributions
Arts and culture 818 97 - -
Community development and support 370 300 - 295
Community services and facilities 220 220 - -
Emergency services 1,461 1,233 - -
Environmental management and enhancement 203 75 - -
Environmental programs 75 88 - -
Floodplain and stormwater management 1,169 529 73 22
HACC community transport 2,846 2,691 - -
Heritage and cultural 12 6 - -
Information technology 80 10 - -
Library 647 614 - -
LIRS subsidy 372 552 - -
People and learning 23 - - -
Local bus route subsidy 89 89 - -
Natural area management 190 373 - -
Parks, gardens and sports fields 996 (23) 4,133 1,974
People and learning 270 36 - -
Pollution minimisation 93 159 - -
Recreation and culture - 65 300 40
Social support programs 1,338 1,247 - -
Strategic city planning 310 374 - -
Street lighting 714 714 - -
Transport (other roads and bridges funding) 337 85 11,511 4,041
Transport (roads to recovery) - - 1,229 1,874
Transport for NSW contributions (regional roads, block grant) 3,051 1,664 - -
Voluntary purchase scheme - - (22) 118
Waste performance improvement 214 365 - -
Total cash contributions 15,898 11,563 17,224 8,364
Non-cash contributions
Bushfire services - - 270 -
Dedications — subdivisions (other than by s7.4 and s7.11 — EP&A
Act, s64 of the LGA) - - 13,680 5,598
Wollongong City Gallery collection - - 201 54
Volunteer Services 617 611 - —
Total non-cash contributions 617 611 14,151 5,652
Total special purpose grants and non-developer
contributions (tied) 16,515 12,174 31,375 14,016
Total grants and non-developer contributions 41,841 30,782 31,375 14,016
Comprising:
— Commonwealth funding 29,382 22,704 8,293 3,236
— State funding 11,328 7,026 9,105 4,801
— Other funding 1,131 1,052 13,977 5,979

41,841 30,782 31,375 14,016

continued on next page ... Page 18
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Developer contributions

$'000

Developer contributions:

(s7.4 & s7.11 - EP&A Act, s64 of the LGA):
Cash contributions

S 7.4 — contributions using planning agreements
S 7.11 — contributions towards amenities/services
S 7.12 — fixed development consent levies

Total cash contributions

Non-cash contributions

S 7.11 — contributions towards amenities/services
Planning agreements

Total non-cash contributions

Total developer contributions

Total contributions

Total grants and contributions

Notes

G5

Timing of revenue recognition for grants and contributions

Grants and contributions recognised over time

Grants and contributions recognised at a point.in time

Total grants and contributions

Unspent grants and contributions

Operating Operating Capital Capital
2022 2021 2022 2021

- - 629 1,860

- - 7,960 8,941

- - 4,706 3,111

- - 13,295 13,912

- - 732 5,546

- - - 1,004
- — 732 6,550

= — 14,027 20,462

- - 14,027 20,462
41,841 30,782 45,402 34,478
3,984 835 17,224 8,364
37,857 29,947 28,178 26,114
41,841 30,782 45,402 34,478

Certain grants and contributions are obtained by Council on the condition they be spent in a specified manner or in a future
period but which are not yet spent in accordance with those conditions are as follows:

$'000

Unspent grants
Unspent funds at 1 July

Add: funds received and not recognised as
revenue in the current year

Less: funds received in prior year but revenue
recognised and funds spent in current year

Unspent funds at 30 June

Unspent contributions
Unspent funds at 1 July

Add: contributions received and not
recognised as revenue in the current
year

Less: contributions recognised as revenue in
previous years that have been spent
during the reporting year

Unspent contributions at 30 June

continued on next page ...

Operating Operating Capital Capital
2022 2021 2022 2021
4,335 3,122 5,352 446
4,190 1,843 565 5,204
(1,559) (630) (4,505) (298)
6,966 4,335 1,412 5,352
73 1 38,761 35,448
- 72 14,001 14,266
- - (12,563) (10,953)
73 73 40,199 38,761
Page 19
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B2-4 Grants and contributions (continued)

Accounting policy
Grants and contributions — enforceable agreement with sufficiently specific performance obligations

Grant and contribution revenue from an agreement which is enforceable and contains sufficiently specific performance
obligations is recognised as or when control of each performance obligations is transferred.

The performance obligations vary according to the agreement. Payment terms vary depending on the terms of the grant, cash
is received upfront for some grants and on the achievement of certain payment milestones for others.

Performance obligations may be satisfied either at a point in time or over time and this is reflected in the revenue recognition
pattern. Point in time recognition occurs when the beneficiary obtains control of the goods / services at a single time (e.g.
completion of the project when a report / outcome is provided), whereas over time recognition is where the control of the
services is ongoing throughout the project (e.g. provision of community health services through the year).

Where control is transferred over time, generally the input methods being either costs or time incurred are deemed to be the
most appropriate methods to reflect the transfer of benefit.

Capital grants
Capital grants received by Council under an enforceable contract for the acquisition or construction of infrastructure, property,
plant and equipment to identified specifications which will be under Council’s control on completion are recognised as revenue

as and when the obligation to construct or purchase is completed.

For construction projects, this is generally as the construction progresses in accordance with costs incurred since this is
deemed to be the most appropriate measure of the completeness of the construction project.

For acquisitions of assets, the revenue is recognised when the asset is acquired and controlled by the Council.
Developer contributions

Council has obligations to provide facilities from contribution revenues levied on developers under the provisions of sections
7.4, 7.11 and 7.12 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A Act).

While Council generally incorporates these amounts as part of a Development Consents Order, such developer contributions
are only recognised as income upon receipt by Council, due to the possibility that individual development consents may not
be acted upon by the applicant and, accordingly, would not be payable to Council.

Developer contributions may only be expended for the purposes for which the contributions were required, but Council may
apply contributions according to the priorities established in work schedules for the contribution plan.

Other grants and contributions
Assets, including cash, received from other grants and contributions are recognised at fair value when the asset is received.
Council considers whether there are any related liability or equity items associated with the asset which are recognised in

accordance with the relevant accounting standard.

Once the assets and liabilities have been recognised then income is recognised for any remaining asset value at the time
that the asset is received.
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B2-5 Interest and investment income

$'000 2022 2021
Interest on financial assets measured at amortised cost

— Overdue rates and annual charges (incl. special purpose rates) 557 331
— Cash and investments 1,132 1,655
Total interest and investment income (losses) 1,689 1,986

Accounting policy
Interest income is recognised using the effective interest rate at the date that interest is earned.

B2-6 Other income

$'000 Notes 2022 2021

Fair value increment on investment properties
Fair value increment on investment properties 1,000 -
Total fair value increment on investment properties c1-9 1,000 -

Fair value increment on investments
Fair value increment on investments through profit and loss - 206
Total Fair value increment on investments - 206

Rental income
Investment properties
Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an

index or rate) ] 454 434
Total Investment properties 454 434
Other lease income

Room/Facility Hire 431 365
Leaseback fees - council vehicles 694 678
Other Council Properties 3,869 4,989
Total other lease income 4,994 6,032
Total rental income c2-2 5,448 6,466
Total other income 6,448 6,672
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B3  Costs of providing services

B3-1 Employee benefits and on-costs

$'000

Employee leave entitlements (ELE) '
Salaries and wages

Superannuation

Change in workers compensation provision
Workers compensation — self insurance
Fringe benefit tax (FBT)

Payroll tax

Training costs (other than salaries and wages)
Protective clothing

Labour hire

Other

Total employee costs

Less: capitalised costs
Total employee costs expensed

Accounting policy

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

2022 2021
9,663 12,276
112,386 108,468
13,009 12,503
2,567 1,877
2,565 2,744
142 183

15 1

627 642

426 468

389 342

292 310
142,081 139,814
(16,004) (16,225)
126,077 123,589

Employee benefit expenses are recorded when the service has been provided by the employee.

Retirement benefit obligations

All employees of the Council are entitled to benefits on retirement, disability or death. Council contributes to various defined

benefit plans and defined contribution plans on behalf of its employees.

Superannuation plans

Contributions to defined contribution plans are recognised as an expense as they become payable. Prepaid contributions are

recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in the future payments is available.

Council participates in a Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme, however, sufficient
information to account for the plan as a defined benefit is not available and therefore Council accounts for its obligations to
defined benefit plans on the same basis as its obligations to defined contribution plans, i.e. as an expense when it becomes

payable — refer to Note E3-1 for more information.

(1) Employee leave entitlements reflect the current value of the future payments which are discounted based on published long term
government bond rates. The average discount factor increased from 0.85% in June 2021 to 3.32% in June 2022 resulted in a decrease

in the provision during 2021-2022.
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B3-2 Materials and services

$'000 Notes 2022 2021
Advertising 355 414
Audit Fees F2-1 221 165
Bank charges 598 570
Contractor and consultancy costs ' 59,373 40,854
Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses F1-2 536 521
Elections 1,195 -
Insurance 3,905 3,655
Internal audit 125 147
Light, electricity and heating 1,859 2,044
Membership fees 174 164
Other expenses 1,064 951
Postage 576 413
Prior year works in progress 'write offs' 2 672 2,332
Provision for asset remediation * (11,623) (3,756)
Provision for self insurance claims (147) (45)
Raw materials and consumables ' 38,287 46,254
Rental agreements 7 -
Royalty payments 327 362
Sewerage charges 271 177
Software Maintenance and Support Contractor 3,049 2,303
Street lighting 2,975 3,063
Telephone and communications 718 555
Valuation fees 468 461
Volunteer reimbursements 109 74
Waste Contractor 26,617 22,875
Water rates 822 879
Legal expenses:

- Planning and development 546 251
— Other ) 619 591
Total materials and services 133,698 126,274
Less: capitalised costs (60,788) (49,655)
Total materials and services 72,910 76,619

Accounting policy
Expenses are recorded on an accruals basis as the Council receives the goods or services.

(1) The Contractor & Consultancy Costs and Raw Materials & Consumables includes expenditure related to the capital program. The
delivery of capital projects is dependent on the types and size of works that may be delivered through contracts or internally. There are
significant variations year on year in this allocation process.

(2) Capital expenditure previously included in Works in Progress was transferred to operating expenses during 2020-2021 and 2021-2022.
This includes capital works to deliver assets not under the control of Council such as traffic facilities and street lighting.

(3) Each financial year a provision for the remediation of Council's waste facility is calculated based on the forecast costs to rehabilitate the

site. A further reduction in the forecast rehabilitation costs and changes to discount factors have resulted in a reduction in the provision
in 2021-2022.
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B3-3 Borrowing costs

$'000 Notes 2022 2021
(i) Interest bearing liability costs

Interest on leases 47 58
Interest on loans 395 633
Total interest bearing liability costs 442 691
Total interest bearing liability costs expensed 442 691

(ii) Other borrowing costs
Fair value adjustments on recognition of advances and deferred debtors

— Remediation liabilities C3-5 (5) 1,488
Total other borrowing costs (5) 1,488
Total borrowing costs expensed 437 2,179

Accounting policy
Borrowing costs incurred for the construction of any qualifying asset are capitalised during the
to complete and prepare the asset for its intended use or sale. Other borrowing costs are e

o

d of time that is required
as incurred.
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B3-4 Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of non-financial assets
$'000 Notes 2022 2021

Depreciation and amortisation

Plant and equipment 4,620 4,422
Office equipment 1,919 1,242
Furniture and fittings 324 314
Infrastructure: C1-8

— Bridges 1,998 2,216
— Buildings — non-specialised 3,880 3,743
— Buildings — specialised 5,636 5,578
- Footpaths 4,307 4,275
— Other open space/recreational assets 4,941 3,831
— Other structures 708 660
- Roads 21,310 20,396
— Stormwater drainage 11,856 10,536
— Swimming pools 644 517
Right of use assets c2-1 377 378
Other assets:

— Library books 1,201 1,171
— Other 1,531 1,822
Intangible assets ©1-10 77 102
Total depreciation and amortisation costs 65,329 61,203
Impairment / revaluation decrement of IPPE

Community land (582) -
Infrastructure: c18

— Roads (210) 210
Amounts taken through revaluation reserve C1-8 792 (210)

Total IPPE impairment / revaluation decrement costs charged
to Income Statement = =

Total depreciation, amortisation and impairment for
non-financial assets 65,329 61,203

Accounting policy

Depreciation and amortisation

Depreciation and amortisation are calculated using the straight line method to allocate their cost, net of their residual values,
over their estimated useful lives. Useful lives are included in Note C1-8 for IPPE assets, Note C1-10 for intangible assets
and Note C2-1 for right-of-use assets.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Council assets held at fair value that are not held primarily for their ability to generate net cash flow, and that are deemed to
be specialised, are not tested for impairment since these assets are assessed on an annual basis to ensure that the carrying
amount is not materially different from fair value and therefore an impairment loss would be captured during this assessment.

Intangible assets not yet available for use, are tested annually for impairment, or more frequently if events or changes in
circumstances indicate that they might be impaired.

Other non-financial assets that do not meet the criteria above are tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by
which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair
value less costs to sell and value in use.

For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately identifiable
cash inflows that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

Impairment losses for revalued assets are firstly offset against the amount in the revaluation surplus for the class of asset,
with only the excess to be recognised in the Income Statement.
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B3-5 Other expenses
$'000

Impairment of receivables
User charges and fees
Total impairment of receivables

Fair value decrement on investment properties
Fair value decrement on investment properties
Total fair value decrement on investment properties

Fair value decrement on investments

Movement in interest in CivicRisk Mutual '

Fair value decrement on investments through profit and loss
Total Fair value decrement on investments

Other

Contributions/levies to other levels of government
— Emergency services levy

— NSW fire brigade levy

— NSW rural fire service levy

— Waste and environment levy

Donations, contributions and assistance to other organisations (Section 356)

— Affordable Housing

- City Centre management

— lllawarra Institute of Sport

— lllawarra Shoalhaven Joint Organisation
- lllawarra Performing Arts Centre ?

— lllawarra Surf Life Saving

— Sponsorship fund

— Tourism

— Wollongong Shuttle Service

— Wollongong 2022 - Union Cycliste Internationale
— Other

Total other

Less: capitalised costs

Total other expenses

Accounting policy

Notes

c1-4

C1-9

C1-2

2022 2021
141 (278)
141 (278)

- 400

- 400

669 285
1,398 =
2,067 285
322 418
3,161 3,411
629 861
12,321 11,412
= 1,446

5 —

39 37

74 57
1,300 1,113
57 56

33 52
1,496 1,481
353 350
213 -
1,213 793
21,216 21,487
(370) (139)
23,054 21,755

Other expenses are recorded on an accruals basis when Council has an obligation for the expenses.

Impairment expenses are recognised when identified.

(1

From 1st July 2020, the CivicRisk entities previously disclosed as joint ventures were reconstituted to form CivicRisk Mutual Ltd, a

company limited by guarantee. Council's interest in the entity is treated as a financial asset at fair value through profit and loss (refer to

Note C1-2 Investments).

2

The 2021/22 contribution to the lllawarra Performing Arts Centre includes the contribution for the management of the Town Hall.

Page 26

39



\"7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 28 November 2022
30 June 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022
B4  Gains or losses
B4-1 Gain or loss from the disposal, replacement and de-recognition of assets

$'000 Notes 2022 2021

Gain (or loss) on disposal of property (excl. investment property)

Proceeds from disposal — property 925 =
Less: carrying amount of property assets sold/written off (47) -
Gain (or loss) on disposal 878 _
Gain (or loss) on disposal of plant and equipment C1-8

Proceeds from disposal — plant and equipment 1,236 1,531
Less: carrying amount of plant and equipment assets sold/written off (602) (926)
Gain (or loss) on disposal 634 605
Gain (or loss) on disposal of infrastructure C1-8

Proceeds from disposal — infrastructure - —
Less: carrying amount of infrastructure assets sold/written off (949) (2,600)
Gain (or loss) on disposal (949) (2,600)
Gain (or loss) on disposal of investments C1-2

Proceeds from disposal/redemptions/maturities — investments 54,491 56,040
Less: carrying amount of investments sold/redeemed/matured (54,491) (56,040)

Gain (or loss) on disposal . =

Net gain (or loss) from disposal of assets 563 (1,995)

Accounting policy
Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. The gain or loss on sale of an
asset is determined when control of the asset has irrevocably passed to the buyer and the asset is de-recognised.
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B5  Performance against budget

B5-1 Material budget variations

Council's original budget was adopted by the Council on 28/06/2021 and is not required to be audited. The original projections
on which the budget was based have been affected by a number of factors. These include state and federal government
decisions, including new grant programs, changing economic activity, environmental factors, and by decisions made by
Council.

While these General Purpose Financial Statements include the original budget adopted by Council, the Act requires Council to
review its financial budget on a quarterly basis, so it is able to manage the variation between actuals and budget that invariably
occur during the year.

Material variations of more than 10% between original budget and actual results or where the variance is considered material
by nature are explained below.

Variation Key: F = Favourable budget variation, U = Unfavourable budget variation.

2022 2022 2022
$'000 Budget Actual  =sseeee- Variance --------
Revenues
Rates and annual charges 215,859 216,919 1,060 0% F
User charges and fees 31,493 29,230 (2,263) (7% U
Other revenues 5,547 5,167 (380) (7% U
Operating grants and contributions 19,325 41,841 22,516 17% F

Operating grants has been affected by the early payment of $15.3M of the 2022-20283 Financial Assistance Grant . In
addition, payment of grants not anticipated through the original budget has had a favourable impact on this result such as
disaster recovery funding associated with floods experienced in the Local Government Area.

Capital grants and contributions 32,091 45,402 13,311 1% F
Capital grants and contributions include assets contributed to Council through development. A greater value of assets have
been contributed to Council than anticipated in the 2021-2022 financial year. In addition, income related to developer
contributions were higher than anticipated during 2021-2022.

Interest and investment revenue 3,167 1,689 (1,478) 47)% U
Interest & investment revenue has been negatively impacted by changes in interest rates over the financial year.

Net gains from disposal of assets - 563 563 - F
Other income 6,516 6,448 (68) 1% U

continued on next page ... Page 28
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B5-1 Material budget variations (continued)

2022 2022 2022
$'000 Budget Actual mmmmmeee VAriance =eeeeee-
Expenses
Employee benefits and on-costs 124,947 126,077 (1,130) 1% U
Materials and services 64,090 72,910 (8,820) (14)% U

Materials and services has been significantly impacted by the changes in the asset remediation provision associated with
the waste facility. A number of items have been realigned between materials and services and other expenses during the
year causing a misalignment between the actuals and original budget.

Borrowing costs 1,954 437 1,517 78% F
Borrowing costs includes the interest on the waste facility remediation. The original budget was set prior to receipt of the
discount rates at 30 June 2021 which are applied for the interest calculations in 2021-2022. The changes in discount rates
have resulted in a variance between the original budget and the actuals for 2021-2022.

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment of
non-financial assets

Other expenses 35,444 23,054 12,390 35% F
Other expenses has been impacted by the fair value decrement on investments through profit and loss and an increase in
expenditure relating to the Waste levy. A number of items have been realigned between materials and services and other
expenses during the year causing a misalignment between the actuals and original budget.

64,652 65,329 (677) 1% U

Net losses from disposal of assets — - - - F
Statement of cash flows

Cash flows from operating activities 82,517 87,918 5,401 7% F
The 2022-2023 Financial Assistance Grant of $15.3M was paid early.

Cash flows from investing activities (102,418) (100,244) 2,174 (2)%
Cash flows from financing activities (5,482) (5,876) (394) 7% U
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C1  Assets we manage

C1-1 Cash and cash equivalents

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

$'000 2022 2021
Cash assets

Cash on hand and at bank 416 803
Cash equivalent assets

— Deposits at call 33,702 33,309
— Managed funds - 18,208
Total cash and cash equivalents 34,118 52,320
Reconciliation of cash and cash equivalents

Total cash and cash equivalents per Statement of Financial Position 34,118 52,320
Balance as per the Statement of Cash Flows 34,118 52,320

Accounting policy

For Statement of Cash Flow presentation purposes, cash and cash equivalents include: cash on hand; deposits held at call
with financial institutions; other short-term, highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less that are
readily convertible to known amounts of cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value; and bank
overdrafts. Bank overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities on the Statement of Financial Position.

C1-2 Financial investments

$'000

Financial assets at fair value through the profit and loss

Managed funds

NCD’s, FRN’s (with maturities > 3 months)
Mortgage backed securities

CivicRisk Mutual Limited

Total

Debt securities at amortised cost
Long term deposits
Total

Total financial investments

continued on next page ...

2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current  Non-current
8,030 - 3,221 -
44,720 - 45,398 -
1,685 - 1,715 -
- 2,530 - 3,199
54,435 2,530 50,334 3,199
33,750 37,200 53,000 12,000
33,750 37,200 53,000 12,000
88,185 39,730 103,334 15,199
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C1-2 Financial investments (continued)

Accounting policy

Financial instruments are recognised initially on the date that the Council becomes party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

On initial recognition, all financial instruments are measured at fair value plus transaction costs (except for instruments
measured at fair value through profit or loss where transaction costs are expensed as incurred).

Financial assets
All recognised financial assets are subsequently measured in their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

Classification

On initial recognition, Council classifies its financial assets into the following categories — those measured at:
+ amortised cost
+ fair value through profit and loss (FVTPL)
« fair value through other comprehensive income — equity instrument (FVOCI-equity)

Financial assets are not reclassified subsequent to their initial recognition.

Amortised cost
Assets measured at amortised cost are financial assets where:
« the business model is to hold assets to collect contractual cash flows, and
« the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on
the principal amount outstanding.

Council’s financial assets measured at amortised cost comprise trade and other receivables, term deposits and cash and cash
equivalents in the Statement of Financial Position. Term deposits with an intial term of more than 3 months are classified as
investments rather than cash and cash equivalents.

Subsequent to initial recognition, these assets are carried at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method less
provision for impairment.

Interest income, impairment and gains or loss on de-recognition are recognised in profit or loss.

Financial assets through profit or loss

Allfinancial assets not classified as measured at amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income as described
above are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Net gains or losses, including any interest or dividend income, are recognised in profit or loss.

Council’s financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss comprise investments in FRNs, managed funds,
mortgage backed securities and interest in CivicRisk Mutual in the Statement of Financial Position.
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C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments
$'000 2022 2021

(a) Externally restricted cash,
cash equivalents and

investments
Total cash, cash equivalents and investments 162,033 170,853
Less: Externally restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments (75,344) (78,088)
Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external
restrictions 86,689 92,765

External restrictions
External restrictions included in cash, cash equivalents and investments above comprise:

Developer contributions — general # 40,065 38,719
Transport for NSW contributions © 205 115
Specific purpose unexpended grants © 8,378 9,687
Stormwater management ° 2,378 2,178
Unexpended loan € 907 965
Private contributions 5,708 5,420
Special rates levy — Wollongong mall 407 282
Special rates levy — city centre 88 59
Local infrastructure renewal scheme round 3 * - 277
Domestic waste management ° 7,604 10,746
Housing Affordability 9,604 9,640
Total external restrictions 75,344 78,088

Cash, cash equivalents and investments subject to external restrictions are those which are only available for specific use
by Council due to a restriction placed by legislation or third-party contractual agreement.

(A) Development contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with contributions
plans.

(8) Transport for NSW contributions which are not yet expended for the provision of services and amenities in accordance with those
contributions.

(C) Grants which are not yet expended for the purposes for which the grants were obtained.

(0) Domestic Waste Management and other special rates/levies/charges are externally restricted assets and must be applied for the
purposes for which they were raised.

(E) State Government interest free loan to be administered on infrastructure as part of the West Dapto development.

(F) State Government subsidised loans to be administered on infrastructure projects over the Local Government Area.

continued on next page ... Page 32
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C1-3 Restricted and allocated cash, cash equivalents and investments (continued)

$°'000 2022 2021
(b) Internal allocations

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external

restrictions 86,689 92,765
Unrestricted and unallocated cash, cash equivalents and investments 23,803 22,089

Internal allocations
At 30 June, Council has internally allocated funds to the following:

Car parking strategy 1,189 1,051
Darcy Wentworth Park 171 171
Maccabe Park development 1,740 1,590
Sports Priority Program 671 943
Waste Disposal Facility 5,831 3,415
West Dapto Development 8,281 6,951
Strategic Projects 34,962 46,558
Property Investment Fund 9,388 9,388
Natural areas 173 173
Lake lllawarra Estuary Management Fund 480 436
Total internal allocations 62,886 70,676

Cash, cash equivalents and investments not subject to external restrictions may be internally allocated by resolution or
policy of the elected Council.
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C1-4 Receivables

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Rates and annual charges 12,802 - 10,430 =
Interest and extra charges 1,593 - 1,505 -
User charges and fees 4,862 - 5,592 -
Accrued revenues
— Interest on investments 188 - 136 -
— Other income accruals 2,190 - 1,757 —
Government grants and subsidies 496 - 508 =
Net GST receivable 2,965 - 2,357 -
Total 25,096 - 22,285 =
Less: provision for impairment
User charges and fees (422) - (426) -
Total provision for impairment —
receivables ) (422) - ~_.(426) =
Total net receivables 24,674 - 21,859 -

Accounting policy

Receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment. Receivables are generally due for settlement within 30 days.

Impairment
Impairment of financial assets measured at amortised cost is recognised on an expected credit loss (ECL) basis.

When estimating ECL, Council considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis based on Council’s historical experience
and informed credit assessment, and including forward-looking information.

Council uses the simplified approach for trade receivables where the expected lifetime credit losses are recognised on day one.

When considering the ECL for rates and annual charges debtors, Council takes into account that unpaid rates represent a
charge against the rateable property that will be recovered when the property is next sold.

Credit losses are measured at the present value of the difference between the cash flows due to the entity in accordance with
the contract, and the cash flows expected to be received. This is applied using a probability weighted approach.

Council writes off a receivable when there is information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial difficulty and there
is no realistic prospect of recovery.

None of the receivables that have been written off are subject to enforcement activity.

Where Council renegotiates the terms of receivables due from certain customers, the new expected cash flows are discounted
at the original effective interest rate and any resulting difference to the carrying value is recognised in profit or loss.

Rates and annual charges outstanding are secured against the property.

Page 34

47



\"7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Iltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended

30 June 2022

C1-5 Inventories

$'000

Inventories at cost

Real estate for resale

Stores and materials

Total inventories at cost

Total inventories

$'000

Details for real estate development
Residential
Total real estate for resale

(Valued at the lower of cost and net realisable value)
Represented by:

Acquisition costs

Total costs

Total real estate for resale

Movements:
Real estate assets at beginning of the year
Total real estate for resale

Accounting policy

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

2022 2022 2021 2021
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
- 5,972 - 5,972
461 - 463 -
461 5,972 463 5,972
461 5,972 463 5,972
2022 2022 2021 2021
Current  Non-current Current Non-current
- 5,972 - 5,972

- 5,972 = 5972
- 5,972 - 5,972
- 5,972 - 5,972
- 5,972 - 5,972
- 5,972 - 5,972
- = 5,972 - 5,972

Raw materials and stores, work in progress and finished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Costs are assigned to individual items of inventory on the basis of weighted average costs. Costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary

course of business less the estimated costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

Land held for resale

Land held for resale is stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost is assigned by specific identification and
includes the cost of acquisition, and development and borrowing costs during development. When development is completed,
borrowing costs and other holding charges are expensed as incurred.

Borrowing costs included in the cost of land held for resale are those costs that would have been avoided if the expenditure
on the acquisition and development of the land had not been made. Borrowing costs incurred while active development is
interrupted for extended periods are recognised as expenses.
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C1-6 Contract assets

Contract assets

$'000 2022 2021
Work relating to capital grants & contributions 7,985 4,503
Other 415 -
Work relating to operational grants & contributions 1,311 204
Total contract assets 9,711 4,707

Accounting policy

Contract assets
Contract assets represent Councils right to payment in exchange for goods or services the Council has transferred to a
customer when that right is conditional on something other than the passage of time.

Contract assets arise when the amounts billed to customers are based on the achievement of various milestones established in
the contract and therefore the amounts recognised as revenue in a given period do not necessarily coincide with the amounts
billed to or certified by the customer. Once an invoice or payment claim is raised or the relevant milestone is reached, Council
recognises a receivable.

Impairment of contract assets is assessed using the simplified expected credit loss model where lifetime credit losses are
recognised on initial recognition.

C1-7 Non-current assets classified as held for sale

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 ~ Current Non-current Current Non-current
Non-current assets held for sale
Land 65 = 111 -
Total non-current assets held for sale 65 - 111 -

Details of assets

One parcel of land has been classifed as ‘held of sale' as it is in negotiation and expected to be sold during the 2022-2023
financial year.

Accounting policy

Non-current assets (or disposal groups) are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally
through a sale transaction rather than through continued use and are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair
value less costs to sell.

Non-current assets (including those that are part of a disposal group) are not depreciated or amortised while they are classified
as held for sale.
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Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Y ALY July 2021 Assot movements during the reporting pariod AL 30 June 2022
Impairment Other
Accumulated Net reversal movements. Revaluation Accumulated Net
Gross camying depreciation carrying Additions  Additions new  Carrying value of Depreciation  (recognised in Adjustments and Transfer to increments to Gross carrying depreciation carrying
amount and impairment amount renewals | assets disposals expense equity) WIP transfers. transfers Expense equity (ARR) amount and impairment amount
$'000 Restated Restated Restated
Capital work in progress 55,467 - 55,467 36,820 40,342 - - - (45,360) - (679) - 86,590 - 86,590
Plant and equipment 44,890 (22,520) 22,370 4,842 - (484) (4,620) - - - - - 47,008 (24,900) 22,108
Office equipment 10,244 (5,457) 4,787 723 - - (1,919) - - 10,967 (7,376) 3,591
Fumiture and fittings 3172 (1,418) 1,754 95 - (118) (324) - - 3,114 (1,707) 1,407
Land:
~ Operational land 249,869 - 249,869 - 5,490 - - - 19,744 275,103 - 275,103
~ Community land 298,140 (760) 297,380 - 516 - - - 28,903 328,141 (760) 327,381
- Crown land 103,057 - 103,057 - - - - - 6,390 109,447 - 109,447
— Land under roads (post 30/6/08) 7,502 - 7,502 - 396 - - - - 7,898 - 7,898
Infrastructure:
- Buildings - non-specialised 216,743 (79.405) 137,338 - - (46) (3,880) - 16,477 245,871 (93,507) 152,364
- Buildings - specialised 333,783 (170,971) 162,812 - - 5,636) - 19,469 378,294 (198,051) 180,243
— Other structures 17,009 (7,601) 9,408 - - - - 17,408 (8,198) 9,210
- Roads 1,471,275 (869,787) 601,488 - 7,742 - 228,392 1,869,502 (1,032,152) 837,350
- Bridges 171,495 (56.,848) 114,647 - (18,662) 138,910 (44,227) 94,683
- Footpaths 316,844 (150,954) 165,890 - 3,627 344,698 (165,784) 178,914
~ Stormwater drainage 963,258 (435,837) 527,421 - 322,994 1,547,139 (705,375) 841,764
— Swimming pools 39,847 (27,067) 12,780 - 1,521 44,935 (31,147) 13,788
— Other open space/recreational assets 191,213 (65,220) 125,993 5,639 (478) - 14,496 219,554 (78,845) 140,709
Other assets:
- Heritage collections 15,569 - 15,56 - - - - 15,912 - 15,912
~ Library books 9,476 (4,768) (1,201) - - - - - 10,765 (5,969) 4,796
— Other 57,745 (12,195) (1,531) - 168 - - - 57,913 (13,726) 44,187
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Note C3-5):
~Tip assets 9,410 (9.410) - - - - - - 9,410 (9,410) -
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 4,586,008  (1,920,218) 2,665,790 60,848 (1,551) (64,875) 792 - - (679) 643,351 5,768,579  (2,421,134) 3,347,445
(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of n
continued on next page ... Page 37
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28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

iy A1 Juy 2020 Asset movements duing the reporting period AL30 June 2021
Accumulated Net Impairment loss. Waste Tirs fromyito) Revaluaton Accumulated Net
Gross carrying Gepreciation carryng Additions. Adamons new  Carrying value of Depreciaton (recognised in Adpstiments and Remediaton ‘heid for sale’ increments to Gross carmying depreciation carrying
amount and impairment amount renewals ' assets osposals expense equty) WIP transfers transfers reassessment category equity (ARR) amount and impairment amount
$'000 Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated Restated
Capital work in progress 54,017 - 54,017 22,894 42,789 - - - (61.901) - (2.332) - - 55,467 - 55,467
Plant and equipment 42,203 (20,800) 21,403 6,194 - (926) (4,422) - 121 - - - - 44,890 (22,520) 22,370
Office equipment 7,497 (4,215) 3,282 2,747 - - (1,242) - - - - - - 10,244 (5,457) 4,787
Fumniture and fittings 3,035 (1,104) 1,931 137 - - (314) - - - - 3,172 (1,418) 1,754
Land:
- Operational land 249,821 - 249,821 - 159 - - - - (111) - 249,869 - 249,869
— Community land 295,027 (760) 294,267 - - - 298,140 (760) 297,380
— Crown land 103,057 - 103,057 - - - 103,057 - 103,057
— Land under roads (post 30/6/08) 5,970 - 5,970 - - - 7,502 - 7,502
Infrastructure:
-~ Buildings — non-specialised 210,898 (75,661) 135,237 - - - 216,743 (79,405) 137,338
- Buildings — specialised 332,125 (166,327) 165,798 - - - 333,783 (170,971) 162,812
— Other structures 16,204 (6,958) 9,246 - - - 17,009 (7,601) 9,408
~ Roads 1,452,335 (852,276) 600,059 - 300 - - - 1,471,275 (869,787) 601,488
- Bridges 169,791 (54,868) 114,923 - - - - - 171,495 (56,848) 114,647
- Footpaths 291,256 (138,378) 152,878 - 6,049 - - - 316,844 (150,954) 165,890
- Stormwater drainage 950,803 (425,498) 525,305 - 625 - - - 963,258 (435,837) 527,421
— Swimming pools 32,003 (22,730) 9,363 - 671 - - 960 39,847 (27,067) 12,780
~ Other open space/recreational assets 163,782 (49,962) 113,820 - (3,565) - - 10,131 191,213 (65,220) 125,993
Other assets:
~ Heritage collections 15,415 - 15,415 - - - - 15,569 - 15,569
— Library books 8,159 (3,597) 4,562 - - - - 9,476 (4,768) 4,708
— Other 67,702 (16,867) 50, (4,655) - - 387 57,745 (12,195) 45,550
Reinstatement, rehabilitation and
restoration assets (refer Note C3-5):
— Tip assets 9,410 (9.410) - - - - 9,410 (9.410) -
Investment Property (refer to Note
c1-9):
Total infrastructure, property, plant and
equipment 4,480,600  (1,849411) 2,631,189 56,736 (3,526)  (60,723) (210) - - (2,332) (111) 11,478 4,586,008 (1,920,218) 2,665,790
(1) Renewals are defined as the replacement of existing assets (as opposed to the acquisition of new assets).
continued on next page ... Page 38
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C1-8 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Accounting policy

Initial recognition of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)

IPPE is measured initially at cost. Cost includes the fair value of the consideration given to acquire the asset (net of discounts
and rebates) and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to working condition for its intended use (inclusive of import
duties and taxes).

When infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are acquired by Council at significantly below fair value, the assets are
initially recognised at their fair value at acquisition date.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it
is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to Council and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the Income Statement during the financial period in which they are
incurred.

Useful lives of IPPE
Land is not depreciated. Depreciation on other assets is calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their cost, net of
their residual values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Plant and equipment Years Other equipment Years
Office equipment 3to 25 Playground equipment 10to 15
Office furniture 5to 34 Benches, seats etc. 10 to 20
Computer equipment 2t0 10

Vehicles 3t020 Buildings

Heavy plant/road making equipment 8to 10 Buildings: masonry 50 to 196
Other plant and equipment 2to 34 Buildings: other 2to 50

Stormwater assets

Drains 30.to 130

Culverts 30 to 130

Flood control structures 30 to 130

Transportation assets Other infrastructure assets

Roads: seal 8 to 95 Bulk earthworks Infinite
Roads: base 15to 145 Swimming pools 40 to 100
Roads: sub-base 15to 145 Other open space/recreational assets 3to 115
Bridge: concrete 80 Other infrastructure 10 to 100
Bridge: other 20 to 80

Kerb, gutter and footpaths 20 to 104

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each reporting date. Gains and losses
on disposal are determined by comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These are included in the Income Statement.

Revaluation Model

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment are held at fair value. Independent comprehensive valuations are performed at
least every five years, however the carrying amount of assets is assessed by Council at each reporting date to confirm that
it is not materially different from current fair value.

Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation are credited to the revaluation reserve. To the extent that the increase
reverses a decrease previously recognising profit or loss relating to that asset class, the increase is first recognised as profit
or loss. Decreases that reverse previous increases of assets in the same class are first charged against revaluation reserves
directly in equity to the extent of the remaining reserve attributable to the class; all other decreases are charged to the Income
Statement.

Land under roads
Land under roads is land under roadways and road reserves including land under footpaths, nature strips and median strips.

Council has elected not to recognise land under roads acquired before 1 July 2008. Land under roads acquired after 1 July
2008 is recognised in accordance with the IPPE accounting policy.
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C1-8 Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (continued)

Crown reserves

Crown reserves under Council's care and control are recognised as assets of the Council. While ownership of the reserves
remains with the Crown, Council retains operational control of the reserves and is responsible for their maintenance and use
in accordance with the specific purposes to which the reserves are dedicated. Improvements on Crown reserves are also
recorded as assets, while maintenance costs incurred by Council and revenues relating to the reserves are recognised within
Council’'s Income Statement.

Rural Fire Service assets

Under Section 119 of the Rural Fire Services Act 1997 (NSW), “all firefighting equipment purchased or constructed wholly
or from money to the credit of the Fund is to be vested in the council of the area for or on behalf of which the firefighting
equipment has been purchased or constructed”.

These Rural Fire Service assets are recognised as assets of the Council in these financial statements.

C1-9 Investment properties

Owned investment property

$'000 . 2022 2021
At fair value

Opening balance at 1 July 4,600 5,000
Net gain/(loss) from fair value adjustments 1,000 (400)
Closing balance at 30 June 5,600 4,600

Accounting policy
Investment property, principally comprising freehold office buildings, is held for long-term rental yields and is not occupied by
the Council. Changes in fair values are recorded in the Income Statement as part of other income.
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$'000 2022 2021
Software

Opening values at 1 July

Gross book value 2,345 2,345
Accumulated amortisation (2,193) (2,091)
Net book value — opening balance 152 254
Movements for the year

Amortisation charges (77) (102)
Closing values at 30 June

Gross book value 2,345 2,345
Accumulated amortisation (2,269) (2,193)

Total intangible assets — net book value

Accounting policy

IT development and software

Software development costs include only those costs directly attributable to t
direct costs of materials and services, direct payroll, and payro
are only recognised following completion of technical feasibilit
the asset. Amortisation is calculated on a straight-line basis owv:

152

ees’ time spent on the project) and
il has an intention and ability to use
ing from three to five years.
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C2 Leasing activities

C2-1 Council as a lessee

Council has leases over land and buildings. Information relating to the leases in place and associated balances and
transactions is provided below.

Land & Buildings

Council leases land and building for libraries and other operations; these leases are between 5 and 30 years and some
include a renewal option to allow Council to renew the lease term. These leases contain an annual pricing mechanism
based on either fixed increases or CPl movements at each anniversary of the lease inception.

Extension options
Council includes extension options in some of their leases to provide flexibility and certainty to Council operations and reduce
costs of moving premises. These extension options are at Council’s discretion.

At commencement date and each subsequent reporting date, Council assesses where it is reasonably certain that the
extension options will be exercised.

There are $6.2M in potential future lease payments which are not included in lease liabilities as Council has assessed that
the exercise of the option is not reasonably certain.

(a) Right of use assets

Land &

$'000 Buildings Total
2022

Opening balance at 1 July 1,471 1,471
Depreciation charge (377) (377)
Balance at 30 June 1,094 1,094
2021

Opening balance at 1 July 1,790 1,790
Additions to right-of-use assets 59 59
Depreciation charge (378) (378)
Balance at 30 June 1,471 1,471

(b) The maturity analysis

The maturity analysis of lease liabilities based on contractual undiscounted cash flows is shown in the table below:

Total per

Statement of

Financial

$'000 <1 year 1-5years > 5 years Total Position
2022

Cash flows 403 617 171 1,191 1,191
2021

Cash flows 377 763 431 1,571 1,571
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C2-1 Council as a lessee (continued)

(c) Income Statement

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to leases where Council is a lessee are shown below:

$°'000 2022 2021
Interest on lease liabilities 47 58
Depreciation of right of use assets 377 378

424 436

(d) Statement of Cash Flows

Total cash outflow for leases 427 406

427 406

(e) Leases at significantly below market value — concessionary./ peppercorn leases

Council has a number of leases at significantly below market for land and infrastructure which are used for:
« pedestrian crossings and bridges
* boat ramp

The leases are generally for an extended period of time and require payments of a maximum amount of $1,000 per year. Council
does not believe that any of the leases in place are individually material from a statement of financial position or performance
perspective.

Accounting policy

At inception of a contract, Council assesses whether a lease exists —i.e. does the contract convey the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for consideration?

Council has elected not to separate non-lease components from lease components for any class of asset and has accounted
for payments as a single component.

At the lease commencement, Council recognises a right-of-use asset and associated lease liability for the lease term. The
lease term includes extension periods where Council believes it is reasonably certain that the option will be exercised.

The right-of-use asset is measured using the cost model where cost on initial recognition comprises: the lease liability, initial
direct costs, prepaid lease payments, estimated cost of removal and restoration, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is depreciated over the lease term on a straight-line basis and assessed for impairment in accordance with the
impairment of asset accounting policy.

The lease liability is initially recognised at the present value of the remaining lease payments at the commencement of the
lease. The discount rate is the rate implicit in the lease, however where this cannot be readily determined then the Council’s
incremental borrowing rate for a similar term with similar security is used.

Subsequent to initial recognition, the lease liability is measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method. The
lease liability is re-measured when there is a lease modification, or change in estimate of the lease term or index upon which
the lease payments are based (e.g. CPI).

Where the lease liability is re-measured, the right-of-use asset is adjusted to reflect the re-measurement.

Exceptions to lease accounting

Council has applied the exceptions to lease accounting for both short-term leases (i.e. leases with a term of less than or equal
to 12 months) and leases of low-value assets. Council recognises the payments associated with these leases as an expense
on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Leases at significantly below market value / concessionary leases

Council has elected to measure the right of use asset arising from the concessionary leases at cost which is based on the
associated lease liability at initial recognition.
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C2-2 Council as a lessor

Operating leases

Council leases out a number of properties; these leases have been classified as operating leases for financial reporting
purposes and the assets are included in the Statement of Financial Position as:

— investment property — where the asset is held predominantly for rental or capital growth purposes (refer note C1-9)

— property, plant and equipment — where the rental is incidental, or the asset is held to meet Councils service delivery objective
(refer note C1-8).

$'000 2022 2021

(i) Assets held as investment property

The amounts recognised in the Income Statement relating to operating leases where Council is a lessor are shown below
Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 454 434
Total income relating to operating leases for investment property assets 454 434

Operating lease expenses
Direct operating expenses that generated rental income 140 147
Total expenses relating to operating leases 140 147

(ii) Assets held as property, plant and equipment
Lease income (excluding variable lease payments not dependent on an index or rate) 4,994 6,032
Total income relating to operating leases for Council assets 4,994 6,032

(iii) Maturity analysis of contractual lease income: investment property
Maturity analysis of future lease income receivable showing the undiscounted lease
payments to be received after reporting date for operating leases:

<1 year 265 361
1-2 years 136 180
2-3 years 21 69
Total undiscounted lease payments to be received 422 610

Accounting policy

When Council is a lessor, the lease is classified as either an operating or finance lease at inception date, based on whether
substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of the asset have been transferred to the lessee. If the risks
and rewards have been transferred then the lease is classified as a finance lease, otherwise it is an operating lease.

When Council has a sub-lease over an asset and is the intermediate lessor then the head lease and sub-lease are accounted
for separately. The classification of the sub-lease is based on the right-of-use asset which arises from the head lease rather
than the useful life of the underlying asset.

If the lease contains lease and non-lease components, the non-lease components are accounted for in accordance with AASB
15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers.

The lease income is recognised on a straight-line basis over the lease term for an operating lease and as finance income
using amortised cost basis for finance leases.
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C3 Liabilities of Council
C3-1 Payables

2022 2022 2021 2021
$°'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Prepaid rates 4,130 - 3,045 -
Goods and services — operating expenditure 1,479 - 2,732 -
Goods and services — capital expenditure 313 - 3,622 —
Accrued expenses:

— Other expenditure accruals 17,843 - 14,395 =
Security bonds, deposits and retentions 2,618 - 2,172 -
Other 993 - 655 -
Total payables 27,376 - 26,621 -

Current payables not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$'000 I 2022 2021
Payables — security bonds, deposits and retentions 1,091 1,069
Total payables 1,091 1,069

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

The financial liabilities of the Council comprise trade payables and loans:

Payables
Payables represent liabilities for goods and services provided to Council prior to the end of financial year that are unpaid.
The amounts are unsecured and are usually paid within 30 days of recognition.
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C3-2 Contract Liabilities

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Notes Current Non-current Current Non-current
Grants and contributions received in
advance:

Unexpended capital grants (to
construct Council controlled assets) (i) 1,355 - 5,305 -
Unexpended operating grants
(received prior to performance
obligation being satisfied) (i) 282 - 58 -

Unexpended capital contributions (to

construct Council controlled assets) (i) 114 = 214 _
Unexpended operating contributions

(received prior to performance

obligation being satisfied) (ii) 149 - = =
Total grants received in

advance 1,900 - 5,577 -
User fees and charges received in advance:

Upfront fees (i) 3,591 - 2,600 -
Total user fees and charges

received in advance 3,591 - 2,600 -
Total contract liabilities 5,491 = 8,177 =
Notes

(i) Council has received funding to construct assets. The funds received are under an enforceable contract which require
Council to construct an identified asset which will be under Council's control on completion. The revenue is recognised as
Council constructs the asset and the contract liability reflects the funding received which cannot yet be recognised as
revenue. The revenue is expected to be recognised in the next 12 months.

(i) The contract liability relates to operating grants received prior to the revenue recognition criteria in AASB 15 being
satisfied since the performance obligations are ongoing.

(iii) Fees paid upfront for the delivery of specific Council services are recorded as a contract liability on receipt and
recognised as revenue when the performance obligations are met.

(i) Revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability balance at the beginning of the period

$'000 2022 2021
Capital grants (to construct Council controlled assets) 4,462 938
Operating grants (received prior to performance obligation being satisfied) 23 40
Capital contributions (to construct Council controlled assets) 100 229
Upfront fees 2,121 2,198

Total revenue recognised that was included in the contract liability
balance at the beginning of the period 6,706 3,405

Significant changes in contract liabilities
The contract liabilities have decreased due to delivery of capital expenditure resulting from capital grant funds received in
2020-2021.

Accounting policy
Contract liabilities are recorded when consideration is received from a customer / fund provider prior to Council transferring
a good or service to the customer, Council presents the funds which exceed revenue recognised as a contract liability.
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2022 2022 2021 2021
Current Non-current Current Non-current
3,569 3,374 5,497 6,942
3,569 3,374 5,497 6,942

(1) Loans are secured over the general rating income of Council. Disclosures on liability interest rate risk exposures, fair value disclosures

and security can be found in Note E1.

Borrowings relating to restricted assets

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current Non-current Current Non-current
Externally restricted assets
Loans - - 277 -
Total borrowings relating to restricted
assets - - 277 -
Total borrowings relating to
unrestricted assets 3,569 3,374 5,220 6,942
Total borrowings 3,569 3,374 5,497 6,942
(a) Changes in liabilities arising from financing activities

2021 Non-cash movements 2022
Acquisition
due to change
Opening Fair value  in accounting Other non-cash Closing
$'000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes policy movement balance
Loans — secured 12,439 (5,496) - - - 6,943
Lease liability (Note C2-1b) 1,571 (427) - - 47 1,191
Total liabilities from financing
activities 14,010 (5,923) - - - 47 8,134
2020 Non-cash movements 2021
) Acquisition due »
to change in
Opening Fair value accounting  Other non-cash
$'000 Balance Cash flows Acquisition changes policy movement Closing balance
Loans — secured 17,699 (5,260) - - - - 12,439
Lease liability (Note C2-1b) 1,860 (406) 59 - - 58 1,571
Total liabilities from financing
activities 19,559 (5,666) 59 = - 58 14,010
(b) Financing arrangements
$°'000 2022 2021
Total facilities
Bank overdraft facilities 300 300
Credit cards/purchase cards 835 835
Total financing arrangements 1,135 1,135
Drawn facilities
— Credit cards/purchase cards 3 16
Total drawn financing arrangements 3 16
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C3-3 Borrowings (continued)

$'000 2022 2021
Undrawn facilities

— Bank overdraft facilities 300 300
— Credit cards/purchase cards 832 819
Total undrawn financing arrangements 1,132 1,119

Additional financing arrangements information

Breaches and defaults
During the current and prior year, there were no defaults or breaches on any of the loans.

(1) The bank overdraft facility may be drawn at any time and may be terminated by the bank without notice.

Accounting policy
Council measures all financial liabilities initially at fair value less transaction costs, subsequently financial liabilities are
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as transaction costs of th
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down.

the extent that it is probable

Borrowings are removed from the Statement of Financial Position when the
cancelled or expired. The difference between the carrying amount of a
transferred to another party and the consideration paid, including any non-c
recognised in other income or borrowing costs.

contract is discharged,
been extinguished or
iabilities assumed, is
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C3-4 Employee benefit provisions

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current  Non-current Current Non-current
Annual leave 13,119 - 12,252 -
Sick leave 94 - 168 —
Long service leave 36,862 792 42,965 957
Other leave 1,630 - 1,383 -
Total employee benefit provisions 51,705 792 56,768 957

Current employee benefit provisions not anticipated to be settled within the next twelve months

$'000 2022 2021

The following provisions, even though classified as current, are not expected to be settled
in the next 12 months.

Provisions — employees benefits 39,591 45,373
39,591 45,373

Accounting policy

Employee benefit provisions are presented as current liabilities in the Statement of Financial Position if Council does not
have an unconditional right to defer settlement for at least 12 months after the reporting date, regardless of when the actual
settlement is expected to occur and therefore all annual leave and vested long service leave (or that which vests within 12
months) is presented as current.

Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries (including non-monetary benefits, annual leave and accumulating sick leave expected to be
wholly settled within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the related service) are recognised
in respect of employees' services up to the end of the reporting period and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liability for annual leave and accumulating sick leave is recognised in the provision for
employee benefits. All other short-term employee benefit obligations are presented as payables.

Other long-term employee benefit obligations

The liability for long-service leave and annual leave that is not expected to be wholly settled within 12 months after the end of
the period in which the employees render the related service is recognised in the provision for employee benefits and measured
as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of services provided by employees up to the end of
the reporting period using the projected unit credit method. Consideration is given to expected future wage and salary levels,
experience of employee departures, and periods of service. Expected future payments are discounted using market yields at
the end of the reporting period on national government bonds with terms to maturity and currency that match, as closely as
possible, the estimated future cash outflows.

On-costs

The employee benefit provisions include the aggregate on-cost liabilities that will arise when payment of current employee
benefits is made in future periods. These amounts include superannuation which will be payable upon the future payment of
certain leave liabilities which employees are entitled to at the reporting period.
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C3-5 Provisions

2022 2022 2021 2021
$'000 Current Non-Current Current Non-Current
Other provisions
Self insurance — workers compensation 3,626 8,471 2,116 7,415
Self insurance — claims incurred 215 324 255 430
Sub-total — other provisions 3,841 8,795 2,371 7,845
Asset remediation/restoration:

Asset remediation/restoration (future works) 50 19,084 250 30,512
Sub-total — asset remediation/restoration 50 19,084 250 30,512
Total provisions 3,891 27,879 2,621 38,357

Description of and movements in provisions

Other provisions

Self
Insurance: Self
Workers  Insurance:
compen- Claims Asset

$°000 sation _incurred  remediation Total
2022

At beginning of year 9,531 685 30,762 40,978
Unwinding of discount - - (5) (5)
Additional provisions 2,934 - - 2,934
Amounts used (payments) (3,527) - - (3,527)
Remeasurement effects 3,159 - (11,623) (8,464)
Unused amounts reversed - (146) - (146)
Expenditure incurred attributable to provisions - - - -
Total other provisions at end of year 12,097 539 19,134 31,770
2021

At beginning of year 7,654 730 33,367 41,751
Unwinding of discount - - 1,488 1,488
Additional provisions 2,617 - - 2,617
Amounts used (payments) (3,202) - - (3,202)
Remeasurement effects 2,462 - (3,755) (1,293)
Unused amounts reversed - (45) - (45)
Expenditure incurred attributable to provisions - - (338) (338)
Total other provisions at end of year 9,531 685 30,762 40,978

Nature and purpose of provisions

Asset remediation
Council has a legal/public obligation to make, restore, rehabilitate and reinstate the open Whytes Gully Waste Disposal Depot
and closed Helensburgh Waste Depot.

Self-insurance - workers compensation
To recognise liabilities for outstanding claims (uninsured losses) arising from Council’s decision to undertake self-insurance
for excesses up to $750,000 on any individual claim. Claims beyond this are supported by an external insurance policy.

Self-insurance - claims incurred
To recognise liabilities for both (i) claims expected to be incurred but not reported and (ii) claims reported and estimated as a
result of Council being self insured up to an excess of $100,000 on any individual claim.

Accounting policy

Provisions are recognised when Council has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result of past events, it is probable
that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, and the amount has been reliably estimated.
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C3-5 Provisions (continued)

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement is determined by
considering the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood of an outflow with respect to
any one item included in the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of management’s best estimate of the expenditure required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. The discount rate used to determine the present value reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to the liability. The increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as a borrowing cost.

Asset Remediation/Restoration

Restoration

Close-down and restoration costs include the dismantling and demolition of infrastructure, and the removal of residual materials
and remediation of disturbed areas. Estimated close-down and restoration costs are provided for in the accounting period
when the obligation arising from the related disturbance occurs, whether this occurs during the development or during the
operation phase, based on the net present value of estimated future costs.

Provisions for close-down and restoration costs do not include any additional obligations which are expected to arise from
future disturbance. The costs are estimated on the basis of a closure plan. The cost estimates are calculated annually during
the life of the operation to reflect known developments, e.g. updated cost estimates and revisions to the estimated lives of
operations, and are subject to formal review at regular intervals.

Rehabilitation

Where rehabilitation is conducted systematically over the life of the operation, rather than at the time of closure, provision
is made for the estimated outstanding continuous rehabilitation work at each reporting date, and the cost is charged to the
Income Statement.

Provision is made for the estimated present value of the costs of environmental clean-up obligations outstanding at the reporting
date. These costs are charged to the Income Statement. Movements in the environmental clean-up provisions are presented
as an operating cost, except for the unwinding of the discount which is shown as a borrowing cost.

Remediation procedures generally commence soon after the time the damage, remediation process, and estimated
remediation costs become known, but may continue for many years depending on the nature of the disturbance and the
remediation techniques.

As noted above, the ultimate cost of environmental remediation is uncertain and cost estimates can vary in response to many
factors, including changes to the relevant legal requirements, the emergence of new restoration techniques, or experience at
other locations. The expected timing of expenditure can also change, for example in response to changes in quarry reserves
or production rates. As a result, there could be significant adjustments to the provision for close down and restoration and
environmental clean-up, which would affect future financial results.

Other movements in the provisions for close-down and restoration costs, including those resulting from new disturbance,
updated cost estimates, changes to the estimated lives of operations, and revisions to discount rates, are capitalised within
property, plant and equipment. These costs are then depreciated over the lives of the assets to which they relate.

Close-down and restoration costs are a normal consequence of tip and quarry operations, and the majority of close-down and
restoration expenditure is incurred at the end of the life of the operations. Although the ultimate cost to be incurred is uncertain,
Council estimates the respective costs based on feasibility and engineering studies using current restoration standards and
techniques.

Self-insurance - workers compensation

Council holds a level of self-insurance in the form of an excess layer of $750,000 on any individual claim for workers
compensation. A provision for self-insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims. Council also maintains a bank
guarantee to meet expected future claims; refer to Note E3-1.

Self-insurance - claims incurred
Council holds a level of self-insurance in the form of an excess layer of $100,000 on any individual claim for public liability
and professional indemnity. A provision for self-insurance has been made to recognise outstanding claims.
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C4 Reserves

C4-1 Nature and purpose of reserves

IPPE Revaluation reserve
The infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE) revaluation reserve is used to record increments and decrements

in the revaluation of infrastructure, property, plant and equipment.

D Council structure
D1  Results by fund

Council utilises only a general fund for its operations.

Page 52



\"7 4
wollongong

ity of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended

30 June 2022

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

D2 Interests in other entities

D2-1 Subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates not recognised

The following subsidiaries, joint arrangements and associates have not been recognised in this financial report.

Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity

lllawarra Shoalhaven Joint Inter-Governmental Collaboration Joint Venture
Organisation

Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.

Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity
Destination Wollongong Tourism Development & Promotion Associate

Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.

Name of entity/operation Principal activity/type of entity

lllawarra Performing Arts Theatre & Town Hall Management Associate
Centre

Reasons for non-recognition
Council has assessed this operation as not material for recognition in these statements.

2022
Net profit
($'000s)

"

2022
Net profit
($'000s)

86

2022
Net profit
($'000s)

623

2022
Net assets
($'000s)

956

2022
Net assets
($'000s)

188

2022
Net assets
($'000s)

1,229
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E Risks and accounting uncertainties

E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held

The Council’s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Council.

Council's objective is to maximise its return on cash and investments whilst maintaining an adequate level of liquidity and
preserving capital. Council's finance area manages the cash and Investments portfolio with the assistance of independent
advisors. Council has an investment policy which complies with s625 of the Act and the Ministerial Investment Order. This
policy is regularly reviewed by Council and it's staff and an investment report is tabled before Council on a monthly basis
setting out the portfolio breakup and its performance as required by Local Government regulations.

Council does not engage in transactions expressed in foreign currencies and is therefore not subject to foreign currency risk.
Financial risk management is carried out by Council’s finance section under policies approved by the Council.

The fair value of Council’s financial assets and financial liabilities approximates their carrying amount.

The risks associated with the financial instruments held are:

« Price risk — the risk that the capital value of Investments may fluctuate due to changes in market prices, whether
the changes are caused by factors specific to individual financial instruments or their issuers or are caused by factors
affecting similar instruments traded in a market.

« Interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could affect returns and income.

+ Liquidity risk — the risk that Council will not be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due.

+ Credit risk — the risk that the investment counterparty will not complete their obligations particular to a financial
instrument, resulting in a financial loss to Council — be it of a capital or income nature.

Council manages these risks (amongst other measures) by diversifying its portfolio and only purchasing investments with high
credit ratings or capital guarantees. Council also seeks advice from independent advisers before placing any funds in cash
equivalents and investments.

(a) Market risk — interest rate and price risk

$'000 2022 2021

The following represents a summary of the sensitivity of Council's Income Statement and accumulated surplus (for the reporting
period) due to a change in either the price of a financial asset or the interest rates applicable.

It is assumed that the change in interest rates would have been constant throughout the reporting period.

Impact of a 1% movement in interest rates

— Equity / Income Statement 1,051 1,189
Impact of a 10% movement in price of investments
Possible impact of a 10% movement in price of investments 5,441 5,033
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

(b) Credit risk
Council's major receivables comprise (i) rates and annual charges and (ii) user charges and fees.

Council manages the credit risk associated with these receivables by monitoring outstanding debt and employing stringent
debt recovery procedures.

There are no significant concentrations of credit risk, whether through exposure to individual customers, specific industry
sectors and/or regions.

Council makes suitable provision for the impairment of receivables as required

There are no material receivables that have been subjected to a re-negotiation of repayment terms.

Credit risk profile

Receivables - rates and annual charges

Credit risk on rates and annual charges is minimised by the ability of Council to recover these debts as a secured charge
over the land; that is, the land can be sold to recover the debt. Council is also able to charge interest on overdue rates and
annual charges at higher than market rates which further encourages payment.

Not yet overdue rates and annual charges

$'000 overdue <5 years ~25years Total
2022
Gross carrying amount - 13,399 994 14,393
2021
Gross carrying amount - 8,813 3,122 11,935

Receivables - non-rates and annual charges and contract assets

Council applies the simplified approach for non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets to provide for expected
credit losses, which permits the use of the lifetime expected loss provision at inception. To measure the expected credit losses,
non-rates and annual charges debtors and contract assets have been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics
and the days past due.

The loss allowance provision is determined as follows. The expected credit losses incorporate forward-looking information.

Not yet Overdue debts

$'000 overdue 0 - 30 days 31 - 60 days 61 - 90 days > 91 days Total
2022

Gross carrying amount 18,411 266 169 182 1,384 20,412
Expected loss rate (%) 0.03% 5.60% 4.50% 3.60% 28.00% 2.07%
ECL provision 6 15 8 7 388 424
2021

Gross carrying amount 13,614 171 157 162 953 15,057
Expected loss rate (%) 0.10% 3.16% 7.33% 3.83% 40.82% 2.83%
ECL provision 14 5 12 6 389 426
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E1-1 Risks relating to financial instruments held (continued)

(c) Liquidity risk

Payables, lease liabilities and borrowings are both subject to liquidity risk — the risk that insufficient funds may be on hand to
meet payment obligations as and when they fall due.

Council manages this risk by monitoring its cash flow requirements and liquidity levels and maintaining an adequate cash buffer.
Payment terms can (in extenuating circumstances) also be extended and overdraft facilities utilised as required.

Borrowings are also subject to interest rate risk — the risk that movements in interest rates could adversely affect funding
costs and debt servicing requirements. Council manages this risk through diversification of borrowing types, maturities and
interest rate structures. The finance team regularly reviews interest rate movements to determine if it would be advantageous
to refinance or renegotiate part or all of the loan portfolio.

The timing of cash flows presented in the table below to settle financial liabilities reflects the earliest contractual settlement
dates. The timing of expected outflows is not expected to be materially different from contracted cashflows.

The amounts disclosed in the table are the undiscounted contracted cash flows for non-lease liabilities (refer to Note C2-1(b)
for lease liabilities) and therefore the balances in the table may not equal the balances in the Statement of Financial Position
due to the effect of discounting.

Weighted

average  Without payable in: Actual

interest defined 1-5 Total cash carrying
$'000 rate  maturity s 1Iear Years jPrears _outflows values
2022
Payables 0.00% 2,618 24,760 - - 27,378 27,376
Borrowings 1.50% - 3,907 3,313 - 7,220 6,943
Total financial liabilities 2,618 28,667 3,313 - 34,598 34,319
2021
Payables 0.00% 2,172 21,404 - - 23,576 26,621
Borrowings 1.50% - 5,914 7,220 - 13,134 12,439
Total financial liabilities 2172 27,318 7,220 - 36,710 39,060

Page 56

69



\7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Iltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended

30 June 2022

28 November 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

E2-1 Fair value measurement

Council measures the following asset and liability classes at fair value on a recurring basis:

— Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment
— Investment property
— Financial assets and liabilities

The fair value of assets and liabilities must be estimated in accordance with various accounting standards for either recognition

and measurement requirements or for disclosure purposes.

AASB 13 Fair Value Measurement requires all assets and liabilities measured at fair value to be assigned to a ‘level’ in the

fair value hierarchy as follows:

Level 1: Unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can access at the

measurement date.

Level 2: Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly

or indirectly.

Level 3: Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs).

Fair value measurement hierarchy

Date of latest valuation
2022 2021
s ‘000 Notes

Recurring fair value measurements
Financial assets
Financial investments C1-2

At fair value through profit
or loss — designated at fair
value on initial recognition 30/06/22 30/06/21

Total financial assets

Investment property C1-9

Commercial building 30/06/22 30/06/21
Total investment

property

Infrastructure, c1-8

property, plant and

equipment

Roads 30/06/22 30/06/17
Bridges 30/06/22 30/06/17
Footpaths 30/06/22 30/06/17
Stormwater 30/06/22 30/06/17
Plant and equipment N/A N/A
Office equipment N/A N/A
Furniture and fittings N/A N/A
Operational land 30/06/22 30/06/19
Community land 30/06/22 30/06/20
Crown Land 30/06/22 30/06/20
Land under roads 30/06/19 30/06/19
Buildings 30/06/22 30/06/19
Other structures 30/06/19 30/06/19
Swimming pools 30/06/22 30/06/21
Library books N/A N/A
Other open

space/recreational assets 30/06/22 30/06/21
Tip asset 30/06/21 30/06/21
Works in progress N/A N/A
Artworks 30/06/19 30/06/19
Other 30/06/21 30/06/21

Total infrastructure,
property, plant and
equipment

continued on next page ...

Level 3 Significant

unobservable inputs Total
2022 2021 2022 2021
. Restated Restated
56,965 53,533 56,965 53,533
56,965 53,533 56,965 53,533
5,600 4,600 5,600 4,600
5,600 4,600 5,600 4,600
837,350 601,488 837,350 601,488
94,683 114,647 94,683 114,647
178,914 165,890 178,914 165,890
841,764 527,421 841,764 527,421
22,108 22,370 22,108 22,370
3,591 4,787 3,591 4,787
1,407 1,754 1,407 1,754
275,103 249,869 275,103 249,869
327,381 297,380 327,381 297,380
109,447 103,057 109,447 103,057
7,898 7,502 7,898 7,502
332,607 300,150 332,607 300,150
9,210 9,408 9,210 9,408
13,788 12,780 13,788 12,780
4,796 4,708 4,796 4,708
140,709 125,993 140,709 125,993
86,590 55,467 86,590 55,467
15,912 15,569 15,912 15,569
44,187 45,550 44,187 45,550
3,347,445 2,665,790 3,347,445 2,665,790
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
Valuation techniques

Where Council is unable to derive fair value using quoted market prices of identical assets (i.e. Level 1 inputs), Council instead
utilises a spread of both observable inputs (Level 2 inputs) and unobservable inputs (Level 3 inputs).

Level 2 inputs include;

« quoted prices for similar assets in active markets,

« quoted prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active,

« inputs other than quoted prices that are observable (e.g. interest rates, credit spreads etc.) and
« market corroborated inputs.

Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. If an observable input (Level 2) requires an adjustment using an unobservable input
and that adjustment results in a significantly higher or lower fair value measurement, the resulting measurement is categorised
within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. Council uses unobservable inputs to the extent relevant observable inputs are
not available. But the objective remains the same; i.e. an exit price from the perspective of market participants. Therefore,
unobservable inputs reflect the assumptions market participants would use when pricing, including assumptions about risk.
Assumptions about risk include risk inherent in a particular valuation technique and risk inherent in inputs to the technique.
Such an adjustment may be necessary if there is a significant measurement uncertainty.

Unobservable inputs have been developed using the best information available, which includes Council’s own data. In some
cases, Council adjusts its own data if reasonable available information indicates other market participants would use different
data or if there is an entity specific synergy (i.e. not available to other market participants).

Level 3 inputs include;

+ Unit Rates,

«  Unit Price,

+ Asset Condition,

+ Remaining Useful Life,
+ Future Demands,

« Borrowing Rates.

The Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:
Financial assets
Valuation Technique — A portion of Council’s investment portfolio is measured at fair value (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the current price in an active market for similar assets. Emerald
Reverse Mortgage investment securities form part of this portion of Council’s portfolio. The market for Australian mortgage
backed securities, regardless of the robustness of the structure, is highly illiquid as a direct consequence of the global financial
crisis. This has caused difficulties in valuing the security as there is limited “price discovery” in the market. As such the level
of valuation input for Council’s fair valued investments was considered a level 3.

Investment property

Valuation Technique — Council’s Investment Property is measured using sales direct comparison based on a market selling
approach (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy - the fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach are rental yields and
price per square metre. The level of evidence to support the critical assumptions of Council’s investment property valuation
was considered to be significant due to high levels of variability in the market for rental yields and future demands. As such
the level of valuation input for these properties was considered level 3.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment (IPPE)
Infrastructure — Council’s Infrastructure incorporates;

+ Roads — Surface and bases, Car Parks, Kerb and Guttering and Traffic Facilities (speed humps, bollards and signs),
« Bridges — Road, Pedestrian and Jetties,

+ Footpaths including shared pathways, and

« Stormwater Drainage.

Valuation Technique — Infrastructure assets are recognised using the cost method, which equates to the current replacement
cost of a modern equivalent asset. The cost to replace the asset is to equal the amount that a market participant buyer of
that asset would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’s infrastructure inventory is to
determine a unit rate based on square metres or an appropriate unit corroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). A
process is then undertaken to compare these rates with internal unit rates derived by Council as a result of specific projects
that have been undertaken. Further to this other input such as asset condition and useful life require a significant level of
professional judgement and can impact significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for these assets
was considered level 3.

Plant & Equipment, Office Equipment & Furniture & Fittings incorporate:

+ Plant & Equipment — Trucks, Tractors, Graders, Rollers, Buses, Vans, Passenger Vehicles, Mobile Equipment (i.e.
generators, hand mowers, tools), Fluid storage units (i.e. septic tanks, water tanks),

« Office Equipment — Electronic Whiteboards, Printing Equipment, Safes and |.T. equipment such as computers, printers
and scanners,

+ Furniture & Fittings — Chairs, Tables, Filing Cabinets, Bookshelves, Compactuses,

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Operational Land

Valuation Technique — Council’s. Operational Land is measured using a comparative market selling approach (i.e. market
approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the sales prices of comparable properties after adjusting for
differences in key attributes such as property size. The most significant inputs into this valuation approach is price per square
metre. The level of evidence to support the critical assumptions of Council’s operational land valuation was considered to be
significant due to high levels of variability in the market for similar properties and future demands. As such the level of valuation
input for these properties was considered level 3.

Community & Crown Land

Valuation Technique — Council’s Community & Crown Land is measured using comparative Land Values (LV) provided by the
Valuer General (VG) or an average unit rate based on a comparable LV for similar properties (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — the fair value has been derived from the LV's provided by the Valuer General or an average unit rate
based on the LV for similar properties where the Valuer General did not provide a LV. The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square metre. Valuations provided by the Valuer General are not in the public domain and
the application of an average rate requires a level of professional judgement. As such the level of valuation input for these
properties was considered level 3.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Land Under Roads

Valuation Technique — Land is generally valued using comparative Land Values (LV) provided by the Valuer General (VG) or
an average unit rate based on a comparable LV for similar properties (i.e. market approach).

Fair Value Hierarchy — The existing use fair value of land under roads is best expressed as undeveloped or englobo land (pre-
subdivision). However, as sufficient sales evidence of englobo land with similar features to the land being valued is generally
not available, it is appropriate to use a proxy to estimate the englobo value. Community land value is used as a reasonable
proxy to value land under roads, as such land generally has no feasible alternative use, and it is undeveloped and is publicly
accessible. As such the level of valuation input for these properties was considered level 3.

Buildings — Non-Specialised and Specialised

Valuation Technique — Buildings are recognised using the cost method, which equates to the current replacement cost of a
modern equivalent asset. The cost to replace the asset is equal to the amount that a market participant buyer of that asset
would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy — Specialised and Non-Specialised buildings are generally assessed at level 3 of the fair value hierarchy
due to lack of market evidence. Key inputs are unit rates and remaining useful life. The exception is non-specialised residential
properties which have been valued using sale prices of comparable properties (level 2). The most significant input into this
valuation approach is price per square metre. The level of evidence to support the critical assumptions of Council's residential
property valuation was considered to be significant due to high levels of variability in the market for rental yields and future
demands. As such the level of valuation input for all buildings was considered level 3.

Intangible Assets

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Structures
Other Structures incorporates Bus Shelters, Shade Structures, Picnic Shelters and BBQ Shelters.

Valuation Technique — Other Structures are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Open Space / Recreational Assets

Other Open Space/Recreational Assets incorporate Park Assets including Playgrounds, Skateboard Facilities, Tennis Courts,
Furniture and Landscaping and Power Poles.

Valuation Technique — Other Open Space/Recreational Assets are recognised using the cost method.
Fair Value Hierarchy — while some elements of the cost method can be supported by market evidence (Level 2) other factors

require professional judgement such as asset condition and useful life. As these inputs can have a significant impact on the
fair value the valuation input all Other Open Space / Recreational Assets were considered level 3.
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E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)

Swimming Pools - Structures

Valuation Technique — Swimming Pools and Rock Pools are valued using the cost approach, which equates to the current
replacement cost of a modern equivalent asset.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’s swimming pool inventory is to
determine a unit rate based on square metres corroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). A process is then undertaken
to compare these rates with internal unit rates derived by Council as a result of specific work that has been undertaken. Further
to this other input such as asset condition and useful life require a significant level of professional judgement and can impact
significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for these properties was considered level 3.

Artworks

Valuation Technique — Art Works are valued using the cost approach, which equates to the current replacement cost of a
modern equivalent asset. The cost to replace the asset is to equal the amount that a market participant buyer of that asset
would pay to acquire it.

Fair Value Hierarchy - the general valuation approach to determine the fair value of Council’s Artworks is to use the market
price or purchase price of the original transaction or if the work is in the form of a donation an external valuation is undertaken
corroborated by market evidence (Level 2 input). Itis noted that the valuation process requires a significant level of professional
judgement and this can impact significantly on the fair value. As such the level of valuation input for artworks was considered
level 3.

Library Books

Valuation Technique — These assets are recognised at depreciated historical cost as an acceptable substitute for fair value
because any difference between fair value and depreciated historical cost is unlikely to be material.

Fair Value Hierarchy — The key unobservable unit to the valuation of this category is asset condition and useful life. The
condition of assets is reviewed on an annual basis and an assessment of remaining life undertaken based on these results.

Other Assets

Other Assets is a catch all for the remaining assets held by Council and includes Waste Assets such as Cell Development and
Liners, Public Art and Crematorium and Cemetery Beams and Walls.

Valuation Technique - Other Assets are recognised using the cost method.

Fair Value Hierarchy — While some elements of the cost method can be supported by market evidence (Level 2) others factors
require professional judgement such as asset condition and useful life. As these inputs can have a significant impact on the
fair value the valuation input all Other Assets were considered level 3.

Tip Remediation Asset
Valuation Technique — Council’s Tip Remediation Asset is measured using the cost method.

Fair Value Hierarchy — Whytes Gully Waste Disposal Depot will require remediation and restoration works to be carried out
during and at the end of its useful life. The cash outflows relating to these remediation and restoration works have been
modelled and recognised as an asset in Note C1-8 of Council’s statements. Key unobservable inputs were the discount rate,
cost escalation rate, timing of costs and future environmental management requirements. As such the level of valuation input
for Council’s tip asset was considered Level 3.

The tip remediation asset was adjusted in line with changes to the remediation provision. During 2019-2020, the remediation

provision was reduced to by an amount greater than the carrying value of the tip remediation and as a result this asset now
has a carrying value of zero.
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Fair value measurement (continued)

28 November 2022

A summary of the Fair Valuation techniques Council has employed while utilising Level 2 and Level 3 inputs are as follows:

Asset Category

Valuation Frequency

Description of Process

Valuer*

Responsibility

Financial Assets

Monthly

Monthly valuation using
the current price in an
active market for similar
assets

External

Finance Division

Investment Properties

Annually

Assessed each year for
material change and
adjusted accordingly

External

Property Division

Infrastructure

5 years

Full valuation using
current unit rates and
comparable work.
Assessed each year for
material change and
adjusted accordingly

Internal

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division

Plant & Equipment

Annually

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Office Equipment &
Furniture & Fittings

Annually

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Operational Land

5 Years

Full valuation every 5
years or index applied
annually if material

External

Property Division

Community & Crown
Land

5 Years

Valuer General Land
Values or Average Unit
Rate for similar
properties if not
available

I\Valuer General / Internal

Property / Finance
Division

Land Under Roads

5 Years

Valuer General Land
Values or Average Unit
Rate used as proxy to
derive en globo rate

\Valuer General / Internal

Finance Division

Buildings — Non
Specialised &
Specialised

5 Years

Full valuation every 5
years or index applied
annually if material

External / Internal

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division / Property

Division

Intangibles

5 Years

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value

Internal

Finance Division

Other Structures

5 Years

Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
adjustments to
consumption patterns
that may impact fair

Internal

value

Infrastructure &
Strategic Planning
Division
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28 November 2022

E2-1 Fair value measurement (continued)
Asset Category Valuation Frequency [Description of Process| Valuer* Responsibility
Full valuation every 5 Infrastructure &
G Op en Space / 5 Years years or index applied Internal Strategic Planning
Recreational Assets . . L
annually if material Division
Swimming Pools - Full valuation every 5 Infrastructure &
5 Years years or index applied External / Internal Strategic Planning
Structures . . A
annually if material Division
Assessment of
remaining useful life
undertaken with
Library Books Annually adjustments to Internal Finance Division
consumption patterns
that may impact fair
value
Full valuation every 5
Other Assets 5 years years or index applied Internal Various
annually if material
Reassessment of
discount rate and
Tip Remediation Asset Annually application to Internal Finance Division

discounted cash flows if
material

*Internal Valuation refers to the utilisation of in-house expertise to value Council’s assets.
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Fair value measurements using significant unobservable inputs (level 3)

A reconciliation of the movements in recurring fair value

ted to Level 3 of the hierarchy is provided below:

Financial assets Investment property IPP&E Total

2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021 2022 2021
$ '000 Restated Restated
Opening balance 53,533 46,393 4,600 5,000 65,790 2,655,487 2,723,923 2,706,880
Total gains or losses for the period
Recognised in profit or loss — realised ' (2,282) (125) 1,000 - - (1,282) (525)
Recognised in other comprehensive income —
revaluation surplus - - - 11,268 644,143 11,268
Other movements
Transfers from/(to) another asset class - = - (111) - (111)
Purchases (GBV) 15,750 19,275 104,617 90,025 120,367 109,300
Disposals (WDV) (10,036) (12,010) (1,551) (3,526) (11,587) (15,536)
Depreciation and impairment - - (64,875) (60,723) (64,875) (60,723)
Prior Period Error - - - (24,298) - (24,298)
Transfer to expense - - (679) (2,332) (679) (2,332)
Closing balance 56,965 4,600 3,347,445 2,665,790 3,410,010 2,723,923

(1) Fair value gains recognised in the Income Statement relating #
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E3-1 Contingencies

The following assets and liabilities do not qualify for recognition in the Statement of Financial Position, but their knowledge
and disclosure is considered relevant to the users of Council’s financial report.

ASSETS NOT RECOGNISED

1. Land under roads

As permitted under AASB 1051, Council has elected not to bring to account land under roads that it owned or controlled up
to and including 30/06/08.

LIABILITIES NOT RECOGNISED

1. Bank Guarantees
Council has provided Bank Guarantees totalling $1,868,061 as security over damages for work that may impact a third party.

Council has provided security to Work Cover for outstanding workers compensation claims liability in the form of a bank
guarantee to the sum of $7,711,000.

Council is also Guarantor on a mortgage for a third party of $180,000.
2. Defined benefit superannuation contribution plans

Council is party to an Industry Defined Benefit Plan under the Local Government Superannuation Scheme (Active Super),
named The Local Government Superannuation Scheme — Pool B (the Scheme) which is a defined benefit plan that has
been deemed to be a ‘multi-employer fund’ for purposes of AASB119 Employee Benefits for the following reasons:

— Assets are not segregated within the sub-group according to the employees of each sponsoring employer.

— The contribution rates have been the same for all sponsoring employers. That is, contribution rates have not varied for
each sponsoring employer according to the experience relating to the employees of that sponsoring employer.

— Benefits for employees of all sponsoring employers are determined according to the same formulae and without regard to
the sponsoring employer.

— The same actuarial assumptions are currently used in respect of the employees of each sponsoring employer.

Given the factors above, each sponsoring employer is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers, and hence shares in the associated gains and losses (to the extent that they are
not borne by members).

Description of the funding arrangements.

Pooled Employers are required to pay future service employer contributions and past service employer contributions to the
Fund.

The future service employer contributions were determined using the new entrant rate method under which a contribution
rate sufficient to fund the total benefits over the working life-time of a typical new entrant is calculated. The current future
service employer contribution rates are:

Division B 1.9 times member contributions for non-180 Point Members;

Nil for 180 Point Members?|
Division C 2.5% salarie5|
Division D 1.64 times member contributionsl

* For 180 Point Members, Employers were required to contribute 7.5% of salaries to these members' accumulation accounts,
which are paid in addition to members' defined benefits.

The past service contribution for each Pooled Employer is a share of the total past service contributions of $40.0 million per
annum for 1 July 2019 to 31 December 2021 and $20.0 million per annum for 1 January 2022 to 31 December 2024,
apportioned according to each employer’s share of the accrued liabilities as at 30 June 2021. These past service
contributions are used to maintain the adequacy of the funding position for the accrued liabilities.

The adequacy of contributions is assessed at each triennial actuarial investigation and monitored annually between
triennials.

Description of the extent to which Council can be liable to the plan for other Council’s obligations under the terms and
conditions of the multi-employer plan
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E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

As stated above, each sponsoring employer (Council) is exposed to the actuarial risks associated with current and former
employees of other sponsoring employers and hence shares in the associated gains and losses.

However, there is no relief under the Fund's trust deed for employers to walk away from their defined benefit obligations.
Under limited circumstances, an employer may withdraw from the plan when there are no active members, on full payment
of outstanding additional contributions. There is no provision for allocation of any surplus which may be present at the date
of withdrawal of the Council.

There are no specific provisions under the Fund's trust deed dealing with deficits or surplus on wind-up.

The amount of Council employer contributions to the defined benefit section of the Local Government Superannuation
Scheme and recognised as an expense for the year ending 30 June 2022 was $2.401M. The last valuation of the Scheme
was performed by the Fund Actuary, Richard Boyfield FIAA as at 30 June 2021.

The amount of additional contributions included in the total employer contribution advised above is $1.914M. Council’s
expected contribution to the plan for the next annual reporting period is $1.873M.

The estimated employer reserves financial position for the Pooled Employers at 30 June 2022 is:

Employer reserves only * $millions Asset Coverage
IAssets 2,376.6

Past Service Liabilities 2,380.7 99.8%
\Vested Benefits 2,391.7 99.4%

* excluding member accounts and reserves in both assets and liabilities.

Council's share of that deficiency cannot be accurately calculated as the Scheme is a mutual arrangement where assets
and liabilities are pooled together for all member councils. For this reason, no liability for the deficiency has been recognised
in Council’s accounts. Council has a possible obligation that may arise should the Scheme require immediate payment to
correct the deficiency.

The key economic long term assumptions used to calculate the present value of accrued benefits are:

[Investment return 5.5% per annum
[Salary inflation * 3.5% per annum
lIncrease in CPI 2.5% per annum

The contribution requirements may vary from the current rates if the overall sub-group experience is not in line with the
actuarial assumptions in determining the funding program; however, any adjustment to the funding program would be the
same for all sponsoring employers in the Pooled Employers group.

3. Third party claims

The Council is involved from time to time in various third party claims incidental to the ordinary course of business including
claims for damages relating to its functions and services. Council believes that it ordinarily holds adequate insurance coverage
in relation to these third party claims and would not expect any material liabilities to eventuate. Council is aware of three
particular third party claims where confirmation of insurance coverage is currently being sought from the relevant insurer/s.
Investigations and enquires regarding this matter, our liability and its insurance coverage are ongoing and therefore the amount
of the possible obligation cannot be measured reliably.

continued on next page ... Page 66



\7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended 28 November 2022

30 June 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

E3-1 Contingencies (continued)

4. Development Contributions

Council levies Development Contributions upon various development across the Council area through the required
Contributions Plans. As part of these Plans, Council has received funds for which it will be required to expend the monies
in accordance with those Plans.

As well, these Plans indicate proposed future expenditure to be undertaken by Council, which will be funded by making levies
and receipting funds in future years or where a shortfall exists by the use of Council's General Funds.

These future expenses do not yet qualify as liabilities as of the Reporting Date, but represent Councils intention to spend funds
in the manner and timing set out in those plans.

5. Greenhouse Park

Council owns and manages a former landfill site at Greenhouse Park. The landfill was constructed prior to contemporary
environmental regulations and used as both a putrescible and builders waste landfill. Following the closure of the site as a
landfill, remediation of the site has been progressively occurring to transform the site into a natural area.

Council is also working with the EPA and specialised consultants to manage the landfill waste which was placed on the site.
Total remediation costs at this stage are unknown and will be dependent on the remediation strategies implemented. Council
is currently working with the EPA and specialised consultants to determine the remediation actions required.

6. Helensburgh Landfill Site

Council manages a former landfill site at Helensburgh located off Halls Road/Nixon Place. The landfill was commenced prior to
contemporary environmental regulations and was used at various times for both putrescible and builders construction waste.
Following the closure of the site as a landfill, Council is required to remediate the site in accordance with EPA requirements
and licence conditions. Council has a future budget allocation of $6.4M and is currently working with EPA and specialised
consultants to prepare the final design documentation and achieve regulatory approval for this project.

7. Native Title
In January 2018, the National Native Title Tribunal accepted registration of a native title claim that included the Wollongong
LGA. The claim is now before the Federal Court, and Council is one of a number of defendants to those proceedings. Private

freehold land, and certain other land owned by Council is not affected. The claim will take some time to determine before
the Federal Court.
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F People and relationships
F1 Related party disclosures
F1-1  Key management personnel (KMP)

Key management personnel (KMP) of the council are those persons having the authority and responsibility for planning,

directing and controlling the activities of the council, directly or indirectly.

The aggregate amount of KMP compensation included in the Income Statement is:

$'000 2022 2021
Compensation:

Short-term benefits 2,342 2,303
Termination benefits 144 154
Total 2,486 2,457
Other transactions with KMP and their related parties

Council has assessed other transactions with KMP and their related parties as not material for recognition in these
statements.

F1-2 Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses

$'000 . 2022 2021
The aggregate amount of Councillor and Mayoral fees and associated expenses

included in materials and services expenses in the Income Statement are:

Mayoral fee 102 100
Councillors’ fees 391 384
Other Councillors’ expenses (including Mayor) 43 37
Total 536 521

F1-3 Other related parties

Transactions

$'000 during the year Terms and conditions
2022
Associates

Amounts provided under a funding
Marketing, events, business and investment in LGA 1,508 agreement.
Event sponsorship & support 4 Based on specific events.
Advertisement 3

Amounts provided under a funding
Performing Arts Centre management 842 agreement.

Amounts provided under a funding
Town Hall management 448 agreement.
Asset Maintenance 82

Amounts provided under a funding
Community Subsidy 30 agreement.
Venue Hire 7

continued on next page ...
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F1-3 Other related parties (continued)

2021

Associates

Marketing, events, business and investment in LGA 1,506
Event sponsorship & support 30
Advertisement 1
Partner program 1
Performing Arts Centre management 718
Town Hall management 395
Asset Maintenance 59
Community Subsidy 20
Venue Hire 6

o

Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Based on specific events.

Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.
Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Amounts provided under a funding
agreement.

Q‘\
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F2  Other relationships
F2-1 Audit fees

$'000 2022 2021
During the year, the following fees were incurred for services provided by the auditor

of Council, related practices and non-related audit firms

Auditors of the Council - NSW Auditor-General:

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Audit and review of financial statements 211 152
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 211 152
Total Auditor-General remuneration 21 152
Non NSW Auditor-General audit firms

(i) Audit and other assurance services

Other audit and assurance services 10 13
Remuneration for audit and other assurance services 10 13
Total remuneration of non NSW Auditor-General audit firms 10 13
Total audit fees 165

Nl
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G Other matters

G1-1 Statement of Cash Flows information

(a) Reconciliation of net operating result to cash provided from operating activities

$'000

Net operating result from Income Statement
Add / (less) non-cash items:

Depreciation and amortisation

(Gain) / loss on disposal of assets

Non-cash capital grants and contributions

Prior period WIP written off during year

IPP&E restoration write offs

Losses/(gains) recognised on fair value re-measurements through the P&L:

— Investments classified as ‘at fair value’ or ‘held for trading’
— Investment property

— Fair value movement on CivicRisk Mutual

Unwinding of discount rates on reinstatement provisions

Movements in operating assets and liabilities and other cash items:
(Increase) / decrease of receivables

Increase / (decrease) in provision for impairment of receivables
(Increase) / decrease of inventories

(Increase) / decrease of other current assets

(Increase) / decrease of contract asset

Increase / (decrease) in payables

Increase / (decrease) in other accrued expenses payable
Increase / (decrease) in other liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in contract liabilities

Increase / (decrease) in employee benefit provision

Increase / (decrease) in other provisions

Net cash flows from operating activities

(b) Non-cash investing and financing activities

Bushfire grants

Developer contributions ‘in kind’

Other dedications

Contributed Art Works

Planning Agreement - Non-cash contribution

Total non-cash investing and financing activities

2022 2021
59,452 35,012
65,329 61,203
(563) 1,995
(15,500) (12,202)
679 2,332
2,067 (206)
(1,000) 400
669 285

(5) 1,488
(2,811) 213
(4) (405)

2 (82)

(199) 3,890
(5,004) 962
(1,253) (901)
1,307 (616)
1,869 (1,619)
(2,686) 4,605
(5,228) (1,384)
(9,203) (2,261)
87,918 92,709
270 -
732 5,546
13,680 5,598
201 54

- 1,004
14,883 12,202
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G2-1 Commitments

Capital commitments (exclusive of GST)

$'000 2022 2021
Capital expenditure committed for at the reporting date but not

recognised in the financial statements as liabilities:

Property, plant and equipment

Buildings - 6,066
Infrastructure 19,237 14,278
Land - 262
Total commitments 19,237 20,606

Details of capital commitments

Infrastructure includes Keira Mine Road Embankment Stabilisation, Grand Pacific Walk - Boardwalk Rehabilitation , Fred
Finch Park Berkely - Netball courts redevelopment, Thomas Dalton Park Sportsfield Lighting Upgrade , The Ridge Retaining
Wall , Stormwater Pipe Reline Works - Package C , Stormwater Pipe Reline Works - Package E, Drainage Works - Station
Road Otford , Huntley Rd, Avondale - Pavement Stabilisation Works , Stormwater Pipe Reline Works - Package B,
Stormwater Pipe Reline Works - Package F, Cringila Hills Pump Track, Bike Skills Playground & Assoc , West Dapto Road
Upgrade Stage 1 (Water Services Relocation) , Lindsay Mayne Park Criterium Track and Associated Works , Harry Graham
Drive - Rockfall Barrier / Brandy and Water Creek , WWARRP Detailed Design , Lean Mix Concrete construction, Carcoola
St, Stabilisation - Squires Way, Stabilisation - Walker Street, Stabilisation - Railway Crescent , Lake Heights Road
Retaining Wall , Continental Pool Intake Pipeline Replacement , Fraternity Club Embankment Stabilisation.

G3-1 Events occurring after the reporting date

Council is unaware of any material or significant ‘non-adjusting events’ that should be disclosed.

G4 Changes from prior year statements

G4-1 Changes in accounting policy

Adoption of new accounting standards

During the year, NSW Council adopted all standards which were mandatorily effective for the first time at 30 June 2022. None of

these standards had a significant impact on reported position or performance.

G4-2 Correction of errors

As part of an ongoing inspection program and data cleansing process, and in preparation for the comprehensive revaluation,

it was found that IPPE that Council no longer owned, had not been disposed.

The errors identified above have been corrected by restating the balances at the beginning of the earliest period presented (1

July 2020) and taking the adjustment through to accumulated surplus and reserves at that date.

Comparatives have been changed to reflect the correction of errors. The impact on each line item is shown in the tables below.

Original Impact

Balance Increase/
$'000 1 July, 2020 (decrease)
Roads 610,258 (10,199)
Bridges 118,822 (3,899)
Footpaths 158,235 (5,357)
Stormwater Drainage 530,148 (4,843)

continued on next page ...

Restated
Balance
1 July, 2020

600,059
114,923
152,878
525,305

Page 72

85



city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

Iltem 1 - Attachment 1 - Draft Annual Financial Statements for the Year Ended

30 June 2022

Wollongong City Council | Notes to the Financial Statements 30 June 2022

G4-2 Correction of errors (continued)

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 1 July, 2020 (decrease) 1 July, 2020
Total assets 2,867,750 (24,298) 2,843,452
Total liabilities 154,583 - 154,583
Net assets 2,713,167 (24,298) 2,688,869
Reserves 1,214,858 (7,068) 1,207,790
Accumulated Surplus 1,498,309 (17,230) 1,481,079
Total equity 2,713,167 (24,298) 2,688,869

Original Impact Restated

Balance Increase/ Balance
$'000 30 June, 2021 30 June, 2021
Roads 601,488
Bridges 114,647
Footpaths 165,890
Stormwater drainage 527,421
Total assets 2,882,660
Total liabilities 147,511
Net assets (24,298) 2,735,149
Reserves 1,223,745 (7,068) 1,216,677
Accumulated Surplus 1,535,702 (17,230) 1,518,472
Total equity 2,759,447 (24,298) 2,735,149
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Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted balance of internal
balance at Cash Non h investment Amounts Internal asset at 30 June borrowings

$°000 1 July 2021 as on-cas earned expended borrowings 2022 (to)/fr
Drainage 9,781 785 497 - - 11,063 -
Roads (3,840) 6,720 170 - - (3,916) -
Open space 4,599 393 - - 4,361 -
Community facilities 1,361 9 - - 1,370 -
Administration (1,416) 53 64 - (1,595) -
Public transport - - - - - -
$§7.11 contributions — under a plan 10,485 7,960 731 (7,89 - 11,283 -
§7.12 levies — under a plan 25,851 4,706 (4,788) - 25,770 -

Total $7.11 and S7.12 revenue under

plans 36,336 12,666 (12,681) - 37,053 -
S7.11 not under plans 356 - - 356 -
S7.4 planning agreements 2,027 - - 2,656 -
Total contributions 38,719 (12,681) - 40,065 -

Under the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979, Co

in new release areas. It is possible that the funds contributed may b e le
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G5-2 Developer contributions by plan

Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted balance of internal
balance at Cash N h investment Amounts Internal asset at 30 June borrowings
$'000 1 July 2021 as on-cas income earned expended borrowings 2022 (to)/from
CONTRIBUTION PLAN - WEST DAPTO
Drainage 9,781 785 497 - - - 11,063 -
Roads (3,840) 6,720 170 - (3,916) -
Open space 4,599 393 - - 4,361 =
Community facilities 1,361 9 - - 1,370 -
Administration (1,416) 53 64 - (1,595) -
Total 10,485 7,960 731 - 11,283 -
(1) The opening balances have been adjusted between categories to reflect the allocation of non-cash contributions
S7.12 Levies — under a plan
CONTRIBUTION PLAN — WOLLONGONG *®&
City Wide 23,035 (4,757) - 21,809 -
City Centre 2,816 - (31) - 3,961 -
Total 25,851 1 (4,788) - 25,770 -
(A) The Wollongong City-Wide Development Contributions Plan is a levy based flects de nent activity in the Local Government Area excluding areas covered by the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan.

(B) Figures provided include amounts collected under the Wollongong City-Widi
be made under now rep d Develop Contribution plans. These are
2006.

a | d prior to 2006 that contained conditions for contributions to
ed towards |tems within lhe Section 7.12 Plan works schedule as the Secuon 7.12 Plan is the replacement for the plans repealed in June
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G5-3 Contributions not under plans

Contributions Held as Cumulative
Opening received during the year Interest and restricted balance of internal
balance at Cash N h investment Amounts Internal asset at 30 June borrowings
$ 000 1 July 2021 as on-cas i earned expended borrowings 2022 (to)/from
CONTRIBUTION PLAN — CALDERWOOQOD *.&.¢
Roads 356 - - - - - 356 -
Total 356 - - - - 356 -
(A) The Calderwood Urban Release Area was historically in the Shellharbour City Local Government Area. However, the Urban Release Area was later e ring the State Government's major project approval process to include
land that straddles the local government b dary, which pri 107 hect of land in the Wollongong Local Government Area at Marshall
(B) In 2013, the Land and Environment Court imposed a development contribution condition on Stage 1 of the Calderwood development withil i il Local Government Area, requiring the payment of a contribution of
$1,320 per lot to Wollongong City Council to be used towards upgrades of Marshall Mount Road and Yallah Road. The payments refle
(C) Wollongong City Council and Lendlease Communities (Australia) Limited have entered into a Planning Agreement for the remainder
G5-4 S7.4 planning agreements
§7.4 planning agreements
Roads 2,027 - 2,656 -
Total 2,027 - 2,656 -
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G6  Statement of performance measures

G6-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results

Amounts
$'000 2022
1. Operating performance ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding
capital grants and contributions less operating
expenses ? 14,695
Total continuing operating revenue excluding 300,294
capital grants and contributions '
2. Own source operating revenue ratio
Total continuing operating revenue excluding all
grants and contributions ' 258,453
Total continuing operating revenue ' 345,696
3. Unrestricted current ratio
Current assets less all external restrictions * 128,481
Current liabilities less specific purpose liabilities 51,753
4. Debt service cover ratio
Operating result before capital excluding interest
and depreciation/impairment/amortisation ' 80,461
Principal repayments (Statement of Cash Flows) 6,313
plus borrowing costs (Income Statement)
5. Rates and annual charges outstanding
percentage
Rates and annual charges outstanding 14,395
Rates and annual charges collectable 229,606
6. Cash expense cover ratio
Current year’s cash and cash equivalents plus all
term deposits 105,068
Monthly payments from cash flow of operating 21,188

and financing activities

Indicator
2022

4.89%

74.76%

2.48x

12.75x

6.27%

4.96
months

Indicators
2021 2020

0.95% (1.62)%

79.74% 76.10%

2.15x. 2.36x
8.49x 5.25x
5.28% 6.74%
5.78 5.63
months months

Benchmark

>0.00%

> 60.00%

> 1.50x

> 2.00x

<5.00%

> 3.00
months

(1) Excludes fair value adjustments, reversal of revaluation decrements, net gain/(loss) on sale of assets, and net loss of interests in joint

ventures and associates.

(2) Excludes impairment/revaluation decrements, net loss on sale of assets, and net loss on share of interests in joint ventures and

associates

(3) Refer to Notes C1-1 to C1-5 inclusive. Excludes any real estate and land for resale not expected to be sold in next 12 months.

4) Refer to Notes C3-1 to C3-5 inclusive. Excludes all payables and provisions not expected to be paid in the next 12 months (incl. ELE).

End of the audited financial statements
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Additional Council disclosures (unaudited)

H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs)

1. Operating performance ratio

6
- ) Commentary on 2021/22 result
: Purpose of operating
4 performance ratio 2021/22 ratio  4.89%
R
22
e 0.95 This ratio measures the extent to The positive result is consistent with Council's
. which Council's operating performance measure of operating revenues
- revenues have exceeded the exceeding operating expenditures. The current year
0 operating expenditure within the performance has been impacted positively by
year. Council's ongoing financial non-cash year end adjustments including a decrease
sustainability requires positive in the waste provision ($11.6M) and decrease in
5 16 operating performance over time. employee leave entitiement provision ($7.2M).
2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — >0.00% benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

2. Own source operating revenue ratio

28 November 2022

100
2021/22 result
80 76.10 T o e
2021/22 ratio  74.76%
® 60
2
4 40 This result is consistent with previous reporting
periods with a significant portion of revenue being
generated from Council's own sources.

20 Itis noted that the total revenue includes non-cash
A contributed assets which fluctuate from year to year
ontributions. and impact the result.

0
2020 202
Benchmark: — > 60.00% | Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounti

3. Unrestricted current ratio

g Practice and Financial Reporting

I Ratio is outside benchmark

35
) Commentary on 2021/22 result
3 Purpose of unrestricted
. 236 2.48 current ratio 2021/22 l'atio 2.48X
2.15
X 2
L]
215
wJﬁti:ss::sittahleaigei?su:gﬁigt 5 This result remains above the benchmark however
1 satisfygoblip ations in the short Council's strategy to maximise the use of available
term for the 3nr estricted activities funds and target a lean unrestricted current ratio
0.5 ; aims to bring the result closer to the benchmark.
of Council.
0
2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — > 1.50x | Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

continued on next page ...

I Ratio is outside benchmark
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H1-1 Statement of performance measures — consolidated results (graphs) (continued)

4. Debt service cover ratio

17.5
‘ Commentary on 2021/22 result
15 Purpose of debt service
- 1275 CoVSFEtS 2021/22 ratio  12.75x
X 10
3 8.49
S 15
a . This result indicates that Council can adequately
5 3.2 o a;:‘:ll)sili:;t:)c; g\iarsat:i;es égzh to service its outstanding debt. The result has improved
service debt ingludingginlerest in the current year as Council paid $5.5M in debt
Age: § repayments and has not taken on additional debt
25 principal and lease payments facilities.
2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — > 2.00x Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

5. Rates and annual charges outstanding percentage

- Ratio is outside benchmark

10
Purpose of rates and ' Commentary on 2021/22 result
8 annual charges
6.74 outstanding percentage 2021/22 6.27%
6.27
2 © 5.28
o
& 4 The performance of this measure has decreased
3 from the prior year by 0.99%.
un:gllzzf::sr am'::z’agn ztlal Council will continue to work and support its
chilii8s on CoullIR liquidity and ratepayers who are still experiencing the impact of
2 m;gd tiacy of mvz etfyforts COVID-19 on both their personal and business
auacy i | | finances to achieve below the industry benchmark of
<5%.
0
2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — <5.00% Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

6. Cash expense cover ratio

- Ratio is outside benchmark

7
Commentary on 2021/22 result
6 5.63 5.78 Purpose of cash
: 4.96 PXpenSEEoRaniEis 2021/22 ratio  4.96 months
N
£a
E
23 — —
& This liquidity ratio indicates the
2 number of months a Council can The result of this measure continues to reflect a high
continue paying for its immediate level of liquidity in Council's investment portfolio at
expenses without additional cash the end of 2021/22.
1 inflow.
2020 2021 2022
Benchmark: — > 3.00months Ratio achieves benchmark

Source of benchmark: Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

I Ratio is outside benchmark
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H1-2 Council information and contact details

Principal place of business:
41 Burelli Street
Wollongong NSW 2500

Contact details

Mailing Address:
Locked Bag 8821
Wollongong NSW 2500

Telephone: (02) 4227 7111
Facsimile: (02) 4227 7277

Officers
GENERAL MANAGER
Greg Doyle

RESPONSIBLE ACCOUNTING OFFICER
Brian Jenkins

PUBLIC OFFICER
Todd Hopwood

AUDITORS

Audit Office of New South Wales

Level 19, Darling Park Tower 2, 201 Sussex Street,
Sydney, NSW, 2000

Other information
ABN: 63 139 525 939

Opening hours:
Administration Building: 8:30am - 5:00pm

Internet: www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au
Email: council@wollongong.nsw.gov.au

Elected members
LORD MAYOR
Gordon Bradbery

COUNCILLORS
Ward 1

Mithra Cox
Janice Kershaw
Richard Martin
Cameron Walters

Ward 2

Cath Blakey
David Brown
Tania Brown
John Dorahy

Ward 3

Elisha Aitken
Linda Campbell
Dom Figliomeni
Ann Martin
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Wollongong City Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Independent Auditor’'s Reports:

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [2])
Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (opinion) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen).
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Wollongong City Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Independent Auditor’s Reports: (continued)

On the Financial Statements (Sect 417 [3])
Independent Auditor's Report

Please uplift Council's Audit Report PDF (commentary) for inclusion in the GPFS report (via the Home screen).
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Wollongong City Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Contents Page

Statement by Councillors and Management 3

Special Purpose Financial Statements:

Income Statement of Waste Disposal
Income Statement of Tourist parks
Income Statement of Health & Fitness

Statement of Financial Position of Waste Disposal
Statement of Financial Position of Tourist parks
Statement of Financial Position of Health & Fitness

Note — Significant Accounting Policies

© oo~N OO s

-
o

Auditor's Report on Special Purpose Financial Statements 13

Background

These Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared for the use by both Council and the Office of Local
Government in fulfilling their requirements under National Competition Policy.

i. The principle of competitive neutrality is based on the concept of a ‘level playing field’ between persons/entities competing

in a market place, particularly between private and public sector competitors.

Essentially, the principle is that government businesses, whether Commonwealth, state or local, should operate without
net competitive advantages over other businesses as a result of their public ownership.

For Council, the principle of competitive neutrality and public reporting applies only to declared business activities.

These include (a) those activities classified by the Australian Bureau of Statistics as business activities being water
supply, sewerage services, abattoirs, gas production and reticulation, and (b) those activities with a turnover of more
than $2 million that Council has formally declared as a business activity (defined as Category 1 activities).

In preparing these financial statements for Council’s self-classified Category 1 businesses and ABS-defined activities,
councils must (a) adopt a corporatisation model and (b) apply full cost attribution including tax-equivalent regime
payments and debt guarantee fees (where the business benefits from Council's borrowing position by comparison with
commercial rates).
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Wollongong City Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government’,
« the Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive
Neutrality’,
« the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

« present fairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council’s declared business activities for the year, and
« accord with Council’s accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 November 2022.

Gordon Bradbery Tania Brown

Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor

28 November 2022 28 November 2022

Greg Doyle Brian Jenkins

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
28 November 2022 28 November 2022
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Wollongong City Council

Income Statement of Waste Disposal
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000

Income from continuing operations

User charges

Rental Income

Grants and contributions provided for operating purposes
Other income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

Borrowing costs

Materials and services '

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Calculated taxation equivalents

EPA levy

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax

Less: corporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result before capital]
Surplus (deficit) after tax

Plus accumulated surplus ?

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments

- Corporate taxation equivalent

- Dividend paid

Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %

2022 2021
Category 1 Category 1
25,563 26,789
235 224

46 -

620 420
26,464 27,433
2,310 2,503
(5) 1,488
(7,516) 942
1,373 1,377
496 462
12,321 11,409
8,979 18,181
17,485 9,252
17,485 9,252
17,485 9,252
(4,371) (2,406)
13,114 6,846
13,308 8,781
496 462
4,371 2,406
(5,424) (5,187)
25,865 13,308
32.5% 19.8%

(1) Each financial year the provision for the remediation of Council's waste facility is calculated based on the forecast costs to rehabilitate
the site. The movements in the provision are generally recognised against the value of the corresponding asset. During 2019-2020, a
reduction in the forecast rehabilitation costs caused a reduction in the provision beyond the carrying value of the asset. The balance of
this adjustment and all future adjustments to the provisions will be recognised through materials and services. A further reduction in the
forecast rehabilitation costs and changes to discount factors have resulted in a reduction in the provision in 2021-2022.

(2

The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a

receivable from, or a payable to Council has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the
removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Wollongong City Council

Income Statement of Tourist parks
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000

Income from continuing operations

User charges

Rental Income

Other income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

Materials and services

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Calculated taxation equivalents

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax

Less: corporate taxation equivalent (25%) [based on result before capital]
Surplus (deficit) after tax

Plus accumulated surplus '

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments

— Corporate taxation equivalent

- Dividend paid

Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %
Subsidy from Council

2022 2021
Category 1 Category 1
6,782 7,742
136 102

16 38
6,934 7,882
3,054 3,179
2,124 2,332
1,141 1,249
502 477
. 6,821 7,237
113 645
113 645
113 645
(28) (168)
85 477
9,928 10,044
502 477

28 168
(1,870) (1,238)
8,673 9,928
0.4% 2.4%
933 -

(1) The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a
receivable from, or a payable to Council has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the
removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Wollongong City Council | Income Statement of Health & Fitness | for the year ended 30 June 2022

Wollongong City Council

Income Statement of Health & Fitness
for the year ended 30 June 2022

$'000

Income from continuing operations

User charges

Rental Income

Other income

Total income from continuing operations

Expenses from continuing operations
Employee benefits and on-costs

Materials and services

Depreciation, amortisation and impairment
Calculated taxation equivalents

Total expenses from continuing operations

Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations before capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from continuing operations after capital amounts
Surplus (deficit) from all operations before tax

Surplus (deficit) after tax

Plus accumulated surplus '

Plus adjustments for amounts unpaid:
— Taxation equivalent payments

— Subsidy paid/contribution to operations
Closing accumulated surplus

Return on capital %
Subsidy from Council

2022 2021
Category 1 Category 1
1,299 1,950

1 3

58 71
1,358 2,024
2,338 2,469
1,081 1,261
90 44

161 156
3,670 3,930
(2,312) (1,906)
(2,312) (1,906)
(2,312) (1,906)
(2,312) (1,906)
1,315 1,387
161 156
2,169 1,678
1,333 1,315
(37.6)% (33.9)%
2,537 1,990

(1) The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a
receivable from, or a payable to Council has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the
removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position of Waste Disposal
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Current assets
Investments 5,831 3,415
Total current assets 5,831 3,415
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 53,843 54,281
Total non-current assets 53,843 54,281
Total assets 59,674 57,696
LIABILITIES
Non-current liabilities
Provisions 19,134 30,762
Total non-current liabilities 19,134 30,762
Total liabilities 19,134 30,762
Net assets 40,540 26,934
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus ' 25,865 13,308
Revaluation reserves 14,675 13,626
Total equity 40,540 26,934

(1) The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a
receivable from, or a payable to Council'has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the
removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position of Tourist parks
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 28,586 27,282
Total non-current assets 28,586 27,282
Total assets 28,586 27,282
Net assets 28,586 27,282
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus ' 8,672 9,928
Revaluation reserves 19,914 17,354
Total equity 28,586 27,282

(1) The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a
receivable from, or a payable to Council has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the

removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Wollongong City Council

Statement of Financial Position of Health & Fitness
as at 30 June 2022

2022 2021
$'000 Category 1 Category 1
ASSETS
Non-current assets
Infrastructure, property, plant and equipment 6,157 5,619
Total non-current assets 6,157 5,619
Total assets 6,157 5,619
Net assets 6,157 5,619
EQUITY
Accumulated surplus ' 1,332 1,315
Revaluation reserves 4,825 4,304
Total equity 6,157 5,619

(1) The financial statements of this business activity are prepared notionally for external reporting purposes. In previous years, either a
receivable from, or a payable to Council has been disclosed in the Statement of Financial Position to reflect the net financial position of
the business activity. These balances have been growing over time and with no separate bank account, there has been no way for the
business unit to either recover from or pay back the balance to Council. For the 2022 reporting period, either a subsidy received by the
business activity from Council or a dividend paid by the business activity to Council has been disclosed to reflect the net financial
position of the business activity. For comparative purposes a one off adjustment to the prior year's opening and closing accumulated
surplus balances were made to reflect the offset of either the aggregated payable or receivable balance. It is considered that the

removal of these balancing items will more accurately reflect the financial position of this business unit.
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Note — Significant Accounting Policies

A statement summarising the supplemental accounting policies adopted in the preparation of the special purpose financial
statements (SPFS) for National Competition Policy (NCP) reporting purposes follows.

These financial statements are SPFS prepared for use by Council and the Office of Local Government. For the purposes of
these statements, the Council is a non-reporting not-for-profit entity.

The figures presented in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the recognition
and measurement criteria of relevant Australian Accounting Standards, other authoritative pronouncements of the Australian
Accounting Standards Board (AASB) and Australian Accounting Interpretations.

The disclosures in these special purpose financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Local Government
Act 1993 (Act), the Local Government (General) Regulation 2005 (Regulation) and the Local Government Code of Accounting
Practice and Financial Reporting.

The statements are prepared on an accruals basis. They are based on historic costs and do not take into account changing
money values or, except where specifically stated, fair value of non-current assets. Certain taxes and other costs, appropriately
described, have been imputed for the purposes of the National Competition Policy.

The Statement of Financial Position includes notional assets/liabilities receivable from/payable to Council's general fund. These
balances reflect a notional intra-entity funding arrangement with the declared business activities.

National Competition Policy

Council has adopted the principle of ‘competitive neutrality’ in its business activities as part of the National Competition Policy
which is being applied throughout Australia at all levels of government. The framework for its application is set out in the June
1996 NSW Government Policy statement titled 'Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government'. The Pricing
and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality issued by the Office of Local Government in July
1997 has also been adopted.

The pricing and costing guidelines outline the process for identifying and allocating costs to activities and provide a standard

for disclosure requirements. These disclosures are reflected in Council’s pricing and/or financial reporting systems and include
taxation equivalents, Council subsidies, and returns on investments (rate of return and dividends paid).

Declared business activities

In accordance with Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive Neutrality, Council has declared that
the following are to be considered as business activities:

Category 1

(where gross operating turnover is over $2 million)

a. Waste Disposal: Manages the disposal of solid waste generated within the city.

b. Tourist Parks: Operation, management & development of tourist parks at Bulli, Corrimal & Windang.

c. Health & Fitness*: Responsible for the management and upkeep of Council’s Leisure Centres.

* As Council declared in its 2021-2022 Revenue Policy Fees and Charges, that the Health & Fitness business activity was
Category 1, it must be reported as such in the Special Purpose Financial Statements for 2021-2022 even though gross
operating turnover has fallen below $2 million. This was due to the unplanned temporary closure of Health & Fitness facilities

and some services, in response to NSW Government restrictions due to the spread of COVID-19.

Category 2

(where gross operating turnover is less than $2 million)
Nil
Taxation equivalent charges

Council is liable to pay various taxes and financial duties. Where this is the case, they are disclosed as a cost of operations
just like all other costs.

However, where Council does not pay some taxes which are generally paid by private sector businesses, such as income

tax, these equivalent tax payments have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities and are reflected in Special
Purpose Financial Statements.
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Wollongong City Council | Special Purpose Financial Statements 2022
Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)
For the purposes of disclosing comparative information relevant to the private sector equivalent, the following taxation
equivalents have been applied to all Council-nominated business activities (this does not include Council’s non-business
activities):
Notional rate applied (%)
Corporate income tax rate — 25% (2020/21 26%)
Land tax — the first $822,000 of combined land values attracts 0%. For the combined land values in excess of $822,000 up
to $5,026,000 the rate is 1.6% + $100. For the remaining combined land value that exceeds $5,026,000 a premium marginal
rate of 2.0% + $67,364 applies.

Payroll tax — 5.45% on the value of taxable salaries and wages in excess of $1,200,000.

Income tax

An income tax equivalent has been applied on the profits of the business activities. Whilst income tax is not a specific cost for
the purpose of pricing a good or service, it needs to be taken into account in terms of assessing the rate of return required on
capital invested. Accordingly, the return on capital invested is set at a pre-tax level - gain/(loss) from ordinary activities before
capital amounts, as would be applied by a private sector competitor. That is, it should include a provision equivalent to the
corporate income tax rate, currently 25% (2020/21 26%).

Income tax is only applied where a gain/ (loss) from ordinary activities before capital amounts has been achieved. Since the
taxation equivalent is notional — that is, it is payable to Council as the ‘owner’ of business operations - it represents an internal
payment and has no effect on the operations of the Council. Accordingly, there is no need for disclosure of internal charges
in the SPFS.

The rate applied of 25% is the equivalent company tax rate prevalent at reporting date. No adjustments have been made for
variations that have occurred during the year.

Local government rates and charges

A calculation of the equivalent rates.and charges for all Category 1 businesses has been applied to all assets owned, or
exclusively used by the business activity.

Loan and debt guarantee fees

The debt guarantee fee is designed to ensure that Council business activities face ‘true’ commercial borrowing costs in line with
private sector competitors. In order to calculate a debt guarantee fee, Council has determined what the differential borrowing
rate would have been between the commercial rate and Council’'s borrowing rate for its business activities.

(i) Subsidies

Government policy requires that subsidies provided to customers, and the funding of those subsidies, must be explicitly
disclosed. Subsidies occur where Council provides services on a less than cost recovery basis. This option is exercised on a
range of services in order for Council to meet its community service obligations.

The activities reported in these financial statements are prepared notionally for external purposes only. Separate bank accounts
are not held. The overall effect of subsidies received from Council is disclosed within individual income statements to reflect
the net financial position of each business activity.

(ii) Return on investments (rate of return)

The NCP policy statement requires that councils with Category 1 businesses ‘would be expected to generate a return on capital
funds employed that is comparable to rates of return for private businesses operating in a similar field’.

Funds are subsequently available for meeting commitments or financing future investment strategies. The rate of return is
disclosed for each of Council’s business activities on the Income Statement.

The rate of return is calculated as follows:

Operating result before capital income + interest expense

Written down value of I,PP&E as at 30 June

continued on next page ... Page 11
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Note — Significant Accounting Policies (continued)

As a minimum, business activities should generate a return equal to the Commonwealth 10 year bond rate which is 3.66%
at 30/06/22.

(iii) Dividends

Council is not required to pay dividends to either itself (as owner of a range of businesses) or to any external entities. The
activities reported in these financial statements are prepared notionally for external purposes only. Separate bank accounts
are not held. The overall effect of dividends paid to Council is disclosed within individual income statements to reflect the net
financial position of each business activity.

Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment

Buildings and other assets used in the operation of these business activities are owned and controlled by Council. A charge
for their utilisation is included in the Income Statement and these assets have been excluded from the Infrastructure, Property,

Plant & Equipment in the Statement of Financial Position. The Infrastructure, Property, Plant & Equipment figure consists
operational equipment and land as these have not been captured through the Income Statement

<
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Wollongong City Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Special Schedules
for the year ended 30 June 2022
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Wollongong City Council

Permissible income for general rates

$'000 Notes

Notional general income calculation '

Last year notional general income yield a
Plus or minus adjustments 2 b
Notional general income c=a+b

Permissible income calculation

Or rate peg percentage e
Or plus rate peg amount izex(c+g)
Sub-total k=(c+tg+h+i+j)

Plus (or minus) last year's carry forward total I

Less valuation objections claimed in the previous year m
Sub-total n=(l+m)
Total permissible income o =k n
Less notional general income yield p
Catch-up or (excess) result g=o-p
Plus income lost due to valuation objections claimed # r
Carry forward to next year °© t=q+r+s
Notes

{

reported on an accrual accounting basis which include amounts that relate to prior years’ rates income.

(2

The adjustments are called ‘supplementary valuations” as defined in the Valuation of Land Act 1916 (NSW).

4

the Valuer General. Councils can claim the value of the income lost due to valuation objections in any single year.

(6

Calculation Calculation
2021/22 2022/23
175,452 180,317

1,153 316

176,605 180,633

2.00% 1.80%

3,532 3,251

180,137 183,884

167 4

(37) (54)

130 (50)

180,267 183,834
. 180317 183,872

(50) (38)

54 44

4 6

The notional general income will not reconcile with rate income in the financial statements in the corresponding year. The statements are

Adjustments account for changes in the number of assessments and any increase or decrease in land value occurring during the year.

Valuation objections are unexpected changes in land values as a result of land owners successfully objecting to the land value issued by

Carry-forward amounts which are in excess (an amount that exceeds the permissible income) require Ministerial approval by order

published in the NSW Government Gazette in accordance with section 512 of the Act. The OLG will extract these amounts from
Council’'s Permissible income for general rates Statement in the financial data return (FDR) to administer this process.
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Permissible income for general rates

Permissible income for general rates: PLUS PDF inserted here

Council needs to uplift custom PDF here - please uplift via "PLUS PDF" choice in the Home/TOC screen
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Wollongong City Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Estimated cost

Estimated cost 'to bring fo the Assets in condition as a percentage of

to bring assets agreed level of 2021/22 2021/22 Gross
to satisfactory service set by Required Actual Netcarrying replacement oSS replacement cost
Asset Class Asset Category standard Council maintenance * maintenance amount cost (GRC)
$'000 $'000 $ '000 $ '000 $'000 $'000 1 2 3 4 5

Buildings Buildings 3,857 9,210 12,846 9,719 332,607 624,165 9.2% 215% 624% 39% 3.0%

Sub-total 3,857 9,210 12,846 9,719 332,607 624,165 9.2% 21.5% 62.4% 3.9% 3.0%
Other Other structures 758 1,642 552 304 9,210 17,408 57% 233% 51.9% 4.0% 15.1%
structures Sub-total 758 1,642 552 304 9,210 17,408 5.7% 23.3% 51.9% 4.0% 15.1%
Roads Roads 49,541 147,456 16,826 9,813 837,350 1,869,502 35.1% 16.7% 40.2% 7.9% 0.1%

Sealed roads - - - - - - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Bridges 705 2,042 556 729 94,683 138,910 126% 36.6% 46.3% 42% 03%

Footpaths 3,767 11,119 2,447 3,613 178,914 344,698 17.3% 18.6% 589% 5.1% 0.1%

Other road assets (incl. bulk earth

works) - - - - - - 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0% 0.0%

Sub-total 54,013 160,617 19,829 14,155 1,110,947 2,353,110 31.2% 18.2% 43.3% 7.3% 0.1%
Stormwater  Stormwater drainage 204 609 7,272 3,682 841,764 1,547,139 95% 26.8% 63.5% 02% 0.0%
drainage Sub-total 204 609 7,272 3,582 841,764 1,547,139 9.5% 26.8% 63.5% 0.2% 0.0%
Open space / Swimming pools & Open
recreational Space/Recreation 7,547 21,123 16,746 16,648 154,497 264,489 26.1% 7.1% 48.4% 16.0% 2.4%
AEsci Sub-total 7,547 21,123 16,746 16,648 154,497 264,489  26.1% 7.1% 48.4% 16.0% 2.4%

Total — all assets 66,379 193,201 57,245 44,408 2,449,025 4,806,311 21.0% 20.8% 52.6% 5.0% 0.6%

(a) Required maintenance is the amount identified in Council's asset management plans.
Infrastructure asset condition assessment 'key'
(1) Estimated Cost to Bring To Satisfactory Standard per Office of Local Government Requirements, reflects the estimated cost to restore all Council assets to condition '3'.

(2) Maintenance costs, per Office of Local Government Requirements, include both Maintenance and (appropriate) operational costs captured as Asset Operations in Council’s financial
system. Required maintenance reflects amounts calculated using benchmark data from other Group 5 Councils as % GRC.

(3) Cost to bring to agreed service level is defined as “The proportion of the GRC that have reached the intervention level based on condition.” The outstanding renewal works compared to
the total replacement cost of Councils assets. That is calculated as the cost of bringing condition 4 and 5 assets to condition 1.

continued on next page ... Page 5
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Wollongong City Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 (continued)

Asset Condition Definitions #
Rating Status

1 Excellent
Very Good
Good (Satisfactory)
Average
Poor

a A wN
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Wollongong City Council | Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022 | for the year ended 30 June 2022

Wollongong City Council

Report on infrastructure assets as at 30 June 2022

Infrastructure asset performance indicators (consolidated) *

Amounts Indicator Indicators Benchmark
$'000 2022 2022 2021 2020
Buildings and infrastructure renewals ratio
Asset renewals ' 36,579 0 o o - o
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 55,070 66.42% 1% 10851155 ==10000%

Infrastructure backlog ratio

Estimated cost to bring assets to a satisfactory

standard 66,379 2.62% 3.40% 3.32% <2.00%
Net carrying amount of infrastructure assets 2,535,615

Asset maintenance ratio
Actual asset maintenance 44,408

0, o 0 0
Required asset maintenance 57.245 77.58% 93.43% 101.22% >100.00%

Cost to bring assets to agreed service level

Estimated cost to bring assets to

an agreed service level set by Council 193,201 4.02% 2.92% 3.03%
Gross replacement cost 4,806,311

(") All asset performance indicators are calculated using classes identified in the previous table.

(1) Asset renewals represent the replacement and/or refurbishment of existing assets to an equivalent capacity/performance as opposed to
the acquisition of new assets (or the refurbishment of old assets) that increases capacity/performance.

Page 7

115



\"7 4
wollongong

city of innovation

Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 1 - Attachment 2 - Statement by the Lord Mayor, Deputy Lord Mayor and 28 November 2022
Management on the General Purpose Financial Statements

Wollongong City Council

General Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Councillors and Management
made pursuant to Section 413(2)(c) of the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW)

The attached General Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
« the Local Government Act 1993 (NSW) and the regulations made thereunder,
« the Australian Accounting Standards and other pronouncements of the Australian Accounting Standards Board,

+ the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting.

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:
« present fairly the Council’s operating result and financial position for the year,
« accord with Council’'s accounting and other records.
We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 November 2022.

Gordon Bradbery Tania Brown

Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor

28 November 2022 28 November 2022

Greg Doyle Brian Jenkins

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
28 November 2022 28 November 2022
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Wollongong City Council

Special Purpose Financial Statements
for the year ended 30 June 2022

Statement by Councillors and Management made pursuant to the Local Government Code of
Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting

The attached Special Purpose Financial Statements have been prepared in accordance with:
+ the NSW Government Policy Statement ‘Application of National Competition Policy to Local Government’,
« the Division of Local Government Guidelines ‘Pricing and Costing for Council Businesses — A Guide to Competitive
Neutrality’,
« the Local Government Code of Accounting Practice and Financial Reporting,

To the best of our knowledge and belief, these statements:

+ presentfairly the operating result and financial position for each of Council’s declared business activities for the year, and
» accord with Council’'s accounting and other records.

We are not aware of any matter that would render these statements false or misleading in any way.

Signed in accordance with a resolution of Council made on 28 November 2022.

Gordon Bradbery Tania Brown

Lord Mayor Deputy Lord Mayor

28 November 2022 28 November 2022

Greg Doyle Brian Jenkins

General Manager Responsible Accounting Officer
28 November 2022 28 November 2022

Page 3

117



V./ Ordinary Meeting of Council

wollongong ltem 1 - Attachment 4 - Flowchart of the Annual Financial Statement Approval 28 November 2022 118
and Audit Process

Wollongong City Council
Flowchart of the Annual Financial Statements Approval Process

End of year processing, balance Council meeting to form opinion —
day adjustments and preparation > s.413 (2)
of Statements 28 November 2022
Prepare draft Financial Council to fix date for a meeting
Statements — s.413 (1) to present the reports to the

public — s.418 (1)

Audit, Risk & Improvement K K . . R
Committee Meeting to present Council to give public notice of
draft Statements before audit mhe"i:j'”g ("t‘,'" 7 d,?g,s ggt(ljce) &

old meeting within 35 days
6 September 2022 from receipt of Auditor’s

report — s.418 (4)

}

Assessrr;irytsta/)Aud,tors Copies of audited reports to be
available to public from date of
public notice to 1 day after
meeting — s.418 (4)

v

Preliminary Audit Exit Interview
(CFO, Fin Services Manager,
Audit Partner, Audit Director) A 4

Prepare Council Report

A 4

Audit Exit Interview (GM, CFO,
Financial Services Manager, Audit
Partner, Audit Director

16 November 2022 Send audited Statements to
OLG -s.417(5)
Due date to OLG

A\ 4

30 November 2022
Prepare Audit Committee Report l
Council Meeting (Public Meeting)
* s.419 (1)

12 December 2022 to

Prepare Council Report present Statements

T

Audit, Risk & Improvement
Committee Meeting (Financial
Audit Services Director presents
Statements to Committee)
18 November 2022
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ITEM 2 PUBLIC EXHIBITION - WEST DAPTO DRAFT SOCIAL INFRASTRUCTURE NEEDS
ASSESSMENT

There is an ongoing need to plan for the social infrastructure needs of the growing community at West
Dapto. For the purposes of this report social infrastructure is defined in two core categories -

e Open pace and recreation.
e Community and cultural facilities.

The two categories combined create the places and spaces for people to meet, be active, connect,
create and learn.

Council staff have coordinated a review of the Social Infrastructure needs of West Dapto with the
assistance of a consultant team lead by Ethos Urban (partnered with Otium). This report seeks support
to undertake a public exhibition of the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment to
receive community feedback.

The final West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment will inform much of Council’s ongoing
work including our review of Development Contributions.

While staff are generally supportive of the consultant recommendations in the draft West Dapto Social
Infrastructure Needs Assessment we also consider that delivering and achieving many of the
recommendations will require co-ordinated efforts of Council, the Government and private sector. Further
analysis, master planning and neighbourhood planning will also be needed to confirm the spatial
deliverability of all recommendations.

RECOMMENDATION

1 Council support public exhibition of the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment for
a minimum of 28 days.

2 Council exhibition material to clearly outline that delivering the Social Infrastructure Needs of West
Dapto is reliant on a co-ordinated, equitable contribution from Council, other levels of Government
and private sector.

3 Following exhibition staff report back to Council -

a A final West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment with an engagement report
explaining issues raised in submissions and how they were considered; and

b  Detail further steps required to ensure delivery of the Social Infrastructure recommended in the
final needs assessment.

REPORT AUTHORISATIONS

Report of: Chris Stewart, Manager City Strategy
Authorised by:  Linda Davis, Director Planning + Environment - Future City + Neighbourhoods

ATTACHMENTS

1 Draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment

BACKGROUND

The West Dapto Urban Release Area (West Dapto) is Wollongong City Council’'s and the lllawarra-
Shoalhaven region’s largest urban growth area. It is estimated to provide 19,500 dwellings and an
additional 56,500 people once fully developed over 50 plus years. As well as being a key source of new
housing for the lllawarra, it established designated employment lands to support growth. The West
Dapto Vision 2018 provides Council’s Vision for the area, expected staging of development, principles to
guide land use planning and a structure plan.
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West Dapto is establishing new residential communities and is continually growing. The communities are
supported by an access strategy and will be supported by a range of planned town and village centres,
active and passive open spaces, community facilities, a network of riparian corridors, and stormwater
infrastructure.

Council planning for West Dapto is reflected in our current endorsed policy documents collectively
detailing Council’s position. These are publicly available online and listed below —

¢ Wollongong Local Environment Plan 2009.

e West Dapto Vision 2018.

o West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020.

e Chapter D16 West Dapto Release Area of the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009.
e West Dapto Open Space Design Manual and West Dapto Open Space Technical Manual.

e Places for People, Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework 2018 — 2028.

In particular, open space, recreation and community facilities has been integral to the planning and
structure of West Dapto urban release area. The Social Cultural and Recreational Needs Study for the
West Dapto New Release Area (Elton 2007) is the original informing document commissioned for
Council through the then NSW Growth Centres Commission. This study has been relied on as a basis
and rational for open space and community facilities needs for West Dapto.

The provision of Open Space, Recreation and Community Facilities have been refined more recently
through preparation of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 and West Dapto Vision
2018.

West Dapto is an active urban release area. As such there are open space items which have already
been delivered and are in use by the community. Table 9 of the West Dapto Development Contributions
Plan 2020 details completed infrastructure. In addition, there are open space, recreation and community
facilities items at various stages across the planning and design spectrum. These are mostly located in
Stages 1 & 2 of West Dapto (see staging plan at Figure 1).

West Dapto Staging, land use zoning and development status

Stages 1 and 2 have been rezoned for urban development since 2010. This is the most active
development front of the release area with multiple neighbourhood plans adopted by Council. In addition,
there are many new residents and active development fronts.

The maijority of Stage 3 is currently subject to two planning proposals to rezone land from rural to urban,
including provision of open space. The planning proposals are PP-2020/6 referred to as Cleveland and
PP-2018/9 referred to as Cleveland West. PP-2020/6 was recently placed on public exhibition between
14 September 2022 and 28 October 2022. Cleveland West is yet to progress to a public exhibition stage.

Stage 4 is currently rural zoned and has no active planning proposals. This is expected to be the last
development stage.

Stage 5 has been rezoned for residential development since 2018 and includes provision of RE1 zoned
land for Open Space. There are a number of detailed Neighbourhood Plans at various stages of the
assessment process in Stage 5.

Since the Stage 1 and 2 rezoning in 2010 subdivision certificates have been issued for 2,042 residential
lots at West Dapto with a further 483 lots under construction. We have a growing community within the
release area.
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West Dapto Development Contributions

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 (Contributions Plan 2020) available at
www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au/development/development-policies-quidelines/development-contribution is
an Independent Pricing and Regulatory Tribunal (IPART) reviewed contributions plan in accordance with
the NSW Department of Planning and Environment (2019) Practice Note 1 and relevant Ministerial
Directions issued under Section 7.17 of the Environmental Planning and Assessment Act 1979 (EP&A
Act). The contributions plan is referred to as a Section 7.11 plan and establishes the local infrastructure
needed to support West Dapto and ensures it is strategically planned and delivered, as well as providing
an equitable funding source. Open space and community facilities are included in the Contributions Plan
2020 (Section 4.1 and 4.2). The Contributions Plan has been updated on a number of occasions and
was reviewed by IPART in 2016 and in 2020. IPART provided commentary and recommendations
regarding the provision of open space in both the 2016 Final Assessment Report and 2020 Final
Assessment Report. Both assessment reports are available on IPART's website at
www.ipart.nsw.gov.au

The Contributions Plan 2020 was informed by the 2007 Elton study the Social Cultural and Recreational
Needs Study for the West Dapto New Release Area. IPART in their final 2020 report make 2
recommendations considered to be directly relevant to Social Infrastructure needs planning. These are
recommendation 13 and 14 (and associated discussion in the body of the 2020 Final Assessment
Report). The recommendations also need to be addressed in the next review of the Contributions Plan
2020 and are as follows -

Open space

13 For the next review of the plan, ensure that the scope and location of open space land and
embellishment reflect the progress of development in the release area and ensure that the plan
includes -

— Sufficient accessible recreation opportunities for all residents.
— Sufficient formal recreation facilities (sports grounds) for the release area.

14 For the next review of the plan, update the cost estimates of all parks to be delivered using more
recent actual costs or cost estimates for similar parks.

Consistent with IPART recommendations from their 2020 review, Council is expected to adopt a revised
Contribution Plan within 3 years of the 2020 Plan. Therefore, staff are targeting a December 2023
adoption of a revised West Dapto Development Contributions Plan. As a result, Council staff have
commenced internal review of the Contributions Plan 2020. All studies, outputs and updates required to
inform the Contributions Plan review are required to be completed early 2023. This will enable
commencement of formal IPART review of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan mid-2023.

When considering the funding of social infrastructure in a West Dapto context, it is important to note that
development contributions do not always meet the full cost of social infrastructure. For example,
development cannot be charged for the building works required for a new community facility building as
part of a Section 7.11 contributions plan. In addition, as mentioned earlier, more than 2,000 residential
subdivision certificates have already been issued. Therefore any increase in developer contributions
required to adequately meet the cost of social infrastructure will not be recoverable from those 2,000
plus residential lots.

West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment

To ensure a considered response to the IPART 2020 Final Assessment Report, Council staff began a
process to review, plan for and cost open space, recreation and community and cultural facilities for
West Dapto. The West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment project commenced in early 2022.

In February 2022 Council engaged the services of Ethos Urban Pty Ltd to undertake an Open Space,
Recreation and Community and Cultural Facilities Needs Assessment (referred to as the West Dapto
Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment). Ethos Urban partnered with Otium Planning Group following a
competitive procurement process.


http://www.wollongong.nsw.gov.au/development/development-policies-guidelines/development-contribution
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Green Network Masterplan

Council has a number of separate projects underway for West Dapto which relate to this project. Most
relevant is the West Dapto Green Network Masterplan (GNMP) to plan for a green network connecting
the escarpment to the lake, utilising the existing and future ecological corridors and open spaces in the
West Dapto. The GNMP will sit within Council’s strategic planning framework for West Dapto and inform
subdivision planning, development applications and urban design processes

Along with the 2023 review of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan, these projects will
require careful consideration and integration of open space and recreation lands defined or determined
through the Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment project and will provide the further analysis required
to test the spatial allocation of the recommended social infrastructure needs.

Darkes District Sports & Community Hub

During the 2022 Federal election Stephen Jones MP, now Assistant Treasurer and Minister for Financial
Services, made an election commitment to invest $9 million to help deliver the Darkes District Sports &
Community Hub. Council staff understand that the Government remains committed to this funding
pledge and will continue to work with federal colleagues on the funding partnership. The Social
Infrastructure Needs Assessment the subject of this report is firstly looking at the overall needs of the
community. Delivery of social infrastructure needs will form part of the ongoing implementation.

PROPOSAL

The draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment is provided at Attachment 1.
The study defines social infrastructure in two core categories -

¢ Open space and recreation.

e Community and cultural facilities.

The above social infrastructure categories combined create the places and spaces for people to meet,
be active, connect, create and learn.

The Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment relates primarily to ‘hard’ social infrastructure, the built
facilities and open spaces both within and outside Council’'s scope of control. The primary focus of this
project are those social infrastructure within Council’s scope of control.

Methodology

The assessment of need has been undertaken using recognised, specific quantitative benchmarking
combined with expert qualitative analysis.

Community and cultural facilities approach: Consistent with Council’'s Places for People: Social
Infrastructure Planning Framework.

Open space and recreation: Proposed new open space framework informed by best practice, NSW draft
Greener Places Design Guide and NSW Office of Sport Data. The new open space framework proposed
includes -

1 Simplified hierarchy.

Performance based criteria (functional and accessible open space).
Ensure sufficient capacity.

Activations and diversity of recreation.

Flexible and adaptable.

o O A WN

Ensure deliverability.
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A key principle of the Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment for West Dapto is that 85-90% of
residents are within a 5-7 minute walking distance of some form of quality open space — this could be a
local park, district sportsground etc. As such, staff are of the opinion that there may be an opportunity to
consider a reduction in the number of local parks based upon population benchmarks. Staff consider this
driving principle will need to be tested further through additional analysis, master planning and
neighbourhood planning to confirm the spatial deliverability of all recommendations in the draft needs
assessment.

A simplified hierarchy approach to defining open space formed part of the project methodology. The draft
needs assessment proposes to apply a hierarchy based on access and distribution, benchmarked and
generally derived from Draft Greener Places Design Guide and NSW Office of Sport data align with
NSW Draft Greener Places Design Guide. The proposed hierarchy removes neighbourhood parks and
focuses more on the local and district park classifications.

Types of Social Infrastructure Considered

Community and Cultural Facilities

The main types of community and cultural facilities considered in the draft needs assessment include:
1 General Facilities e.g. multipurpose community centres, library spaces.

2 Specialised Facilities e.g. Youth spaces, Seniors Space. The consultant team first considered and
recommended these facilities as specific standalone facilities. Council staff consider a multipurpose
approach catering partly for specific needs such as youth and seniors spaces may be a more
feasible model.

3 Creative and Cultural facilities e.g. practice studios / workshops, childcare places, government
primary and high schools.

4  Health and Wellbeing e.g. medical centres, GP’s, health hub.

It is important to note that not all community and cultural facilities considered in the project fall within the
scope of Council responsibility. However, the focus, particularly findings and recommendation, are on
those facilities that are Council’s responsibility. Additional analysis and recommendations are provided
as an opinion in relation to facilities where another authority would be responsible for meeting that
identified need.

Open Space and Recreation

The main types of open space and recreation facilities considered in the draft needs assessment
include:

Local Parks.

Linear Parks / Open Space Corridors.
District — Recreation.

District — Sport.

Urban Release Area Wide / Destination Parks.

a ~ O0ON =

The existing West Dapto Development Contributions Plan, 2020 and West Dapto Vision, 2018
categorise focus on a Local, Neighbourhood, District and City-Wide category of open space. Therefore a
new framework is proposed as part of this assessment project.
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Summary Draft findings and recommendations
Community and Cultural Facilities

Council’s existing West Dapto Development Contributions Plan, 2020 identifies the need for five
multipurpose communities centres. This includes four neighbourhood scale and one sub district scale.
Neighbourhood multipurpose community centres are based on a 1,500m? gross floor space, requiring
3,500m? of land. Sub district multipurpose community centres are based on 3,600m? of gross floor area
or 10,000m? (one hectare) of land.

The key findings and recommendations of the draft needs assessment support continued planning for
those existing five community centres and includes a recommendation to increase the amount of
multipurpose community facilities at West Dapto to six with one additional neighbourhood multipurpose
community centre recommended for stage 4 of the West. The Assessment recommends including this
upgrade in the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan.

A summary of all other community and cultural facilities recommendations in the draft needs assessment
include -

1 Upgrade the existing planned neighbourhood multi-purpose community centre in stage 5 of West
Dapto to a sub-district centre, including library. Include this upgrade in the West Dapto Development
Contributions Plan.

2 Council liaise directly with School Infrastructure NSW (SINSW) and the NSW Department of
Education as the authorities responsible for government school provision. It is understood that
SINSW and Department of Education will investigate the need for new school infrastructure within
the West Dapto Urban Release Area. SINSW will undertake ongoing consultation with Council and
the Department of Planning and Environment as detailed planning progresses for the release area
and will monitor the situation.

3 Deliver a dedicated youth centre co-located with a district park or community centre. The consultant
team has recommended stage 4 Avondale be considered.

4 Identify opportunities through planning mechanisms and agreements and at the neighbourhood
planning phase for private developers to deliver -

a Local community spaces, including bookable space and community sheds and gardens.
b Coworking and business incubator spaces

¢ Dedicated district-level community arts centre through planning agreement with larger developer,
potentially leveraging heritage homestead locations.

d Local traineeship and employment opportunities for young people.

5 Masterplan each town centre identified in the West Dapto Vision, 2018 with a focus on engagement
and early activation. Social infrastructure will play a key role in this master planning process,
identifying significant co-located sites and taking a collaborative approach with stakeholders and the
community. This stage would involve detailed site analysis.

As part of this process, the consultant team also recommend that a strategy is developed to
collaborate with faith-based organisations in relation to their property development plans to identify
the potential for these organisations to deliver social infrastructure in strategic locations.

6 Ensure that design briefs at the earliest stage for new community centres consider some or all of -
a Youth friendly spaces.
b  Seniors friendly spaces.
¢ Local cultural practice spaces (e.g. music rehearsal rooms, artists’ studios).
d Aboriginal community space (where arising in consultation).
e

Extensive community consultation and potential co-design.
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7 Facilitate delivery of higher-order social infrastructure through liaison with relevant authorities or
private providers, including for the provision of -

a Consideration of an Aboriginal Culture and Community Centre if identified through extensive
engagement.

b District performing arts facility should be explored subject to a Shared Use Agreement with the
relevant government authority.

¢ Creative infrastructure opportunities in liaison with Heritage NSW and Create NSW.
d Community Arts Centre in collaboration with Create NSW.

The consultant team also recommended development of a comprehensive delivery and funding plan for
identified community centres in the Contributions Plan.

Open Space and Recreation

Council’'s West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 currently identifies 25 open space and
recreation facilities made up of 16 local parks, seven neighbourhood parks, one city wide park and
12 netball and eight tennis courts as part of the Cleveland Community leisure and recreation centre.

The draft needs assessment identifies that there is currently a planned shortfall in functional open space
and recreation facilities if the needs of the future population are to be met when tested against the new
open space framework. The draft needs assessment recommends the shortfall is made up via a
combination of -

e Local parks.
. District — Recreation.
e  District — Sport.

. Urban Release Area Wide / Destination Park.

A summary of key open space and recreation recommendations in the draft needs assessment include -

1 Adopt and implement the needs assessment public open space framework for WDURA. This
includes placing a focus on the performance criteria for public open space which aims to deliver
high quality, well distributed public open space.

2 Planning and provision of public open space in WDURA to comply with performance criteria to
ensure fit for purpose and ‘functional’ open space, that delivers an efficient, affordable and
sustainable network of Public open space for sport and recreation.

3  Ensure 85-90% of residents in WDURA are within a 5-7 minute walk of high quality and functional
open space.

The consultant team provided a high level masterplan as part of their report. Council staff consider
new planned open space provision would require detailed analysis via other projects including work
on a Green Network Masterplan and work on the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan
review 2023. The consultant team have made a recommendation of a 400m catchment for
walkability to local parks. However, this can be extended to 600m where physical barriers like road
network, Motorways, etc limit the walkability, provided the net quantum of required Public Open
Space remains the same. Staff consider a 600m radius is more practical as one of the tools to
identify open space provision given the scale of the WDURA.

4  Convert all existing planned neighbourhood parks to the new open space framework defined District
Sports Park and convert one of the existing planned local parks to the new open space framework
defined District Sports Park which results in a net increase of 25 hectares (ha) in recommended
sports park infrastructure for the release area. This results a recommended increase in the sizes of
specific parks identified in the existing West Dapto Development Contributions Plan, 2020 as -
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e 0S10: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 4ha to
5ha.

e 0OS11: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 3ha to
10ha.

e 0S16: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 4ha to
10ha.

e 0818: Existing planned Local Park change to District Sport increasing from 2ha to 5ha
e 0S19: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 4ha to

5ha

e 0S20: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 4ha to
10ha

e 0S23: Existing planned Neighbourhood Park change to District Sport increasing from 4ha to
5ha

Develop a Green Network Masterplan for WDURA in consideration of the proposed open space
performance criteria. As part of this process, review the required number of local parks based on the
distribution and access to high quality functional public open space. The Green Network Masterplan
to identify location for a destination public open site (preferably with 15+ ha area) that will service all
residents of WDURA (referred to as a destination park).

The study recommends that a destination park include formal sports servicing a high level of play
(including fields and courts), spectator seating, clubhouse, toilets, equitable change rooms, storage,
canteen, large destination play, youth spaces, co-location with community and cultural facilities,
public art features and many other opportunities such as pump track, BMX, skate park etc. The park
is recommended by the consultant team to be centrally located and potentially within the Stage 3
area. Council staff have commenced the Green Network Masterplan project. The specific
recommendation regarding a destination park and its potential location will be considered further
during that project.

Prioritise provision of required additional Public Open Space in WDURA aligned with the new
proposed Public Open Space framework, existing West Dapto Public Open Space Design Guide
and the proposed performance criteria.

Commence quality and functionality assessment of existing Public Open Space along with the
indicative locations of the proposed open space.

Other recommendations made include -

8

10

11

12

13

Subject to IPART assessment, update the West Dapto Development Contributions Plans according
to the assessment undertaken as part of this study. Council staff have commenced this process.

Implement the recommendations of the West Dapto Community Leisure and Recreation Centre
Needs Assessment (2019). Council staff have commenced this process.

Work with the Office of Sport in the development of the lllawarra Shoalhaven Sport Infrastructure
Plan. NOTE: This Plan is currently in early stages. Council staff will continue to liaise with the Office
of Sport.

Review of planned provision of Public Open Space every five years to respond to the most up to
date demographic projections and trends. Council staff will continue periodic review of all social
infrastructure requirements.

Developing forward funding strategy to acquire land and deliver Public Open Space infrastructure to
maintain and sustain delivery responsive to the population growth.

Monitoring residential density development to ensure dwelling targets are not exceeding threshold
numbers. Council staff continually monitor development at West Dapto.
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14 |Initiating partnership and collaboration opportunities with State agencies for land acquisition and
joint delivery of major recreation facilities. Council staff continually seek opportunity for partnered
delivery opportunities associated with all infrastructure requirements of the WDURA.

Recommendations regarding existing open space servicing Horsley and Dapto is also provided by the
consultant team. Those recommendations would be considered by a separate planning process of
Council.

While staff are generally supportive of the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment we
also consider that delivering and achieving many of the recommendations will require co-ordinated
efforts of Council, Government and the private sector. In addition further analysis, master planning and
neighbourhood planning will also be needed to confirm the spatial deliverability of all recommendations.

CONSULTATION AND COMMUNICATION

There has been a considerable amount of internal and external stakeholder engagement which informed
preparation of the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment.

An internal project control group was informed involving City Strategy, Library and Community Services,
Recreation Services, Infrastructure Strategy and Planning, Open Space and Environmental Services,
Community Cultural and Economic Services with other inputs as needed from Land Use Planning,
Project Delivery and Finance.

The consultant team undertook interviews with key stakeholders which included: Create NSW, lllawarra
Shoalhaven Local Health District, Careways, Greater Cities Commission, Office of Sports, Department of
Planning and Environment, Parks and Leisure NSW, Sport NSW, Outdoor NSW. Preliminary
consultation also occurred with School Infrastructure NSW and feedback provided. Introductory
engagement with the lllawarra Local Aboriginal Land Council has been requested by Council and is
proposed to occur as part of the formal exhibition process. All external stakeholders including the
broader community would be given opportunity to comment further during public engagement phase.
The project team has commenced working with Council’s engagement team to develop an engagement
strategy for the public exhibition process.

Staff are proposing to undertake the broad community exhibition early in 2023 following school holidays.

PLANNING AND POLICY IMPACT

This report contributes to the delivery of a number of Our Wollongong 2028 goals with a specific delivery
of Goal 1 — We value and protect our environment. It specifically delivers on the following —

Community Strategic Plan Delivery Program 2018-2022 Operational Plan 2021-22
Strategy 4 Year Action Operational Plan Actions

Land Use Planning 1.6 West Dapto Planning 1.6.4 Review West Dapto recreation
needs in line with the bi-annual
review of the West Dapto
Development Contributions
Plan

RISK MANAGEMENT

There are a number of risks associated with this project and ongoing in regarding the finalisation of the
West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and the ongoing delivery of social infrastructure.

The two key risks include -

1 Insufficient social infrastructure to meet community needs.
2  Deliverability and funding shortfalls and cost burden to Council.
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Staff have undertaken this contemporary needs assessment to ensure that planning for the social
Infrastructure needs of the growing and future West Dapto residents remains sufficient and relevant. The
previous needs assessment specific to West Dapto was from 2007. Engaging with community and
stakeholders as an important next step to ensure we understand a number of perspectives when
considering need.

As addressed further in the financial implications section below Council has prepared a West Dapto
Financial Model to understand all costs associated with the release area including cost of upfront capital
investment and ongoing management, maintenance and replacement of community assets. Council’s
financial model will be updated based on this Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment work.

Council staff have also commenced review of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan, 2020
and will use the findings of the Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment to ensure the contributions plan
reflects the social infrastructure needs. The contributions plan will be reviewed by IPART and ultimately
Council will receive direction from the NSW Minister for Planning before adopting the plan. Staff will also
continue to seek grant funding opportunities and work with the private sector and other social
infrastructure providers to ensure an equitable approach to funding is achieved.

FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS

Delivering the Social Infrastructure Needs of West Dapto is and will continue to be reliant on a co-
ordinated, equitable contribution by Council, the State and private sector, in particular the development
industry.

Council staff have for some time now developed a West Dapto Financial Model to understand the total
infrastructure costs associated with delivery of the WDURA. The model currently includes assumptions
regarding existing planned social infrastructure at West Dapto. The model provides an estimate of capital
costs and lifecycle costs. When a final social infrastructure needs assessment is adopted by Council the
financial model would be updated to reflect the adopted position.

When considering West Dapto Section 7.11 development contributions in a social infrastructure context
it is important to note that development contributions do not always meet the full cost of social
infrastructure. For example, development cannot be charged for the building works required to deliver a
new community facility building. Council formally raised concern, regarding lack of Section 7.11 funding
of Community Facilities buildings, with the Department of Planning and Environment on 10 December
2021 during exhibition of the Department’s proposed contributions reforms. This concern was ratified by
Council at the 21 February 2022 Council meeting. Delivery of Community facility building works would be
subject to the availability of future budgets if delivered by Council general revenue.

The largest increase in proposed social infrastructure provision recommended in the needs assessment
is open space. However, land and embellishment is funded from development contributions when
supported by IPART and the NSW Minister for Planning.

It is also important to note that more than 2,000 residential subdivision certificates have already been
issued at West Dapto. Therefore any increase in developer contributions required to adequately meet
the cost of social infrastructure will not be recoverable from those 2,000 plus residential lots.

Staff also engaged Genus Advisory Quantity Surveyor to produce contemporary cost estimates for social
infrastructure identified in the draft needs assessment. All costs of infrastructure, including social
infrastructure are increasing. Contingency and cost escalation allowance are an important inclusion
when considering costs. This work will inform the update to the West Dapto Development Contributions
Plan, 2023, which will be required to reflect final adopted social infrastructure needs.

As there are likely funding shortfalls which present a risk to Council and social infrastructure delivery it is
important that Council staff maintain an ongoing dialogue with other levels of Government and private
sector to explore all potential co-ordinated funding opportunities.
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CONCLUSION

There is an ongoing need to plan for the social infrastructure needs of our growing community at West
Dapto to create the places and spaces for people to meet, be active, connect, create and learn.

Council staff have undertaken a review of the Social Infrastructure needs of West Dapto with the
assistance of a consultant team lead by Ethos Urban. This report seeks support to undertake a public
exhibition of the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment for community feedback.

The findings of a final West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment will inform much of Council’s
ongoing work within the community including our ongoing review of Development Contributions.

Delivering and achieving many of the recommendations in the draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure
Needs Assessment will require co-ordinated efforts of Council, the State and Private Sector. Further
analysis, master planning and neighbourhood plan will also be needed to confirm the spatial
deliverability of all recommendations.
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West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

West Dapto is expected to be an area of exponential growth within the lllawarra-Shoalhaven region, with the West

Dapto Urban Release Area (WDURA) to provide approximately 19,500 additional dwellings and accommodate
56,750 additional residents over the next 50 years.

As a key source of new housing for the region moving into the future, the West Dapto Urban Release Area will

require strategic planning of infrastructure and service delivery to adequately support its new population, while also

conserving the area’s environmental assets.

In February 2022, Wollongong City Council (Council) engaged Ethos Urban, in partnership with Otium Planning

Group, to prepare a Community Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis of Open Space, Recreation, Community and

Cultural facilities for the WDURA.

The objectives of this study are to deliver a best practice needs assessment and gap analysis informed by
contemporary Government policies and planning benchmarks, and to enable Council’s considered response to
IPART’s 2020 Final Assessment Report of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan in due course.

This Assessment will supersede the current informing planning study as Council’s contemporary position for open
space, recreation and community and cultural facilities planning for West Dapto. It will further inform the revision of

the broader West Dapto Vision and master planning.

Scope and Approach

This study has the following key methodological points:

* Social infrastructure is defined as including two core categories of infrastructure: open space and recreation,

and community and cultural facilities. These two categories of social infrastructure provide the places and

spaces for people to meet, be active, connect, create and learn. This study primarily assesses the ‘hard’ social

infrastructure, the built facilities and open spaces, that support community connection and cohesion (see
Sections 2.1 and 2.4).

* This study assesses the whole ecosystem of social infrastructure to provide a holistic picture, including
infrastructure types that Council does not have primary responsibility for delivering (eg. childcare centres,
schools and hospitals). Council’s role in social infrastructure provision is further described in Section 2.2.

* This study uses both quantitative (eg. Population benchmarking, producing raw numeric data results) and

qualitative (eg. Strategic information, research, engagement outcomes, and spatial considerations) to provide
an informed and holistic outcome that informs understanding of gaps and needs for social infrastructure in the

WDURA (see Section 2.3).

* There are two levels of study area applied in this study (see Section 2.5) — based on the staging identified in

the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020. These are:

- Primary study area: the boundary of the WDURA, as defined in the West Dapto Development Contributions

Plan 2020
- Secondary study areas:

o Stage 1/2 (excluding those parts that are in the Horsley suburb)

o Stage 3
o Stage 4
o Stage 5

o Horsley (existing suburb boundary)

Ethos Urban | 2210779
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Community and cultural infrastructure

This report sets out the findings of a community needs analysis that has been methodically undertaken to
understand gaps in provision and informs recommendations for future provision. Although this assessment has
focused on Council owned and / or managed assets, it is important to consider and appreciate the role of other
facilities, which play a supplementary role in the existing social infrastructure network.

The community and cultural hierarchies applied in this study are based on Council’s Places for People: Social
Infrastructure Planning Framework (see Section 2.6) These include a neighbourhood, local, sub-district, and district
catchment. Regional and sub-regional catchments are not assessed, as falling outside the scope of the WDURA
(see Section 3.1).

The process of predicting demand for social infrastructure and services in growth areas is typically based on
quantitative benchmarking for adequate provision of infrastructure according to the anticipated population. While
benchmarking provides a useful starting point for social infrastructure needs assessment with figures for demand
calculation, they are not intended to provide clear-cut answers, as social planning is by nature not black and white.
Rather, they guide best practice facilities provision, to be used as part of a broader analysis that takes account of a
rich range of qualitative and quantitative information.

The quantitative element of this analysis has included the following steps:
* Section 8.0 audits current and planned social infrastructure provision across the WDURA.
* Section 9.0 outlines current and projected population forecasts.

* Section 11.0 applies benchmarks to the supply and population forecasts to undertake a supply-demand gap
analysis. Benchmarks enable a quantitative assessment of community facilities provision based on a prescribed
set of principles. The term ‘benchmark’ refers to the ratio of facility provision per population size, such as one
library per 20,000-30,000 residents in a catchment.

These identified gaps are outlined in Section 11.5 — and are used to inform priorities for delivery.

Equally important to the planning process are qualitative considerations. The need for infrastructure and services is
not homogenous across every growing community; policy, emerging trends, existing facilities, local needs, area
context, and stakeholder perspectives must all contribute to each local planning process.

The qualitative element of this analysis has included the following:

* Understanding the existing West Dapto community (Section 4.0), including its demographic profile (Section
4.2), and social issues and trends (Section 4.3).

* Considering the strategic policy context (Section 5), including key strategic documents from local, state, and
federal sources (Section 5.1) and summarising key policy drivers influencing provision in the WDURA (Section
5.3).

* Researching and appraising dominant social infrastructure trends (Section 6). Key trends identified include the
push for 20-minute neighbourhoods (Section 6.1), age-friendly approaches to social infrastructure planning
(Section 6.2), resilience and a changing climate (Section 6.3), harnessing faith-based organisations for social
infrastructure delivery (Section 6.5), the trend towards multipurpose community hubs (Section 6.4), the
evolving role of libraries (Section 6.6), and the increasing role of cultural infrastructure in community building
(Section 6.7).

* Analysing issues and opportunities in planning and delivering social infrastructure effectively in greenfield urban
release areas (Section 7.0). Understanding Council’s role in infrastructure delivery as both provider, facilitator
and advocate (Section 7.1) opens up a range of mechanisms for private delivery or collaborative approaches
with potential for the WDURA (Section 7.2-7.3). Additionally, it is recognised that growth areas have unique
planning challenges (Section 7.4), including prominently the importance of timely delivery (Section 7.5).

* Case studies, outlined in Sections 7.6-7.8, provide a contextual understanding of opportunities and cautions for
strategic planning, and the delivery and design of community facilities in comparative contexts.

The synthesis of these inputs, both quantitative and qualitative, has produced the recommendations outlined in
Section 15. Arising from these recommendations are three key findings:

Ethos Urban | 2210779 7
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* There is demand for one additional neighbourhood-level multipurpose community centre in stage 4. Additionally,
there is demand for one additional sub-district community centre in the WDURA, which could suitably be
accommodated through an amendment of item CFO5 of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020.

* Collaborative delivery and partnership with government agencies, not-for-profits, and private developers are
crucial to ensuring that core infrastructure is delivered in the WDURA, as well as opportunities for innovation
and best practice facilities. These include the potential for a community arts centre and performing arts facility,
Aboriginal cultural space, Coworking and business incubator spaces, and the adaptive reuse of existing
heritage homesteads for community use.

* Continuing to engage with key stakeholders and the community, and undertaking additional strategic
preparation including the master planning of town and village centres across the WDURA, will be essential to
implementing the recommendations outlined in this Study and ensuring the appropriate provision of social
infrastructure for the current and future West Dapto community.

Open space and recreation

The West Dapto Urban Release Area (WDURA) is planned to grow by more than 50,000 residents by 2058. The
area includes several existing parks and open spaces that service the current residents in and adjacent to the area.
Some of these pre-date the release of West Dapto for urban development and subsequent provision planning. This
study has been focused on assessing the open space for sport and recreation needs of the WDURA and the
anticipated future population that the public open space network will need to service.

The suburb of Horsley is physically located within the WDURA boundary. Parks and open space required to support
the existing population of Horsley have been planned or provided within the suburb. The current planning for the
WDURA should consider what excess capacity may be available in Horsley to meet future needs arising from
growth in the WDURA generally. Therefore, a separate assessment of Public Open Space in Horsley has been
undertaken to determine how any excess capacity can contribute to meeting the needs for the WDURA.

The Public Open Space needs assessment primarily focuses on the existing and planned provision of Public Open
Space within all five stages of the WDURA. A qualitative review of existing supply and a quantitative assessment of
public open space requirements for the WDURA has been undertaken to understand the functional open space land
requirements by stage area and typology over 10-year increments. The requirement for sport infrastructure in the
WDURA is calculated utilising two methodologies (i.e. Otium Analytics) - a demand analysis model and a
benchmarking model.

This report proposes a new draft public open space planning framework in alignment with the existing West Dapto
Open Space Design Manual. The draft Public Open Space framework is primarily driven by the latest industry
standards, experience of similar release areas across NSW and a set of performance criteria that seek to ensure
equitable distribution and access to functional public open space as well as effective integration and co-location of
recreation facilities suitable within the proposed hierarchy levels. The intention of the proposed performance criteria
is not to supersede current Council guidelines, but to complement and reinforce them to ensure the provision of
high-quality Public Open Space in the WDURA.

Assessment and provision methodologies have referenced the Draft Greener Places Design Guide and the prior
work undertaken for the WDURA. A key part of this updated provision planning is the adoption of performance
criteria which ensures a sustainable infrastructure network suitable for public recreation and sporting use. The aim
is to ensure that a more efficient land use outcome is realised, and that land acquired for recreation and sporting
use is fit for purpose, cost effective to develop and affordable to maintain.

The key findings of the Public Open Space assessment are:

* The existing provision of 42.12 Ha serving Stage 1/2, of which 42.55% is assessed as functional (fit for purpose)
open space, leaving 54.77% as non-functional.

* Functional Public Open Space is defined as the total area within an open space/park suitable for or used for,
recreational activities like playgrounds, kick-a-bout areas, sports grounds, etc. Net functional area is exclusive
of constrained land that is not fit for purpose due to slope, flooding, incompatible infrastructure (drains, high
voltage lines etc.) size, shape and environmental constraints such as riparian and bushland vegetation cover

Ethos Urban | 2210779 8
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* A surplus of 7.97Ha in district sport and district recreation parks was identified in the suburb of Horsley.
However, with the anticipated marginal population increase (through infill development) in Horsley along with
existing and future demand from Dapto residents, it is doubtful this surplus will provide any significant capacity
to meet the needs of future residents of WDURA.

* The total existing functional and future planned, public open space for WDURA currently totals 75.04 Ha.

* As aresult of the quantitative needs assessment of WDURA, the total required Public Open Space in WDURA
by 2058 is 162.823 Ha. This indicates that an additional 87.78 Ha of Public Open Space is required to service
the anticipated population growth in WDURA.

The adoption of the performance criteria to ensure future parks and sporting areas are fit for purpose is strongly
recommended. The provision rates suggested in the new planning framework rely heavily on improving the quality
and functionality of land acquired for parks and sporting areas. In other words, the hectares per 1000 supply rates
will only meet needs if the land quality improves significantly. The current supply assessment illustrates the
importance of adopting land quality/ suitability criteria with more than 50% of the existing Public Open Space
assessed as not fit for purpose.

The next stage of future open space planning should implement performance criteria to ensure site suitability and
that only functional land is acquired for public recreation. This open space for sport and recreation will be
complemented by other forms of open space such as that protecting habitat and riparian corridors. An overall open
space network plan should be developed that can consider the public open space needed for sport and recreation
and ensure that suitable land is planned within the overall open space network and that opportunities for multiple
use outcomes are pursued while still meeting performance criteria for functional land.

Ethos Urban | 2210779 9
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PART A: INTRODUCTION AND APPROACH
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1.1 Background

In February 2022, Wollongong City Council (Council) engaged Ethos Urban, in partnership with Otium Planning
Group, to prepare a Community Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis of Open Space, Recreation, Community and
Cultural facilities for the West Dapto Urban Release Area (WDURA).

Council plays a key role in providing social infrastructure to support and sustain the liveability and wellbeing of the
residents, both present and future, in the WDURA.

Parks, recreation facilities, libraries and cultural and creative spaces and other social infrastructure are important
places through which social cohesion and social capital a fostered over time by bringing diverse community
members together; providing spaces for communities to connect, create and learn. They are also an important
touchpoint for Council and the community, through the delivery of amenities and services.

Social infrastructure and services are critical to support community health and wellbeing. Delivering adequate and
appropriate social infrastructure, including community facilities, is fundamental to achieving Council’s vision of a city
that is ‘safe, healthy and happy.

With a fast-growing community, Council now faces a range of challenges and opportunities in meeting community

needs in the WDURA for social infrastructure over the duration of its development — challenges and opportunities
for which this analysis provides insights and guidance.

1.2 Purpose of this study

This study arises from Council’s recognition of the importance of providing adequate infrastructure to sustain the
social, cultural and economic development and success of the WDURA into the future.

The objectives of this study are to:

* Deliver a best practice needs assessment and gap analysis informed by contemporary Government policies and
planning benchmarks

¢ Enable Council’'s considered response to IPART’s 2020 Final Assessment Report of the West Dapto
Development Contributions Plan 2020 in due course.

This Assessment will supersede the current informing planning study as Council’s contemporary position for open
space, recreation and community and cultural facilities planning for West Dapto. It will further inform revision of the
broader West Dapto Vision and master planning.

T Our Wollongong 2028: Community Strategic Plan (Wollongong City Council, 2018, p. 37)
2 Our Wollongong 2028: Community Strategic Plan (Wollongong City Council, 2018, p. 37)
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Figure 1 WDURA - aerial view looking north east
Source: lllawarra Mercury (2014)

1.3 Study context

West Dapto is expected to be an area of exponential growth within the lllawarra-Shoalhaven region, with the
WDURA to provide approximately 19,500 additional dwellings and accommodate 56,750 additional residents over
the next 50 years.

As a key source of new housing for the region moving into the future, the West Dapto Area will require strategic
planning of infrastructure and service delivery to adequately support its new population, while also conserving the
area’s environmental assets

The West Dapto Area will also serve to further the region’s economic productivity by providing flexible employment
lands which benefits from proximity to Port Kembla. While infrastructure delivery such as roads and other transport
projects are ongoing in the area, significant investment into social infrastructure is required to support West Dapto’s
growing population. Strategic planning by Wollongong Council has outlined several social infrastructure directions
for the area in the West Dapto Vision 2018, including:

* Deliver open space which features high amenity, is functional, accessible, and connected to other places of
interest and key infrastructure.

* Open space should be delivered across a hierarchy of local, neighbourhood, district, and city-wide spaces,
which each offer different functionalities.

e Community facilities should be co-located where possible in convenient locations, promote community safety,
provide equitable access, be flexible, encourage diversity, and contribute to a high quality of life.

* Sharing facilities under a joint-use arrangement between schools, local governments, and other institutions
should be explored.

Ethos Urban | 2210779 12
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1.4 West Dapto Vision

The West Dapto Vision (2018) is a key Council strategy guiding the desired future character of West Dapto. The
Vision, summarised succinctly at the outset of that strategy, is worth extracting here in full.

West Dapto will grow and develop as a series of integrated and connected communities. Set
against the spectacular lllawarra Escarpment and a landscape of riparian valleys, these
communities will integrate the natural and cultural heritage of the area with the new urban form.

The communities will be healthy, sustainable and resilient with active and passive open space
accessible by walkways, cycleways and public transport. To support these new communities,
local centres will provide shopping services, community services and jobs while employment
lands will facilitate further opportunities for the region.

West Dapto will be supported by a long-term strategy to oversee the timely implementation of

infrastructure to deliver sustainable and high-quality suburbs with diverse housing choices.?

This document is one of many such long-term strategies commissioned by Council to guide the implementation of
infrastructure, in this case, social infrastructure.

3 West Dapto Vision 2018 (Wollongong City Council), p. 2.
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The following section outlines the assumptions and inclusions informing the scope of this study. It outlines key
definitions and defines the boundaries of social infrastructure, the study areas, and the typology of infrastructure
examined in this needs assessment and gap analysis.

21 What is social infrastructure?

Infrastructure Australia defines social infrastructure as:

‘Social infrastructure is comprised of the facilities, spaces, services and networks that support the quality of life
and wellbeing of our communities. It helps us to be happy, safe and healthy, to learn, and to enjoy life. The
network of social infrastructure contributes to social identity, inclusion and cohesion and is used by all Australians
at some point in their lives, often on a daily basis. Access to high-quality, affordable social services has a direct
impact on the social and economic wellbeing of all Australians.*

Social infrastructure includes open space, recreation, and community and cultural facilities which provide places
and spaces for people to meet, be active, connect, create and learn. They also represent an important touchpoint
for service providers to connect with the community through the delivery of services and amenities.

Social infrastructure includes hard and soft infrastructure. Hard social infrastructure refers to the facilities, buildings
and spaces, and soft infrastructure refers to the programs, services and networks that occur in these spaces. Built
assets, such as libraries and recreation centres, facilitate the delivery of social services by governments and other
service providers.

The Wollongong Places for People: Social Infrastructure Planning Framework (see Section 2.6.1) notes that:
‘Hard’ and ‘soft’ social infrastructure depend on each other — services, networks, community and recreational
programs, faith and interest groups rely on places and spaces to meet and participate. Buildings and assets rely
on the activation of community if they are to continue to be a worthwhile investment for Council.’

It is widely recognised that social infrastructure provision is essential for the development of sustainable, liveable,
resilient and socially cohesive communities.® Quality social infrastructure is not only the ‘building block for the
enhancement of human and social capital,”® but also works to attract investment, growth and economic development
to local communities.” Additionally, several studies have demonstrated the pronounced economic benefits of cultural
activities, events and festivals for local economies.  These benefits are seen through both direct employment
opportunities, and the economic flow-on effects of increased visitation and expenditure in local areas.

There is also growing evidence that failing to provide adequate social infrastructure results in significant costs to
governments and communities.® Further, deficiencies in social infrastructure provision can create long-term,
complex social problems that require costly remedial measures, particularly in socio-economically disadvantaged
areas.'® Conversely, there is a substantial body of evidence that the benefits of social infrastructure far exceed the
economic costs of provision.!

4 Infrastructure Australia, Australian Infrastructure Audit 2019, https://www.infrastructureaustralia.gov.au/sites/default/files/2019-
08/Australian%20Infrastructure%20Audit%202019%20-%206.%20Social%20Infrastructure.pdf

5 British Property Foundation, 2010, Planning for Social Infrastructure in Development Projects: A guide to tackling the key challenges;
Teriman et al., 2010, Social infrastructure planning and sustainable community: example from southeast Queensland, Australia; Brown
and Barber, 2012, Social infrastructure and sustainable urban communities.

8 Teriman et al., 2010, page 3.

7 City of Greater Geelong, 2015, Social Infrastructure Plan 2014-2031.

8 Museums and Galleries NSW, 2010, Value Added! The economic and social contribution of cultural facilities in Central NSW; Museums
and Galleries NSW, 2014, A report on the economic impact of the cultural facilities of the Evocities.

® Teriman et al., 2010; Casey, 2005, Establishing Standards for Social Infrastructure.

' Teriman et al., 2010; Casey, 2005; Liverpool City Council, 2018, Community Facilities Strategy: A Blueprint for a Modern Network of
Community Facilities.

" See for example: Teriman et al., 2010; Casey, 2005.
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2.2 Council’s role in social infrastructure provision

Wollongong City Council plays a key role in providing social infrastructure to support and sustain liveability,
community health, wellbeing, and participation. Open space, recreation and community facilities provide places and
spaces for people to meet, be active, connect, create and learn. They also represent an important touchpoint for
Council to connect with the community through the delivery of services and amenities.*?

Council is responsible for the delivery of certain types of social infrastructure, including libraries, community
facilities, parks and recreation facilities. However, Council is only one provider of community spaces within the
Release Area, and Council is not solely responsible for meeting demand for community facilities. Additionally,
Council has a role as advocator and facilitator of social infrastructure through partnerships and collaboration with
other providers.

Increasingly, community services and the infrastructure that supports them are provided by the private or non-for-
profit sector. The inclusion of this infrastructure in this study is premised on the relevance of understanding the full
spectrum of community infrastructure, whether provided by Council or not.

Recognising local government as only one provider of community space within a broader network of community
facilities will assist Council to identify a clear pathway to better manage growing demand for community facilities
now and into the future, through a multi-pronged approach.

Understanding gaps in the delivery of traditionally private infrastructure types can inform Council’s advocacy or
partnership approaches — creating opportunities for collaboration and discussion to ensure that the community is
provided for. Ultimately, the inclusion of non-council infrastructure aids in understanding a community’s entire social
infrastructure fabric.

2.3 Overview of approach to this study

This chapter outlines the methodology used to assess the existing provision and future needs of social infrastructure
for the WDURA.

The process of predicting demand for social infrastructure and services in growth areas is typically based on
quantitative benchmarking for adequate provision of infrastructure according to the anticipated population. While
benchmarking provides a useful starting point for social infrastructure needs assessment with figures for demand
calculation, they are not intended to provide clear-cut answers, as social planning is by nature not black and white.
Rather they provide guidance on best practice facilities provision, to be used as part of a broader analysis that takes
account of a rich range of qualitative and quantitative information.

Equally important to the planning process are site-specific considerations. The need for infrastructure and services
is not homogenous across every growing community; policy, emerging trends, existing facilities, local needs, area
context, and stakeholder perspectives must all contribute to each local planning process. The assessment
contained in this needs assessment is therefore undertaken in two core stages of analysis:

* Quantitative analysis of current and planned supply of social infrastructure against industry standard
benchmarks for provision (number/ size) considered adequate to meet the needs of the anticipated population
for the WDURA according to population forecasts prepared by Wollongong City Council.

The quantitative methodology for this study has involved the following steps:
—  Mapping of current and planned social infrastructure;
— Accessing reliable data sources on participation in sport and recreation activities to inform the analysis, and

— Undertaking a gap analysis, i.e. applying the benchmarks to current and forecast population numbers to
identify forecast gaps in provision of social infrastructure, in order to derive recommendations for future
provision to address identified gaps.

12 Places for People, Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework 2018-2028 (Wollongong City Council).
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* Qualitative analysis of:
- Local and state policy directions relevant to community infrastructure planning;
- Geographic distribution of supply from a population equity and accessibility/ walkability perspective;
- the quality of supply (whether infrastructure is fit for purpose/ in need of maintenance etc), and

- Capacity/ utilisation of current supply based on information provided by Wollongong City Council
(infrastructure that is poorly utilised may mean it is surplus to community needs, for example, or rather not
effectively meeting community needs through its design or functionality).

This study has included consultation with a range of state government agencies with a role in social infrastructure
and services provision, including Create NSW, NSW Health, DPE, and the Office of Sports. In addition, the Local
Aboriginal Land Council and a non-profit community service provider were engaged to ascertain their perspectives
on community needs and priorities for social infrastructure provision in the urban renewal area.

Effective strategic planning for social infrastructure also takes account of issues such as funding availability — in
terms of government investment required for the development and ongoing operation of facilities; land availability
(e.g., land areas required to deliver sports and recreation facilities is usually not available in dense urban areas,
unless planned for and delivered at the earliest stages); third party provision models; the need to take advantage of
opportunities arising, along with broader community priorities and emerging issues that may arise and require a
rethink of social infrastructure priorities.

24 Assumptions and inclusions

This study, while acknowledging and auditing other aspects of social infrastructure, focuses on the built assets that
Council is primarily responsible for delivering. Examples of social infrastructure owned and/or managed by Council
include:

* Integrated multipurpose facilities and library space

* Local community facilities, e.g. community centres, scout halls

e Cultural facilities, e.g. arts centres

* Public open space including spaces for active recreation and organised sport, and passive recreation
* Recreation facilities, eg. aquatic and leisure centres

This study refers to aspects of social infrastructure in numerous ways. This assessment, as a methodological
decision, divides social infrastructure into the following two categories:

* Open space and recreation infrastructure
e Community and cultural facilities

- Community facilities are defined to align with references to ‘Hard’ and ‘Foundation Social Infrastructure’ in
the Places for People, Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework 2018-2028 (Wollongong City
Council). Community facilities are defined in this study as physical spaces where social services,
community, cultural development or recreational activities take place. These spaces provide accessible
facilities and places for people to formally or informally meet, supporting ‘soft’ social infrastructure
outcomes.™

- Cultural infrastructure is defined as those spaces which generate cultural or creative capital, being either
linked professionally with the creative industry or integral to the community’s participation in cultural
activities. This broad lens provides a fuller understanding of cultural infrastructure, capturing all spaces
important to the local community’s cultural generation.

The study area definition (see Section 2.5 below) and typology (outlined in Section 2.7 and Section 3 below)
further identify the scope of this study.

13 See Places for People Social Infrastructure Planning Framework (WCC, 2018), p. 8.

Ethos Urban | 2210779 16

148



Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 2 - Attachment 1 - Draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs 28 November 2022
Assessment

West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

2.5 Study area definition

The primary study area for this assessment has been defined as the West Dapto Urban Release Area, which will
also be referred to as the WDURA (see Figure 2). The secondary study areas have been identified as the five
stages for the release area (identified in Figure 2), and the Horsley study area (see Figure 3). These study areas
form the basis of this needs assessment, and corresponding gaps will be identified in relation to both the primary
and secondary study areas.

® West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 X
~ / Staging Plan &8
5
wollongong laﬁhmmmamnes _ ==
dity of innovaton Catanwpon Uman Development Project y “!-m! |
[TEery

Figure 2 Primary and Secondary Study Areas
Source:  Wollongong City Council
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Figure 3

Horsley Study Area
Source: Ethos Urban, aligning with ABS Statistical Area Level 1s

There are three important methodological clarifications:

* Community infrastructure outside the study area is considered in this study when it has a catchment that
includes the WDURA, as shown above. There is qualitative appraisal of reliance by WDURA residents on social
infrastructure outside of the catchment.

The established suburb of Horsley has been included as a separate secondary study area in this study. This is
to ensure alignment with existing frameworks and demographic data, reflecting Horsley’s status as an existing
excludes the Horsley boundaries.

urban area. Stage 1/2, while geographically encompassing Horsley, has been assessed separately and

It is noted from the outset that the five stages are not sequential, and are used only as identifiers.

Ethos Urban | 2210779
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2.6 Existing social infrastructure frameworks for consideration

2.6.1 Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework

The Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework (SIPF) is a 10 year framework for long-term strategic
planning and management of Council’s social infrastructure. It aims to enable Wollongong City Council to deliver
‘high quality facilities that support service delivery and meets the needs and expectations of the Wollongong
community, in a way that is both economically and ecologically sustainable’."

Wollongong City Council recognises that ‘cohesive, active and involved communities are created when the right
kinds of spaces and places are available for people to come together’.

The framework guides elements of social infrastructure across the entire lifecycle, from guiding principles, to
hierarchy and typology of provision, and the role of council and innovative models for future delivery. Key points of
comparison are as follows:

* The SIPF is based on Bradshaw’s Taxonomy of Social Need, dividing community infrastructure need across
normative, comparative, felt, and expressed dimensions. These align broadly with the approach taken to this
assessment.

- Comparative: spatial analysis of the stages vis a vis broader Wollongong, and comparative demographic
analysis to determine particular community needs and to understand key social issues and trends.

- Normative: quantitative assessment, applying benchmark gap analysis to determine ideal provision rates for
social infrastructure in West Dapto.

- Felt: community consultation as part of the exhibition of the draft needs assessment and draft masterplan.
- Expressed: qualitative assessment of community use of existing community infrastructure.

* The SIPF recognises that Council’s role is not limited to the actual delivery of community infrastructure, but
rather extends to the planning and advocacy for social infrastructure to be delivered by state government and
private providers. This partnership approach to social infrastructure delivery is noted in the development of the
below typology.

* The SIPF outlines a set of guiding principles for community infrastructure. These principles align with best
practice community infrastructure planning, and are considered in the key findings and recommendations — as
well as in the masterplan.

* The SIPF outlines a hierarchy aligning with population size and geographic accessibility (see Figure 4). This
hierarchy is adopted in this study, as outlined in the typology below. It is noted that Regional and Sub-regional
facilities are not assessed in this study, given the lack of anticipated provision for these scales of infrastructure
in the WDURA.

* The SIPF identifies Gross Floor Area benchmarks for Foundation Social Infrastructure Facilities. These
benchmarks will be adopted to determine recommendations for GFA in the delivery of social infrastructure.

* The SIPF outlines key population trends and social infrastructure assessment outcomes by designated planning
area. Planning areas 7 (~stages 1-3) and 10 (~stages 4-5) align broadly with the WDURA. Key outcomes from
Council’s assessment for these study areas include:

- There is a gap in provision of a multi-purpose ‘District’ community centre, although noting the provision of a
centre in adjacent Dapto.

- Facilities in planning area 7 are well-utilised when observing data on the hours of hire. Data for stages 4
and 5 (Planning Area 10) showing a lack of utilisation is commensurate with a lack of existing population
and no current facilities.

- There is not a good level of non-Council social infrastructure and supporting infrastructure in the area.

- Stages 4 and 5 are geographically isolated and lack public transport connections, highlighting the
importance of access to local facilities in the area.

14 Places for People Social Infrastructure Planning Framework (2018), p. 5
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— The majority of facilities in West Dapto are small, older, stand-alone facilities.
- The majority of facilities in stages 1-3 are unlikely to have capacity to meet high levels of future demand.

- There will be a high proportion of young children in West Dapto, indicating a need for facilities, activities and
programs for young children and their carers. This is compounded by a high proportion of couples with
children and/or single parent households, driving a need for services and informal spaces for socialising
and play.

- High proportion of older people indicates a need for senior citizens’ services and spaces.

REGIONAL

SUB-REGIONAL

DISTRICT

SUB-DISTRICT

NEIGHBOURHOOD

Figure 4 Wollongong SIPF framework — hierarchy of social infrastructure and population
Source: Wollongong City Council
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2.6.2 West Dapto Open Space Design Manual

Design Principles of the design manual include:

*  Well-distributed network of open spaces: accessible, attractive and usable public spaces
* Design Flexibility: variety of uses, sufficient size and design flexibility

* Managing competing functions: flood and water management, traffic and road infrastructure and biodiversity
areas.

* Open space embellishment: planning for sustainable embellishments-cost, maintenance and user satisfaction
* Active and Passive split: allow for equal split

e CPTED principles: passive and active surveillance

* Connectivity: shared pathway/active transport network and connections to key places

e Urban Greening: quality and quantity tree canopy and vegetation management

* Conservation: bushlands and ecological corridors

* Amenity: social needs and embrace local landscape character

* Value: quality of infrastructure to minimise maintenance

The strategic principles of West Dapto Vision 2018 and West Dapto Design Manual outlines the standards for open
space planning around catchment distances in the future urban and residential areas to the open space.

Table 1 Current open space planning hierarchy (as identified in the West Dapto Open Space Design Manual)

Current Guidelines

Classification Size Catchment (radius)

Local Passive INFORMAL 0.5-2ha 400-600m

Neighbourhood Passive 2-4ha 2km

Local Active FORMAL 1-2ha 400-600m

Neighbourhood Active 3-5ha 2km

District Active 5-8ha Southern Ward of LGA
City Wide Active 8+ ha Facility to serve whole LGA

Source: West Dapto Open Space Design Manual
It is understood that the current open space hierarchy was developed through the NSW Recreation and Open

Space Planning Guidelines for Local Government (2010) and the recommendations of a report prepared by Elton
Consulting in 2007.
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2.7

Developing the social infrastructure typology for this study

A range of contemporary approaches and infrastructure types have been considered through this study — outlined
below.

27.

The way we plan public open space is changing. The Urban Green Infrastructure Policy
Greener Places (NSW) was released by the state government in 2017 and the Draft
Guidelines Open Space for Recreation were released late in 2018 by the NSW Government
Architect in 2018 for public review and discussion.

The Greener Places’® document aims to create a networked urban ecosystem of green space
that encompasses parks and open spaces to help create a healthier, more liveable and
resilient place to live. The policy advocates for green infrastructure to be considered as
essential infrastructure throughout the urban design process, from strategy to construction and

1 Open space planning — contemporary approaches

maintenance.

The objectives of the draft policy are:

To protect, conserve and enhance NSW’s network of green and open natural and cultural spaces

To secure a network of high quality, high performing and well-designed green space, establishing a crucial
component of urban infrastructure to address the environmental challenges of the twenty-first century

To promote healthy living, encouraging physical activity, social cohesion, and enhancing wellbeing by providing
liveable places for the NSW community

To create a more strategic approach to planning for Green Infrastructure, encouraging early and integrated
investment through statutory planning

To deliver better tools for the delivery of Green Infrastructure across NSW.

The Draft Greener Places Design Guide contains three manuals/ tool kits that support the Greener Places policy;
one being the Open Space for Recreation Guide which proposes a new framework for planning.

This guide has informed the WDURA Needs Assessment of Public Open Space and has provided significant
guidance on the planning principles and performance criteria used for open space planning in particular.

In summary it advocates:

A shift in focus from coarse measures such as hectares per 1000 to a performance approach combining a
number of measures.

An emphasis on the recreation opportunity outcomes required and defining the spaces needed to support these.

A recognition that existing parks have a capacity and can only accommodate so much use before additional
land is needed.

Increased multiple use of open space and public spaces such as those within schools

The Guide details a range of performance criteria that guide successful planning and delivery. It outlines six
core performance criteria for consideration when planning for open space:

- Accessibility and Connectivity - Ease of access is critical for the community to be able to enjoy and use
public open space and recreation facilities.

- Distribution - The ability of residents to gain access to public open space within an easy walk from home,
workplaces, and schools is an important factor for quality of life. The geographic distribution of open space
is a key access and equity issue for the community.

5 Source:
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- Size and Shape - Size and shape of open space has a direct bearing on the capacity of that open space to
meet and accommodate recreation activities and needs.

- Quantity - In low- and high-density areas, good provision of public open space is essential to compensate
for the lack of private open space to support active living and contribute to a more liveable neighbourhood.

- Quality - The quality of design and ongoing maintenance and management is critical to attracting use and
activating the open space network.

- Diversity - The range of open space setting types within an urban area will determine the diversity of
recreation opportunity for communities.

2.7.2 Cultural infrastructure types

The following typology adapts — for social infrastructure in the built environment — the typology used in the Cultural
Infrastructure Plan 2025+ and the City of Sydney commissioned Western Sydney University report Mapping
Culture: Venues and infrastructure in the City of Sydney (2016). The typology is as follows:

* Practice: cultural infrastructure for professional creative practice and art form development, such as rehearsal
rooms, artist studios, workshop spaces, and makers spaces

* Presentation: Cultural venues and infrastructure for audiences or spectatorship

* Participation: Cultural infrastructure for active participation that is centred on local communities. This includes
any spaces which provide the forum for generating culture specific to the local community, and may include
such venues as community centres, Aboriginal Cultural Centres, local libraries, and local history museums.

It is noted that there is some cross-over between cultural and general local community infrastructure under this
typology, namely:

* Libraries are common venues for the local community to participate in culture

* Local community facilities are often relevant for both generating local participation in culture and in its
presentation

* Open space has been extensively noted in the source typologies as relevant in the public presentation of
culture, including through outdoor event spaces and public art.

While some forms of cultural infrastructure can be audited quantitatively, it is important for these spaces to be
understood as dynamic processes. Here, the typology should be applied as a guide only, considering the
peculiarities of cultural generation in a locality.

Section 6.7 outlines in further detail some of the emerging trends in cultural infrastructure planning.

2.7.3 Specialised community spaces

The audit and benchmarking of specialised spaces, for example youth or seniors friendly spaces, recognises that
general audits of community space fails to recognise the particular needs of certain demographics within that
community. The inclusion of these spaces within the typology recognises these needs, and any quantitatively or
qualitatively understood gaps in their provision can be specifically addressed.

Although often these spaces are provided within larger multipurpose community centres, or integrated with other
facilities such as open space or cultural centres — this typology recognises that these spaces must be understood as

distinct community needs from the outset.

A further explanation for the rationale behind specialised community spaces is provided for in the research on age-
specific community infrastructure planning (Section 6.2).
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31 Community and cultural infrastructure types

The community infrastructure typology shown below has been selected to be applied in the quantitative assessment
that forms the core of this study. This represents a range of infrastructure essential to social sustainability in growth
areas.

It is noted that these typologies were selected for general assessment and analysis to inform future discussions
relating to gaps with key stakeholders. It is not anticipated that Council will be suitable to deliver on every typology
identified. Many of these typologies will be addressed by state government agencies and private delivery. The role
of council in this context therefore differs — ranging from direct delivery, partner, and advocate for provision.

3.1.1  Guiding principles

The following guiding principles have been identified based on best practice community infrastructure planning. It is
noted that the language and terminology of these principles aligns closely with Council’s Social infrastructure
Planning Framework (see Section 2.6.1). These guiding principles will direct the analysis and recommendations
arising from this study. Some of the underlying research and trends for these principles are identified in Section 6.0.

1. Holistic — consideration of the whole lifecycle of community infrastructure, aligning hard and soft infrastructure
Strategic — co-location of social infrastructure with other facilities and activity centres

Fit for purpose — flexible, adaptable spaces; prioritising multipurpose facilities and encouraging shared use
Equitable — accessible, inclusive and culturally appropriate, including age-friendly and child-friendly design

Quality — contributing to place-making and community identity, and achieving innovative models

@ o M 0 b

Sustainable — social infrastructure will be ecologically, socially, and financially sustainable over generations

3.1.2 Study catchments

The catchments applied to this study have been chosen to align with the Wollongong Social infrastructure Planning
Framework. It is noted that regional scale infrastructure has not been assessed quantitatively in this study. The
hierarchy applied in this study is outlined in Table 2.

Table 2 Catchments applied to this study

Hierarchy Level Population catchment Geographic catchment
District 30,000-50,000 residents 4-10 km radius
Sub-District 20,000-30,000 residents ‘ 3-4 km radius

Local 5,000-20,000 residents 1-3 km radius
Neighbourhood 1,000-5,000 residents ‘ <1km radius

Source: Wollongong City Council SIPF
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Table 3 Community infrastructure typology

Infrastructure category Typology Description Notes Hierarchy Geographic catchment
(Wollongong SIPF) (adapted from
Wollongong SIPF)

o ) . Hubs based around libraries Sub-district 3-4km
Sub-district multipurpose community X .
and/or other services, to include
centre L
some specialised spaces.
Library space (standalone or Typically serve as anchors for Sub-district 3-4km
combined) hubs.
. Neighbourhood multipurpose Smaller hubs to include Neighbourhood <1km
General community : . )
s community centre multipurpose rooms with
facilities : )
potential for some service
provision and specialised
spaces.
Non-council bookable space This typology captures those n/a n/a
private spaces which provide for
local community meeting needs
Youth-friendly These are lower-order youth Local 1-3km
space spaces that are likely to be
Youth pased ata ce_ntre or
incorporated into open space.
Youth centre Higher-order youth services hub. District 4-10km
Seniors space Opportunities to provide n/a n/a
these will be addressed in
Specialised community relation to community
facility centres
Community Sheds and Gardens ‘ n/a ‘ n/a
Co-working/ business incubator n/a n/a
spaces
Aboriginal community space ‘ District 4-10km
Places of worship ‘ Local 1-3km
Child care places ‘ Neighbourhood ‘ <1km
Education and Early Government primary school ‘ Local ‘ 1-3km
Years
Government high school ‘ Sub-district 3-4km
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Local community Consider integrated within Local 1-3km
practice space community facilities
Practice (incl. | Geperal This assumes that higher n/a n/a
studio/workshop | g, ajitative order (regional/ sub-
space) assessment regional) arts and cultural
facilities are provided
elsewhere in Wollongong.
Creative and cultural District n/a n/a
facilities presentation
Presentation (incl. | facilities
performance and
exhibition spaces) | Local Local 1-3km
presentation
spaces
Participation (local cultural Neighbourhood <1km
participation, incl. through public art
and local heritage programs)
Health Hub These typically deliver primary | This assumes higher-order | District 4-10km
care services and some allied/ | (regional/sub-regional)
outreach services such as facilities are provided
mental health, drug and alcohol | elsewhere in Wollongong
Health & wellbeing support.
Local Medical centre ‘ Local ‘ 1-3km
General Practitioner (GP) ‘ Neighbourhood ‘ <1km
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3.2 Open space and recreation

This section provides a revised approach to the public open space provision in WDURA based on research and
analysis. It strives to achieve optimal community recreation outcomes that will contribute to positive long term public
health outcomes.

An overarching objective of the framework is to:

3.2.1 Guiding principles

1. Country First — Acknowledging the rich and diverse history as well as the unique landscape character of
WDURA. A place-based approach will be central to planning and design of the public open space network.

2. Local Character and Heritage Conservation - Ensuring public open spaces reflect, create and enhance local
character of the various neighbourhoods and communities of WDURA.

3. Equitable, Accessible and Diverse - Ensuring all residents of WDURA are within walking access to functional
public open space. Open space and recreation facilities are equitably distributed, providing a diverse range of
recreation opportunities that embed universal design outcomes.

4. Quality and Capacity — Public open spaces in WDURA are to be of a high standard and ensure sufficient
capacity for organised and informal open space uses. The provision of public open spaces will be integrated
with the urban environment, connected to active transport and green space networks. Public open space will
maximise opportunities for recreation by ensuring sufficient land area and land quality to accommodate multiple-
use and changing community and activity demands over time.

5. Resilient and Sustainable —Public open spaces and recreation facilities in WDURA will aim to incorporate best
practices in environmentally sustainable design and enable efficient ongoing asset management. Public Open
Spaces should be located and designed to be resilient to the impacts of a changing climate while providing for
multiple use open space that supports Council’s sustainability and resilience initiatives.

3.2.2 Performance based approach to Public Open Space in WDURA

Based on assessment of the existing framework, review of the latest industry guidelines and experience of similar
release areas across NSW, this proposed new draft public open space framework seeks to:

1. Simplify the number of levels in the hierarchy of provision to encourage more effective provision with an
emphasis on capacity and better return on investment along with meeting future provision needs

2. Provide the basis for a performance-based criteria to ensure equitable distribution of and access to functional
public open space as well as effective integration and co-location of recreation facilities suitable within hierarchy
levels

3. Ensure sufficient capacity to accommodate use and acknowledging the nexus with land quality and suitability —
including the development of performance criteria to ensure land is “fit for purpose’ and that planning to meet
demand considers the functional area for recreation and sport as a subset of the overall open space estate
which includes land with multiple other functions'® or ‘primary purposes’.

4. Outline indicative activations to ensure diversity of recreation is achieved
5. Provide flexibility and adaptability to respond to changing demographic and participation trends.

6. Ensure deliverability through infrastructure investment and development which delivers sustainable and flexible
resources that are affordable to develop and efficient to maintain.

16 Which generally could include drainage corridors, stormwater basins, waterways, powerline easements, buffer corridors, etc in their gross area calculation.
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Table4 Proposed open space framework for West Dapto

Performance Local Park Linear Parks / Open District - Recreation District - Sport Urban Release Area Wide /

Criteria Space corridors Destination Parks

Size, Indicative area: 0.5-1.5ha Indicative area: subject to | Indicative area: 3-5ha Indicative area: 5-10+ ha Indicative area: 15+ ha

Shape and SIZE: the future green and blue | SIZE: Minimum functional area of | SIZE: Min-5ha SIZE: Min-15ha

Distribution Min size- 0.5ha with 100% net | 9rid- 2ha Net Functional area: 70% of total area Net Functional area: 60% of total area

functional area.

Preferred size-1ha with 80%
net functional area.

Max size- 1.5ha with 60% net
functional area **

SHAPE: No side of the park to
be less than 15m

Distribution: 400-600m
walking catchment.

5-7 min walking distance from
residential areas (NOTE:
walking time is based on
available/planned active
transport infrastructure i.e.
footpaths, shared paths, etc.)
Road frontage: min 50% (i.e.
at least 2 sides of the park
shape)

Connectivity: Barrier free
connectivity to the surrounding
street network, open space
network and residential areas

NOTE: Watercourses are
acceptable as linear open
space corridors. These
will primarily serve as
connection corridors.
SIZE: Watercourses- Min
10-50m for each side of
watercourses in line with
Wollongong-DCP-2009-
Chapter-E23-Riparian-
Land-Management.
Powerline easements-
within 30m

Net Functional area: N/A
SHAPE: No entry to be
less than 10m

Road Frontage: Min 25%
NOTE: No section of road
frontage less

than 50 m and gaps
between road frontage or
connection to other public
spaces no greater than
100m

Connectivity: Connectivity
to residential street
network, active transport
corridors

Net Functional area: 60% of total
area

SHAPE: min width-150m (to allow
for proper orientation of fields)
Distribution: 1.5-2.5km radius
catchment

Approx. 20-25min walking
distance and drive time of 10min
from residential areas.

Road frontage: min 50% (i.e. at
least 2 sides of the park shape)
Connectivity: Connectivity to
residential street network, active
transport corridors, public
transport and local centres

SHAPE: min width-150m (to allow for
proper orientation of fields-min 2 fields)
Distribution: 1.5-2.5km radius catchment
Approx. 20-25min walking distance and
drive time of 10min from residential
areas.

Road frontage: min 50% (i.e. at least 2
sides of the park shape)

Connectivity: Connectivity to residential
street network, active transport corridors,
public transport-buses and local centres

SHAPE: min width-150-200m (to allow
for proper orientation of fields-min 2
fields)

Distribution: One centrally located to the
release area with an approx. 15min
drive time

Road frontage: min 50% (i.e. at least 2
sides of the park shape)

Connectivity: Connectivity to broader
street network, active transport
corridors, public transport-trains and
buses and local centres

**- Net Functional Area is defined as the total area within an open space/park used for recreational activities like playground, kick-a-bout area, sportsgrounds, etc. Net functional area is exclusive of
constrained land.
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Performance Local Park Linear Parks / Open District - Recreation District - Sport Urban Release Area Wide /

Criteria Space corridors Destination Parks

Land Quality | Slope and Topography- no Slope and Topography: Slope and Topography: - no more | Slope and Topography: Playing field Slope and Topography: Playing field
and more than 20% of the area Watercourse than 20% of the area with slope | areas are to be on one level (not tiered) | areas are to be on one level (not tiered)
Land with slope greater than 1:10 embankments greater than 1:10 (where 1 is to allow for maximum flexibility. The to allow for maximum flexibility. The
suitability (where 1 is vertical length and | Hazards and Constraints: | vertical length and 10 is playing surface should be no steeper playing surface should be no steeper

10 is horizontal length)
Hazards and Constraints
(excluded from Public Open
Space calculation): powerline
easements, drainage corridors
Flood prone land-

- For substantial building
infrastructure like clubhouse:
1% AEP and above

- Other infrastructure related
to park activation may be
located in areas within: 1-5%
AEP provided the floor levels
of these facilities are above
5% AEP + freeboard.

- Location of parks in flood
zones: Local Park preferably
located outside 1% AEP i.e.
flood free land (considering
everyday use of the Park)
Co-location with stormwater
infrastructure: Preferably
located separate to detention
basins. Detention basin can
form part of open spaces with
functional land area greater
than 1ha.

Barriers: road and railway
corridors, waterways and
drains, etc.

Visibility from street level
Safer Design Principles: blind
spots, high vegetation cover,
low surveillance areas, etc.
Solar Access: at least 3 hours
of sunlight across 75% or
more of the area, on the winter
solstice - 21 June.

Universal accessibility

drainage corridors, loose
soil, etc.

Flood prone land-
Infrastructure related to
park activation (like toilets,
kiosks) may be located in
areas within: 1-5% AEP
provided the floor levels of
these facilities are above
5% AEP + freeboard.

Consider flood resilient
materials in amenities
buildings that are subject
to flooding.

Barriers: waterways and
drains, flood detention
basins, etc.

Safer Design Principles:
high vegetation cover, low
surveillance areas, etc.
Solar access (where
possible) and lighting
Universal accessibility
(where possible)

horizontal length)

Hazards and Constraints
(excluded from Public Open
Space calculation): powerline
easements, drainage corridors,
etc.

Flood prone land-1% AEP and
above for substantial building
infrastructure like clubhouse.
Other infrastructure related to
park activation (like toilets,
kiosks) may be located in areas
within 1% AEP or high flood
frequency for constrained sites.

Consider flood resilient materials
in amenities buildings that are
subject to flooding.

Co-location with stormwater
infrastructure: District Parks can
be co-located with detention
basins to allow dual functions.
Barriers: road and railway
corridors, waterways and drains,
flood detention basins, etc.
Safer Design Principles: blind
spots, high vegetation cover, low
surveillance areas, etc.

Buffers: adjacent land use, noise
impacts

Solar Access: at least 3 hours of
sunlight across 75% or more of
the area, on the winter solstice -
21 June.

Universal accessibility

than 1:100 (where 1 is vertical length and
100 is horizontal length) along the line of
play and 1:50 (where 1 is vertical length
and 50 is horizontal length) across the
line of play.

Hazards and Constraints (excluded from
Public Open Space calculation):
powerline easements, drainage corridors,
flood prone land, etc.

Flood prone land-

- For substantial building infrastructure
like clubhouse: 1% AEP and above

- Other infrastructure related to park
activation (like toilets, kiosks) may be
located in areas within: 1-5% AEP
provided the floor levels of these facilities
are above 5% AEP + freeboard.

- Playing Fields: 5% AEP and 10% AEP
where land is highly constrained.

Consider flood resilient materials in
amenities buildings that are subject to
flooding.

Co-location with stormwater: District
Sport can be co-located with detention
basins to allow dual functions, preferably
with functional land area greater than
2ha.

Barriers: road and railway corridors,
waterways and drains, flood detention
basins, etc.

Safer Design Principles: blind spots, high
vegetation cover, low surveillance areas,
etc.

Buffers: adjacent land use, noise impacts
Solar Access: at least 3 hours of sunlight
across 75% or more of the area, on the
winter solstice - 21 June.

Universal accessibility

than 1:100 (where 1 is vertical length
and 100 is horizontal length) along the
line of play and 1:50 (where 1 is vertical
length and 50 is horizontal length)
across the line of play.

Hazards and Constraints (excluded
from Public Open Space calculation):
powerline easements, drainage
corridors, flood prone land, etc.

Flood prone land-

- For substantial building infrastructure
like clubhouse: 1% AEP and above

- Other infrastructure related to park
activation (like toilets, kiosks) may be
located in areas within: 1-5% AEP
provided the floor levels of these
facilities are above 5% AEP +
freeboard.

- Playing Fields: 5% AEP and 10% AEP
where land is highly constrained.

Consider flood resilient materials in
amenities buildings that are subject to
flooding.

Co-location with stormwater: Detention
basin can form part of open spaces with
functional land area greater than 2ha.
Barriers: road and railway corridors,
waterways and drains, flood detention
basins, etc.

Safer Design Principles: blind spots,
high vegetation cover, low surveillance
areas, etc..

Buffers: adjacent land use, noise
impacts

Solar Access: at least 3 hours of
sunlight across 75% or more of the
area, on the winter solstice - 21 June.
Universal accessibility
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Performance Local Park Linear Parks / Open District - Recreation District - Sport Urban Release Area Wide /

Criteria Space corridors Destination Parks

Site Potential Activation and Potential Activation and Potential Activation and Potential Activation and Infrastructure: Potential Activation and Infrastructure:

Infrastructure | Infrastructure: Infrastructure: Infrastructure: Formal playing fields-multipurpose (min 2 | Integration of formal sports servicing
Various play including Public Art Large inclusive play with built x playing fields) with drainage and higher level of play (inclusive of fields

intergenerational play, nature-
based play and sensory play
with built shade

Kick-a-bout area

Small sided multi-purpose
courts

Outdoor fitness station
Covered Seating (natural or
shading device)

Picnic tables and BBQ
(covered)

General waste and recycling
Bin

Informal Covered Seating
(natural shade)

Picnic tables and BBQ
(covered)

General waste and
recycling Bin

Shared ways (min 3m
wide)

Wayfinding Signage
Lighting

shade

Youth Spaces incorporating skate
facilities, multi-purpose courts
(inclusive of basketball)

Public Art features embedded in
recreation elements

Outdoor fitness station (various
levels)

Public Toilets/amenities

Fenced Off-leash Dog Park (align
with WCC guidelines)

Covered Seating (natural or
shading device)

irrigation

Multi-purpose courts (min 4 courts)
including skate opportunities

Spectator seating

Public toilet/Amenities
Clubhouse-toilets, gender equitable
change rooms, storage and canteen
Sports lighting

Local Playground with seating and built
shade

Co-location with Community and cultural
facilities

Public Art features embedded in

and courts)

Playing fields to be inclusive of drainage
and irrigation

Spectator seating

Off-leash Dog Park (align with WCC
guidelines)

Clubhouse-toilets, gender equitable
change rooms, storage and canteen
Sports lighting

Large Destination Play with potential
integration of nature play and/or water
play with built shade

Youth spaces for various activities

Pathways Picnic tables and BBQ (covered) | recreation elements Public toilet/Amenities
Parking (on-street if needed) General waste and recycling Bin | Informal Seating (natural shade) Co-location with Community and
Signage Shared ways-min 3m wide Picnic tables and BBQ (covered) cultural facilities
Lighting Walk and Bike trail- min 3m wide | General waste and recycling Bin Public Art features embedded in
Landscaping-vegetation Learn to ride Walk and Bike trail network- min 3m wide | jnfrastructure elements
hierarchy Parking Parking Informal Seating (natural shade)
Bubb'ler/ tap Signage Signage Picnic tables and BBQ (covered)
Fencing Lighting . Lighting o General waste and recycling Bin
Landscaping-vegetation Landscaping-vegetation hierarchy Trail based activities
hierarchy, landscaped gardens Bubb‘Ier/ tap Other facilities (pump track, learn to
Bubbler/ tap Fencing i ] ride, BMX, skate park, etc)
Fencing Fenced Off-leash Dog Park (align with Parking
WCC guidelines) Signage
Lighting
Landscaping-vegetation hierarchy,
landscaped gardens, large plantations
(native flowering trees as per Council's
Tree Canopy Guidelines)
Bubbler/ tap
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Performance Local Park Linear Parks / Open District - Recreation District - Sport Urban Release Area Wide /
Criteria Space corridors Destination Parks
Diversity and | Provision for Group Use Activation of waterway Provision for Group Use Number of activations - Uses/ activities Number of activations - Uses/ activities
Opportunity | Provision for Social events corridors and green links, | Provision for Social events Round the year activation Round the year activation
Multiple activations - Uses/ green connection between | Supports multiple age groups Supports multiple age groups and Sporting Fields, courts, facilities
activities the escarpment and Lake | Multiple activations - Uses/ interests Multiple sport options
Play equipment to suit the lllawarra activities Sporting Fields, courts, facilities Multi-generational play opportunities
local demographic A web of links across the | Multi-generational play Opportunity for local clubs More recreation facilities suitable to all
Supporting Other facilities West Dapto Stages opportunity Multiple sport options age groups
(bicycle circuit, walk and bike | Provides opportunity for Supporting Other facilities Opportunity to develop and establish a Destination place
trails) regional connectivity (bicycle circuit, walk and bike shared way connectivity network between Provision for cultural and main events
Park that is walkable on an Multiple bush trail options | trails) the Public Open Space typologies. Increased average Length of Stay
everyday basis- play for with connectivity to Provides different recreation Opportunity to develop and establish a
toddlers, walk/stroll, ride to the | residential areas options t_o the commymty shared way connectivity network
park, etc. Urban greening Co-location of activities between the Public Open Space
Opportunity to develop and opportunities Increased average length of stay typologies.
establish a shared way Increased tree canopy Opportunity to develop and
connectivity network between | OPportunity across all establish a shared way
the Public Open Space stages. connectivity network between the
typologies. Opportunity to develop Public Open Space typologies.
shared way/pathway
connectivity between
linear open space
corridors, watercourses
and the broader Public
Open Space network.
Quantity 0.96ha/1,000 Placed based approach 0.26 ha/1,000 1.3ha /1,000 0.26ha/1,000

Requirements

Based on 55 local parks at
1ha each. Please NOTE the
total number of parks is a
guiding number to meet the
recreational needs of the
projected population. Rather
than a fixed number maybe a
range of 35-55 local parks at
1ha/park.

To be tested spatially in terms
of access

Key source of the trail
park network

Will complement
functional open space
supply

Based on five sites at 3ha each

Based on 1 field to 2,015 people
(Western District Average)

14 sportsgrounds providing 28 fields

14 sportsgrounds x 5ha (note that a mix
of sportsground sizes to be provided. i.e.
Some sites at 5ha, others at 10ha etc)
Additional 3.36ha for tennis courts,
netball courts including supporting
infrastructure. This assumes courts will
be co-located with sportsgrounds

Based on one site in West Dapto at
15ha
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NOTE: Development of quantity benchmarks

The proposed Public Open Space Framework for WDURA is developed using a streamlined hierarchy combined
with a range of performance criteria, as noted in table 4 of Section 3.2.2. The quantity benchmarks developed for
the provision of public open space across WDURA have considered benchmarks from other Councils relative to the
scope of WDURA alongside the Draft Greener Places Design Guide. The size/area recommendations for district
recreation, district sport and city-wide park are conscious of the varied availability of land that is fit for purpose and
also to ensure that they have the capacity to facilitate potential co-location of recreation facilities.

3.2.3 A note on constrained lands

Constrained lands are often not suitable for other land use purposes such as housing, retail etc and can be proposed
as public open space. Depending on the nature of constraints and the topography of the land, these spaces can be
poor quality, have limited functionality and effectively be unusable for public recreation.

The inclusion of constrained land should not form part of the public open space calculations if it cannot deliver
functional recreation outcomes. Whilst these areas may be zoned as public open space, they are to be in addition to
minimum requirements.

Where there is demonstrated capacity for meaningful public open space access within a dual-purpose site- only the
proportion of functional space should be considered towards public open space provision.

Below are examples of constrained land generally unsuitable for inclusion in the public open space (public parks)
network. This includes land that is:

Known or suspected to be contaminated.

Under high-voltage powerlines or within 50m of the line easement.

Where community use is constrained by easements and other infrastructure functions.
Constrained by proximity to noxious uses.

High odour areas associated with waste management and water management facilities.
Highly vegetated riparian corridors that are unable to accommodate recreation use.
Unfavourable topography including slope gradients larger than 1:5 (20%).

Areas of cultural significance where public use is inappropriate or insensitive.

Waterways, drainage swales and stormwater treatments such as gross pollutant traps and retention systems.
Multiple use corridors may be appropriate if design meets suitable criteria for dual or multiple use for drainage
open space.

Spaces that are not able to comply with minimum size and safety criteria including passive surveillance
requirements as outlined above.

Active Cemeteries, in particular grave plots and buildings. Such sites can provide opportunities for informal use
in addition to minimum public open space requirements. Cemeteries can provide landscape treatment
opportunities including native and exotic tree species.
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PART B: CONTEXTUAL ANALYSIS
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41 Introduction to the West Dapto Community

West Dapto is a growth area located in Wollongong’s southwest, approximately 12km from the Wollongong CBD
and 80km from the Sydney CBD. Previously rural/agricultural land, development of the area began in 1993 with the
release of 1,400 lots in Horsley, including the Highcroft Estate. West Dapto has a current population of
approximately 14,000 residents (2021).

The retail needs of residents are serviced by the Dapto Town Centre located on Bong Bong Road, across the rail
line and Princes Highway. Access to the Wollongong CBD is provided by rail (via Dapto Station), and by road via
Princes Highway and Princess Motorway, both major north-south arterial roads. In the future, it is expected that
retail and service needs of residents in West Dapto will be increasingly met by the future town centres in the release
area.

This section aims to understand the existing West Dapto community, including its particular needs to inform
qualitative inputs to the social infrastructure gap analysis.

NB. Demographic components of this assessment rely on 2016 census data, and are updated using other
official data sources. The existing community profile is based on the boundary of the WDURA outlined in
the West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020 - including all stages and the existing suburb of Horsley.

4.2 Existing community profile

A summary of demographic characteristics of the existing West Dapto community is presented in Table 5 and
compared against the municipality and Greater Sydney. This information is largely sourced from the 2016 ABS
Census, the National Skills Commission Small Area Labour Market Information, and the ABS Regional Population.

Despite the relative age of existing development, West Dapto’s existing community profile (2016) is consistent with
a typical greenfield development area, with larger households, a high proportion of couple families, a younger
population, and a low proportion of medium and high-density dwellings. Notably, despite having significantly higher
incomes and similar mortgage repayments, mortgage stress in West Dapto is higher than the City of Wollongong.
This suggests a high proportion of households with incomes below the median (income) have repayments close-to
or above the median (repayment).
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WDURA Community Snapshot

Demographic trends and patterns provide an
indication of the existing demographic profile
and will inform future trends and needs.

Adaptable, high quality and accessible social
infrastructure will be critical in supporting the
high growth trends and meeting the changing
demographic needs of the community.

Statistics are sources from the Australian
Bureau of Statistics, Census of Population and
Housing, 2016 (Usual residence data) which
have been compiled and presented in by .id and
the Department of Planning and Environment
Population Projections.

14,000

Estimated Resident Population
in WDURA (2021)

34

In WDURA

0 years

1-2 years
3-4 years
5-6 years
7-11 years
12-17 years

$1,824

Per week per household

15%

Of residents born
overseas

18-24 years
25-34 years
35-49 years
50-59 years
60-69 years
70-84 years

85 years and over

3%
3%
3%
8%
10%
8%
13%
23%
12%
8%
6%

3.1

Lone person Couples with Couples without  One parent Group

Persons per household households children
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Table 5 WDURA Community Profile
Indicator WDURA City of Wollongong Greater Sydney
Resident Population -
(2020) 14,000 219,800 5.4 million
A_verage household 34 26 28
size
Medium and high- @ o o
density dwellings 3.2% 29.4% 42.3%
Lone person 12.1% 25.5% 21.7%
households
Median age 34 39 36
Aboriginal And
Torres Strait Islander 2.4% 2.6% 1.4%
Population
Language other than
English spoken at 11.1% 17.7% 37.5%
home
Overseas born 15.4% 22.9% 38.1%

Top 3 countries of
birth (other than
Australia)

England (4.9%)

England (4.2%)

China (5.0%)

New Zealand (1.0%)

China (1.6%)

England (3.4%)

FYROM* (0.9%)

FYROM* (1.5%)

India (2.9%)

Households
experiencing housing
stress

Mortgage (10.9%)

Mortgage (6.3%)

Mortgage (8.4%)

Rent (6.0%)

Rent (13.0%)

Rent (14.2%)

Median weekly

household income $1.824 $1,342 $1,773
Ll 25.2% 39.2% 53.7%
qualification

Top 3 occupations

Clerical/admin. workers (17.6%)

Professionals (23.2%)

Professionals (26.3%)

Technicians/ trades workers
(16.0%)

Technicians/trades workers

(14.8%)

Clerical/admin. workers (14.6%)

Clerical/ admin. workers

H 0, 0,
Professionals (15.4%) (13.6%) Managers (13.7%)
Unemployment rate 0 o ®
(Sep 2021) 3.1% 5.5% 5.7%
Source: ABS, Census of Population and Housing, 2016; National Skills Commission, Small Area Labour Market Information, 2021; ABS,
Regional Population; Ethos Urban
Note: *FYROM - Former Yugoslav Republic of Macedonia
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4.3 Social issues and trends

Wollongong LGA experiences a relatively high level of disadvantage compared to Greater lllawarra and New South
Wales, scoring an average of 989 on the SEIFA Index of Disadvantage in 2016. Within that, Ward 3 (containing
West Dapto) scores even lower at 938.3 for the same year, signalling a substantial degree of socio-economic
disadvantage. Aside from this, Ward 3 also contains a much higher proportion of residents living in social housing
(8.3%) compared to Regional NSW.

While there is variation in SEIFA scores across the Council, the presence of relative disadvantage in some areas —
particularly in proximity to the WDURA — has implications for the delivery of social infrastructure. For these reasons,
delivery of social infrastructure must account for this disadvantage by enabling equitable access through
affordability and proximity to public and active transport.

4.3.1 Housing affordability and rising costs of living

Housing is a central component of productive, healthy, and meaningful lives, and a principle social determinant of
health and wellbeing.'” Cost of housing can form large ongoing expenses in household budgets. A survey done for
the Committee of Sydney identified housing as the biggest issue among residents in Greater Sydney, impacting
quality of life for many of them.'® The same survey revealed that rising cost of living is also a major issue for
residents. About a third of the respondents have frequently chosen to forego essential goods and services because
of the high cost of living, pointing to the challenge current residents face in addition to housing stress.

Housing affordability in Wollongong was identified as a challenge in the Housing and Affordable Housing Options
Paper (WCC, 2020). In Wollongong, house prices soared by 12% in 2021 and continues to climb as current supply
and expected development does not match rapidly increasing demand for regional housing. Land availability crisis
and increasing in-migration put pressure on housing supply that hikes up prices and further challenges housing
affordability.

7 Baker, Lester, Bentley & Beer (2016) Poor housing quality: Prevalence and health effects, Journal of Prevention & Intervention in the
Community
18 Life in Sydney 2022 (Ispos and Commission for Sydney, 2022)
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44 Contemporary trends in open space, recreation and sport

Consideration of emerging trends in open space and recreation is important when planning for the future of parks,
open spaces and recreation facilities. The most important considerations are:

* Changes in community preferences and participation patterns; and

* Changes in how parks, open spaces and recreation infrastructure is being planned and provided.

As identified by the Commonwealth Scientific and Industrial Research Organisation, six megatrends — an important
pattern of social, economic or environmental change - are likely to shape the Australian sports sector over the next
30 years:

* A perfect fit — Individualised sport and fitness activities are on the rise. People fit sport into their increasingly
busy and time-fragmented lifestyles to achieve personal health objectives.

* From extreme to mainstream — This megatrend captures the rise of lifestyle, adventure and alternative sports,
which are particularly popular with younger generations. These sports typically involve complex, advanced skills
and have some element of inherent danger and/ or thrill-seeking.

* More than sport — Governments, businesses and communities increasingly recognise the broader benefits of
sport. Sport can help achieve mental and physical health, crime prevention, social development and
international cooperation objectives.

* Everybody’s game — Australia and other countries of the Organisation for Economic Cooperation and
Development face an ageing population. This will change the types of sports we play and how we play them.

* New wealth, new talent — Population and income growth throughout Asia will create tougher competition and
new opportunities for Australia both on the sports field and in the sports business environment.

* Tracksuits to business suits — Market forces are likely to exert greater pressure on sport in the future. Loosely
organised community sports associations are likely to be replaced by organisations with corporate structures
and more formal governance systems in light of market pressures. The cost of participating in sport is also
rising, which is a participation barrier for many people.
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4.4.1 Drivers of participation and social trends

Sport Australia’s ‘Drivers of Participation’ outlines broader social trends and how these influence trends in sport and

active recreation participation and, subsequently, sport facility provision.

)

Share economy: Consumers are

instant gratification through the rise of
on-demand services built upen speed
and accessibility.

Virtualis reality: Consumers are

want to be a part of something and are
attracted to products that define them
and their lifestyle or community.

Experiences and personalisation:

(o]
LN -]
3 Tl

®—"  becoming less attached to the ownership Qj increasingly maoving online to connect, *& Consumers are increasingly seeking

of goods, and are more frequently renting deliver and access services, obtain experiences over products with an

or sharing services through peer-to-peer information, perform transactions, and expectation for these experiences to

platfarms. wark. meet individual needs and wants.
= Convenience is king: Consumers expect 20 Lifestyle and community: Consumers >y Holistic health: Consumers are
O] O Y

increasingly seeking out healthier
lifestyles with a focus on measuring and
maintaining optimal physical and mental
health.

These social trends translate to the following current sport trends:

New technologies: Technology is having
a major influence on how spectators.
participants and home-viewers observe,
engage and consume sport.

Less time more options: Consumers
have less time to spend on sport and
recreation yet have a greater range of
options and opportunities to participate
in.

)

eSports: eSports s a significant
contributor to the sport sector with
approximately one-fifth of the world
actively playing vides games at a value
of $194m.

Adapted offerings: Sports are being
challenged to capture the interest and
involvement of diverse audience with

many developing and modifying products

to meet new consumer needs.

Sport to get fit Consumers are
increasingly engaging in modified sport
products designed to get fit whilst
participation rates in traditional
organised sports have declined.
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4.4.2 Social factors impacting sport and recreation participation

The last 10 years has seen some significant shifts in the social factors affecting sport and recreation participation.
These include:

A generally ageing population and growing population of active and financially independent retirees who readily
participate in outdoor recreation and travel.

Increasing densities in larger cities and increasing take up of medium and high density living for young couples
and families with young children.

Declining housing affordability pushing many aspiring homeowners and renters to urban fringes, greenfield
development fronts and regional areas.

Increased ‘seachange and treechange’ activity with lifestyle and affordability driving interstate migration (along
with employment).

Rapid change in employment structures with increased prevalence of part time work and rising participation in
the 24-hour economy. More than half of working Australians are now in part time or casual and insecure work.

High correlation between low socio-economic areas and worsening health outcomes due to lifestyle related
illness. This issue is driving an imperative to improve urban design outcomes to encourage more active
lifestyles and reduce social isolation and disadvantage.

Increasingly multi-cultural society. A greater variety of recreational activities reflecting a wide range of interests
is desired.

These shifting social factors are impacting on the sport and recreation landscape in various ways, including:

A higher demand for convenience focused offerings that can be undertaken at times that suit the individual.

Increased utilisation of public open space for social and recreation activities due to increasing densities and
reduced provision of private open space.

A greater number of offerings and adapted formats of sport to encourage ongoing participation.
A greater presence of commercial sport providers with convenience focused adapted offerings.
A shift away from traditional sporting seasons.

Declining volunteerism and changing sport governance structures.

Increased use of technology to access and facilitate participation in sport and physical activity. One in five
Australians (19%) use apps for tracking activity or training.

Facilities require to be multi-purpose and adaptable, providing flexibility in programming and use in response to
changing recreation demands.

4.4.3 National participation trends

Data insights provided by Sport Australia demonstrate that participation and physical activity has increased since
2001. The majority of this growth has occurred through non-sport physical activities such as walking and attending
the gym. This is shown in the graph below.

Participation rates

@ Sport related activities @Non-sport related activities

2%

58% 58%

57% 58%
Sport related activities = ¥
Both sport and non-sport related activities (blue)
Non-sport related activities =
non-sport related activities (blue;

2018 2019

Figure 15 Participation over time by type (Source: AusPlay)
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4.4.4 Changes in active recreation
Sport and physical activity are increasingly important to our health and wellbeing

In 2019 the National Heart Foundation of Australia released its third edition of the Blueprint for an Active Australia.
Some key evidence cited in this report includes:

* Heart disease remains the single leading cause of death in Australia

* Physical activity can significantly reduce heart disease risk and the burden of a range of other chronic diseases,
as well as improve mental health.

‘Nearly 6 in 10 adults, 3 quarters of seniors and over 8 in 10 children and young people are not
active enough for good heart health. This ranges Australia among the world’s most inactive
nations.’

Significant amount of research has provided insight into the importance of planning for active and healthy
communities. The availability of green spaces, including parks, playgrounds and streetscapes that are safe,
accessible, walkable and inviting are a key component of an environment that supports physically active lifestyles.

We need to have urban environments that make it easy and attractive to exercise as well as provide a range of
opportunities to enable activity. While it is important to promote the benefits of physical activity to children and
adults, there is a need to ensure that our parks can support and encourage physical activity for all ages, abilities,
genders, cultures and socio-economic groups.

NSW residents are changing how active they are and what they do for active recreation

Over the last three years in NSW AusPlay participation data has highlighted:

1. Walking (recreational) continues to be, by far, the most popular activity (43.3% in 2020). This is consistent with
previous trends.

2. Fitness/ Gym, Swimming, Athletics, Cycling, Football/ Soccer and Bushwalking have consistently rated as the
top seven activities since 2015.

Only minor changes in participation are evident between 2017 and 2019:

4. Since 2015 participation has increased slightly in eight of the top 10 activities, with the largest increases being
in Fitness/ Gym (14.8%) and Walking (42.8%).

4.4.5 AusPlay Sport and Physical Activity Participation Survey
Sport Australia conducts the AusPlay survey — a national survey to track the sporting behaviours and activities of
the Australian population.

Over the last three years in NSW, AusPlay participation data has highlighted the following for adult participation:

* The top five activities have remained stable for the past 4 years; these are walking, fitness/ gym, swimming,
athletics/ track (including jogging and running) & field and cycling
* Walking (recreational) continues to be by far the most popular activity. This is consistent with previous trends

* Participation has increased in 10 of the top 15 activities between 2017 and 2020, with the largest increase being
in fitness/ gym (14.3%).

Over the last three years in NSW, AusPlay participation data has highlighted the following for child participation:

* Swimming is consistently the most popular activity for NSW children (likely as a result of learn to swim
programs)

* Australian football and football/ soccer are significantly more popular among male children than females, while
the reverse is true for dancing (recreational), netball and gymnastics

* Participation has increased in six of the top 10 activities between 2017 and 2020, with the largest increase
being in swimming (15.9%).
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Pafticipants - Children Partidpation Rate - Children

1,106,640

Gender

73.9% T4.46%

Female  Male

Gender Share

Male
51.2%

T3.0%

74.2%

Age
Household Structure
0-4
Equal number of childre.. [NT88%N
5-5 | 88.2% Mature family (mostchil.. TEE%SN
S Yaunger family (most chil.. TGN
Female
48.8%
12-14
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Figure 18 Sport participation for Children in NSW
Source: AusPlay Data 2020/21
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4.4.6 Ausplay Results for Wollongong City Council

As show below, the AusPlay results for Wollongong participation across all forms of activities highlight the most
participated activities are walking, fithess/gym, swimming, running and cycling. This indicates a preference towards
conscience focused forms of participation where residents can choose a time and location to participate that suits
their individual preferences.

Walking (Recreational) = 35.5%
Fitness/Gym = 29.3%
Swimming = 23.2%
Running/Athletics = 15.9%
Cycling = 11.0%
Football/saccer = 10.0%

Surfing = 6.8%

Bush walking = 5.8%

Tennis = 4.8%

Golf = 4.6%

Figure 5 Top 10 most participated recreational activities in Wollongong City Council
Source: AusPlay Data 2020/21

AusPlay results for club-based participation in Wollongong indicates popularity in football, golf, tennis, Australian
rules football and rugby league.

Top activities for sports club participation
Football/soccer | 6.8%
Golf | 3.0%
Tennis | 2.4%
Australian football | 2.1%
Rugby league | 2.0%
Netball = 1.8%
Touch football | 1.8%
Swimming = 1.5%

Cricket | 1.5%

Figure 6 Top 10 club-based participation in Wollongong City Council
Source: AusPlay Data 2020/21
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4.4.7 Emerging sport participation trends — impact of COVID-19 on organised sport'®

The full impact of COVID-19 pandemic on the sporting industry is still emerging. However, an assessment of current
evidence provides some insights into how organised sport has been affected so far. Sport Australia has conducted
a brief assessment of the emerging trends impacting organised sport in Australia, to provide up to date insights, but
also to potentially guide a future participation focus. Understanding how Australians’ sporting habits have been
affected could provide helpful context in assessing a future focus for Sport Australia and the sport planning industry.

The three broad areas of interest and impact are:

* Physical Wellbeing
* Mental Wellbeing

* Financial Wellbeing

Physical wellbeing

The Emerging Sport Participation Trends-Impact of COVID-19 on Organised Sport report indicates:

* Decrease in young participation in organised sport: Increased participation costs, reduction in volunteers, and a
reduced sport development workforce have created more barriers affecting participation levels of young
Australians.

* Older Australians appear to have been more active during the pandemic and over a sustained period.

* Females have consistently been more active on purpose across both waves of the pandemic. In contrast, the
male data shows pronounced peaks and troughs. Women are more likely than men to participate in the types of
physical activity, such as walking for daily exercise, which were still possible during periods of lockdown.
Conversely, males play more organised sport, which was turned off and on throughout 2020.

* Aboriginal and Torres Islander People: During 2019 and 2020, an increase in physical activity was indicated in
the AusPlay survey.

Adults became more physically
active on purpose during COVID-19.
resulting in a real* increase in
frequent participation. This appears
to have been driven by women.

The pandemic also caused a
real* decrease in children’s
organised sport. This was largely
due to the restrictions placed on
community gatherings.

AT LEASTS AT LEAST7 il AT LEAST ONCE ATLEAST 3
TIMES PERWEEK  TIMES PER WEEK . 8 PER WEEK TIMES PER WEEK

* Statstically significant change year-on-year.

Figure 19 AusPlay 2021 - impact of the covid-19 pandemic

Under the cloud of COVID-19, Australians were about 3-5% more physically active during restrictions between April
and June 2020 (AusPlay, 2020), at a time when organised sport was not possible for public health reasons. When
considering which activities were the most popular for Australians, Figure 20 shows the prominence of non-
organised, recreational activities during 2020. While this is influenced by the fact these activities are also COVID-19

9 SportAus, October 2021, ‘Emerging Sport Participation Trends-Impacts of COVID19 on Organised Sport’
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safe, the trend towards these activities has been established even prior to the pandemic. Golf and tennis reported
growth during 2020 but this has been attributed to the social (while still socially distanced) element of the game.

J
e A S 3 2
Walking Running/jogging/ Cycling Bush walking Swimming
(recreational) athletics
Yoga Golf Tennis Fishing Mountain biking

[recreational)

Figure 20 Top Ten activities with increased participants 2020

Mental wellbeing

The pandemic has impacted the mental health of many Australians with numerous publications linking a decline in
mental health to declining levels of physical activity and increased sedentary behaviour. A 2021 online survey
sought to understand why and how physical activity and sedentary behaviour had changed because of the
pandemic, and how those changes impacted mental health. The survey reported:

Respondents were less physically active [aerobic activity, -11%; strength-based
activity, -30%) and more sedentary [+11%) during the pandemic as compared to

: g\/? Respondents had increased psychological stress [+22%) and brought on moderate
oo symptoms of anxiety and depression.

Respondents' whose mental health deteriorated the most were also the ones who
were least active.

The majority of respondents were unmotivated to exercise because they were too
anxious [;&916,.2.] lacked social support (+6%)], or had limited access to equipment [+23%)
or space L

This study demonstrates a direct link between mental health and physical activity and the value in remaining active
during periods of high stress.
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Financial wellbeing

* Paying for sport in the current financial climate could be a barrier for many Australians as the impact of COVID-
19 has affected disposable income and influences spending choices. With costs being an issue for many
Australians, this will likely impact paying for traditional organised sports participation. Combined with the
increasingly popular community trend towards free and lower cost outdoor and recreational physical activities,
organised sport participation is at risk of becoming a more discretional priority with many Australians.

e Sporting organisations primarily depend on membership income as a key source of revenue to fund ongoing
operations and support their workforce. With sport cancelled across Australia, this lack of revenue is impacting
sporting organisations at all levels and has placed the survival of some community sporting clubs in jeopardy.

Change will be easier for some sports than others due to many factors including resources, capability and possibly
even a readiness or desire to change. But, even with limited resources, a review of current participation offerings to
align with contemporary demand could build resilience and facilitate growth.

4.4.8 Active Kids Program

The NSW Active Kids Voucher provides up to two $100 vouchers per household for school aged children to help
with the costs of participating in sport. Results for Wollongong in 2019 (pre-Covid) are outlined below:

143,283 38,073

o)
0/ Female
0

Top Male Activities

Swimming Dance Soccer Gymnastics Netball Soccer Swimming Rugby league Basketball Oztag
Aclive Recreation Oztag Tennis Rugby league Martial aris Cricket Tennis Active Recreation Martial aris Gymnastics

F © P © & | r P F & U

Note: The dashboard may be repreduced in whele o

Figure 21 Active Kids Program in Wollongong for 2019 (pre-COVID)

subject la the inclusian o

Table 6 Top five participation activities in Wollongong City

Top Five Activities for Females Top Five Activities for Males
e Swimming e Soccer

e Dance e Swimming

e Soccer e Rugby League

e Gymnastics o Basketball

e Netball e Oztag
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5.1 Key strategic documents

A review of Council’s key strategic documents impacting the project highlights the following key ambitions and
drivers for delivering social infrastructure for this important area. Our work will closely reference and aim to deliver
on these ambitions as a guiding star throughout. It is noted that Council’s Places for People: Social Infrastructure
Planning Framework (2018) has been outlined in Section 2.6.1 above.

5.1.1 Wollongong Local Strategic Planning Statement (2020)

The Wollongong LSPS sets out the 20-year land use vision for the Wollongong LGA. The vision is designed to
guide land use decisions City-wide, being used for assessment of planning proposals and monitoring Council’s
implementation of State government plans. Key outcomes from this document with bearing on social infrastructure
include to:

*  Work with the community to deliver on their cultural and creative aspirations, unique identities, and needs.

e Build inclusive communities.

* Undertake recreation planning for aquatic and leisure facilities.

* Prioritise the provision of pedestrian/cycle paths along with the planning of key infrastructure along these routes.
* Provide community and recreational facilities.

This Study will help with meeting key strategies such as:

* 4.1.4 Social Infrastructure Planning Framework: to enable Council to deliver high quality facilities that support
service delivery and meet the needs and expectations of the Wollongong community, that is both economically
and ecologically sustainable.

* 4.1.6 Sportsground and Sporting Facilities Strategy: to increase sportsground capacity across the LGA

* 4.1.9 Public Toilets Strategy: assist Council in delivering effective and coordinated public toilet provision over
the next 10 years.

e 5.2.1 Providing improved tree canopy and vegetation cover for urban greening.

* 6.1.3 Urban Greening Strategy 2018 seeks to increase the quality and quantity of all vegetation and open green
space on all land types in an urban setting

5.1.2 Our Wollongong 2028: Community Strategic Plan (2019)

This Community Strategic Plan is a whole of community plan, in which all levels of government, business,
educational institutions, community groups and individuals have an important role. The Plan outlines the
community’s main priorities and aspirations for the future and includes strategies for how we will achieve them.

The plan includes the following overall Community Vision: From the mountains to the sea, we value and protect our
natural environment and we will be leaders in building an educated, creative and connected community.

The plan outlines a number of visions and goals with bearing on social infrastructure in this study, including that:

* Community assets are well-maintained and provided to meet the current and future needs of residents.

* Residents should have access to a variety of learning opportunities, timely and affordable medical services,
quality public open and recreational space, and spaces for cultural/creative expression and appreciation.

* Development is supported by integrated transport connections, as well as active transport routes such as
walking and cycling.

* The natural environment, including coastal areas and waterways is protected and enhanced.
* The sustainability of the urban environment is improved.

* Increase in physical fitness, mental health and emotional wellbeing of the residents.
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5.1.3 West Dapto Vision 2018

The West Dapto Vision (2018) reviews the 2008 Structure Plan for West Dapto, testing previous assumptions that
informed the plan. The vision recognises that, although the fundamental structure and outcome remains the same,
there has been some refinement based on improved data and understanding of the area’s opportunities and
constraints.

The Vision outlines a number of strategic planning principles, which will feed into the development and
implementation of the structure plan.
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Figure 7 West Dapto Vision 2018 — Structure and relationships of principles to planning tools

Source: Wollongong City Council
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The following table outlines how key principles are addressed in this report.

Table 7 West Dapto Vision — Planning Principles Appraisal
West Dapto planning principle How this is addressed in this Study

Transport An integrated transport system that caters for public transport, cars, pedestrians
and cyclists will be important in creating equitable access to social infrastructure
for residents of West Dapto.

Heritage conservation Heritage items and sites of Aboriginal Heritage Significance will be assessed
qualitatively when considering opportunities for cultural and creative infrastructure
in this study, and in the open space and recreation sections through identification
of potential opportunities.

Particularly, embedding local history and character in new communities (principle
3) is considered a key priority for cultural infrastructure delivery — and is
specifically assessed under the ‘local participation’ typology.

Open space and recreation principles An overarching framework with four inter-related principles is designed to achieve
the open space objective for the WDURA.

Community and Education Facilities These guiding principles are addressed generally through alignment with best
practice planning considerations for community facilities.

Town Centres The masterplan will outline the hierarchy of town centres, adhering to the
principles outlined in the West Dapto Vision. The town centres of West Dapto will
fill diverse roles, functions and mixed uses.

Accessibility (Principle 2) is addressed in the consideration of access to
neighbourhood community facilities within a 400-800m radius to homes.

The creation of diverse spaces (Principle 3) for people of all ages is addressed as
a key principle in the design of community facilities.

Housing The role that social infrastructure plays in creating affordable third spaces and
alleviating some of the pressure of housing unaffordability on residents is an
important consideration.

Employment To support local sustainable employment and attract industries, enterprises to
West Dapto. Innovative employment (principle 5) is addressed through the
consideration of enterprise and start-up hubs as a facet of community
infrastructure.

Water management To support sustainable water infrastructure, with particular relevance for the role
of some open spaces in the green-blue network.
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5.1.4 West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 identifies infrastructure requirements for West Dapto as a
result of the anticipated development and provides a framework for the equitable calculation, collection and
management of contributions.

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 indicates a five stage works schedule for West Dapto. Table
9 of the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 identifies a schedule for the provision and timeframe of
parks and open spaces to be delivered across five stages of the development.

It is noted that the IPART Assessment of the West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020 presents a set of
recommendations on all contributions items listed. The Open Space recommendations include:

* Ensuring sufficient accessible recreation opportunities for all residents.

* Ensuring sufficient formal recreation facilities (sportsground) for the release area.

5.1.5 Draft Housing and Affordable Housing Options Paper 2020

The Draft Housing and Affordable Housing Options Paper provides evidence for the development of a new Housing
Strategy for Wollongong LGA, which identifies key issues and planning priorities for housing and proposes options
and recommendations.

Some of the key issues identified include:

* Performance of Land Use Zones: the type of housing being developed does not sufficiently correspond to the
desired form in particular zones (e.g. 78% of the housing in medium density zones is single dwelling housing)
which consequently is not being used to its full capacity.

* Housing for Particular Needs: ageing population in the Wollongong LGA has implications for the housing needs
of the community in the future.

* Household Size vs Dwelling Size: there is a mismatch between the average household size in Wollongong LGA
and dwelling types being developed or planned.

* Increasing Cost of Housing: median house and unit prices have substantially increased while the proportion of
households who can afford to rent or purchase housing has remarkably declined.

In response to these key issues, three planning priorities have been recommended: increase housing diversity, plan
for future housing growth, and increase the supply of affordable rental housing.

To address these planning priorities, the Paper recommended as part of Priority 2: Plan for future housing growth to
define areas for urban growth around medium density residential zoned land and develop an urban growth strategy
for each area to facilitate an appropriate level of growth whilst achieving the desired local character. The paper
recognises that such growth entails adequate infrastructure including social infrastructure.

This Study will assist in the assessment and evaluation of social infrastructure that is adequate to support current
and future communities based on WDURA'’s planned growth.

5.1.6 Wollongong Heritage Strategy 2019-2022

This strategy has been developed following an extensive review of the 2014-2017 Heritage Strategy and Action
Plan, providing direction to Council and the Wollongong Heritage Reference Group on heritage outcomes for the
strategy period.

This Study will work towards strategy 6 of the Heritage Strategy, namely identifying and managing key heritage
precincts, streetscapes, cultural and natural landscapes. Council identifies itself as committed to ensuring heritage
is a key consideration of town and village planning for public places and significant sites with recognised heritage
values.

Heritage will be strongly considered in this study through the identification of cultural and creative infrastructure,
referencing opportunities to build upon heritage through the delivery of social infrastructure.
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5.1.7 Creative Wollongong 2019-2024

The Creative Wollongong Strategy seeks to build on previous Cultural Plans to celebrate the community’s strengths
and grow creative industries. Importantly, the strategy seeks to support community participation in creative life and
celebrate the city’s unique places and spaces.

With extensive engagement underpinning this strategy, it forms an important consideration for the cultural and
creative infrastructure recommendations, comprising a key aspect of this community infrastructure needs
assessment. This takes on increased importance when observing that 85% of residents interviewed as part of
engagement agreed that arts, heritage and culture are important aspects of community life.

Key challenges and opportunities identified by the community include:

* Participation in creative activities should be expanded through more events at a variety of scales

* Aboriginal culture and heritage should be engaged with. This includes through greater celebration of Aboriginal
culture, history, and sites of significance.

*  Opportunities for creatives should be consolidated through increased investment and training

* There is an identified lack of creative spaces, including studios, rehearsal spaces and meeting rooms across the
City. It is noted that while some expressed interest for a creative hub, others saw smaller and underutilised
spaces have potential for activation as creative spaces

* Activating the suburbs is a key outcome for the community
* Public art should be made permanent and expanded into the suburbs, as well as in the city

* Local museums should be safeguarded, and local history and heritage preserved and celebrated to enhance
local community identity and sense of place

* The night -time economy should be expanded and activated.

Ultimately, the provision of spaces to enable the development of creative capital is vital to achieving the community
aspirations outlined above. The role of this study is to begin that process of identifying sites and spaces for creative
uses, both within other forms of community infrastructure and as standalone items. Key outcomes identified in
Creative Wollongong that may be addressed include:

* Provide and promote creative spaces which support opportunities to network, collaborate and share resources
and knowledge

* Continue to consider opportunities to identify and develop a designated multi-day festival site within the region
* Seek to include the installation of three phase power in major park upgrades
¢ Identify and negotiate the use of underutilised space for innovations, events, performances and activations

* Ensure current and future planning for cultural and community infrastructure incorporates flexible, multipurpose
spaces

* Deliver a new Public Art Strategy that would include West Dapto
* Involve children and young people in the design of public art features within key regional place space renewals

* As part of the development of Town and Village Plans, including in West Dapto, work with the community to
capture the cultural and creative aspirations, unique identities and the needs of communities and include
suggestions in concept plans

* Consider the inclusion of public art as an element of major Council infrastructure projects

* Support and provide opportunities for working in partnership with local Aboriginal people and communities to
develop immersive cultural experiences that incorporate public art and local Aboriginal knowledge at identified
local Aboriginal places/sites of significance

*  Support exhibitions in our local libraries, community centres or public spaces which showcase and celebrate
local history and heritage
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5.1.8 Infrastructure Australia — 2021 Infrastructure Plan

The 2021 Infrastructure Plan focuses on reforms and policy recommendations which puts the community front and
centre of infrastructure planning. The Plan’s Vision for 2026 promotes ‘Quality, accessible, future focused, multi-
purpose and economically valued social infrastructure that supports a strong, healthy and prosperous nation and
ongoing quality of life for all Australians’. For the first time the Australian Infrastructure Plan has included a whole
section highlighting the critical role of social infrastructure (Chapter 8).2°

The 2021 Infrastructure Plan provides a practical and actionable roadmap for more socially equitable infrastructure
planning with consideration to evolving user needs. It emphasises the importance of anticipating and managing risk
in delivering resilient assets that prioritise community and social outcomes, and acknowledges the critical role that
community assets play in supporting national wellbeing. It discusses the importance of community trust as a vital
ingredient for change requiring effective engagement and transparent decision making.

The plan has identified seven key pillars of social infrastructure reform:

1. Valuing social infrastructure through a consistent national framework,
Uniform access for healthy and prosperous communities,

Embracing technology for optimised delivery,

Education hubs to support contemporary learning,

Housing stock to address the shortfall,

Valuing our culture to enhance liveability,

N o g~ e N

Co-location and precincts to drive better outcomes.

The Plan also includes themes and recommendations in relation to social infrastructure planning and delivery:

* Place-based outcomes for communities - deliver globally competitive quality of life in fast-growing cities by
growing economies and populations, enabled by place-centric infrastructure investment and reform.

¢ Social infrastructure is economic infrastructure - support economic development by recognising the value of
investment in social infrastructure.

* Sustainability and resilience - build community resilience to all hazards by considering systemic risks,
interdependencies and vulnerabilities in infrastructure planning and decision-making.

* Next generation infrastructure investment - deliver a greater return on investment by ensuring governments
act as model clients and custodians of industry health and productivity

* Transforming social infrastructure to enhance quality of life - support Australians to enjoy a healthier,
safer, more connected and fulfilled quality of life by facilitating targeted investment in the right physical and
digital social infrastructure.

* Partnerships to build communities — maximise social and economic community benefits by supporting
shared use of social infrastructure through future agreements and capital funding programs prioritising shared
use of facilities.

20 Australian Infrastructure Plan (2021, p. 34)
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5.2 Open space and recreation policy drivers

A number of documents have been reviewed to provide background information and context for the Open Space
and Recreation Needs Assessment. These documents are summarised below.

Table 8 Key open space and recreation policy drivers

Document

Key Aspects relevant to West Dapto Community Infrastructure needs assessment

NATIONAL

Sport Australia

Sport 2030 — National
Sports Plan

The Australian Government has a clear and bold vision for sport in Australia — to ensure we are the
world’s most active and healthy nation, known for our integrity and sporting success.

Sport 2030 has four key priority areas which will, when fully implemented, create a platform for
sporting success through to 2030 and beyond. The priorities are:
e Build a more active Australia — More Australians, more active, more often;

e Achieving sporting excellence — National pride, inspiration and motivation through international
sporting success;

o Safeguarding the integrity of sport — A fair, safe and strong sport sector free from corruption; and
o Strengthening Australia’s sport industry — A thriving Australian sport and recreation industry.

STATE

Premiers Priorities

The Premier’s Priorities represent the NSW Government’'s commitment to making a significant
difference to enhance the quality of life of the people of NSW.

The two Premier Priorities which this project closely aligns with includes:
e Increase the proportion of homes in urban areas within 10 minutes’ walk of quality green, open and
public space by 10% by 2023.

¢ Reduce the rate of suicide deaths in NSW by 20% by 2023

NSW Government -
State Outcomes

There are 37 agreed State Outcomes across nine Clusters. The State Outcomes cover the totality of
all government activity and the Premier’s 14 Priorities.

The outcomes of highest strategical alignment include:
o Keeping people healthy through prevention and health promotion

e A strong and liveable New South Wales
e Maximum community benefit from government land and property
e Active and inclusive communities

NSW Government —
Public Spaces Charter

The NSW Public Spaces Charter has been developed to support the planning, design, management
and activation of public spaces in NSW. It identifies ten principles for quality public space:
e Open and welcoming

e Community focused

e Culture and creativity

e Local character and identity

e Green and resilient

e Healthy and active

e Local business and economies
e Safe and secure

¢ Designed for place

e Well managed.

NSW Government -
State Infrastructure
Strategy

The State Infrastructure Strategy is a 20-year infrastructure investment plan for the NSW Government
that places strategic fit and economic merit at the centre of investment decisions.

NSW Government:
Everyone Can Play
Guidelines

The creation of inclusive play spaces requires a new way of thinking about the way play spaces are
planned, designed and managed. The three principles of Everyone Can Play will promote thinking for
more inclusive play spaces across NSW.

The three key Principles of the guide:
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Document

Key Aspects relevant to West Dapto Community Infrastructure needs assessment

The Six Design Principles:

’
7/

-

Communicate the purpose
and location of play
elements and facilities.

Choose

Enable exciting individual
experiences and social
interaction.

&
Thrive

Challenge and involve
people of all capabilities.

Canlget
there?

Consider location, layout, signage,
wayfinding and accessibility to ensure
everyone can find their way to, in and
around the playspace.

Canl play?
The play experience, including the
equipment and surfacing, should
allow everyone to experience a variety

of challenging and engaging play
opportunities in a way that suits them.

Canl stay?

Consider safety, facilities, landscape
and the wider environment to ensure
everyone can stay at the playspace for
as long as they would like.

Provide a range of play
opportunities for people of
all abilities and sizes.

3

Create opportunities for
everyone to connect.

Create a place that’s
welcoming and comfortable.
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Document

Key Aspects relevant to West Dapto Community Infrastructure needs assessment

Government Architect
NSW- Better Placed
NSW

Better Placed is an integrated design policy for the built environment of NSW. It seeks to capture our
collective aspiration and expectations for the places where we work, live and play. It creates a clear
approach to ensure we get the good design that will deliver the architecture, public places and
environments we want to inhabit now and those we make for the future. GANSW defines a well-
designed built environment as being:

e Healthy

e Responsive
e Integrated

e Equitable

e Resilient

Government Architects
NSW-Draft Greener
Places Design Guide

The draft GPDG suggests the planning focus should be on providing a range of opportunities at
different levels of access and intensity, rather than population and spatial standards. It offers specific
criteria for greenfield sites to ensure that sufficient land is provided for future needs.

The Draft Greener Places Design Guide contains three manuals/ tool kits that support the Greener
Places policy; one being the ‘Open Space for Recreation Guide’ which proposes a new framework for
planning.

This guide has informed the Parks and Play Strategy and provided significant guidance on the
planning principles and performance criteria used for open space planning in particular.

There are six core performance criteria for consideration when planning for OS:
o Accessibility and Connectivity

o Distribution

e Size and Shape
e Quantity

e Quality

o Diversity.

Office of Sport
Strategic Plan 2020-
2024

The Office of Sport (lead NSW Government agency for sport and active recreation) aims to increase
the levels of physical activity of the people of NSW by providing the leadership, policies, programs,
funding and infrastructure necessary to enable higher rates of participation in sport and active
recreation.

Three outcomes are defined (social, health and economic) and four focus areas:
o Participation

e Places and spaces
o Sector sustainability
e Partnerships and investment.

Within each focus area a goal is outlined with measurable outcomes and actions (focus) to deliver the
measurable outcomes.

Office of Sport- A four-year strategy aims to build a stronger sport sector where women and girls are valued,

Her Sport Her Way — recognised and have equal choices and opportunities to lead and participate. It provides a clear role

2019-2023 for the NSW Government to work with the sector and new partners in innovative ways to shape the
future of women'’s sport.
The Strategy is underpinned by a three year actions plan that has a clear priority of advancing women
leaders, encouraging adolescent girls to stay in sport, recognising and celebrating women leaders in
sport, event legacy from major women'’s sporting events and prioritising funding for female friendly
facilities in NSW.

Office of Sport — The Office of Sport outlines a Regional Sports Hub model — an approach to delivery integrated and

Regional Sports coordinated sporting infrastructure through strategic alignment and partnerships with key

Hub Model stakeholders. The model defines a Regional Sports Hub as:

e Primary centre of co-located sport and active recreation facilities, sub-elite sport support services,
sport administration offices

o Potential to incorporate both Centres of Excellence concept and community facilities
o Part of a regional network of hubs identified through Regional Sport and Active Recreation Plans

At the heart of the Regional Sports Hub model is the formal establishment of partnerships to deliver
integrated and coordinated facilities and services.
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Document

Key Aspects relevant to West Dapto Community Infrastructure needs assessment

Sport NSW- Future
Directions (2018)

This document is designed as a ‘sector plan for the sector’. It outlines an aspirational and inclusive
approach to the delivery of sport and active recreation in NSW for the next four years. It takes a high-
level whole-of-sector view to improving the Sector across four themes which are used as the
organising structure for priority proposals:

e Collaboration

e Capacity

e Innovation

e Engagement

LOCAL

Office of Sport-
lllawarra Shoalhaven
Sport and Active
Recreation Plan 2018-
2023

The lllawarra Shoalhaven Sport and Active Recreation Plan suggests the following objectives be
considered when planning sport infrastructure in West Dapto (inc. consultation):
e Increased Participation — including use of school facilities

e Improved access — including natural areas and transport

o Integrated performance pathways

e For purpose facilities quality and design of facilities

e Valued regional sport events

o Effective collaboration: local sport and state body sports organisations.

Play Wollongong
Strategy 2014 — 2024

According to the PWS, the following six principles should be followed in planning for playgrounds.

1. Quality play opportunities are equitably distributed across the city, including large regional play
spaces and smaller local play spaces.

2. Play spaces are easily accessed by walking and encourage healthy living and independent access
by children.

3. Meaningful engagement is undertaken with the community, including children, in relation to play
space planning, provision and management.

4. Play spaces are well designed, inclusive of all ages and abilities and encourage participation in
play.

5. Informal play spaces and the provision of natural play elements is given priority, recognising the
benefits of connecting with nature.

6. Play spaces will provide children with an appropriate level of risk and challenge, while complying
with relevant safety standards.

Wollongong City
Council-
Sportsground and
Sporting facilities
Strategy

The Strategy is built on five guiding principles and 10 Key focus areas which, when combined, will
help to achieve Council’s Vision for sport in Wollongong. The five guiding principles of the strategy
are:

e Inclusive and accessible

o Participation

e Safe

o Partnerships and Collaboration; and
e Sustainable

The strategy has the following actions identified under the KEY FOCUS AREA 5-Strategically plan for

the development of new sport facilities:

e Continue planning for the provision of new sportsgrounds and sporting facilities in the West Dapto
catchment area, with a focus on district level sportsgrounds.

e Ensure West Dapto Open Space Design Manual and West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs
Assessment are key informing documents in the provision of new and renewed infrastructure in
West Dapto.

e Consult and collaborate with Local and State Sport Organisations in pursuing hierarchical planning
of sports facilities

Wollongong City
Council-

Public Toilet Strategy
2019

Key land use planning actions:
e Apply Crime Prevention through Urban Design (CPTED), and Ecological Sustainable Development
(ESD) principles and guidelines of Council’s Sustainable Building Strategy to the public toilet work.

o Consider a hierarchical approach to public toilet provision in the preparation of open space and
town centre masterplans and concept plans.

e Continue to renew, install and upgrade accessible public toilets at locations experiencing increased
use.
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Document

Key Aspects relevant to West Dapto Community Infrastructure needs assessment

o Install adult lift and change tables and design accessible toilets to accommodate amphibious
wheelchair use in line with the Beach Access Strategy at Austinmer Beach and Port Kembla Surf
Lifesaving Club (Lower Boat Shed).

e Provide a continuous path of travel and accessible parking when upgrading or building new
accessible toilets in high use locations

Wollongong City
Council-

Urban Greening
Strategy 2017-2037

The Urban Green Strategy includes the goal that urban density and expansion, balances economic,
social and environmental considerations.

Planning future streetscapes which deliver best practice amenity, environmental performance, and
associated benefits is a major challenge for the future.
19,000+ New homes proposed and 55,000+ additional people living in WDURA.

Link to the study:
Seek to enhance tree planting and canopy cover through appropriate species selection and location.

Wollongong City
Council-Climate Change
Adaptation Plan

The Climate Change Risk Assessment of Wollongong (CCRAW) examined the likely impacts on land
parcels, networks such as roads, bridges, stormwater networks and cycle pathways. The CCRAW
flagged Western parts of Dapto with large number of Category-1 bushfire prone areas. As a part of
the adaptation works, Council has commenced a number works and assessments to have a finer
understanding of risk factors and their mitigation measures. This includes, Urban Greening Strategy,
Lake lllawarra Coastal Management Plan, Coastal Zone Management Plan, etc. The priority actions
relevant to the public open space network in WDURA include:
o Develop and implement transitional landscape program aimed at increasing shade cover in
passive open space across all parks and reserves in the LGA

o Establish trial plantings of native trees species suited to predicted future climate suitability and use
in streets and parks

e Managing flood risk through floodplain risk management plans incorporating flood predictions
o Proactively maintain bushfire trails and other related infrastructure to be fire ready

Consider rainwater, sewerage mining/recycling and stormwater harvesting and usage to support
irrigation of sports fields

Wollongong City
Council- Future of Our
Pools 2014-2024

Wollongong City Council owns and manages 18 public swimming pools (9 supervised public
swimming pools and 9 unsupervised tidal ocean rock pools). Seven of the nine public swimming pools
are 50m pools, while the remaining two are 25m pools. Currently, the closest aquatic facility to
WDURA is Dapto Heated Pool- a freshwater heated facility, open year-round. The Future of Our Pools
Strategy has identified the following as one of the key actions in order to achieve Council’s 10-year
vision for all pools in WCC:

Undertake recreation planning to facilitate aquatic/leisure facility development at West Dapto
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Community infrastructure policy drivers

The following documents have been reviewed to understand key policy drivers relevant to social infrastructure in
West Dapto. Table 9 provides a summary of these drivers.

Housing 2041: NSW Housing Strategy (NSW DPE, 2021),

Greener Places (Government Architect NSW, 2020),

Everyone Can Play Guideline (NSW DPE, 2019),

lllawarra Shoalhaven Regional Plan 2041 (NSW DPE, 2021),

lllawarra Shoalhaven Sport and Active Recreation Plan (NSW Office of Sport, 2018),

Wollongong Local Environmental Plan (LEP) 2009, (NSW Government, 2021),

Wollongong Development Control Plan (DCP) 2009, Chapter D16 (Wollongong City Council, 2021),
Wollongong Local Strategic Planning Statement (LSPS) 2020 (Wollongong City Council, 2020),
Our Wollongong 2028: Community Strategic Plan (CSP) (Wollongong City Council, 2018),

Places for People: Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework 2018-2028 (Wollongong City Council,
2018),

Draft Housing and Affordable Housing Options Paper (Wollongong City Council, 2020),
Wollongong Heritage Strategy 2019-2022 (Wollongong City Council, 2019),
Community Safety Plan 2021-25,

Disability Inclusion Action Plan 2020-2025,

Draft Climate Change Mitigation Plan (Wollongong City Council, 2020),

Sustainable Wollongong 2030 (Wollongong City Council, 2020),

Creative Wollongong 2019-2024 (Wollongong City Council, 2019),

Play Wollongong Strategy 2014-2024 (Wollongong City Council, 2014),

Sportsground and Sporting Facilities Strategy 2017-2021 (Wollongong City Council, 2017),
City of Wollongong Pedestrian Plan 2017-2021 (Wollongong City Council, 2017),
Wollongong Cycling Strategy 2030 (Wollongong City Council, n.d.),

Wollongong City Libraries Strategy 2017-2022 (Wollongong City Council, 2017),

West Dapto Vision 2018 (Wollongong City Council, 2018),

West Dapto Development Contributions Plan (Wollongong City Council, 2020),

West Dapto Open Space Design Manual (Wollongong City Council, 2018).
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Table 9

Policy themes

Strategic policy review

Implications for needs analysis

Relevant documents

Growth of Wollongong LGA
and the WDURA

Wollongong LGA’s population is forecasted to grow by 33,000
between 2016 and 2036 to reach 244,400 people. The population is
also ageing, with consistent growth occurring in the over 50 age
bracket. There is a need to align infrastructure and service delivery
with projected population growth and change in order to support
community wellbeing.

NSW DPE recognises that ‘Dapto town centre is ideally positioned to
meet the needs of the growing population from the WDURA',
however, ‘as Dapto grows and changes it will need greater
connections to public open space and cultural facilities’ (lllawarra
Shoalhaven Plan, pg. 66).

As a key source of new housing for the lllawarra-Shoalhaven region,
the WDURA is estimated to provide approximately 19,500 new
dwellings and accommodate for an additional 56,500 residents once
developed. In order to support the current and future population of
the West Dapto area, there is a need for high quality social
infrastructure which is delivered in a timely and equitable manner.

The Wollongong DCP 2009 outlines a vision for the future of West
Dapto: ‘West Dapto will grow and develop as a series of integrated
and connected communities... The communities will be healthy,
sustainable and resilient with active and passive open space
accessible by walkways, cycleways and public transport. To support
these new communities, local centres will provide shopping services,
community services and jobs...” (D16, pg. 4).

It is a local and state priority to protect and conserve the biodiversity
that exists within the WDURA, particularly the lllawarra Escarpment,
in the context of planning for new communities.

lllawarra Shoalhaven
Regional Plan 2041 (NSW
DPE, 2021)

Wollongong LEP 2009,
(NSW Government, 2021)

Wollongong LSPS 2020
(Wollongong City Council,
2020)

Our Wollongong 2028: CSP
(Wollongong City Council,
2018)

Wollongong DCP 2009,
Chapter D16 (Wollongong
City Council, 2021)

West Dapto Vision 2018
(Wollongong City Council,
2018

Demand for open space,
sport, and recreation

Government Architect NSW promotes the following principles for the
planning and delivery of green infrastructure: co-locating green and
grey infrastructure, creating an interconnected network, and
maximising potential benefits through multifunctional design.

Open space delivered within the WDURA should support multiple
functions, be located within walking distance of residential areas
across a well-distributed network, connect with other social
infrastructure or places of interest, and feature high amenity. It must
also allow for an equal split of active and passive open spaces and
include appropriate embellishments.

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 identifies that
population growth and subsequent residential development in the
area will drive demand for parks, playgrounds, ovals and fields for a
variety of sports, passive open spaces, and community recreation
and leisure centres.

The NSW Office of Sport’s desired outcomes for the lllawarra
Shoalhaven region include improved access to sport and active
recreation for all, and the provision of fit-for-purpose facilities.

It is a local priority to increase the capacity of and enhance existing
sportsgrounds, with a focus on equity and accessibility. The ability
for Council to provide new sports facilities will largely be limited to
the opportunities presented by the WDURA.

Greener Places
(Government Architect
NSW, 2020)

Everyone Can Play
Guideline (NSW DPE,
2019)

lllawarra Shoalhaven Sport
and Active Recreation Plan
(NSW Office of Sport,
2018)

Play Wollongong Strategy
2014-2024 (Wollongong
City Council, 2014)

Sportsground and Sporting
Facilities Strategy 2017-
2021 (Wollongong City
Council, 2017)

West Dapto Vision 2018
(Wollongong City Council,
2018

West Dapto Open Space
Design Manual
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Policy themes

Implications for needs analysis

Relevant documents

Planning and design of new sportsgrounds should consider the
principles of shared use by co-locating synthetic cricket pitches
where possible and allowing utilisation by sports played in opposite
seasons.

Wollongong Council has identified that many of its existing play
spaces are poorly located, in poor condition, and offer limited
opportunities for play. It is a local priority to ensure that ‘quality plat
opportunities are equitably distributed across the city, including large
regional play spaces and smaller local play spaces’ (Play Strategy,
pg. 9). The provision of play spaces should consider the principles of
inclusivity and accessibility.

The Sustainable Wollongong 2030 Strategy has identified as part of
its sustainability outcomes for a city in harmony with the environment
is the increased opportunities for active and passive recreation in
public open space to improve the health and wellbeing of our
community (pg. 47).

(Wollongong City Council,
2018)

West Dapto Development
Contributions Plan
(Wollongong City Council,
2020)

Equity and accessibility

NSW DPE has established a vision for the future of the lllawarra
Shoalhaven region: ‘the region is more connected physically,
socially, economically, culturally, and digitally. This has enabled
more resilient communities, facilitated flexible working and
education, and enabled people in smaller towns and villages to have
the same access as people living in Metro Wollongong’ (lllawarra
Shoalhaven Plan, pg. 12).

It is a local priority to create a convenient and connected network of
active transport routes throughout the LGA which links to social
infrastructure and other key destinations. Wollongong City Council
recognises the value of active transport infrastructure in fostering a
healthy, active, safe and equitable community.

NSW DPE envisions that housing should be ‘connected to local
facilities, jobs and social networks, with infrastructure, services and
spaces that people need to live sustainably’ (Housing Strategy, pg.
8).

lllawarra Shoalhaven
Regional Plan 2041 (NSW
DPE, 2021)

City of Wollongong
Pedestrian Plan 2017-2021
(Wollongong City Council,
2017)

Wollongong Cycling
Strategy 2030 (Wollongong
City Council, n.d.)

Demand for social
infrastructure

NSW DPE recognises that ‘with many people working from home,
more people engage with their local neighbourhood centres and walk
or shop locally’, presenting an opportunity to ‘improve local services
and public places or to encourage a greater mix of uses including
shared facilities, smart work or co-working hubs, education facilities,
health services, or community and social services’ (lllawarra
Shoalhaven Plan, pg. 74).

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 identifies that
population growth and subsequent residential development in the
area will drive demand for childcare facilities, community meeting
rooms, library spaces, and spaces for events or organised activities.

It is a local priority to ‘provide access to [library] services that meet
the changing needs of the community’ (Libraries Strategy, pg. 9).
Libraries in Wollongong LGA should provide multipurpose flexible
spaces and create opportunities for social engagement and
cohesion.

It is a local priority to ensure community wellbeing by providing high
quality district level services, libraries, and facilities, as well as

lllawarra Shoalhaven
Regional Plan 2041 (NSW
DPE, 2021)

West Dapto Development
Contributions Plan
(Wollongong City Council,
2020)

Our Wollongong 2028:
CSP (Wollongong City
Council, 2018)

Wollongong City Libraries
Strategy 2017-2022
(Wollongong City Council,
2017)

Places for People:
Wollongong Social
Infrastructure Planning
Framework 2018-2028
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Policy themes

Implications for needs analysis

Relevant documents

opportunities for sport, leisure, recreation, learning and cultural
activities.

Social infrastructure should be delivered in accessible locations,
close to other facilities and public transport, be strategically
distributed and networked across the LGA, be co-located with other
social infrastructure types where possible, be integrated with the
public domain in a way which enables safety and accessibility, and
cater to differing community needs, both present and future.

Wollongong Council has identified that there is a lack of spaces for
Aboriginal cultural learning, events and activities, and creative
workspace, including studios, rehearsal spaces, and meeting rooms.
The community has expressed an interest in these kinds of spaces,
as well as the provision of public art and other cultural and creative
activations.

It is an objective of the Wollongong DCP to ‘ensure the community’s
social and cultural needs are met through the provision of a range of
community facilities across the [West Dapto] release area (co-
located with other facilities in ‘hubs’, creating urban focal points)’
(DCP, pg. 6).

It is within the Council’s climate change mitigation responsibilities to
provide community infrastructure including ‘public walking and
cycling infrastructure, priority parking systems and electric vehicle
charging stations on public land can encourage sustainable transport
choices’ (Draft Climate Change Mitigation Plan, pg. 9)

(Wollongong City Council,
2018)

Creative Wollongong 2019-
2014 (Wollongong City
Council, 2019)

Wollongong DCP 2009,
Chapter D16 (Wollongong
City Council, 2021)

Draft Climate Change
Mitigation Plan
(Wollongong City Council,
2019),
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PART C: PLANNING RESEARCH AND CONSIDERATIONS
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6.1 20-minute neighbourhoods

The 20-minute neighbourhood is all about ‘living locally — giving people the ability to meet most of their daily needs
within a 20-minute return walk from home, with access to safe cycling and local transport options. These connected
and walkable places are where people can live, work and play; buy their bread and milk, work from home or local
business, access services and meet their neighbours at the central gathering places.’?!

In the 20-minute neighbourhood, people have ready access to a range of facilities, services, employment and
recreation opportunities. By increasing local development density (e.g. dwelling or jobs per hectare), increasing
diversity through mixed-use development and housing types and improving access to active and public transport,
the principle of a 20-minute neighbourhood can enhance liveability of local areas, promote health and wellbeing of
residents and strengthen the sense of community and connection to place.?

Local shopping
Local employment centres Local health
opportunities facilities and services

Well connected to public
transport, jobs and

Local schools
services within the region - .

Local . Lifelong learning
public transport f = T opportunities
Safe cycling
networks | &Fk Features Of a Local playgrounds

s a i k:

20-Minute Neighbourhood FIREERS
| F?-.
Walkability \

Green streets
and spaces

Housing diversity

Community
gardens

Ability to age in place

Sport and

Affordable housing Feciaation facilities

options Safe streets
and spaces

There are particular challenges in creating 20-minute neighbourhoods in growth areas, due to lower population
densities and a lack of established infrastructure. Careful planning and the facilitation of mixed housing densities in
growth areas can support the development of 20-minute neighbourhoods. The creation of town centres with
concentrations of social infrastructure within an 800m-1km walking distance will be key to ensuring the creation of
20-minute neighbourhoods in the WDURA.

21 20-minute neighbourhoods (State Government of Victoria, 2017), https://www.planning.vic.gov.au/policy-and-strategy/planning-for-
melbourne/plan-melbourne/20-minute-
neighbourhoods#:~:text=To0%20improve%20liveability%2C%20we%20need,cycling%20and%?20local%20transport%20options.

22 Plan Melbourne 2017-2050 (State Government of Victoria, 2017)
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6.2 Age-friendly approach to social infrastructure planning

An age-friendly approach to urban planning is essential to creating an inclusive urban environment that works for
everyone. An inclusive city ‘creates a safe, liveable environment with affordable and equitable access to urban
services, social services, and livelihood opportunities for all the city residents and other city users to promote
optimal development of its human capital and ensure the respect of human dignity and equality.”?® Planning and
designing urban environments that consider the needs of younger and older people are key to creating supportive
environments that enable people to live healthy and fulfilling lives.

The global megatrend of ageing populations and growing urban populations have major implications for urban areas
and how these will function in the future.?* The World Health Organisation developed a framework for age-friendly
cities, identifying eight interconnected domains of urban life that allow the participation of older people and promote
their wellbeing, as shown in Figure 8 WHO Age-friendly cities framework.?® Likewise, a child-friendly urban planning
approach will ensure current and future generations are given the best chances to face the challenges of tomorrow.
Furthermore, if urban areas fail to provide a conducive environment for children’s development and wellbeing, they
risk outward migration that entail economic and cultural impacts.?® The benefits of child-friendly cities are not limited
to children but ripple through the community — uniting and promoting health and wellbeing, local economy and social
cohesion, safety, and sustainability.?’
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Figure 8 WHO Age-friendly cities framework

2 Enabling Inclusive Cities (Asian Development Bank, 2017)

2 Cities Alive: Designing for Ageing Communities (ARUP, 2019)
25 Global Age-friendly Cities: A Guide (WHO, 2007)

26 Cities Alive: Designing for Urban Childhoods (ARUP, 2017)

7 Cities Alive: Designing for Urban Childhoods (ARUP, 2017)
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6.3 Resilience and a changing climate

As the impacts of climate change become more evident, increasing the resilience of communities is vital to protect
lives and promote sustainable development. Resilient cities are defined as cities where ‘individuals, communities,
institutions, businesses, and systems have the capacity to survive, adapt, and grow - notwithstanding chronic
stresses and acute shocks.’?® Creating sustainable communities and driving resilience involve a systems approach
to planning, taking into account the governance, economic, social, environmental assets and capacity of cities and
communities.

In the Shoalhaven lllawarra region, which has regionally significant landscapes and natural assets, climate change
impacts are expected to manifest through effects of extreme events that have direct and indirect impacts to
communities. Heatwaves, extreme rainfalls, flooding, drought, and fire weather are expected to increase and
worsen. Seven regional systems were identified to be vulnerable and needs to be addressed to mitigate risks and
successfully adapt to climate change impacts?:

* Satellite settlements * Food

* Transport * Industrial transformation
* Emergency management *  Water

* Energy

The recent flood crisis, and COVID-19 pandemic, has drawn attention to the important role social infrastructure
plays in not just shaping a crisis response, but also in delivering adaptation and recovery outcomes for local
communities. Over recent months and years, Australians have witnessed repeated examples of local government
infrastructure - including leisure centres, sportsgrounds, and community centres - been rapidly re-purposed in
response to crises, for example transforming into evacuation centres or COVID-19 testing clinics, enabling residents
to access critical services when they can no longer access usual supports or facilities, such as hospitals.

Local government’s recent roles in crisis and disaster responses, provides further evidence of the importance of
social infrastructure. For example, disaster response research across several countries has shown that social
infrastructure can foster disaster-resilient communities, as it strengthens opportunities for local social networks and
responsive support systems.3® Further, the Australian Infrastructure Audit 2019 concluded that social infrastructure:

“...helps to build social cohesion and identity, and can help foster community resilience in times of
stress, such as natural disasters.”?

Community and neighbourhood centres in particular play a key role in crisis and disaster response and recovery as
they are able to be flexible and responsive to emerging local needs.®? Through various regular activities and
programs aimed at a diverse range of stakeholders, community centres have been shown to contribute to
community capacity building, reducing social isolation, and building social cohesion — key factors shaping
community resilience in the face of crises.?®

Research into the role of community and neighbourhood centres in Brisbane’s 2011 flood crisis also found that
community centres were able to deliver a large number of benefits including:

* Coordinating and increasing volunteering and donation levels

28 A Metropolis of Three Cities (Greater Sydney Commission, 2018)

2 Shoalhaven and lllawarra Enabling Regional Adaptation (AdaptNSW, 2019)

30 O’Sullivan, T. L., Kuziemsky, C. E., Toal-Sullivan, D. and Corneil, W., 2013, ‘Unravelling the complexities of disaster management: A
framework for critical social infrastructure to promote population health and resilience’, Social Science & Medicine, 93(2013), 238-246;
Aldrich, D., 2012, ‘Social, not physical, infrastructure: the critical role of civil society in disaster recovery’, Disasters, 36(3), 398-419;
Thornley, L., Ball, J., Signal, L., Lawson-Te Aho, K. and Rawson, E., 2015, ‘Building community resilience: learning from the Canterbury
earthquakes,’ Kotuitui: New Zealand Journal of Social Sciences Online, 10:1, 23-35.

31 Infrastructure Australia, 2019, page 393.

32 \West End Community House, 2014, ‘Strengthening people and places: the role and value of community and neighbourhood centres’,

33 West End Community House, 2014; Infrastructure Australia, 2019.
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* Becoming an evacuation centre for local residents prior to the floods, and a respite centre after the floods where
residents could access meals and charge their phones

* Acting as a conduit for local contributions of time, money, equipment and materials
¢ Connecting with businesses, government and non-government agencies to access resources and services
* Developing local information kits and newsletters for residents

»  Providing specific responses to vulnerable residents through pre-existing knowledge of the community®*

Climate change is anticipated to manifest in a host of environmental changes on a local and global scale, including
habitat loss and biodiversity decline, higher urban temperatures, reduced rainfall and longer fire seasons, more
frequent and extreme weather events, rising sea levels, and increased scarcity of resources. As with COVID-19, this
will present complex and unprecedented challenges to Australian communities and have a significant economic and
human cost.

In response, social infrastructure must be located, designed, and built to withstand a warmer, drier climate and
extreme weather events, so that it can continue to provide essential services to people during ordinary times and
times of crisis. Communities will also need to be more resilient, and this comes down to more than just having the
right infrastructure and services. Our ability to withstand and recover from crises is greatly dependent on our social
capital (the network of relationships that allow people to trust each other and work together) and our community
capacity (the ability to solve collective problems through shared skills, knowledge, equipment, and other resources).
Building this resilience does not happen overnight; communities must be supported to form strong social
connections, share ideas and information, and seek support where and when it is needed.

In short, while historically local governments have not routinely included crisis management roles when undertaking
their social infrastructure planning, there is a growing body of evidence to indicate that communities are increasingly
looking to their local council to facilitate access to essential facilities and supports during times of crisis.

6.4 From standalone facilities to multipurpose hubs

Stand-alone facilities for the exclusive use of specific community or socio-demographic groups are not financially
viable, nor do they deliver net social benefits. A shift towards more integrated, co-located or clustered service
delivery models are needed. Single service delivery models are inefficient and consume significant amounts of land.
As well as providing best value for money, shared community facilities provide positive social outcomes by providing
opportunities for collaborative approaches to service delivery and ‘one stop shop’ for service users.

Co-location usually involves bringing community services together in a single location. It is a response to the
fragmentation and lack of integration of related services. It is intended to enhance both coordination among services
and convenience for clients who can access multiple services from a single point. Co-location can also relate to the
relationship between community facilities and other compatible uses such as open space.

Leading practice favours the clustering of community facilities in centres to enhance accessibility and connectivity
with related uses. Well used community facilities tend to be located in places that are readily accessible by public
transport and where people already congregate, such as shopping centres and schools.

34 West End Community House, 2014.
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6.5 The role of faith in planning

Faith spaces and organisations form an integral aspect of social infrastructure fabric in new and old communities,
acting as anchors for communities and often providing the community services lacking from other providers (e.g.
schools, childcare, community gathering spaces).

Irves and Van Eymeren consider that Faith serves an important social purpose in urban areas, bringing city dwellers
together to ‘mourn, celebrate, remember, reflect and to help others.3® They also serve as a bridge between
governments and citizens, building trust for communities to rally together.

Formal religious sites—such as churches, temples, cathedrals, and mosques—are places of great spiritual
significance. They are often also centrepieces of community cohesion around which many urban residents’ lives
revolve. Further, such sites often contain vestiges of green space and natural features in otherwise grey urban
landscapes. For this reason, religious sites can and should be incorporated more seriously by urban planners and
designers into the urban fabric.%®

Recent research in Australia further highlights the role of faith communities in working with minority groups in
communities with strong outcomes for accessibility and inclusion.” The Anglican diocese, for example, has
undertaken strong engagement with Aboriginal communities and persons with disabilities as part of its outreach
programs in particularly rural communities.®® The successes in this denomination suggest a strong role for faith-
based organisations in community capacity building.

It is therefore recommended that, in planning for new communities, the faith element of those communities is
understood and integrated in the planning process. This process should involve a thorough understanding of the
faith communities already operating in the local community.

Interfaith collaboration is a further best practice development in planning for faith in new communities. While there
are considerable challenges in interfaith working, recent successes with multi-faith prayer rooms and collaboration
in urban regeneration in the UK demonstrate this model’s potential.®®

For West Dapto, it will be vital to bring local faith organisations into collaboration for the development of activated
town centres that support the faith needs of these new communities and provide essential services to all residents,
regardless of their faith.

35 |ves, Chriss and van Eymeren, Andre. 2017, ‘Religious faith can help people to build better cities — here’s how’, The conversation.

36 https://berkleycenter.georgetown.edu/responses/how-should-religion-be-considered-in-urban-planning

37 See, e.g. Short, M. (2015). Three Anglican Churches engaging with people from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds.
Sydney, NSW: Bush Church Aid.

Short, M. (2018). Anglican Churches engaging with people living with disabilities. The Bush Church Aid Society, CBM Australia - Luke 14
Program.

38 Short, M. (2015). The Anglican Church of Australia and engagement with people living with disabilities. St Mark's Review, 232(July 2),
123 - 138.

Short, M., Broughton, G., Short, M., Ochala, Y., & Anscombe, B. (2017). Connecting to belonging: A cross-disciplinary inquiry into rural
Australian Anglican Church engagements with people from culturally and linguistically diverse backgrounds. Journal of Contemporary
Religion. 32(1), 119-133;

Tillotson, N., Short, M., Ollerton, J., Hearn, C and Sawatzky, B. (2017). Faith matters: From a disability lens. Journal of Disability and
Religion. 21(3): p. 319-337.

Short, M., Seiffert, M., Haynes, R., & Haynes, L. (2018). Church, Disability, and Rurality: The Lived Experience. Journal of Disability and
Religion, 18(1), 1-26;

Kime, K., & Short, M. (2019). Engaging with Aboriginal peoples: Challenging inequality in the rural Australian Anglican Church from a
sociological, social work and theological perspective. Australasian Pentecostal Studies Journal, 20(2019), 35-54; Short, M., Burningham,
G., Wright, S., Wardle, S., Byford, E., & Osburn, L. (2021). Four elders journeying ageing in isolation during uncertain or anxious times:
an elder-directed, cross-disciplinary project about faith, Journal of religion, spirituality and aging, online.

39 See eg. Farnell, Furby,Hills, macey and Smith, 2003, ‘Faith in Urban Regeneration: engaging faith communities in urban regeneration,
The Policy press
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6.6 The evolving role of libraries

Public libraries provide an array of social and economic benefits for communities beyond simply housing collections
of books. Modern public libraries are key pieces of social infrastructure that provide communities with a variety of
educational, cultural, social and support services. Importantly, the contemporary library service goes above and
beyond simply being a place for book collections and borrowing - in addition to this long-standing function, the role
of libraries has expanded to now play a key role in ‘strengthening and championing the cultural lives of
communities’.*° This community support function is particularly important in areas that are geographically isolated,
or service socially disadvantaged communities.*'

Since the beginning of the 21st century, there has been clear research to show that well-designed and located
social infrastructure plays a key role promoting both individual and community wellbeing.*? Public libraries,
specifically, provide communities not only with a source of knowledge and information, but also a space in which to
develop social connections and build social capital by providing access to shared spaces, as well through
demonstrating model behaviour and other indicators of socially responsible behaviour.434*

As a foundational piece of social infrastructure, research from across the world (notably, Australia, England and the
USA) highlights that services provided by modern libraries need to be dynamic, community-focused and
responsive.*>46That is to say, services should be different for every library as they are designed to reflect the needs
and wants of the local community. Contemporary library services might include (but are not limited to): 47:48 49

* access to physical and digital resources * access to information (in a variety of forms) for:

* support for literacy and reading for pleasure - personal development

* opportunities for social connection and community - health, wellbeing and active participation in
building society, and

* lifelong learning - helping people learn about and engage with

* support for local arts, culture and heritage local institutions and agencies

* promotion of local writers, artists and creators = connection with different tiers of governments
* provision of safe spaces for meetings, study, work
and relaxation

This breadth of services provided through libraries in the twenty-first century underscore their central role in building
community, supporting local culture, plus enabling residents of all ages and backgrounds to participate in social,
economic, cultural and political life.

In addition to the social benefits, libraries play a key cultural and economic function. Firstly, libraries are a ‘touch-
point’ with the local Council, and so therefore play a first-hand role in shaping community perceptions of, and
experiences with, Council services. As demonstrated in a survey undertaken as part of a wider research project on
the social importance of libraries by CIVICA and UTS in 2016, close to 82% of surveyed individuals agreed, or
strongly agreed, that libraries are one of the functions of local governments.

4 Twomey, K, 2017, ‘Libraries Building Communities’

41 Summers, S & Buchanan, S, 2018. ‘Public libraries as cultural hubs in disadvantaged communities: developing and fostering cultural
competencies and connections’ The library Quarterly, 88(3): 286-302

“2 Davern et al, 2017 ‘Using spatial measures to test a conceptual model of social infrastructure that supports health and wellbeing’ Cities
and Health 1: (2), 194-209

43 A Safe Place to Go: Libraries and Social Capital, 2000

“ Klinenberg,E. Palaces for the People: How Social Infrastructure Can Help Fight Inequality Polarization and the Decline of Civic Life.
4 Du, Y, 2016, Small Libraries, Big Impact: How to Better Serve Your Community in the Digital Age

48 The Intrinsic Value of Libraries as public spaces, 2016. CIVICA.

47 Ibid

48 AILA Statement on public library services, 2018

“ |bid
50 The Intrinsic Value of Libraries as public spaces, 2016. CIVICA.
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As a traditionally ‘free’ service to the community, the economic contributions of libraries are less often the focus of
research into their benefits. However, a study by the NSW Library in the financial period from 2007/8 indicated that
public libraries in NSW contributed over $1 billion dollars in economic benefit to NSW, and generated over $800
million in economic activity.!

As such, it is clear that libraries play a multi-faceted role in the community. In addition to the social benefits that they
provide, there is also a clear indication that libraries are essential in developing a local council culture and image.
On top of this, they are significant generators of economic benefit and activity within the local community.

Some key additional considerations for effective library spaces include:

* Access to digital technology: Rapid technological change means it can be hard for many, particularly those
experiencing socioeconomic disadvantage, to keep up with the latest advances. Community facilities,
particularly libraries, are increasingly providing spaces and tools to support effective working and learning. The
COVID-19 pandemic has placed an even greater emphasis on the importance of this infrastructure, with many
relying on quality internet and conferencing equipment for their work as well as socialising.

* Unprogrammed spaces: Social connection and informal activities (indoor and outdoor spaces) need to be
considered in the conceptual design of facilities to attract a range of uses and users, to encourage casual
interactions and the forming of social connections across generations, ethnicities, and other demographic
groups.

* Flexibility and adaptability: Community facilities must be designed and managed to be flexible and adaptable
over the long-term to ensure their inclusiveness and financial viability. This will ensure facilities can adapt to
new or emerging uses and functions over time. Creating strong partnerships across government, not-for-profit
and the private sector is critical in achieving effective hub design and maximising the use of shared spaces.

To make the best use of limited resources, and ensure that facilities are utilised as much as possible (including
at night and at weekends), community buildings need to provide for multiple uses and serve a range of
population groups, as well as being capable of adapting as needs change over time. Successful community
centres tend to be those that offer a diversity of well organised and well attended services, programs and
activities.

5! Enriching Communities: The value of public libraries in NSW,
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6.7 Cultural Infrastructure to the fore

Cultural infrastructure is defined in Create NSW’s Cultural Infrastructure Plan 2025+ to include buildings and spaces
that accommodate or support culture. It is more than just traditional museums, galleries, and theatres; including all
places where the cultural sector and broader community come together to create, share, learn and store products or
experiences.5?

Local governments play a key role in facilitating cultural activities, events and festivals, and several studies have
demonstrated the economic benefits of cultural investment for local economies.5® These benefits are seen through
both direct employment opportunities, and the economic flow-on effects of increased visitation and expenditure in
local areas. For example, Museums and Galleries NSW reported that cultural facilities across seven major regional
cities, generated a 69% average return on investment by Local, State and Federal governments.

Other Australian research has highlighted other significant social benefits of local cultural activities, including: the
promotion of civic dialogue in disadvantaged communities®* and increased social capital for community members
involved in planning and organising activities and festivals.%®

6.7.1 Adaptive reuse and cultural spaces

Adaptive reuse of cultural heritage spaces has become a key strategy in sustainable urban planning for its ability to
preserve and potentially promote economic, social, environmental and cultural values of urban areas.

The outcomes of adaptive reuse contribute to the three pillars of sustainability through cost reductions (economic),
resource efficiency (environmental), and retention (social sustainability). Adaptive reuse can transform heritage
spaces into ‘accessible and useable places’ that suit the evolving needs of the community while retaining the
identity of a place and its connection to the community.%®

In Australia, heritage buildings and archaeological sites are an integral element of the country’s cultural capital®” and
its conservation and interpretation ‘provide tangible and intangible links to our past and have great potential to play
significant roles in the futures of our cities.”®®

6.7.2 Creative placemaking

Creative placemaking is defined as the utilisation of artistic practices through programmatic (events-based)
approach or through built form (e.g. creative studios, performance venues, public art etc) to make a place more
interesting and vibrant.%® Local creative infrastructure can serve as both catalyst and platform for generating
subsequent economic, social and environmental values especially for newly developed or renewed areas. A
multitude of benefits can arise from creative placemaking including but not limited to increased civic participation,
improved health and wellbeing, place attachment, reduced crime, increased infrastructure investment, education
and skills development, employment opportunities, increased retail and local business, flow-on effects on tourism
and place-brand value, investments to public domain and improved walkability.

Creative placemaking amenities such as public venues for cultural and creative practices and activities such as
staging of festivals and exhibits can deliver socio-economic values to growth areas. They not only attract
businesses, inward investment and talented workforce to the local area to boost the local economy but also serve

52 Cultural Infrastructure Plan 2025+ (Create NSW, 11).

53 Museums and Galleries NSW, 2010, Value Added! The economic and social contribution of cultural facilities in Central NSW:; Museums
and Galleries NSW, 2014, A report on the economic impact of the cultural facilities of the Evocities.

54 Kelaher et al., 2014, Evaluating community outcomes of participation in community arts: A case for civic dialogue.

%5 Reid, 2004, The Social Consequences of Rural Events: The Inglewood Olive Festival.

56 Adaptive reuse of heritage buildings (Bullen and Love, 2011, p. 412).

57 Adaptive reuse of heritage buildings (Bullen and Love, 2011, p.411).

%8 Adaptive reuse of industrial heritage: opportunities and challenges (Heritage Council Victoria, 2013, p. 1)

59 Tourism planning and place making: place-making or placemaking? (Lew, 2017)

% Valuing Creative Placemaking (Cohen et al, 2018)
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as ‘vehicles for social capital’ that facilitate community processes, which have the power to create new social
networks and strengthen sense of community in the long term. 5!

81 Valuing Creative Placemaking (Cohen et al, 2018, p.21)
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6.8 Importance of open space

Public open space supports the health and wellbeing of our residents. Parks are places where our residents and
visitors to the city can relax, be physically active and play. They provide free locations for people to gather and
socialise, helping people to make connections with one another and have a sense of belonging in our growing
community. They provide opportunities to escape the built environment, and improved amenity provides habitat for
wildlife and improved air quality. This critical green infrastructure supports and contributes to social, physical and
mental health of our community.

Open space, sport and recreation infrastructure contributes to economic wellbeing, by creating numerous jobs in
managing and maintaining community facilities, delivering programs and activities, supply of equipment and the
multiple benefits that come from hosting community and competitive events.

Parks and recreation facilities are critical for community health and wellbeing. They ensure our urban environments
support and sustain our communities through:

* Physical and mental health benefits: Open space, sport and recreation infrastructure and services promote
physical activity and active lifestyles. Direct benefits to health include reduced risk of non-communicable
diseases such as cardiovascular diseases, colon and breast cancer and diabetes; improved bone health;
reduced risk of falls and fractures; assistance with weight management; enhancement of the immune system;
and improvement of mental health and sense of wellbeing.

* Social benefits: Parks, public space and community recreation facilities generate stronger and more
connected communities with improved social interaction and inclusion through provision of active and vibrant
community hubs, access to facilities and resources, opportunities for volunteering and involvement.

* Environmental benefits: Development of well-planned and attractive settings for active living encourages
uptake of active transport and use of public parks and leisure services. Further health benefits associated with
provision of parks and green environments include temperature reduction and mitigation of the urban heat
island effect; air quality improvement; management of storm water reducing the incidence of flooding and water-
borne disease; ecosystem support and biodiversity enhancement.

* Economic benefits: Parks and leisure services can assist to reduce health care cost through reduction in
disease and iliness associated with lack of physical activity and social interaction. A park and public space
network can provide local employment and investment opportunities; and contributes to maintaining a healthy
workforce.

* Heritage conservation: opportunities for heritage interpretation of both listed landscape items, archaeology
and ‘ruins’.

Public open space, sport and recreation infrastructure could be defined as a critical investment in current and
future populations. This ‘Urban Health Infrastructure’ delivers multiple returns on investment.
The National Heart Foundation observes:

* The health effects of physical activity are compelling. However, the potency of physical activity as a policy
investment for Australia extends far beyond health. Active living plays a key role in broader economic and
social goals for our nation:
walking, cycling and public transport are affordable and sustainable solutions to traffic congestion

* these same behaviours contribute to cleaner air, reduced carbon emissions and sustainable environments

* active neighbourhoods and cities are more liveable, with higher levels of social capital and community
cohesion and lower levels of crime

* in the context of an ageing community, physical activity enables older Australians to live more active lifestyles
with reduced risk from disabling and costly chronic diseases
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* fit and active workers are more productive, take fewer sick days and make a positive contribution to our
economic wellbeing.

Source: A blueprint for an active Australia, Heart Foundation, 2019 (pg. 8)

6.8.1 Lessons from the lockdown - restored recognition of open space

The recent impact of measures to reduce the spread of the coronavirus pandemic has highlighted just how
important public spaces, parks and pathways are to the community. Anecdotal evidence from many towns and cities
has highlighted the rapid increase in use of public space and how important the opportunity to get outdoors and be
active has become to all. It is likely this rapid shift in behaviour will emphasise serious inequity in provision and may
result in more permanent increases in outdoor activity and exercise.

‘However, the sheer volume of people exercising in the open air has also exposed the
limitations of historic design of some public spaces, with too many people crowded onto narrow
walkways or poorly laid out parklands.

That’s why our future precincts, parks and public spaces need to be designed to enable better
social distancing, with wider footpaths, segregated cycleways and more linear parks, to meet
the increased demand for these precious public spaces.’

- Rob Stokes NSW Minister for Planning. Source: Guardian Australia 12/05/20

6.8.2 Value of community sport infrastructure

In 2018, Australian Sports Commission and KPMG published a report titled: The Value of Community Sport
Infrastructure: Investigating the value of community sports facilities to Australia. The headline finding of the report
was that annually community sport infrastructure is estimated to generate more than $16.2 billion annually to
Australia. This includes:

e $6.3 billion in economic benefits, including 33,900 FTE jobs and $5.53 billion in increased productivity

e $4.9 billion in health benefits including $500 million in health system benefits and reduction of many personal
health concerns, including reduction in chronic diseases, reduction of anxiety and depression

*  $5.1 billion in social benefits including $4.2 billion in human capital uplift (improved educational and employment
outcomes).

The report states:

In a competitive funding environment, proponents of community sport infrastructure projects
must be able to demonstrate that their proposals will deliver value to their communities more
broadly than only to direct interest groups (whether that be sports clubs, state sporting
organisations, or other community groups).

The Value of Community Sport Infrastructure report outlines potential outcomes for the sector and policy makers.
This includes:

* A shift from seeing provision of community sport infrastructure as a ‘cost’ to an ‘investment, impact and value’ to
communities.

*  Opportunity for further collaboration across all levels of government and government departments to deliver
improved value to communities.
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71 Council’s role in infrastructure delivery

Local Government Areas across Australia are experiencing significant demographic and socio-economic
transformations as the process of globalisation, migration and other demographic forces change how people live
and work.

The policy context for councils is shifting with growth in the service sector and knowledge industries, increasing
cultural diversity, ageing populations and persistent inequalities within communities. Given the overwhelming
evidence for its value in creating liveable and sustainable communities, it is imperative that councils invest in social
infrastructure to ensure they meet the changing needs and expectations of their communities.

This increasing need for adequate social infrastructure provision has prompted many Australian local governments
to develop frameworks that guide planning and investment in council-owned social infrastructure. The City of
Greater Geelong outline their rationale for delivering social infrastructure as:

‘Being able to plan for, respond to and provide infrastructure in a continually changing environment that is
reflective of community needs is crucial to how Council continues to do business and support its vision and
objectives’.5?

Councils across Australia continue to have responsibility for a large proportion of social infrastructure within their
local areas, and therefore have a crucial role to play in ensuring adequate provision. Indeed, Wollongong City
Council’s Social Infrastructure Planning Framework identifies Council as ‘the steward [on behalf of the community]
of the majority of ‘hard’ social infrastructure across the city and as a key agency in fostering social well-being of the
local community’.®

This perspective was also highlighted in the major 2015 survey of Australian residents which revealed high levels of
community recognition and support for the important role councils’ play in delivering social infrastructure (such as
parks, libraries, sport and recreation facilities, youth services and childcare facilities). For example, the majority of
respondents reported that local government’s provision of social infrastructure was either extremely important or
very important.

Wollongong City Council provides a useful example of how councils can think about their specific roles in social
infrastructure delivery. Council identifies three main roles, summarised®® below:

¢ Planner: Council plans for social infrastructure to address community needs. For example, Council undertakes
needs assessments and consults with the community to plan for upgrades to existing social infrastructure or
development of new infrastructure. Council may also seek contributions towards social infrastructure as part of
new residential developments.

* Manager/deliverer: Council builds and maintains community assets and delivers services that meet community
needs. Council upholds its commitment to principles of social inclusion, social justice and public value and
works to enhance affordability and access for the community.

¢ Activator/facilitator: Council facilitates events and programs, brokers linkages and forms partnerships with
other organisations to deliver social infrastructure and assists with applications for non-council grants.

%2 City of Greater Geelong, 2015, page 1.

%3 Wollongong City Council, 2018, Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework, page 14.

54 Australian Centre of Excellence for Local Government (ACELG), 2015, Why Local Government Matters Summary Report 2015.
% For full details, see Wollongong City Council’s Social Infrastructure Planning Framework, pages 14-15.
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7.2 Development contributions

Local infrastructure contributions are charged by councils when new development occurs to fund key infrastructure,
including parks and land for community facilities. While the system is administered by local government, the DPE
sets the policy framework governing this system. There are two forms of local infrastructure contributions,
contributions (s 7.11) and levies (s7.12), both of which are guided by Council’s contributions plans.

It is noted that amendments to the NSW local infrastructure contributions framework are currently being
considered.®® These proposed changes may impact the way in which social infrastructure is funded in the West
Dapto area.

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 was adopted by Council on 7 December 2020 and came
into force on 14 December 2020. It enables Council to levy contributions for local public infrastructure required as a
result of development in the WDURA.

IPART review of West Dapto contributions plan

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 is considered an IPART reviewed contributions plan.?” It has
been updated on a number of occasions following review by IPART in 2016 and 2020, providing commentary and
recommendations regarding the provision of social infrastructure.

It is noted that the review was satisfied with community infrastructure listed on the essential works list, for 1.85
hectares of land for four new community facilities — finding nexus between the number of community facilities and
estimated population for the growth area, based on a previous study conducted by Elton Consulting.%®

This contemporary Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis will inform Council’s review of the West Dapto Contributions
Plan and IPART's subsequent assessment of the Contributions Plan.

7.3 Planning Agreements

Planning agreements are a legislative mechanism for delivering innovative and complex infrastructure in connection
with planning proposals and development applications. They are negotiated between Council and developers in
these contexts. Importantly, these agreements extend beyond the scope of local infrastructure contributions, and
can include:

* Recurrent funding of public facilities

* Capital and recurrent funding of transport

* Protection and enhancement of natural environment
* Monitoring of planning impacts

Planning agreements will be considered as a mechanism for funding and delivery of social infrastructure in this
study.

% See https://www.planningportal.nsw.gov.au/local-contributions
57 NSW Department of Planning, Industry and Environment, 2019, Local Infrastructure Contributions Practice Note.
% Elton Consulting, West Dapto Social, Cultural and Recreation Needs Study, 2007.
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7.4

Planning for social infrastructure in greenfield growth areas

Key findings identified — considerations for West Dapto

Neighbourhoods organised around an accessible town centre within a five-minute walk from their home.

Co-located, multipurpose community facilities in strategic locations to serve a broader catchment for district-
level need.

Development of work hubs: small business incubators for residents to work remotely in a shared space in the
local centre, designed for networking, knowledge sharing and collaboration. Opportunities include partnering
with educational providers or private operators to manage incubators.

Explore opportunities for income generating activities. The design of new facilities should create opportunities
for commercial and social ventures alongside the community facility, such as cafes and gallery space.

Program facilities to maximise participation, inclusion, and occupancy rates, especially at night.
Improve promotion of key assets.

Collaborative, partnership-based approach leveraging private sector, not-for-profit and state government
cooperation. Ensure consistency and clarity to give clear signalling to the private sector.

Planning for social infrastructure in new release areas faces its own set of challenges. Delivering social
infrastructure in a timely manner can, when successful, facilitate community cohesion from the outset of the new
community. Key issues include:

Rapid population growth: new release areas are confronted with significant rates of population growth,
challenging existing community infrastructure and increasing the need for new infrastructure. These
communities are also often more diverse, presenting challenges with catering infrastructure for multicultural
communities. Managing growth, and meeting demand as it arises in urban release areas, is key to success.

While the need for infrastructure in new and developing communities is urgent, some types of
infrastructure arrive long after they are required. Outer suburbs and new growth areas may offer the most
affordable homes to purchase, but they do not necessarily provide affordable living because they are less
connected to neighbouring areas and associated opportunities. In addition, access to a range of social
infrastructure is limited, particularly in the newest suburbs. A lack of social infrastructure can limit engagement
with sport, recreation, social inclusion, and cultural expression.

Cost of new infrastructure in greenfield suburbs: Developer contributions in new growth areas leaves a
large gap in funding, and neither level of government recovers the full cost of infrastructure provision from the
private sector. This gap in funding can be a barrier to the timely provision of new infrastructure

Libraries and community centres have large upfront capital costs: new libraries can cost from $20 million
to $30 million and new community centres between $40 million and $70 million.” The case studies provided in
this report highlight that 21st century libraries and community centres are regional scale social infrastructure
investments that provide for much more than places to borrow books or go for a swim. These multi-purpose

% Andrew Wear (2016) Planning, Funding and Delivering Social Infrastructure in Australia’s Outer Suburban Growth Areas, Urban Policy

and Research, 34:3, 284-297, DOI: 10.1080/08111146.2015.1099523

™ Andrew Wear (2016) Planning, Funding and Delivering Social Infrastructure in Australia’s Outer Suburban Growth Areas, Urban Policy

and Research, 34:3, 284-297, DOI: 10.1080/08111146.2015.1099523
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facilities are designed to service large catchments and provide a wide range of services, seven days a week, for
all ages and abilities.

* Integration of new and existing communities: challenges arise when new and existing communities clash.
Social infrastructure that draws on both of these communities in an equal and egalitarian manner can help to
alleviate this challenge.

7.5 Timely delivery of community infrastructure in greenfield areas

Community infrastructure is integral to local sustainable development and its timely delivery is critical to facilitate
successful growth of newly developed or redeveloped urban areas. However, for greenfield growth areas in
Australia, planning, scheduling and delivery of social infrastructure is a persisting policy challenge, undermining the
potential of growth areas.™

Lags and deficits in infrastructure in these growth areas impact new communities and new housing supply
programs. Australian Housing and Urban Research Institute found that a notable emerging pattern in community
infrastructure delivery is that ‘walking and transit access to social infrastructures in the growth areas invariably lags
behind the regional average in all three cities,” suggesting lack of social infrastructure provision within these areas
and insufficient transit services to connect residents to community infrastructure.”

To support the development of greenfield areas and its communities, strategic coordination is essential to timely
delivery of local social infrastructure and to address potential issues such as fragmentation of delivery agencies or
overcommercialisation of delivery.

New technologies including big data and spatial analysis offer opportunities to improve planning and delivery of
sufficient and highly accessible community infrastructure in greenfield areas.” Preferences of the community,
changing population needs, health trends and current access are contributing factors to successful delivery of local
social infrastructure.

Some of the key trends in social infrastructure provision identified in the Wollongong local government area include
co-location and multi-use facilities, cultural and creative spaces, health and wellbeing services, with residents
expressing preference for large multipurpose facilities for diverse community gatherings which solidify community
ties.™

™ Delivering social and community infrastructure in Australia’s growing cities (AHURI, 2021)

"2 Delivering social and community infrastructure in Australia’s growing cities (AHURI, 2021, p.3)

73 Delivering social and community infrastructure in Australia’s growing cities (AHURI, 2021)

74 Places for People: Wollongong Social Infrastructure Planning Framework 2018-2028 (Wollongong City Council, 2018)
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210

West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

7.6 Case study analysis: effective planning for growth areas

7.6.1 The Ponds, NSW

Area

Project
Overview

Outcomes

Key
learnings

Ethos Urban

Description

Located within the Blacktown LGA, The Ponds is described as one of the most successful master planned
projects in NSW.

The Ponds includes approximately 80 hectares of parklands, bushland, waterways and six kilometres of bicycle
and walkways.

Centrepiece to this unique masterplan of 80ha are six major ponds and water features, complemented by a
network of parks, gardens, reserves and sporting fields, recreational complexes, over 4kms of interconnecting
cycleways and walking paths, connecting streets to green space and offering an active lifestyle for residents

The design of the suburb has a wide range of recreation and community infrastructure that is well integrates
with Second Ponds Creek being the ‘spine’ of the development.

Underpinning the landscape planning and design is a commitment to best-practice sustainability measures. The
project's Cumberland Plain landscape setting, a highly valued and endangered ecosystem of the Sydney Basin,
presents distinctive opportunities and challenging constraints, requiring sensitivity throughout the planning,
design and construction phases. The water-quality management system of rain gardens, wetlands and ponds,
and the clearly delineated public/private open spaces, minimize encroachment of the more intensively
managed landscapes into the surrounding bushland.

Source: https://architectureau.com/articles/the-ponds/#
https://clouston.com.au/project/the-ponds-parklands-riparian-corridor/

e There is a diversity of recreation opportunities within The Ponds including play spaces, multi-use courts,
sporting facilities, fitness stations and a network of shared pathways.

e The public open space network has a high level of road frontage.

e The riparian corridor has been integrated, designed and activated as the focal point of recreation
opportunities.

¢ Ample shared pathways, wide and safe connections across Second Ponds Creek and multiple activation
destination location throughout which is supported by way-finding signage.

e A strong integration of planning and design methodologies to deliver an integrated stormwater and
recreation infrastructure network.

o Early discussions with developers to bring them on a journey to deliver best outcomes for the community
well-being.

e Developing a comprehensive urban design manual to guide the development of public realm, built-form
character and excellent quality public recreation network

e Excellent integration of green and blue grid to maximise public open space opportunities
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The Ponds Masterplan
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Gathering artwork by Aunty Edna Watson and Graham Chalcroft compliments the playground adjoining the cycleway

8 S b
Source: www.facebook.com/pg/thepondsparkrun/photos/?ref=page _internal

Public Art integrated into waterways, parks and streetscapes
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7.6.2 Austral, NSW

Area

Project Overview

Outcomes

Key learnings

Ethos Urban

2210779

Description

The suburb of Austral is located within the Liverpool Local Government Area (LGA). Austral is located
10km to the east of the future Badgerys Creek Airport and 10km west of the Liverpool CBD.

The population of Austral is projected to increase to approximately 70,000 residents by 2041- the time
estimated for the suburb to be fully developed. Austral will be comprised of four (4) Town Centres to
meet the needs and demands of its current and future population.

The Austral and Leppington North Precincts were released for precinct planning purposes by the Minister
for Planning in October 2009. The Austral Precinct is wholly located in the Liverpool LGA, while the
Leppington North Precinct is located partly in the Liverpool LGA and partly in the Camden LGA.

The Indicative Layout Plan (ILP) for the Austral and North Leppington Precinct was released in 2011,
whereas Contributions Plan for the precinct was prepared in 2014 (CP 2014). CP 2014 was developed
based on the demographic projections developed in 2014 i.e. approx. 16,133 dwellings and a population
of 49,686. Public Open Space was planned for the demographic estimates in 2014. A total of 124.01HA
of Public Open space was identified for Austral. However, the total quantum of land for Public Open
Space was inclusive of constrained land (E.g.: steep slope, low passive surveillance, powerline
easements, etc). Following is a breakdown of Public Open space (Public Open Space) identified for
Austral in 2014:

o Total Public Open Space identified: 124.01HA

o Existing/Dedicated land for Public Open Space: 19.17HA

e Additional acquisition of land for Public Open Space: 104.84HA

e Open Space provision rate: 2.5ha/1000 persons (NOTE: for projections made in 2014)

Hierarchy of planned provision of Public Open Space (2014):
e Local Parks (0.1-2ha): 46 parks

o District passive Parks (0.3-10ha): 11 parks
e Local Sports Park (5-12ha): 4 parks
o District Sport (10ha): 1 park

NOTE: Most parks (all hierarchies) are constrained with remnant vegetation, odd shape and size
affecting functionality of the park which further reduces the net functional area of parks for recreation use.

CURRENT SCENARIO:

Austal’s population in 2021 was 9,451 residents and approx. 2,883 dwellings. As per Forecast Id, Austral
is estimated to reach a population of 69,049 residents and 22,768 dwellings by 2041. That is, an
additional 19,363 residents and 6,635 dwellings to be accommodated with no investment in already
deficit provision of Public Open Space.

o Delayed land acquisition and delivery of Public Open Space. Residents have moved into brand new
homes with no public park to access within a walking or driving catchment.

o Existing parks are outdated and no longer meet the need of the new demographic.

o Increased residential density to accommodate additional dwellings and residents. Areas zoned for low
density are getting higher density residential development, which is affecting living conditions.

e Poor built-form, urban design and social returns
e Community frustration due to delayed delivery of social infrastructure

o Additional pressure on Council to expedite land acquisition and delivery of parks with most parks
funded through Contributions Plan.

e Buying additional land for Public Open Space will be too expensive for Council.

o Review of planned provision of Public Open Space every 5 years to respond to the most up to date
demographic projections and trends

¢ Developing forward funding strategy to acquire land and deliver Public Open Space infrastructure to
maintain and sustain delivery responsive to the population growth

e Monitoring residential density development to ensure dwelling targets are not exceeding threshold
numbers

« Initiating partnership and collaboration opportunities with State agencies for land acquisition and joint
delivery of major recreation facilities
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o Developing innovative design and delivery models for recreation and open space to maintain demand
by the time an urban release area reaches its full development potential.

Austral Indicative Layout Plan 2014
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7.6.3 Melton Library, Victoria

Melton Library is a sustainably designed and energy efficient facility that opened in 2013. It is

located in the Melton township and cost $20 million to build. The library is open every day and integrates many
services for community members, and integrates health, wellbeing, and education programs for a range of diverse
audiences.

The multi-purpose facility includes the following:

* Housing the library’s collection of books, journals and resources,
* Providing lifelong learning and community activities, with flexible spaces to cater for large and small groups,

* Eleven meeting spaces, varying in size from a ninety-seat auditorium to more intimate meeting rooms for small
groups. These are available to residents and can be booked for various activities including community group
meetings, arts and craft groups or business meetings,

* Offering programs for all ages and for a range of community needs including, programs for new arrivals such as
providing English conversation classes and support for citizenship tests; job lab support for resume and job
applications; after school programs for primary and secondary school students; and craft and activity groups to
reduce social isolation,

* Offering children’s programs and Maternal and Child Health services,
* A dedicated recording studio available for hire,
* Using the latest in wireless connectivity with well-equipped computer training rooms,

* Changing places - fully accessible toilets, with adult change table and hoist to ensure the centre is an inclusive
place for people with disabilities.

7.6.4 Macarthur Gardens, NSW

Macarthur gardens is a part of the Greater Macarthur Growth Area, including urban infill and new release land.
Delivered primarily by major development groups, the Macarthur Gardens retirement village and planned mixed use
neighbourhood are a good example of the private delivery of best practice community infrastructure, tailored for
local demographic needs.

The Macarthur Gardens Community Centre, built for Stockland Property Service, is approximately 1,600m2 and
contains the village administration facilities, hair salon, doctor’s rooms, gymnasium, indoor swimming pool, town
hall, billiards room, dining room, and a library. The co-location of services and facilities in a central location makes
this facility a success for residents in the village.

Macarthur Gardens North is a mixed-use development that plans to deliver community infrastructure. The concept
plan outlines:

* More than 13ha of open space, including a regional park, central park, and a vibrant civic plaza,
* Playgrounds,

* Fitness stations,

* Shared cycle and pedestrian way,

¢ Recreational space for sports and leisure.
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7.6.5 Liverpool City Council - Community Facilities Strategy

The Liverpool City Council’'s Community Facilities Strategy contains a number of points developing best practice for
community infrastructure planning in key growth areas and new release areas. A key focus for Council has been
tackling the issues arising from the developer contributions scheme, and the limitations associated with this funding
model. Improved facility planning for new release areas looks like:’®

* Preparing guidelines and functional briefs for new community facilities to inform developers and internal
stakeholders of the general requirements for new community facilities

* Seeking resourcing to undertake necessary preliminary research to further inform functional briefs for new
community facilities

* Explore funding opportunities for new facilities, outside of contributions

* Ensure all contribution plans require facilities of at least 1 000 sgm in size.

7.6.6 Thirroul District Community Centre & Library, NSW

The Thirroul District Community Centre & Library is an integrated multipurpose community facility servicing the
northern part of the Wollongong LGA. The award-winning centre was built in 2009 and co-located with Thirroul’s
shopping village. Seating over 200 in its hall, the centre is host to numerous programmed events and activities. Key
features include:

* Large hall for community events, coupled with a kitchen, foyer, and terrace,
* Six additional bookable rooms,
* Library space,

* Gallery space.

7.7 Aerotropolis Plan, NSW

The Western Sydney Aerotropolis Plan envisions the Western Sydney Aerotropolis as the next global gateway of
Australia with world-class infrastructure to support a thriving economy and a sustainable, liveable community built
around the Western Sydney International Airport.

One of the objectives set in the Plan is to deliver social and cultural infrastructure that strengthens communities,

highlighting the significance of efficient planning and timely delivery of social infrastructure in unlocking development

in the Aerotropolis and successfully activating the planned precincts within the metropolitan area. With a landscape-
led and integrated approach to social infrastructure, the Plan includes community, education and health, and
creative and cultural facilities as part of the state and local infrastructure requirements, including:

e Community facilities and open spaces
— Employment and residential development within 10 minutes’ walk of public open space,
— High quality facilities and services including community centres, multi-purpose hubs, libraries and
aquatic centres
e Health and education facilities
— strategic centres that integrate primary and tertiary education, with health facilities and the landscape
to create places of learning and wellbeing
— local centres where schools and community facilities are integrated into the parklands shared with the
broader community
e Arts and creativity facilities
— Provision of public art, and public spaces such as art galleries, museums and libraries
—  Co-location of artistic and creative organisations in science and education precincts to facilitate
collaboration, enable enterprise and innovation and support the development of creative industries’

S Community Facilities Strategy (Liverpool City Council, 2018), Page 28.
6 Western Sydney Aerotropolis Plan (NSW DPE, 2020).
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7.8 Waterloo Youth Centre

Waterloo Youth Centre is an example of a refurbished inner city toilet block that has been transformed into a high-
quality contemporary workspace and counselling facility for Weave, a not-for-profit organisation dedicated to
supporting disadvantaged young people in the inner-city. The facility is located next to Waterloo Oval and a skate
park which offers an ideal situation for providing services that need to appeal and reach out to the local youth
community.

The project was commissioned by the City of Sydney Council and completed in 2012. It now delivers vital
community services, achieving exceptional social and economic value. The key uses and features of the facility
include:

Offices for Weave’s 14 staff

Located next to a skate park and within a public parkland area

Central courtyard to provide natural light and ventilation

The design adapts the existing building and encloses it in an interlocking steel structure that can be dismantled
and relocated.

The estimated cost of the project is $1800/m2 excluding land costs, professional fees and development approvals.
The Gross Floor Area is 240m2 on a 450m2 site. The procurement process followed an open expressions of
interest after which applicants were invited to enter a design competition. The architect was Collins And Turner.

Figure 9 Waterloo Youth Centre — integrated indoor and outdoor facility
Source: Green roofs Australasia
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PART D: UNDERSTANDING SUPPLY AND DEMAND

8.1 Introduction

This section audits existing and planned supply of social infrastructure within and with bearing on the WDURA. The
section audits supply through a close analysis of GIS data, and Council's WDURA Developer Contributions Plan
2020, to understand existing and proposed provision. The results of this audit feed into the methodology for the gap
analysis below.

8.2 Community facilities

There are a limited number of existing facilities catering for the WDURA. These include
*  Horsley Community Centre (a council-owned neighbourhood-level community facility)

*  Wongawilli Community Hall (a council-owned neighbourhood-level community facility)

* Dapto Ribbonwood Library and Community Centre (a council-owned sub-district integrated multipurpose facility)

A range of planned and upgraded facilities are identified in Council’'s WDURA Developer Contributions Plan 2020.
These and existing facilities have been identified and mapped in Figure 10 below.

Considering both existing and planned supply, as well as access to the Calderwood community centre, there is

sufficient access to community facilities for the catchment generally. However, there is a noted gap in access for
stage 5 and parts of stage 4 to sub-district level community facilities, including library space.
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Figure 10 Existing and planned community facilities - WDURA
Source: Ethos Urban
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8.2.1 Existing Council facilities

The Wongawilli Community Hall is a 126sgm hall
equipped with performing stage, kitchen facilities and
outdoor amenities (including a playground and shade)
used for community gatherings and activities.

The Wongawilli Community Hall is subject to planned
upgrades, with design steps currently underway (see
below).

Wongawilli Community Hall — Exterior

The Horsley community centre is a Council-owned
local community hub accessible by bus and train
(1.4km from Dapto train station), offering various
activities and services. The centre has bookable
facilities including

* (1) Hall (capacity: 80 people, size: approx.
173sgm)

* (1) Sensory room

* (1) Meeting room (capacity: 24 people, size:
approx. 50sgm)

* Amenities (kitchen, toilets etc.)

The Dapto Ribbonwood Centre is Council-managed
facility which provides several services and spaces to
the community. The centre is closely located to Dapto
Mall and Dapto Showground and is accessible by bus
and train. The centre includes the Dapto Library, three
halls, five meeting rooms, two community offices,
kitchen facilities, outdoor facilities, children’s
playground, parking and public toilets.

Dapto Library
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Dapto Ribbonwood Centre Hall

Heininger Courtyard

Scribbly Gym Room

Ethos Urban
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It

Room Dimensions (m) Capacity Capacity
(Theatre (Table
Style) Seating)

Kurrajong Hall |22 x 15m 400 324

1&2

Kurrajong Hall |15 x 13m 250 216

1 (with large

stage and

dressing

rooms)

Kurrajong Hall |15 x 8.9m 150 108

2

Heininger Hall | 21.5 x 13.5m 250 216

(small stage)

Scribbly Gum | 12.4 x 8.5m 90 80

Room

Laurel Room \ 19.5 x 6m 100 70

Acacia Room ‘ 9x5.7m 50 32

Banksia Room \ 6.8 x 5.4m 32 22

Sassafras 8.2x5.2m 35 25

Room

Community 5.4 x4.2m 20 16

Office 1

Community 6.6 x4.2m 20 16

Office 2
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8.2.2 Planned community facilities

The West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020 outlines planned supply for community infrastructure within
the WDURA. This planned supply is summarised below:

Table 10 Planned community facilities

CF01 Darkes town Neighbourhood multi-purpose community centre
centre

CF02 Wongawiilli Neighbourhood community centre

CFO03 Bong Bong Sub-district multi-purpose community centre & library

CF04 Cleveland Neighbourhood multi-purpose community centre
precinct

CFO05 Yallah - Marshall | Neighbourhood multi-purpose community centre
Mount

Source: West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020

Wongawilli Community Hall refurbishment

The Wongawilli Community Hall is planned to be refurbished and extended from 126sgm to approximately 350sgqm
of floor space. The refurbishment plan involved design considerations to preserve the building’s heritage
significance and identified the following additional facilities:

* New kitchen * Hireable meeting room with kitchenette
* New internal toilets & cleaners room * Foyer
* Administration office with kitchenette * Building services

¢ Hireable office with kitchenette

Darkes Town Centre District Sports Park and Community Centre Hub

The Darkes Town Centre District Sports Park and Community Centre Hub will be a 9.4ha site located along West
Dapto Road under the lllawarra Escarpment. It is expected to serve the existing and future community in the West
Dapto growth area. The Concept Plan for the Darkes Town Centre District Sports Park and Community Centre Hub
details the following component schedule for the Community Centre, with an estimated cost of up to $3,020,000.
The following spaces have been identified for this facility:

e Hall e Public Amenities

* 3 x meetings rooms * Shared foyer/ entry/ reception
* Centre administration and staff amenities ¢ Kitchen — Commercial grade
e Community Office * Enclosed covered forecourt

* Building Services

Calderwood community centre

The Calderwood Urban Development Project or Calderwood Valley is 700-hectare master planned site on the rural
lands governed by Shellharbour and Wollongong Local Government Areas. The site is situated approximately 1.5
kilometres to southwest of the southern boundary of the WDURA. The project sits on a State Significant site and is
expected to deliver 6,000 residential dwellings for more than 12,500 residents, 50 hectares of mixed-use land, open
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space, environmental lands, internal roads and community infrastructure. The masterplan for Calderwood Valley by
Lendlease includes the following proposed social infrastructure:”

* Village centre * Recreation precinct Several schools* and
childcare centres including

—  Calderwood Christian School (K-12)

e Town centre

*  Sprout hub (temporary community centre and
café) —  two (2) proposed government primary

. school
* Permanent community centre

- District park with playgrounds — one (1) proposed government high school

*  Parks and sportsgrounds * Active transport infrastructure such as walking and
bike trails.

*Note: Whilst there are three (3) government school sites noted within the masterplan for Calderwood Valley (two
primary and 1 high school), delivery timeframes for these sites are not confirmed. Wollongong Council staff
understand that delivery timeframes for these sites would be subject to the growth rate of development. Further any
future school sites within the Calderwood Urban Development Project (UDP) boundary will be needed to
accommodate the dwelling growth within the UDP. Council staff understand that the Calderwood identified school
sites were not planned to cater for West Dapto.

8.3 Specialised community spaces

Specialised community spaces, encompassing places of worship, youth and seniors spaces, are audited to fully
understand the social infrastructure ecosystem in West Dapto. These spaces are often provided by non-council
providers. Creative spaces are analysed separately below. The results of this audit (see Figure 13) has revealed a
lack of youth and seniors spaces and Aboriginal community spaces, while identifying significant quantities of places
of worship.

There is currently no non-council bookable space within the WDURA.

8.3.1 Places of worship

A Place of Public Worship is defined in the Wollongong Local Environmental Plan 2009 (Wollongong LEP) ‘as a
building or place used for the purpose of religious worship by a congregation or religious group, whether or not the
building or place is also used for counselling, social events, instruction or religious training.’

A Place of Public Worship is permitted with consent in the following land use zones under the Wollongong
LEP:

* R1 - General Residential e B2-Local Centre

* R2 - Low Density Residential ¢ B3 - Commercial Centre
* R3 - Medium Density Residential * B4 - Mixed Use

* R4 - High Density Residential * B6 — Enterprise Corridor
* R5 - Large Lot Residential ¢ IN1 - General Industrial
* B1 - Neighbourhood Centre * IN2 — Light Industrial

The audit has revealed a significant number of places of worship spread throughout existing urban areas
surrounding the WDURA - including from a variety of denominations, both Christian and non-Christian.

The concentration and proliferation of places of worship in the Dapto area generally indicates that there is likely to
be faith-based organisations present in the community. Establishing collaborative partnerships with faith-based

7 Calderwood Urban Development Project (Shellharbour City Council) https://www.shellharbour.nsw.gov.au/plan-and-build/planning-
controls-and-guidelines/calderwood-urban-development-project, Community Vision Calderwood Valley (Lendlease)
https://communities.lendlease.com/new-south-wales/calderwood-valley/living-in-calderwood-valley/community-vision/
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organisations will be essential to ensuring that these organisations provide the spaces necessary to meet the needs
of their faith communities, as well as providing social benefit to all residents in the WDURA.
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8.4 Education infrastructure

Education infrastructure, while the responsibility of the NSW Department of Education, has been audited to
understand provisional need and inform advocacy with the department for adequate provision in the WDURA.
Understanding school infrastructure from the outset is vital given their large footprints and pivotal relationship to
developing town centres.

The role of independent system school infrastructure is also considered in this audit, mapped concurrently with
existing and planned education infrastructure identified in Chapter D16 of the Wollongong Development Control
Plan 2009 (see Figure 11). It is noted that the lllawarra Shoalhaven Special Infrastructure Contributions outlines
funding for primary and secondary school student places.

A spatial analysis of this planned supply shows an adequate distribution of high school infrastructure, however
some spatial gaps in access to primary schools — particularly in stages 3-5.78

It is noted that the Department of Education will undertake needs modelling to determine any changes to the
proposed schools identified in the Wollongong Development Control Plan 2009.
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Figure 11 Existing education infrastructure - WDURA
Source: Ethos Urban
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8.5 Health and childcare services

Health and childcare, generally provided privately, is audited to understand current provision and highlight the
importance of these types of infrastructure to successful neighbourhoods in the WDURA. Figure 12 below outlines
the outcomes of this audit, noting a significant concentration of infrastructure in the existing Dapto town centre.
While there is some distribution of medical centres and childcare facilities in Horsley and the WDURA - significant
gaps remain.

Access to these types of infrastructure, without relying on substantial travel to the Dapto town centre for some parts
of the release area, is a key consideration for planning for social infrastructure in new neighbourhoods in the
WDURA.
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Figure 12 Existing health and childcare infrastructure - WDURA

Source: Ethos Urban

Ethos Urban | 2210779 94

226



West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

8.6 Creative and cultural infrastructure

Creative and cultural infrastructure is an essential element in building community cohesion and resilience in growth
areas. The Creative Wollongong Strategy outlines these opportunities for creative participation through the provision
of cultural spaces, noting that activating suburban areas is a key outcome for the plan (See Section 5.1.7).

There is limited accessibility to existing cultural and creative facilities for the WDURA. Aside from the Motorlife
Museum, and local participation in cultural heritage through local and state listed heritage items, there is no
provision currently for cultural infrastructure in the WDURA, nor any concrete plans.

Figure 13 outlines the outcomes of this audit of creative infrastructure.
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Figure 13 Existing creative and specialised community spaces - WDURA

Source: Ethos Urban
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8.6.1 Motorlife Museum

Established by a group of motoring enthusiasts in 1992, the Australian Motorlife Museum is a cultural and heritage
haven for the motoring community and beyond, showcasing veteran and vintage cars to both local and international
audiences. It houses an impressive range of motoring heritage collection including the Paul Butler Collection,
Mayne Garner Collection and NRMA Heritage display and have hosted popular events over the years including the
Annual Motoring Expo and National Motoring Heritage Day. It also has an extensive library on motoring magazines
and books and includes other heritage exhibits on Australian technology in the 1800s.

Apart from being a tourist spot, the Australian Motorlife Museum is also an important place for the local community,
offering well-equipped bookable spaces for community gatherings and other facilities for social interaction such as
café rooms and open areas with outdoor amenities.”

————— e _“va—n— .4 e = AR F ‘,
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Figure 14  Australian Motorlife Museum
Source: Google images

8.6.2 Heritage items

Local and state significant heritage items have been audited to understand opportunities for local participation in
history and culture. These heritage items are spatially distributed across the WDURA, and are of substantial
importance to local character and culture. Identifying opportunities to integrate this built heritage into neighbourhood
plans, and explore shared opportunities with the provision of community space, will be important to ensuring the
cultural heritage of the WDURA is protected.

Benefits of maintaining public access to these items includes:
» Sightlines to and showcasing of heritage items can increase connection with local history and assist in
establishing connection to place for new residents.

* Heritage items generally include private open space within the protected lot, which is significant in greenfield
release areas where open space can be challenging to provide

Homesteads can be utilised to provide community infrastructure, either commercially provided or with public
involvement, that allows for community engagement with and connection to heritage items.

Figure 15 below outlines selected local and state listed built heritage items located within the WDURA.

™ https://www.australianmotorlifemuseum.com/
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Figure 15  West Dapto Selected Built Heritage Items
Source: Ethos Urban

It is noted that some adaptive reuse of heritage cultural spaces has occurred in the release area, including the Coral
Vale Smith Lane Café and commercial space, Wongawilli Mine Managers Residence childcare centre, and the use
of Wongawilli Community Hall by Little Preschool at 150 Sheaffes Road.
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8.7

8.71

Open space

Existing public open space

The table below summarises the existing public open space within the WDURA including each sites classification
according to the proposed public open space framework. In addition, an assessment on the functionality of each site
has been undertaken with consideration to constrained lands such as power easements and, conservation and

drainage lands.

Table 11 Existing Public Open Space serving WDURA
Stage CP Reserve Name Indicative Location / Indicative Functional Non- Classification
Ref Address land area Area Functional as per new
(HA) (Ha) Area (Ha) proposed
framework
Stage 1/2 NA lan McLennan 50 Wyllie Rd, Kembla 9.9 53 4.6 District Sport
Oval Grange NSW 2526
NA Emu Park Bunya St, Horsley 0.215 0.215 NA Local
NA Brookes Reach Stack St, Horsley 0.312 0.312 NA Local
Park
NA 44 Mallon Avenue, 0.12 0.12 NA Local
Horsley
NA 23 Siltstone Avenue 0.09 0.09 NA Local
Horsley
NA Integral Energy | 88 Darkes Rd, Kembla 20.08 9.05 11.76 District
Park Grange NSW 2526 Recreation
OS09 |Bankbook Park Bankbook Park, 1.79 1.06 0.73 Local
Wongawilli
OS03 | Stane Dyke Park | Stane Dyke Park, 2.09 1.39 0.7 Local
Sheaffes Rd Kembla
Grange
0OS05 | Mogomorra Park | Mogomorra Park, Paynes | 1.71 0.88 0.83 Local
Rd (north) Kembla
Grange
0OS04 | McPhail Reserve | McPhail Reserve, corner |2.81 0.19 2.62 Local
Sheaffes Rd & Paynes
Rd, Kembla Grange
NA Pasture Way, Greenview |3 117 1.83 Local
Estate
TOTAL 42.12 19.05 23.07 =

NOTE: The above supply assessment does not include Public Open Space within the established Horsley area.
This area has been assessed in Section 14.0 to determine any excess capacity that may exist to meet future needs
of the WDURA. The assessment found there is a slight surplus of 7.97 Ha but that this surplus will most likely be
consumed by growth within Horsley and the adjacent Dapto area.
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Figure 16 Existing open space — West Dapto Urban Release Area

Source: Ethos Urban and Otium Planning Group

Summary of existing public open space provision®

There are 11 existing public open spaces that have been classified within the proposed framework:
- Local Park: 9 (81.81% of total existing public open space)

- District recreation: 1 (9.09% of total existing public open space)

- District Sport: 1 (9.09% of total existing public open space)

Of the total land area (42.12Ha) provided for public open space, 19.05ha (45.22%) has been assessed as
functional, whilst the remainder 23.07ha (54.77%) has been assessed as non-functional due to land

DR District Recreation (1.5-2.5km catchment) - 600m shown*

constraints. This means that only half of the existing public open space network is fit for purpose and usable for

public recreation.

Based on desktop analysis, the constrained and non-functional land within existing public open space mostly

comprises of:

- Drainage and waterway channels/ corridors - Powerline easements

with riparian vegetation on both sides —  Stormwater detention basins

- Conserved/protected vegetation areas

8 Excludes the 18 sites in Horsley which are discussed in section 14.2

Ethos Urban | 2210779

99

231



Ordinary Meeting of Council

ltem 2 - Attachment 1 - Draft West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs 28 November 2022 232
Assessment

West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

An example of the functional assessment and determination of constrained land considered not fit for purpose is provided
below, showing an area of RE1 zoned land that is located under a major power easement. High voltage power
easements are not considered suitable for recreation use and buffer areas to remove risk of harm from exposure to
electro-magnetic radiation (EMR) are commonly recommended. In the example below that area of primary exposure
under the high voltage easement is considered constrained and not suitable for public recreation. That area of
constrained land is removed from the ‘functional’ supply.

In the figure below, the area marked in blue corridor is identified as the high-voltage powerline easement.

—~
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Figure 18  Site elevation of the high voltage powerline running north-south within Stané Dyke Park

Appendix B provides a desktop analysis of all sites identifying non-functional public open space areas.
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8.7.2 Planned public open space

Further to the existing public open space identified in the above section, the table below summarises the proposed future
public open space provision as per the previous West Dapto Development Contributions Plan (2020). This table includes
the new classification as per the proposed public open space framework recommended in this report

Table 12 Public Open Space in WDURA Proposed in the 2020 Contributions Plan
Stage CP 2020 Infrastructure Indicative Location / Indicative Indicative Functional Non- Classification
Ref item Address timing land area Area functional as per new
(Ha) (Ha) Area (Ha) proposed
framework
STAGE 0S01 Darkes Town Adjacent to Darkes 2021/22 - |9.40 9.40 - District Sport
12 Centre District Town Centre and 2025/26
Sports Park and | conservation land
Community Hub
0S08 Greenview Within residential area - | 2021/22 — | 2.00 0.09 1.91 Local
Estate- along West Dapto 2025/26
Local Park Road & south of the
(Site identified by | railway line
Council)
0S02 Ridge Park- Local | On ridge to east of 2019/20 — | 10.23 0.50 9.73 Local
Park Darkes Town Centre 2022/23
C2 zoned to
protect EEC®
(Site identified by
Council)
0S06 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Wongawilli |2019/20 — |4.50 4.50 - District
Park Village Centre - along | 2022/23 Recreation
West Dapto Road
0S07 Local Park Within residential area - | 2021/22 — | 2.00 2.00 - Local
western end of 2025/26
Sheaffes Road
0S10 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Jersey 2026/27 - |4.00 4.00 - District
Park Farm Village Centre 2028/29 Recreation
0OS11 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Bong Town |2036/37 - | 3.00 3.00 - District
Park Centre 2040/41 Recreation
0812 Local Park Within residential area - | 2021/22 - |2.00 2.00 - Local
along Haynes Lane 2025/26
Planned Public Open Space - 25.49 - -
STAGE 3 - - -
0S13 Aquatic Centre Southern side of 2036/37 — |N/A - - NA
and Community | Cleveland Road 2040/41
Recreation adjacent Daisy Bank
Precinct Drive
0Ss16 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Community |2036/37 — |4 4 - District
Park Leisure & Recreation 2040/41 Recreation
Centre
0815 | Local Park Sunnyside (Stockland | 2026/27 — |1 1 - Local
Stage 3)- 2030/31
Within residential area -
north of the western
end of Cleveland Road
0S14 Local Park Within residential area - | 2026/27 — | 1.5 15 - Local
south of the western 2030/31
end of Bong Road

# EEC- Endangered Ecological Communities
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Stage CP 2020 Infrastructure Indicative Location / Indicative Indicative Functional Non- Classification
Ref item Address timing land area Area functional as per new
(Ha) (Ha) Area (Ha) proposed
framework
0s17 Local Park Within residential areas | 2046/47 — |2 2 - Local
- south of Cleveland 2050/51
Road
0S18 Local Park Within residential areas | 2046/47 — |2 2 - Local
- northern side, 2050/51
far western end of
Cleveland Road
Planned Public Open Space - 10.5 Ha - -
STAGE 4 |0S19 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Huntley 2045/46 — |4 4 - District
Park Village Centre and 2050/51 Recreation
residential area
0S20 Neighbourhood Adjacent to Avondale | 2045/46 — |4 4 - District
Park Village Centre and 2050/51 Recreation
residential area
0S21 Local Park Within residential areas | 2046/47 — |2 2 - Local
- along Avondale Road |2051/52
& west of South
Avondale Road
0822 Local Park Within residential areas | 2046/47 — |2 2 - Local
- southern side along 2051/52
Avondale Road
Planned Public Open Space - 12 Ha - -
STAGE 5 |0S23 | Yallah Recreation | North side along 2031/32- |7.5 4.00 3.50 District
Area- Marshall Mount Road & | 2035/36 Recreation
Neighbourhood adjacent to Marshall
Park Mount Town centre
(Site identified by
Council)
0S24 Local Park Within residential areas |2031/32- |2 2 - Local
- along the western end | 2035/36
of Marshall Mount
Road
0825 Local Park Within residential areas |2031/32- |2 2 - Local
- along the northern 2035/36
end of Marshall Mount
Road
Planned Public Open Space - 8Ha - -
TOTAL PLANNED PUBLIC OPEN SPACE 55.99HA

Note — The above areas only consider functionality and site constraints where a known site has been acquired or
designated. Assessment of site suitability/functionality (and compliance with performance criteria) is strongly

recommended to ensure the future network of public open space for sport and recreation is fit for purpose.

Please note, parks planned within the Stocklands Stage 3 development are constrained by detention basins and/or
heritage items. Please note the classification of some proposed open spaces in table 12 may change further in the report,

if the open spaces are required to be upgraded to meet the identified gap in future provision.
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Figure 19 Planned open space — West Dapto Urban Release Area
Source: West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020, Ethos Urban and Otium Planning Group
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Figure 20 Classification of the Planned Open Space as per the new proposed framework
Source: West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020, Ethos Urban and Otium Planning Group

8.7.3 Summary of existing and planned functional public open space

A summary of the total existing and planned functional public open space by stage area is provided in the below table.

Table 13 Existing functional and all future planned public open space by stage
STAGE 1/2 STAGE 3 STAGE 4 STAGE 5 TOTAL
Total area of Public 44.54 Ha 10.5 Ha 12 Ha 8 Ha 75.04 Ha

Open Space provided | (Excludes 23.07ha of
existing non-functional
Public Open Space)

The total existing functional and future planned public open space for WDURA currently totals 75.04 hectares.
An assessment of site functionality is recommended for all future planned public open spaces in WDURA to
ensure compliance with performance criteria for public open space for sport and recreation.
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9.1 Projected population of WDURA
The population projected for WDURA has been adopted from the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan (2020).

Between 2018 and 2028, population growth is projected at 20.2% per year or 1,660 residents per year, increasing the
resident population from 3,120 persons to 19,680 persons. Notwithstanding the low population-base, this represents
significant growth at 570 dwellings per year and will generate a proportional level of demand for community infrastructure.

Between 2028 and 2048, growth is expected to continue at 1,490 persons (or 4.7%) per year, adding 510 dwellings per
year and growing the local population to 49,480 persons. As the area nears capacity, growth is forecast to decline over
the next 10-years to 2058, averaging at 800 persons or 260 dwellings per year.

Development will initially be focused on Stages 1/2, with Stage 5 ramping up quickly to 2028, before focus shifts to
Stages 3 and 4.

Table 14 WDURA Population Projections by Stage, 2018 to 2058

2018 2028 2038 2048 2058 2018 - 2058
Population
Stage 1/2 3,119 12,569 16,463 18,413 18,413 15,294
Stage 3 0 4,071 7,843 13,420 14,009 14,009
Stage 4 0 1,149 4,260 7,785 12,651 12,651
Stage 5 0 1,889 6,009 9,859 12,360 12,360
Total 3,119 19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433 54,314

Source: Wollongong City Council, West Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020

It is noted that actual dwelling numbers are hard to predict due to market and other forces. The above estimates,
particularly surrounding staging and timing are therefore subject to change.

9.2 Population forecasts — service age groups

To inform community infrastructure, planning projections sourced from the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan
(2020) have been disaggregated into service age groups. Note these estimates have been prepared at a high-level and
should be considered as indicative representations of the future West Dapto community.

It should be noted that with a significant increase in the overall population, the overall number of persons within certain
service group cohorts will increase even though the proportion of persons in the cohort may have decreased. Further,
estimates presented in this report are specifically for new residents, and as a result will vary from the existing community
profile.

Underlying assumptions

As a new release area, the demographic characteristics of new residents of WDURA are expected to closely reflect other
greenfield development areas. Key characteristics include:

* A high proportion of young families with children and about to start a family.
* Larger household sizes relative to inner-city areas.

e Lower levels of lone person and group households.

* A high proportion of owner occupiers.

* Alow proportion of older residents.

These characteristics will gradually shift as the area evolves and begins to reflect more established suburbs. As families
grow older the proportion of residents below the age of 11 will begin to decline and the overall median age of residents
will increase. Household sizes will decrease as children move out of home and Stage 5 of the WDURA increases supply
of medium density and in-centre development.
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Analysis was undertaken of population size, population growth, and dwelling structure characteristics of greenfield
development areas in Sydney’s north-west and south-west. The analysis identified the Parklea — Kellyville Ridge SA2
(Parklea) area as a plausible outcome for the WDURA at 2058. The change in Parklea’s age profile over time is also
generally consistent with the expectations for the WDURA community, outlined in the West Dapto Development
Contributions Plan (2020).

WDURA is projected to be developed over a period of 40 years, reflecting the size of the area and quantum of demand
for housing in Wollongong’s western growth area. Parklea on the other hand, as a smaller area located in Sydney’s north-
west growth area, was developed over a period of approximately 10-years.

To account for this variation in timeframes, service age forecasts for each stage of development of the WDURA have
been prepared based on the service age group distribution in Parklea where the level of development in that stage
corresponds to the equivalent level of development in Parklea.

The level of development in WDURA is defined as the cumulative share of capacity and for Parklea, the resident
population in a given year relative to its 2016 population (when it is considered to have become an established area).

For example, Stage 1/2 reaches 89% capacity in 2038, this corresponds with the 2013 Parklea share of its 2016
population (93%); consequently, Parklea’s 2013 service age group shares are applied to the Stage 1/2’s 2038
population.

Forecast population growth

Based on the assumptions above, the following key observations are made:

* The number of residents aged 0-4 is expected to peak at 5,120 persons in 2048, before gradually declining to 4,000
persons by 2058.

* Similarly, residents aged 25 to 34 will also peak in 2048 at 9,160 persons before declining substantially to 7,270
persons by 2058.

* The balance of the population will see continued growth over the forecast period.

Service age group forecasts for the overall WDURA are outlined in the table below.

Table 15 WDURA population forecasts — service age groups, 2018 to 2058

Service Age Groups 2018 2028 2038 2048 2058
Babies and pre-schoolers (0 to 4) 231 2,195 3,828 5,198 3,998
Primary schoolers (5 to 11) 353 2,024 3,912 6,062 6,744
Secondary schoolers (12 to 17) 286 1,339 2,382 3,716 5,091
Tertiary education and independence (18 to 24) 266 1,908 2,962 3,902 4,803
Young workforce (25 to 34) 433 4,524 7,536 9,160 7,267
Parents and homebuilders (35 to 49) 656 4,666 8,761 13,261 15,624
Older workers and pre-retirees (50 to 59) 379 1,570 2,779 4,209 6,208
Empty nesters and retirees (60 to 69) 271 877 1,541 2,559 4,150
Seniors (70 to 84) 212 522 788 1,273 3,119
Elderly aged (85 and over) 33 54 87 136 429
Total 3,119 19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433
Source ABS, Census of Population and Housing, 2016; Ethos Urban

NB. Demographic components of this assessment rely on 2016 census data, and are updated using other official
data sources. Wollongong Council staff will monitor updated projections as they become available.
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9.3 Horsley population data

The following information is sourced from the West Dapto Development Contributions Plan (2020). The Horsley release
area was largely developed between 1993 and 2010. The area of Horsley is now generally established, with some
remaining growth expected to occur as infill development. These growth assumptions were included in the West
Dapto Development Contributions Plan under Stage 1/2 population projections.

The following outlines the existing demographic profile of Horsley, as at 2016 (based on SA1 level ABS 2016 census
data).

Table 16 Horsley population — service age groups, 2016

Service Age Groups 2016
Babies and pre-schoolers (0 to 4) 494
Primary schoolers (5 to 11) 782
Secondary schoolers (12 to 17) 733
Tertiary education and independence (18 to 24) 632
Young workforce (25 to 34) 724
Parents and homebuilders (35 to 49) 1616
Older workers and pre-retirees (50 to 59) 910
Empty nesters and retirees (60 to 69) 623
Seniors (70 to 84) 472
Elderly aged (85 and over) 63
Total 7,049

Source: ABS, Census of Population and Housing, 2016; Ethos Urban

Forecast population for the release areas in stage 1/2 directly to the west of Horsley are outlined below. These numbers
have already been included in stage 1/2 forecasts within Council’s West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020. The following
forecast residents will not be counted in quantitative benchmarking, to ensure that they are not ‘double counted’. Rather,
understanding the level of growth surrounding the existing Horsley area will aid the qualitative understanding of open
space and community infrastructure demand.

Analysis of dwelling yields for the Horsley area has revealed additional forecasts of 1600 residents in the greenfield area
directly to the West of Horsley,® and ~100 additional residents through infill within the existing suburb of Horsley.

82 |t is noted that this area is subject to a naming change.
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10.1  Summary of consultation activities

Key stakeholders were identified and confirmed in collaboration with Council’s Project Control Group. A mixture of
workshops and interviews were conducted to discuss their insights into social infrastructure planning for the WDURA.
Aims of the engagement process included:

* Seeking feedback about the gaps, needs and opportunities for social infrastructure in the WDURA,

* Understand stakeholder perspectives and any policies or plans their organisation may have that could impact social
infrastructure provision in this area,

* Unpack key issues impacting delivery and opportunities for infrastructure in the WDURA.

10.2 Participants

The following key stakeholders were invited to participate in the interviews, with 10 participants able to attend across:

* Create NSW * Department of Planning and Environment
* Shoalhaven Health District * Office of Sports

* Aboriginal Land Council e Parks and Leisure NSW

e Careways e Sport NSW

* Greater Cities Commission e Outdoor NSW

It is understood that where engagement is yet to occur at the time of writing, Council will engage with the identified
stakeholder prior to finalising the needs assessment.

10.3 Key findings

A summary of the feedback raised during the two workshops is detailed in the table below.

Table 17 Engagement findings summary

Theme Feedback

Integrated social * Create focal points within suburbs across West Dapto through the identification of
infrastructure planning for walkable neighbourhoods with activated town centres that encourage community
vibrant neighbourhood health and wellbeing, and community cohesion and capacity building.

centres

* Need to consider carefully what sort of businesses go in town centres, what
services are available, the provision of healthy food offerings to encourage healthy
eating, supporting small businesses, and ensure that food needs are available in
local town centres that encourage local economic development.

* First nations need to be consulted on outcomes for the whole of the release area,
not just cultural spaces.

Planning for youth * |deally entertainment and recreation activities should be within their local
activities in West Dapto neighbourhoods in the WDURA. At the moment, there is a drain of kids during the
weekend and at night to the other side of the highway into Dapto town centre and
the coast because all of the activities and services are perceived to be there.
Parents would prefer that kids stay within their local area.

e Cater for kids that are not ‘sporty’ with alternative activities and services, including
through the arts.

* Arts intervention programs have been shown to be highly effective in working with
disadvantaged youth.
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Theme

Feedback

Kids need to be given a sense of ownership over spaces that specifically cater for
their needs (including the co-location of youth services).

Supporting population
health and wellbeing

Community health hub models are emerging as a strategic preference for NSW
Health. These district facilities are run by NSW Health and work in close connection
with local GPs and other service providers (including Council).

The existing health hub at Dapto town centre is likely to be sufficient for the West
Dapto Urban Release Area.

Encourage a mixture of local GP clinics and, for services where people are
prepared to travel a bit further, health hubs.

Delivering a community
arts centre to support
creative infrastructure
needs

Port Kembla and outlying areas of West Dapto have an active and upcoming artists
scene with significant clusters of creatives.

Create NSW and Careways supported the concept of a community arts centre
model for the WDURA.

Wollongong City Gallery is considered a good district facility but doesn’t have a
strong community element.

Consider Hazelhurst and Campbelltown arts centres as viable models for WDURA.
Create a scaleable model that matches the level of growth in the precinct.

Needs to be a space that is able to run workshops and act as a meeting place,
including a commercial/café aspect.

Other cultural infrastructure should also be considered, including providing studio
spaces in community centres, adaptive reuse of heritage buildings, and incorporate
performance spaces into open space.

Mitigating social tension
between existing and
emerging communities

Social tension between existing lower socio-economic community and new
community moving into West Dapto, with development in the release area targeting
young professionals.

Social arts approaches are important to develop social cohesion, alongside other
social engagement opportunities.

lllawarra Shoalhaven
Sport Infrastructure Plan

Office of sport collaboration with Wollongong City Council.

Office of Sport is in the early stages of developing the lllawarra Shoalhaven Sports
Infrastructure plan.

The plan will focus on regional scale facilities.

Potential opportunity for Council’s involvement to influence the timing of this plan.

Flood Resilience in
building materials

For all built forms within flood-prone land, building materials should be resilient to
sustain major inundation events.

Playing field infrastructure

Accounting for drainage and irrigation: Include field irrigation and drainage as key
infrastructure within the performance criteria for efficient management and
maintenance of playing fields.

Staged delivery of parks
and open spaces

Ensuring parks and open spaces are delivered before residents move to the new
release areas (preferred) or at the same time.

Early wins to ensure residents are not deprived of recreation facilities and/or
travelling long distances to access parks.
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Theme Feedback
* |dentify early win projects within each stage to deliver prior to the residents moving
in.
Monitoring planning, * Developing systems to monitor.

delivery and on-going

. e Change in demographic character.
maintenance

e Timely planning, design and delivery of parks and open spaces.
¢ Ongoing maintenance .
* Asset management and renewal.

¢ Performance of the park (monitored through satisfaction surveys and on-site
observations).

High quality urban design |* Integrate open space design with high quality public domain design.

outcomes * Encourage open space provision through high quality public domain.

e Urban Forest Strategy to complement active transport corridors.
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PART E: COMMUNITY AND CULTURAL INFRASTRUCTURE
NEEDS ANALYSIS
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11.1  Introduction and approach

Planning for future provision of community facilities is essential to support a healthy and sustainable community in
the WDURA. This report sets out the findings of a community needs analysis that has been methodically
undertaken to help to understand the gaps in provision and informs the recommendations for future provision.
Although this assessment has focused on Council owned and/ or managed assets, it is important to consider and
appreciate the role of other facilities which play a supplementary role in the existing social infrastructure network.

This report outlines the methodology used to assess the existing provision of community facilities in West Dapto
relative to current and forecast community needs, including:

* Outline of typology to be applied in this study (Section 3.0),

* Introduction of benchmarking guidelines — used to assess the quantum and distribution of existing community
facilities based on geographic catchments and population sizes (below),

* Defining the assessment catchments — the geographical areas used to assess existing community facilities
(Section 2.5),

* Quantitative assessment and applying the benchmark — application of the assessment methodology to identify
gaps in provision and to determine strategic priorities and recommendations for future supply (below),

* Qualitative assessment — the strategic and best practice principles used to assess the qualitative aspects of
existing facilities including usage, suitability, condition and location.

Developing benchmarks/what they mean

Benchmarks enable a quantitative assessment of community facilities provision based on a prescribed set of
principles. The term ‘benchmark’ refers to the ratio of facility provision per population size, such as one library per
20,000-30,000 residents in a catchment.

Benchmarks provide guidance on best practice facilities provision across a specified typology, enabling an
assessment of the quantum, size and distribution of facilities relative to a specified population size and geographic
catchment. This assessment is used to inform the broader context and understanding of community needs across
the LGA.

Benchmarks are not a one-size-fits all tool: they need to be applied with care as part of a broader strategic
assessment and decision-making process. When undertaking the community needs analysis and applying the
benchmarking standards through this study, relevant considerations are:

e Standards may not consider other community facilities that are not owned or managed by Council (e.g. privately
owned and/ or operated),

* Standards do not take into account variations in population density and distribution of people with a geographic
catchment, nor do they consider geographic barriers to access (e.g., major roads, distances between facilities),
and

* Standards do not take into account the quality or level of utilisation of a facility, which are separately assessed.

Benchmarks applied to this study

Benchmarks applied in this analysis are set out in Table 18 over page.
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Table 18 Benchmarks applied to this study
Infrastructure category Typology Benchmark Source

Hierarchy
(Wollongong SIPF)

Geographic catchment

(adapted from
Wollongong SIPF)

District multipurpose community 1:20,000 residents EU adapted from ASR Sub-district 3-4km
centre
Library space (standalone or 1:20,000 residents State library of NSW Sub-district 3-4km
General community combined)
faciiities Neighbourhood multipurpose 1:10,000 residents EU adapted from ASR & Neighbourhood <1km
community centre best practice
Non-council bookable space Not benchmarked n/a n/a n/a
Youth-friendly 1: 8,000 residents EU adapted from ASR & Local 1-3km
space best practice
Youth
Youth centre 1:30,000 residents EU adapted from ASR & District 4-10km
best practice
Seniors space Not benchmarked n/a ‘ Sub-district 3-4km
Specialised community
facility Community Sheds and Gardens Not benchmarked n/a ‘ Local 1-3km
Co-working / business incubator Not benchmarked n/a Local 1-3km
spaces
Aboriginal community space Not benchmarked n/a ‘ District 4-10km
Places of worship Not benchmarked n/a ‘ Local 1-3km
1 place : 3.8 children aged 0-4 | EU Neighbourhood <1km
Child care places years
Government primary school 1 primary school : 500 5 -11 | Based on % of all students | Local 1-3km
year olds enrolled 2020 in NSW
i (Australian Curriculum,
Education and Early Assessment, and Reporting
Years Authority)
Government high school 1 high school : 1,200 Based on % of all students | Sub-district 3-4km
secondary schoolers enrolled 2020 in NSW
(Australian Curriculum,
Assessment, and Reporting
Authority)
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Practice (incl. Local community | 7 Community practice space : EU adapted from ASR & Local 1-3km
studio/workshop | practice space 8,000 residents best practice
space)
General Not benchmarked n/a n/a n/a
qualitative
assessment
Presentation (incl. | District 1 community arts centre: 40,000 | EU adapted from ASR Local 1-3km
Creative and cultural performance and | presentation residents
facilities exhibition spaces) | facilities 1 performing arts facility: 40,000
residents
Local Not benchmarked n/a n/a n/a
presentation
spaces
Participation (local cultural Not benchmarked EU Neighbourhood <1km
participation, incl. through public art
and local heritage programs)
Health Hub 1:50,000 residents EU adapted from ASR & District 4-10km
best practice
Local Medical centre 1: 25,000 residents EU based on average rate Local 1-3km
Health & wellbeing of provision in higher
amenity suburbs
General Practitioner (GP) 1:1,000 residents EU based on average rate | Neighbourhood <1km

of GPs per person NSW
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11.2 Summary gaps — whole of release area

A benchmark-based gap analysis has been undertaken for all infrastructure outlined in the typology above. The raw
outputs of this analysis are found in Appendix C.

Understanding the quantity and nature of existing supply, as well as gaps in meeting demand by 2058, is crucial to
effective planning for community infrastructure to be accommodated by this project. Even longer term needs may
require land to be earmarked now, making it important to look well ahead in this way.

The below findings of the benchmark-based gap analysis represent a preliminary assessment. These findings
include infrastructure which may be provided through organisations other than Council, including through advocacy
with state government agencies. It is noted that these gaps represent gaps to 2058. The timing of provision during
this 36-year horizon will be examined further, through to establishing delivery priorities during this time period in the
draft report.

The summary gaps to 2058 for the whole of the release area are as follows:

Sub-district — district

* 1 x sub-district integrated multipurpose community centre (additional to currently planned),
* 1 x library space (additional to currently planned),

* 2 xyouth centres,

* 1 x community arts centre,

* 1 x co-located performing arts facility (e.g. public access to High School performing arts facility which would be
subject to a joint user agreement).

Neighbourhood — local
e 7 x youth friendly spaces,
* 406 x childcare places,

e School Infrastructure NSW and the NSW Department of Education are the responsible authorities that will
investigate the need for new school infrastructure within the West Dapto Urban Release Area. It would be
through their investigations that any gaps would be identified and addressed.

e 31xGPs,
* 1 xlocal medical centre,
e 7 x community creative practice spaces,

* Local cultural infrastructure, including places for local cultural participation and presentation.

Table 19 over page provides an overview of identified provision gaps across key infrastructure types. It is an extract
from the more detailed Benchmarking Analysis at Appendix C which sets out the needs analysis undertaken
across all infrastructure types — those with and without identified gaps.
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Table 19 Provision gaps across the release area to 2058

Infrastructure type Benchmark Gap by 2058 Year Comments on identified gaps, delivery opportunities and considerations

Infrastructure with an (number/ size) (quantum/ Year in which gap

identified gap floorspace) arises based on

population growth
threshold

Sub-district 1: 20-30,000 0.9 2058 The existing supply of integrated multipurpose facilities is limited to the Dapto town centre. While this facility

multipurpose residents provides some access, the addition of a district scale multipurpose facility in Bong Bong will support

community centre 2000sgm+ accessibility and capacity for the WDURA. The Bong Bong facility is assumed to be of a benchmarked size

2000sgm+ that corresponds to the Wollongong SIPF sub-district facility — and with the inclusion of a library, should be at
least 3,600m2 (inclusive of library floorspace).
There is a spatial gap in access to an integrated multipurpose facility by 2058 for stages 4 and 5. The delivery
of a multipurpose facility in Calderwood would alleviate the spatial and population-based gap — however, it is
noted that the facility is expected to be approx. 1,120sqm falling short of the benchmarked size. Consider the
delivery of library floorspace of at least 1500m2 in Marshall Mount town centre, as part of a larger co-located
facility. It is noted that this could be of a ‘local scale’, being between 1,500 and 2,400m2.

Library space 1:20-30,000 0.9 2058 As above, due to co-location.

(standalone or residents

combined)

1500sqm+

Neighbourhood 600sgm-+ 0.7 n/a No identified gap in quantity to service the population across the WDURA.

multipurpose

community centre . " . . .
However, stage 4 has an identified gap for local community centres, noting no proposed supply. Consider
delivery of a community centre in Avondale village centre, by 2048.

Youth friendly spaces | 120-600sqm 7.2 2028 Smaller, integrated youth friendly spaces have a significant gap by 2028 across the WDURA. Consider
opportunities to provide spaces that cater towards the youth population as part of local and district community
facilities.

Youth centre 600-2,400sgm 1.9 2038 Co-locate youth centre with district park. Refer to best practice examples, including Waterloo, on the co-

Ethos Urban | 2210779

location of open space and youth centres. Incorporate incubation, for example a park with close location with a
town centre with commercial uses as well. Talk to community service providers about need, and ideally
consider locations close to existing urban areas (noting higher than average youth disadvantage).
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Infrastructure type Benchmark Gap by 2058 Year Comments on identified gaps, delivery opportunities and considerations
Infrastructure with an (number/ size) (quantum/ Year in which gap
identified gap floorspace) arises based on
population growth
threshold
Childcare places 406.1 2038 Consider methods to facilitate supply through town centres, including through encouraging existing local

providers. It is noted that Council is not usually the provider of childcare centres, and service provision is
desired through external providers. Council therefore plays a facilitation role in the provision of childcare
places.

Government primary
school

TBC by School
Infrastructure NSW

TBC by School
Infrastructure NSW

Government high
school

Ethos Urban | 2210779

TBC by School
Infrastructure NSW

TBC by School
Infrastructure NSW

The West Dapto Urban Release Area is located within range of several existing government schools including:
. Dapto High School

. Dapto Public School

. Mount Brown Public School

. Lake Lands Public School

Council staff understand that to plan for schools School Infrastructure NSW and the Department of Education
considers (amongst other things) long term trends in population growth, the likely uptake of new housing, by
those with school aged children, the ratio of government and non-government school attendance and the size
and location of existing schools.

It is understand that the State would only establish new schools where there are no other options available and
budget approval has been given. Where schools are required, the Department of Education will negotiate with
housing developers and consult with local councils to place them near transport and town centres and
encourage the use of shared amenities including sports fields and halls. Wollongong Council staff have been
advised by School Infrastructure NSW that the proposed growth and projections for the wider West Dapto
Urban Release Area, indicate that there will be a requirement for additional schools and support services
infrastructure to service the proposed growth. The possible need for new school sites will also be subject to
future population and housing forecasts issued by the Department of Planning and Environment within the
NSW Common Planning Assumptions.

School Infrastructure NSW will undertake ongoing consultation with Wollongong City Council staff and the
NSW Department of Planning and Environment as detailed planning progresses for the release area and will
monitor the situation.
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Infrastructure type Benchmark Gap by 2058 Year Comments on identified gaps, delivery opportunities and considerations
Infrastructure with an (number/ size) (quantum/ Year in which gap
identified gap floorspace) arises based on
population growth
threshold
GP 31.4 2038 Consider methods to facilitate supply through town centres, including through encouraging existing local
providers.
Health hub 11 2048 Discuss delivery of a health hub with Health infrastructure NSW (as part of consultation) for the delivery of a
co-located health services hub in Dapto (to service the entire WDURA).
Community practice 120-600sqm 7.2 2028 Refer to stages.
space
Community arts 2,400-3,600sgqm 1.4 2038 Consider co-location with significant heritage homestead.
centre
Performing arts 2,400-3,600sgm 1.4 2038 District Performing Arts Facility provision opportunity within government schools should be explored, which

facility

would be subject to a Shared Use Agreement with the relevant government agency.
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11.3 Summary gaps - stages

Neighbourhood and local scale infrastructure has been extracted and benchmarked separately per stage. The
outcomes of this analysis have been integrated into the draft recommendations. It is noted that, based on existing
and planned provision, gaps in essential infrastructure includes:

* 1 x gap in neighbourhood community centre in stage 4

* While is understood that the proposed growth and projections for the wider West Dapto Urban Release Area,
indicate that there will be a requirement for additional schools and support services infrastructure to service the
proposed growth, any need for new government school infrastructure within West Dapto would be investigated
by SINSW and NSW Department of Education.

11.4 Summary gaps — Horsley

11.4.1 Quantitative assessment

The following benchmark-based gap analysis audits community and cultural facilities for the identified existing
population of Horsley (noting, again, that all future growth is considered qualitatively here, and quantitatively in
stage 1/2 of the main report).

The key findings section below outlines the relationship between these gaps and the broader gaps identified for the

WDURA.

Table 20 Benchmark Gap Analysis for Horsley

Supply access within Demand from

Service Benchmark catchment, based on Horslev residents Gap
SIPF hierarchy y

Sub-district multlpurpose 120,000 9 04 16
community centre

Library space (standalone or 120,000 1 04 06

combined)

Nelghbourhooq multipurpose 1:10,000 1 07 03
community centre

Youth friendly space 1:8,000 1 0.9 -0.1

Youth centre 1:30,000 0 0.2 0.2

Childcare places 1:4 ‘ 239 130 -109

Government primary school TBC by School Infrastructure NSW
Government high school TBC by School Infrastructure NSW
GP 1:1,000 ‘ 3 7 4

Local medical centre 1:25,000 1 0.3 -0.7

Health hub 1:50,000 1 0.1 -0.9

Cultural pragtlce - community 18,000 0 09 09

practice space
Community arts centre 1:40,000 0 0.2 0.2
Performing arts facility 1:40,000 0 0.2 0.2

Source: Ethos Urban
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11.4.2 Engagement findings for Horsley

Careways, the current managers of Horsley Community Centre, were engaged as part of the broader WDURA
social infrastructure consultation to discuss community infrastructure needs. Key findings from this discussion are
as follows:

Horsley community centre is a good facility and includes a sensory room through NDIS funding and youth drop-
in services.

However, the Horsley Community Centre is often understaffed by Careways, with only five Careways staff
members across four facilities. This is because of limitations with funding for Careways as an organisation.

Safety is important, particularly with the young people in Horsley. Consider safety in green spaces, and
ensuring activation to keep the space invigorated with many different events and programs.

Need to condense activity in Horsley to allow for activation and passive surveillance. The Horsley Community
Centre would be an ideal location for increased activity.

Young people in Horsley are struggling with things to do in the area

- ldeally entertainment and recreation activities should be within their local neighbourhoods in the WDURA.
At the moment, there is a drain of kids during the weekend and at night to the other side of the highway into
Dapto town centre and the coast because all of the activities and services are perceived to be there.
Parents would prefer that kids stay within their local area.

- Cater for kids that are not ‘sporty’ with alternative activities and services, including through the arts.

- Young people are currently using the ‘Maccas’ in Dapto as the main hangout point, and Dapto Town Centre
is not considered to be a safe place by the community.

More broadly, community led arts spaces and cultural activity will be very important going forward, but should
be integrated in Horsley with the existing community centre to create a truly multipurpose space.
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11.4.3 Qualitative assessment and key findings

Cultural

Consideration of cultural activities for Horsley is recommended. It is noted that a gap of ~1 community creative
practice space is recommended for a population of this size, notwithstanding surrounding growth. Consider
opportunities for a community work shed or community garden space in partnership with local services and
organisations. Additionally, consider the functionality of the existing Horsley Community Centre and any
opportunities to incorporate creative practice spaces within this facility. It is noted that the use of arts-based
intervention is supported in stakeholder engagement.

Youth spaces

The Horsley Community Centre and Gerringulli park is considered an existing youth-friendly space. Consideration of
upgrades to this space and the connection between the centre and the adjacent open space is recommended. As
the primary civic node in Horsley, it is important that existing open space is safe for kids of all ages to gather.

Safety, and the need to provide youth activities within Horsley, was strongly noted through stakeholder
engagement.

GPs

It is noted that the existing local medical centre provides three GPs for Horsley residents. While this does not meet
benchmarks for a population of this size — it is considered that residents have proximate access to the Dapto Town
Centre, including sufficient quantum of GPs and medical centre services.

District infrastructure

The addition of Horsley residents to benchmarks for district scale infrastructure, including community arts and
performing arts facilities, health hubs, high schools and large-scale community centres, will not change overall
recommendations or rounded gap. However, the provision of these larger services will be made slightly more urgent
in response to the higher population planned for. It is noted that much of this district infrastructure is and is planned
to be provided in close proximity to Horsley, including in the Dapto Town Centre and Bong Bong Town Centre.

Economic development and activation

Social infrastructure, including the Horsley Community Centre, can be further activated through surrounding
economic development. The existing access to services is weak, and there is a lack of a defined centre in Horsley.
Opportunities to increase the presence of small business, and community passive ‘bumping’ spaces, would provide
important community cohesion and connection opportunities — while supporting the economic prosperity of
Horsley’s residents.

Additionally, supporting creative enterprises and incubator programs within the existing community centre would
both activate it through third party programming and provide increased economic and social opportunity for young
people in Horsley.

11.5 Summary delivery priorities, challenges and opportunities

The table over page sets out key delivery priorities, challenges and opportunities to 2058.
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Community infrastructure Identified Gap threshold Summary community need Delivery challenges and opportunities
need gap by 2058
Infrastructure hierarchy 2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433
Sub-district Integrated 1 Deliver Raw gap | There is strong community demand in | Aim to secure funding in shor‘(—medium term (by ~2032) for land and fit
multipurpose facilities Bong arising the short-medium term for Bong Bong O,Ut' Through ey p'a”,”'”Q forths|Bong|Bongjtownicentrejensurela
. . site is selected and contributions for land secured.
Bong community centre and library to be
- facility by funded and delivered.
Sub-district 2038 There are opportunities for the Bong Bong multipurpose community
centre and library to serve as a catalyst for the town centre. Consider
Longer term need will also arise for | onnortunities to fund in liaison with developers in town centre through
an additional sub-district multipurpose voluntary planning agreements.
facility.
Library space 1 Deliver Raw gap | As above, noting library space is As above.
(co-located) Bong arising recommended to be incorporated into
Bong multipurpose community centres. . . ’ . .
tacility b Note particularly the importance of library space to community cohesion
acili
Sub-district 2038y Y and capacity building, serving as important anchors (see research
above).
Neighbourhood 0 There is no overall gap for the Neighbourhood community centres play a critical role in local community

multipurpose community
centre

Neighbourhood

WDURA, presuming that the existing
quantity of local community facilities
is delivered.

Spatial gaps have been noted, and
quantitative gaps arising, for a
neighbourhood community centre in
stage 4.

building. Ensuring accessibility to facilities within walking distance (800m-
1km) is therefore vital to success.

These smaller-scale facilities are conducive to voluntary planning
agreements given their significant benefit to local communities, returning
advantages to developer as well as the local community.

Non-council bookable
space

Not classified

Although not assessed in quantitative
benchmarking, these spaces are an
important consideration in future
infrastructure planning.

Council plays an indirect role, and should seek to recognise and realised
opportunities when they arise. This is best achieved through planning
avenues — for example upon planning proposal or development
application for sporting facilities, and in the master planning of town
centres.
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Community infrastructure Identified Gap threshold Summary community need Delivery challenges and opportunities
need gap by 2058
Infrastructure hierarchy 2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433
For example, incorporating within
new recreation infrastructure and
through sporting facilities are vital
opportunities to provide adequate
spaces for communities.
Youth-friendly space 7 x2 x2 x2 x1 Designing spaces for young people is | Council should look to recognise and realise opportunities for young
between | potween | between | between | @n important consideration for the people to feel included and welcomed.
2022- b _ | delivery of community facilities and
Local 203 2028- 2038 2048 ry j y
open space and rec.
2038 2048 2058 P P Ideally, this should arise at the design stage of new community
infrastructure and open space — informing a key component of design
It is noted that West Dapto is briefs for these facilities.
currently and is expected to have a
younger demographic, with higher- . . -
o Engaging with young people can help to further ensure that new facilities
than-average numbers of families and . .
i and master planned centres cater to their needs, as well as creating a
younger people. This generates . ] i
X 3 sense of ownership and connection with these spaces
particular community need for spaces
for younger people.
Youth centre 1 Raw gap Youth centres are a higher order The Waterloo Youth Centre is a recommended model of delivery, which
arising facility that seeks to co-locate youth integrates indoor space with surrounding open space to minimise cost
District oriented services, and provide a and maximise opportunities to interact with natural elements.
istri
central node and touch point for
access to this demographic. L . X
While it is important to have an adequate quantity of space in such a
centre, successful designs have been achieved with as little as 200-
There is community need arising by | 400sqm of indoor space when integrated with substantial open space.
2038 for a youth centre — a dedicated
facility for youth to gather and access L i . i i
i . ) Close liaison with youth service providers and younger people will be
services peculiar to their needs. . . " i
integral to success of this facility, to create a sense of belonging and
ownership that is vital to younger peoples’ health and wellbeing.
Consider engagement in siting and design.
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Community infrastructure
need

Infrastructure hierarchy

Identified
gap by 2058

Gap threshold

2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433

Summary community need

Delivery challenges and opportunities

Seniors space

Not classified

As above

Close engagement with service providers and aged care facilities to
identify opportunities.

Community Sheds and
Gardens

Not classified

Community gardens provide excellent
outdoor meeting spaces, providing
opportunities for connection with
nature and casual social interaction,
which leads to social capital building
over time.

They are important building blocks for
local social cohesion and capital
building — critical for a new release
area.

There are opportunities within the current planned open space and
community facilities to provide this infrastructure type, which does require
some operational oversight or management, while being community run.

They are a cost-effective model of providing community space, while
being easily deliverable and with a substantial social return on
investment.

WDURA offers extensive opportunities when capitalised at the outset —
including through open space and the potential use of challenging
easements.

Co-working/business
incubator spaces

Not classified

New patterns of living and working
arising in the post pandemic era are
generating economic development
opportunities for start-up enterprises.

These bring social and economic
capital benefits and cohesion —
bringing together local enterprise
creators.

Tying together with training and
development, there is community

These models will require market feasibility testing, separate to
community need. A targeted assessment is recommended to best gauge
opportunities.

These spaces can be delivered through private developers.

These spaces provide substantial opportunities for the activation of local
town centres — making them important considerations for the economic
and social layers of master planning for these future centres.
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Community infrastructure Identified Gap threshold Summary community need Delivery challenges and opportunities
need gap by 2058
Infrastructure hierarchy 2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433
need for economic development and
youth-focused training and education.
Aboriginal community To be determined in engagement with | Delivering for and with Aboriginal community members to ensure
space Aboriginal stakeholders and culturally appropriate. Having cultural space is important to community
community members. identity and capacity building.
District
Places of worship Faith and spiritual practices are an Engagement with faith organisations and their property development
important part of any community, teams in the surrounding area will enable opportunities to be identified.
Local supporting community cohesion and | These organisations should be involved in the master planning stage of
identity and serving as an anchor for | town centres to identify opportunities for investment and third party
local residents. delivery of social infrastructure.
They are nodes of community Faith based organisations have capital to be invested in new
services, with significant outreach infrastructure — making them important strategic partners in the
and programs and often providing development of active and vibrant new communities.
community services to all residents,
regardless of their faith. o . X
Multi-faith prayer rooms, and collaboration generally, can provide
significant opportunities for new communities.
Childcare 406 Demand WDURA has a high childcare need Private delivery typically. Gauge delivery through private developers as
for identified through demographics. commercial propositions in VPAs and neighbourhood plans.
childcare These facilities also support the
Neighbourhood PP .
peaks appeal of the area for new families
around and homemakers — essential for
2048 at catalysing investment and growth in
1,368 the release area.
places
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Community infrastructure Identified Gap threshold Summary community need Delivery challenges and opportunities

need gap by 2058

Infrastructure hierarchy 2028 2038 2048 2058

Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433

Co-locating with schools and retail
centres allows childcare to serve as a
community anchor.

Government primary TBC by School Infrastructure NSW SINSW and the NSW Department of Education will investigate the need for new school infrastructure within West

school Dapto. Council staff understand that SINSW will undertake ongoing consultation with Council and the NSW
Department of Planning and Environment (DPE) as detailed planning progresses for the release area and will
monitor the situation.

Local

Government secondary

school

Sub-district

Creative infrastructure — 8 x x2 x2 x2 x1 The cultural life of a place is an Incorporate community practice spaces into all new community facilities.

Practice Local between |porveen |between |between |important partof social life — it is Engage with the local creative community to further assess demand.

community 2022- 2028- 2038- 2048- therefore critical to incorporate
: 2028 cultural infrastructure into places.
Various practice 2038 2048 2058 s Explore opportunities in open space and private spaces to provide
Spaces practice spaces, including potential makers spaces in industrial areas or
co-located with community infrastructure.
Creative infrastructure — 1 x district Gap arising between Larger scale creative infrastructure, Liaise with Create NSW for funding opportunities.
Presentation community 2038-48 particularly in the presentation of

Various

arts centre

1 x district
performing
arts facility

cultural output, is vital to the creative
success of communities.

It is noted that higher order facilities
support the activation and growth of
town centres — and is supported by
Wollongong City Council’s strategic
work (see earlier in report).

Funding can be a challenge — there are opportunities through state
government arts agencies and other channels including third party
private or not-for-profit providers.

Actively explore opportunities for shared use of facilities.
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Community infrastructure
need

Infrastructure hierarchy

Identified
gap by 2058

Gap threshold

2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433

Summary community need

Delivery challenges and opportunities

These facilities can serve as a
destination and a community focal
point, creating significant economic
development opportunities and
increasing social dynamism by
attracting people from outside the
area.

Explore opportunities for private delivery in town centres, including
through VPAs and in the adaptive re-use of heritage homesteads.

Creative infrastructure —
Participation

Neighbourhood

Consider opportunities to encourage
local participation in culture through
the protection and enhancement of
existing assets.

Strong argument for historical and
organic planning significance,
choosing locations that are ideally
located for community purposes (i.e.
co-located with hills, open space).

Strong example of opportunity in
Wongawilli with the existing Coral
Vale homestead currently occupied
by developer as an information and
sales centre.

Social connector — creating
connection with landscape and
heritage and preserving these places
for activation and/or community use.

Voluntary planning agreements for all new stages should ensure that any
heritage listed homestead is protected as public open space surrounding,

and either community use OR as a commercial use with public facing

opportunities (e.g. café, coworking hub, creative enterprise, local heritage

and history museum, hospitality).

Consider funding avenues through Heritage NSW for the preservation of
these homesteads — and cultural opportunities through Create NSW.
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Community infrastructure Identified Gap threshold Summary community need Delivery challenges and opportunities
need gap by 2058
Infrastructure hierarchy 2028 2038 2048 2058
Residents | Residents | Residents | Residents
19,678 34,575 49,477 57,433
Local medical centre 1 Gap Local medical centres are an Commercially delivered.
arising essential community service and
focal point — ideally located within all ’ . . . i )
Local ) . Council’s role lies in flagging opportunities with developers and ensuring
town centres to provide accessible . )
i that medical centres are supported in land use plans.
access to health services.
Economic development plans for these town centres, and the WDURA
generally, will be vital to attracting private providers of health services to
the release area from an early stage.
General practitioner (GP) 31 Gap of 8 | Gap of 23 | Gap of 31 | As above As above
arising arising arising
Neighbourhood
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PART F: OPEN SPACE AND RECREATION NEEDS ANALYSIS
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In calculating the spatial requirement for sport in WDURA, two methodologies have been used.

121 Method 1 Demand Analysis Model

The ‘Otium Analytics’ Demand Analysis Model determines the estimated sport participants across all activities and
uses a range of expert informed assumptions to determine the number of sport facilities required and the amount of
space (measured in hectares) needed to accommodate not only the fields of play, but ancillary spaces such as car
parking and amenities.

Demand for sporting facilities is modelled using a combination of the following data:

* Available sport activity participation data for the population.

* Modelling of the capacity of fields, courts or other facilities in terms of the number of users they can
accommodate.

* Determination of the areas required to accommodate actual playing surface and ancillary space required for
different facilities.

* Setting parameters for the modelled facilities around hours of operation, differences between training and
competition use and average lengths of seasons relative to each sport.

Overall, the model provides:

* Total number of participants per activity and by facility type
* Number of facilities per activity and facility type

* Spatial demand by activity and facility type, including playing space and overall space.

INPUTS ANALYSIS OUTPUTS

PARTICIPATION
Participation rates sourced survey data, Ausplay or other PARTICIPATION
relevant sources. BY S PO RT

DEMAND

Anticipated access demand from participants and sports. FIELD HOURS BY
This is assessed in annual required hours. SPORT

DEMAND

ANALYSIS
CAPACITY MODEL

The amount of use a single field or court and be used REQU IRED
before field degradation is likely to occur. FACILTIES

SCENARIOS

Demand generated by population and the impacts of SPATIAL

changes to the quality and participation.

DEMAND (Ha)

Figure 21 Otium’s Demand Analysis Model

The Demand Analysis Model does not consider accessibility and travel time. Catchment mapping is to be
undertaken separately to the demand modelling.

For outdoor sport, the ‘Otium Analytics’ Demand Analysis Model used NSW AusPlay Data to indicate the following
requirements for forecast population of 57,433 by 2058.
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Table 21 Demand Analysis Model Outputs for WDURA
Sport Fields Playing Area per Ancillary Space per Unit Total Space Per Total Space Required
Required Unit (Ha) Unit by 2058
(Ha) Ha) (Ha)
AFL 5 2.47 1.73 4.20 20.995
Athletics 1 2.01 1.407 3.42 3.417
Baseball 1 1.81 1.267 3.08 3.077
Cricket 10 1.64 1.15 2.79 27.88
Football 14 0.90 0.63 1.53 21.42
Hockey 1 0.9 0.63 1.53 1.53
(Grass)
League 1 1.07 0.749 1.82 1.819
Netball 8 0.1 0.05 0.15 1.2
Softball 1 0.6 0.42 1.02 1.02
Tennis 14 0.1 0.05 0.15 21
Touch 1 0.5 0.35 0.85 0.85
Union 1 1.26 0.882 2.14 2.142
TOTAL 87.45

Otium Planning Group has then applied assumptions to co-location of sporting codes to further refine the spatial
requirements for sport infrastructure in WDURA. These assumptions include:

1. Providing additional space per rectangular field. This allows for effective co-location of rectangular and oval
based sports. It also ensures warm up areas as well as mini and modified football fields that assist to cater for

the strong demand for junior sport that occurs in new release areas such as WDURA.

2. That at least 8 cricket ovals can be co-located with rectangular fields or winter (AFL) ovals. This will allow for at
least 2 cricket ovals to be used year-round and help respond to increased demand for annual participation in

this sport.

Based on the above assumptions, the table below identities the outdoor sport requirements for WDURA by 2058.

Table 22 Outdoor Sport Requirements for WDURA with consideration to dual-use

Field Type Required Playing Area per Ancillary Space per Total Space Per Total Space

Units Unit Unit Unit Required by 2058
(Ha) (Ha) Ha) (Ha)

Winter Ovals 5 2.47 1.73 4.20 20.995
Rectangular Field 17 1.30 0.70 2.00 34

Athletics 1 2.01 1.407 3.42 3417
Courts 22 0.1 0.05 0.15 3.3
Diamond Sports 2 1.205 1.267 247 4.944

Year Round Summer |2 1.64 1.15 2.79 5.576

Oval

TOTAL 72.232
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12.2 Method 2 Benchmarking

In the preparation of the yet to be published Greater Sydney Sport Infrastructure Plan, the Office of Sport collected
sport facility data in 2018 across each of the five districts of Greater Sydney. The quantum of various categories of
sport infrastructure were calculated against existing population to determine existing facility provision benchmarks.

The Western City District of Greater Sydney includes eight Local Government Areas, many of which provide for
green field development similar to the West Dapto Urban Release Area. The data collected by the Office of Sport
indicated the following provision rates across the Western City District:

* One full sized equivalent playing field for every 2,015 residents.
* One tennis court for every 4,612 residents
* One sealed netball court for every 3,849 residents

These provision rates have been used as the basis to undertake a secondary benchmarking exercise to determine
the amount of public open space required for outdoor sport in the West Dapto Urban Release Areas. The
benchmarks provided above were calculated against the forecast population and utilised key assumptions to
determine the quantities of public open space required. Key spatial assumptions included:

* That a minimum of two full full-sized equivalent playing fields should be provided at each sporting site with a
minimum of 5ha per site

e That 0.6ha is required to cater for a four-court facility which includes ancillary space for car parking and
amenities.®

Based on this benchmarking approach, a total of 75.232ha of outdoor sport space was calculated to service the
forecast WDURA population of 57,433 by 2058.

The table below outlines the provision rate for the proposed Public Open Space framework in WDURA.

® Based on the Westem City District data collected by the Office of Sport in 2018 for the ‘Greater Sydney District Sport Infrastructure Plan’. Please NOTE, that this data is the property of the Office of

Sport. Any further information required specific to the referenced benchmarks should be directed to the Office of Sport. The data is not publicly available, however, access to the data can be requested.
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Recommended Quantity for Outdoor Sport Provision
The provision of 75.232ha of public open space for outdoor sport is recommended for WDURA based on:

1. The large number of young families expected to reside in WDURA and the associated demand on outdoor sport
participation.

2. The diversity of the Australian sporting landscape and the need to consider a range of other outdoor sporting
demands such as BMX, skate, basketball and other sporting codes.

3. The need to consider long term field renovation works that will see a number of playing fields not playable each
year during upgrades that are required to ensure safety and quality is achieved.

4. The desire to have the capacity to respond to changing sport participation landscape and evolving demands.
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Table 23 provides a summary of the existing and planned provision for sport in WDURA.

Summary of Land needed for Sport

Table 23 Existing and planned provision of District Sport in WDURA
Stage of Contributions Indicative Location / Address Indicative Functional Comments
WDURA Plan 2020 Ref Land Area  Area (Ha)
(Ha)
STAGE 1/2 |NA lan McLennan Oval 9.9 5.3 Non-functional area includes
50 Wyllie Rd, Kembla Grange road reserve and_land occupied
by dense vegetation
STAGE 1/2 | 0S01 Adjacent to Darkes Town 9.4 9.4 Concept masterplan completed
Centre and conservation land
STAGE 1/2 |0S06 Adjacent to Wongawilli Village | 4.5 2 Site is majorly constrained,
genge —along West Dapto leaving only 2Ha as Functional/
oa Fit-for-purpose area. Additional
land cannot be acquired to meet
land suitability for sport
provision.
It is recommended to reclassify
0S06 from District Sport to
District Recreation. In order to
meet land suitability
requirement for sport, it is
recommended to increase the
size of 0S10 and OS11 as
noted below.
STAGE 1/2 |0S10 Adjacent to Jersey Farm Village |4 4 Recommended increase in size
Centre from 4Ha to 5Ha to meet land
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.
STAGE 1/2 | 0S11 Adjacent to Bong Bong Town 3 3 Recommended increase in size
Centre from 3Ha to 10Ha to meet land
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.
SUB TOTAL provision | 23.70 Ha
STAGE 3 |0S16 Adjacent to Community Leisure |4 4 Recommended increase in size
& Recreation Centre from 4Ha to 10Ha to meet land
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.
If no further land is available
around OS16, a new park with
an area of 10Ha will be required
to meet sport provision in Stage
3.
SUB TOTAL provision |4 Ha
STAGE4 |0S19 Adjacent to Huntley Village 4 4 Recommended increase in size
Centre and residential area from 4Ha to 5Ha to meet land
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.
STAGE 4 |0S20 Adjacent to Avondale Village 4 4 Recommended increase in size
Centre and residential area from 4Ha to 10Ha to meet land
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Stage of Contributions Indicative Location / Address Indicative Functional Comments
WDURA Plan 2020 Ref Land Area  Area (Ha)
(Ha)
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.
SUB TOTAL provision |8 Ha
STAGE5 |0S23 North side along Marshall Mount | 4 35 Recommended increase in size

Road & adjacent to Marshall
Mount Town centre

from 3.5Ha to 5Ha to meet land
suitability criteria for District
Sport provision.

SUB TOTAL provision | 3.5 Ha

TOTAL |39.20 Ha

The table below provides a summary of area required for sport based on the benchmarking developed in Section
12.1 and 12.2. A gap in sport provision is identified across all stages of WDURA. This gap needs to be catered

through either increasing size of existing parks to meet land suitability criteria for sport or identifying new parks to
accommodate required District Sport infrastructure.

Table 24 Area required for District Sport across WDURA stages
WDURA STAGE POPULATION BY AREA REQUIRED FOR EXISTING AND GAP IN SPORT
2058 SPORT (Ha) PLANNED PROVISION PROVISION

@1.31Ha/1000 FOR SPORT (Ha)
PERSONS (Ha)

STAGE 1/2 18,413 2412 23.70 0.42

STAGE 3 14,009 | 18.35 4.00 | 14.35

STAGE 4 12,651 16.57 8.00 8.57

STAGE 5 12,360 ‘ 16.19 3.50 ‘ 12.69

TOTAL 57,433 75.24 39.20 36.03

Findings of the gap analysis:

1. A shortfall of 36.03Ha is identified in the provision of sport across all five stages of WDURA.

2. The following is recommended to meet the identified shortfall:

a) Increase the area of existing parks identified for sport (i.e. 0S10, 0S11, 0S16, 0S19, 0S20 and 0S23) to
recommended sizes. Section 13.1 outlines the recommended site-specific increase in land areas.

b) OS18 is identified as local park. However, to meet the required land for sport provision in STAGE 3, it is
recommended to reclassify OS18 from Local Park to District Sport and increase the size from 2Ha to 5Ha.

c) Identify a new park with 10Ha area in STAGE 5 to meet the required need for sport provision.

d) In circumstances where further land acquisition is constrained around an existing park, provision of a new
park with the recommended functional area for sport is required.
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12.4 Indoor and aquatic needs

In 2019, Otium Planning Group prepared the ‘West Dapto Community Leisure and Recreation Centre Needs
Assessment’. This assessment provides Council with a strategic direction on the service needs, facility mix and
preferred site locations for a district level Community Leisure and Recreation Centre.

Considering the study research, consultation and analysis, the following staged facility mix is recommended for the
West Dapto Centre.

Table 25 Staged facility mix recommendations

Short Term 0-15 Years Medium Term 15-20 Long Term 20+ Years  Subject to Future
Years Confirmation of
Demand
Facilities Entry and Administration Tennis Centre Outdoor Netball Centre
Aquatic Centre Adventure Park
Health and Fitness Centre Multi-purpose Indoor
Wellness Centre Courts
Multi-purpose Community Rooms
Other indoor areas

12.4.1 Site analysis

The following locations as potential sites for the development of a new community leisure and recreation centre in
the West Dapto Release Area were assessed against a series of site selection criteria:

1. Reed Park, Bong Bong Road, Cleveland

2. North-east of Daisy Bank Drive, off Cleveland Road, Cleveland

3. Western side of Daisy Bank Drive, off Cleveland Road, Cleveland
4. Southern side of Cleveland Road, Cleveland

5. Darkes Road Town Centre, north of West Dapto Road, Darkes.

The analysis confirmed all potential sites are capable of supporting the proposed West Dapto Leisure Centre.
However, Site 4 — Southern side of Cleveland Road, Cleveland was recommended based on:

1. lts suitability across most criteria; and

2. lts adjacency to a potential district sports park. The district sports park may have a focus on football. This would
support the establishment of a major multi-purpose sports hub consistent with broader facility provision and
design trends.

Table 26 Indicative West Dapto Community Leisure and Recreation Centre Areas

Centre Area GFA (m2)
Entry and Administration 640
Aquatic Areas 3,628
Health and Fitness 1,730
Wellness Centre 132
Multi-purpose rooms 340
Multi-purpose indoor courts (3) 3,295
Other Indoor Areas 330
Indicative GFA 10,095

In addition to the above area i.e., 10,095 sgm (1 Ha) identified for the building footprint of the West Dapto
Community Leisure and Recreation Centre, consideration should be accounted for ancillary area required for
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parking, circulation, access, etc. Factoring in the ancillary area, the total area required for indoor sport and
recreation spaces for WDURA is approximately 2.5ha. This excludes space for the proposed co-location of
other activities such as netball, tennis/ multi-use courts, sportsgrounds, active transport links and youth focused
outdoor recreation.

The study recommended provision of one district level indoor court facility for West Dapto. The indoor courts were
required to be accommodated within the new community leisure and recreation centre in line with the latest trend of
the facility developed as a precinct or community ‘hub’ to allow a broader range of sport and recreation opportunities
and to maximise management efficiencies and financial sustainability.
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A quantitative assessment of public open space requirements for the West Dapto Urban Release Area has been
undertaken to understand the functional open space land requirements by stage area and typology over 10-year

increments.

NOTE: the calculation of land needed for sport is explained in Section 12.3.

Table 27 Quantitative Assessment Public Open Space for the West Dapto Urban Release Area (Note figures
are cumulative)
Year Open Space Typology Stage 1/2 Stage 3 Stage 4 Stage 5 Total
(ha) (ha) (ha) (ha) (ha)
By 2018 Local 2.994 2.994
District Recreation 0.951 0.951
District Sport 4.086 4.086
Urban Release Area Wide 0.811 0.811
Total 8.842 8.842
By 2028 Local 12.066 3.908 1.103 1.813 18.891
District Recreation 3.834 1.242 0.350 0.576 6.002
District Sport 16.465 5.333 1.505 2.475 25.778
Urban Release Area Wide 3.268 1.058 0.299 0.491 5.116
Total 35.633 11.541 3.257 5.355 55.787
By 2038 Local 15.804 7.529 4.090 5.769 33.192
District Recreation 5.021 2.392 1.299 1.833 10.545
District Sport 21.567 10.274 5.581 7.872 45.293
Urban Release Area Wide 4.280 2.039 1.108 1.562 8.990
Total 46.673 22.235 12.077 17.036 98.020
By 2048 Local 17.676 12.883 7.474 9.465 47.498
District Recreation 5.616 4.093 2.374 3.007 15.090
District Sport 24121 17.580 10.198 12.915 64.815
Urban Release Area Wide 4.787 3.489 2.024 2.563 12.864
Total 52.201 38.046 22.070 27.950 140.267
By 2058 Local 17.676 13.449 12.145 11.866 55.136
District Recreation 5.616 4.273 3.859 3.770 17.517
District Sport 24121 18.352 16.573 16.192 75.237
Urban Release Area Wide 4.787 3.642 3.289 3.214 14.933
Total 52.201 39.716 35.866 35.041 162.823
2058 Gap Existing and Planned Public
Analysis Open Space* 44.54 10.50 12.00 8.00 75.04
Required additional functional
Public Open Space** 7.66 29.22 23.87 27.04 87.78

*Excludes non-functional existing open space.

** Does not consider functionality of all planned open space. This requires investigations as part of future works.
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In addition to the existing and proposed public open space, an additional 87.78Ha of functional public open space
will be required across all five stages by 2058. This includes:

* Stage 1-2: An additional 7.66Ha of functional public open space by 2058

* Stage 3: An additional 29.22Ha of functional public open space between 2028 to 2058.
* Stage 4: An additional 23.87Ha of functional public open space between 2048 to 2058
* Stage 5: An additional 27.04Ha of functional public open space between 2028 to 2058.

It is important to note that the quantum of additional public open space may increase following
functionality (fit for purpose) assessment of proposed open space sites.

13.1 Site specific open space increases

A range of increases are recommended to proposed open space sites with a key focus on the classification of
District Sport. Sport sites have very detailed and specific performance criteria that if not met, will result in the
inability to provide for a range of sporting codes. In addition, these sites provide the best opportunity for co-location
with a range of other recreation and community infrastructure.

This increase will also partially address the gap of at least an additional 87.78ha of public open space within the
West Dapto Urban Release Area and ensure future sites are fit for their intended use as per the open space

framework.

The table below recommends conversion of following parks to District Sport

Table 28 Recommended increase in area of Planned Open Spaces to meet District Sport land size

Stage of CP 2020 Current classification Proposed Indicative timing Indicative Recommended

WDURA Ref classification planned land area

area

STAGE 1/2 0s10 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2026/27 - 2028/29 |4 Ha 5Ha
OS11 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2036/37 - 2040/41 |3 Ha 10 Ha

STAGE 3 0S16 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2036/37 — 2040/41 | 4 Ha 10 Ha
0S18 Local Park District Sport 2046/47 — 2050/51 | 2 Ha 5Ha

STAGE 4 0S19 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2045/46 — 2050/51 | 4 Ha 5Ha
0S20 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2045/46 — 2050/51 | 4 Ha 10 Ha

STAGE 5 0823 Neighbourhood Park District Sport 2031/32 - 2035/36 |4 Ha 5 Ha

The above increases in sites will provide an additional 25.5ha of public open space, specifically increase in district
sport provision. If the above recommended increases are implemented, the total additional functional public open
space required by 2058 will be 62.28Ha.
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13.2 Additional public open space sites

To address the remaining of 62.28Ha of functional public open space by 2058, the following additional provision is

recommended.
Table 29 Additional Public Open Space Sites and Areas
Stage No. of Local Parks No. of District No. of District  No. of City- TOTAL no. of Area of new

At 1ha/park Recreation Sport Wide Parks new parks by parks

At 3ha/park (5-10+ ha) stage

STAGE 1/2 1 0 0 0 1 1 Ha
STAGE 3 8 1 0 1 10 26 Ha
STAGE 4 11 1 0 12 14 Ha
STAGE 5 11 1 1 13 24 Ha
TOTAL AREA |31 9 10 15 - 65 Ha
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141 Background

The purpose of this assessment is to consider the implication of the available public open space within the Horsley
area, which is contained within the West Dapto Urban Release Area. The current planning for WDURA has not
included the available supply within the established Horsley area and this memo considered how any surplus
capacity available in the area can contribute to meeting the needs of future residents in WDURA.

The suburb of Horsley falls within the geographic boundary of Stage 1/2 of West Dapto Urban Release Area
(WDURA). However, the existing Horsley release area was largely developed between 1993 and 2010 and has not
been included in the population and supply calculations for Stage 1 and 2 of WDURA. The area defined as ‘West
Horsley’ has been included in Stage 1 and 2 calculations for WDURA and consequently the following analysis does
not include population and spatial needs calculations for that area.

For the purpose of this document, ‘Horsley’ refers to the established part of the Horsley suburb, whilst the part of
Horsley located to the west of the old/established ‘Horsley’ refers to ‘the release areas in stage 1/2 directly west of
Horsley’

The IPART 2020 review referenced the following regarding the available area of existing open space for WDURA
residents,

Another 50.35 Ha of existing open space in Horsley is available to the residents of the new release area’
(Assessment of West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020 IPART, page 57).

It is assumed that the statement above refers to the existing provision of public open space (Public Open Space)
within the suburb of Horsley. IPART 2020 assessment also referenced,

‘The existing facilities in Horsley are within the geographical area of Stages 1-2. Of the 70.2 hectares, the council
estimates 19.9 hectares will serve the existing population in Horsley, leaving 50.35 hectares for the WDURA.
(Assessment of West Dapto Contributions Plan 2020 IPART, page 64).%4

14.2 Existing Public Open Space in Horsley

Horsley is currently served by 21 parks and other open spaces, accounting for 62.21 Ha of provision. Refer to the
table below for the existing park typology in Horsley:

Table 30 Typology of existing parks in Horsley

Open Space typology Number of parks

Local 10
District Recreation 1
District Sport 1
Linear Park/corridor 6
Urban Release Area Wide 0
Total 18

8 Note - that the investigation in this report and discussions with council staff have been unable to verify the source of the estimate relied
on by IPART and the assumed 70.2 ha of supply and subsequent 50.35 Ha surplus cannot be substantiated.

Ethos Urban | 2210779 141

273



West Dapto Social Infrastructure Needs Assessment and Gap Analysis | Final Draft | September 2022

14.3 Functional assessment of existing Public Open Space in Horsley

The existing Public Open Space provision was assessed to understand the functional open space within the existing
park and open space network. Functional area is defined as the net land area exclusive of constrained land such as
powerline easements, steep slopes, dense and protected vegetation, waterways, etc. Based on this assessment,

* 26.24Ha (42.18%) of the land area is identified as functional open space; and
* Approx. 58% of the existing Public Open Space provision is identified as constrained land**

** Constrained lands are often not suitable for other land use purposes such as housing, retail etc. and can be
proposed as public open space. Depending on the nature of constraints and the topography of the land, these
spaces can be of poor quality, have limited functionality and effectively be unusable for public recreation. Examples
of constrained land generally unsuitable for inclusion in the public open space (public parks) network include land
that is-under high-voltage powerline or easement, highly vegetated riparian corridors, unfavourable topography,
land impacted by frequent flooding, etc.

The following table summarises the analysis of the current and planned supply within Horsley and the actual
outcome in terms of functional (useable) land for recreation and sport. Areas are assessed for issues such
as flooding, slope, size, shape and vegetation which can significantly impede community use. (Source: West
Dapto Development Contributions Plan 2020)
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Table 31 Existin

arks and open spaces in Horsle

28 November 2022

1 0.057 0.000 0.057 NA NA Park does not exist. Lots
identified for residential.

2 | Along Horsley Drive 0.198 0.155 0.057 | Linear Park/corridor | Pedestrian pathway Stormwater drainage channel
(leading to Mullet Creek) with
vegetation on both sides.
Falls within 1% AEP Flood
Extent

3 0.136 0.094 0.0425 Local No infrastructure NO passive surveillance

4 0.057 0.000 0.057 NA NA Park does not exist. Lots
identified for residential.

5 0.056 0.000 0.056 NA NA Park does not exist. Lots
identified for residential.

6 | Robins Creek Lake 2.329 0.729 1.6 Local e Pedestrian pathway (Horsley Lake with riparian vegetation.

Dr to Ashwood PI; and Horsley Falls within 1% AEP Flood
Dr to Glenwood Grove) Extent
e 2 x Stormwater channel outlets
e Viewing deck
7 | Mullet Creek Wetland 1.835 0.415 1.42 | Linear Park/corridor | ® Pedestrian pathway along the Mullet Creek tributary and

(along Goodman PI)

western side of the lot
connecting Goodman PI to
Bong Bong Rd

wetland.
Falls within 1% AEP Flood
Extent
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8 | Gerringulli Park 2.162 1.362 0.8 Local Basketball Court Low passive surveillance
Children's playground along (one main street frontage
Bong Bong Rd only), drainage channel
running horizontally through
the park dissecting the land in
two; and on-site vegetation
Falls within 1% AEP Flood
Extent, except the children's
playground
9 | Along Horsley Drive 0.104 0.034 0.07 | Linear Park/corridor Pedestrian pathway Stormwater drainage channel
(leading to Mullet Creek) with
vegetation on both sides.
Falls within 1% AEP Flood
Extent
10 | Between Jenail Pl 0.790 0.240 0.55 | Linear Park/corridor Pedestrian pathway Stormwater